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Before the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench
Company Scheme Application No. 264 of 2017

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013; (18 of 2013)
AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed
thereunder as in force from time to time;

AND

In the matter of Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956 and other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956

AND

In the matter of Composite Scheme of Arrangement
between Reliance Communications Limited (“the
Demerged Company 1") and Reliance Telecom Limited
("the Demerged Company 2") and Aircel Limited
("Resulting Company 1" or "Transferee Company") and
Dishnet Wireless Limited ("Resulting Company 2") and
Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited (“the Transferor
Company 1") and South Asia Communications Private
Limited (“the Transferor Company 2") and their respective
Shareholders and Creditors

RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED, a company )
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies )
Act, 1956 and having its registered office at H Block, )
1 Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City, Navi Mumbai )

)

400 710. ... Applicant Company

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS
LIMITED, THE APPLICANT COMPANY ("MEETING")

To,
The Equity Shareholder(s) of Reliance Communications Limited
(“the Applicant Company" or “the Company" or "the Demerqged Company 1" or "RCom")

Notice is hereby given that by an order dated March 15, 2017, in the abovementioned Company Scheme Application
No. 264 of 2017, the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal (“Tribunal") has directed a meeting
to be held of the Equity Shareholders of the Company, for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving
with or without modification(s), the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Reliance Communications Limited
and Reliance Telecom Limited (“the Demerged Company 2" or " RTL") and Aircel Limited ("Resulting Company 1" or
"Transferee Company" or " AL") and Dishnet Wireless Limited ("Resulting Company 2" or " DWL") and Deccan Digital
Networks Private Limited (“the Transferor Company 1" or " Deccan") and South Asia Communications Private Limited
("the Transferor Company 2" or " SACPL") and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Scheme").

In pursuance of the said order and as directed therein, further notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Equity
Shareholders of the Applicant Company will be held to transact the following special business at Reliance Enerqy
Management Institute, Jogeshwari-Vikhroli Link Road, Opposite SEEPZ, North Gate No. 3, Aarey Colony, Aarey Colony
Road, Mumbai - 400065 on April 24, 2017 at 9.30 a.m. IST at which time and place, the said Equity Shareholders of
the Applicant Company are requested to attend, to consider and, if thought fit, approve with or without modification(s),
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the following Resolution under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with
requisite majority :

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("Companies Act") and the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and
subject to the approval by the requisite majority of the shareholders and / or the creditors of the Company, if any,
and as directed by the National Company Law Tribunal, and further subject to the consents, approvals and permissions
being obtained from appropriate authorities to the extent applicable or necessary approval of the Equity Shareholders
be and is hereby accorded to Composite Scheme of Arrangement among the Company, Reliance Telecom Limited,
Aircel Limited, Dishnet Wireless Limited, Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited and South Asia Communications
Private Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Scheme"), as attached to the notice.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things,
as may be considered requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively
implement the arrangements embodied in the Scheme and to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations
and/or conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench and/or any other authority(ies) while sanctioning the Arrangement embodied in the Scheme or by any authorities
under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any doubts or difficulties that may arise in giving effect
to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper."

Explanatory Statement under Section 230 read with Section 102 of the Companies Act, 201 3 along with copy of the
Scheme and other annexures including Proxy Form, Attendance Slip, Postal Ballot Form and e-voting form are enclosed
herewith. Copies of the Scheme and statement under Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013 can be obtained free
of charge at the registered office of the Company.

The Tribunal has appointed Mr. R. N. Bhardwaj failing whom Mr. A. K. Purwar, Directors of the applicant Company,
failing whom Ms. Chhaya Virani as the Chairperson of the said meeting. The abovementioned Scheme, if approved by
the meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval of the Tribunal.

Persons entitled to attend and vote at the said meeting, may vote in person or by proxy provided that a proxy in the
prescribed form, duly signed by you or your authorised signatory, is deposited at the registered office of the Company
at H Block, 1st Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City, Navi Mumbai 400 710, not later than 48 hours before the
meeting. Forms of proxy can be had at the reqgistered office of the Applicant Company.

In accordance with the applicable requlatory provisions, as an alternative to casting of votes on Poll at the meeting, the
Company has provided the Equity Shareholders with the facility for casting their votes either by way of Postal Ballot
or by way of remote e-voting using facility offered by M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited ("Karvy"). The voting
rights of Equity Shareholders shall be in proportion to their Equity Shareholding in the Company as on the Cut-off date
of close of business on Friday, March 17, 2017. The shareholders may refer to Notes to this notice for further details
on Postal Ballot and remote E-voting.

It is clarified that casting of votes by postal ballot or remote e-voting does not disentitle a Shareholder as on the Cut-
off date of March 17, 2017 from attending the Meeting. It is further clarified that the Proxies can only vote on Poll
at the meeting and not through any other mode.

R. N. Bhardwaj
Chairperson appointed for the meeting

Place: Mumbai
Date : March 17, 2017

Registered Office:

Reliance Communications Limited,

H Block, 14 Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City,
Navi Mumbai 400 710

CIN - L45309MH2004PLC147531



Notes:

(M

(10)

(11)

(12)

This Notice is being sent to the Equity Shareholders whose name appear in the Register of Members / Record
of Depositories as at the close of business on March 3, 2017 in physical mode to all the shareholders at their
reqistered address. This Notice may also be accessed on Company's Website www.rcom.co.in.

An Equity Shareholder of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of himself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. The Proxy Form duly
completed should, however, be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before
the commencement of the Meeting. A person can act as proxy on behalf of shareholders not exceeding fifty
(50) in number and / or holding in aggreqate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In
case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by shareholder(s) holding more than 10% of the total share capital of
the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

Only registered equity shareholders of the Company may attend and vote (either in person or by proxy or by
authorised representative under Section 112 and 113 of the Companies Act, 2013) at the Equity Shareholder's
meeting. The authorised representative of a body corporate which is a registered equity shareholder of the
Company may attend and vote at the meeting, provided a certified true copy of the resolution of the board of
directors or other qoverning body of the body corporate is deposited at the registered office of the Company
not later than 48 hours before the meeting authorising such representative to attend and vote at the equity
shareholders' meeting.

Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs) who are registered equity shareholders of the Company would be required
to deposit certified copies of Custodial Resolutions/Power of Attorney, as the case may be, authorizing the
individuals named therein, to attend and vote at the meeting on its behalf. These documents must be deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the meeting.

Reqistered equity shareholders are informed that in case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint
holder whose name stands first in the Register of Members of the Company in respect of such joint holding will
be entitled to vote.

Al alterations made in the proxy form should be initialled.

Shareholders are requested to hand over the enclosed Attendance Slip, duly signed in accordance with their
specimen signature(s) registered with their respective Depositories or with Applicant Company for admission to
the meeting hall.

In compliance with Section 108 and 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 and Rule 22 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regqulation 44 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2015 (‘SEBI LODR Regulations'),
the Company has also provided the facility to the Shareholders to cast their votes either by way of Postal Ballot
or through remote e-voting facility arranged by Karvy, prior to the meeting.

Shareholders whose names appears on the Register of Members / Record of Depositories as at the close of
business on Friday, March 17, 2017 ("cut-off date") will be considered for the purpose of voting and the voting
rights shall be reckoned based on the equity shareholding as on March 17, 2017. The voting rights of members
shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on cut-off date.

The Voting period for Postal Ballot shall commence on and from Saturday, March 25, 2017 at 9.00 a.m. IST and
end on Sunday, April 23, 2017 at 5.00 p.m. IST.

The Voting period for remote e-voting shall commence on and from Saturday, March 25, 2017 at 9.00 a.m. IST
and end on Sunday, April 23, 2017 at 5.00 p.m. IST.

The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by Karvy for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is
cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.
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(13)

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by
the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of postal ballot, remote e-voting
as well as voting at the meeting. Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes the member of
the Company after the cut-off date i.e. March 17, 2017 shall not be eligible to vote either through postal ballot,
remote e-voting or at the Meeting. Any recipient of this notice who has no voting rights as on the cut-off date
should treat the same as intimation only.

Members who have acquired shares after the close of business on March 3, 2017 and before the cut-off
date i.e. March 17, 2017, may approach the Company or Karvy for issuance of the User ID and Password for
exercising their right to vote by remote e-voting or for issuance of Postal Ballot.

Member(s) can opt only one mode of voting. If a Member has opted for e-voting, then he/she should not vote
by Postal Ballot and vice-versa. However, in case Members cast their vote both via Postal Ballot and e-voting,
then voting through e-voting shall prevail and voting done by Postal Ballot shall be treated as invalid.

It is clarified that votes may be cast by Shareholders either by Postal Ballot or e-voting and casting of votes
by Postal Ballot or remote e-voting does not disentitle them from attending the Meeting. Shareholder after
exercising his right to vote through Postal Ballot or e-voting shall not be allowed to vote on Poll again at the
Meeting.

The facility for voting through ballot or polling paper shall be available at the Meeting and the members attending
the meeting who have not already cast their vote by Postal Ballot or remote e-voting shall be able to exercise
their right at the meeting.

Shareholders desiring to exercise their vote by postal ballot are requested to carefully read the instructions printed
in the Postal Ballot Form and return the form duly completed and signed to the Scrutinizer so as to reach not
later than 5.00 P.M. IST on Sunday, April 23, 2017 at the reqistered office of the Company.

As directed by Hon'ble Tribunal, Mr. Anil Lohia, Partner at M/s. Dayal & Lohia, Chartered Accountants or in his
absence Mr. Rinkit Kiran Uchat, Partner at M/s. Dayal & Lohia, Chartered Accountants shall act as Scrutinizer to
scrutinize votes cast either electronically or on Postal Ballot or on Poll at the Meeting and submitting a report on
votes cast to the Chairperson of the Meeting within 48 hours from the conclusion of the meeting.

The result of the voting shall be announced by the Chairperson, upon receipt of Scrutinizer's report and the same
shall be placed on the Company's website www.rcom.co.in and on the website of https://evoting.karvy.com
within two days of the passing of the resolution at the Meeting on April 24, 2017 and communicated to the
BSE Limited ("BSE") and National Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE"), where the shares of the Company
are listed.

The documents referred to in the accompanying Explanatory Statement shall be open for inspection by the
Equity Shareholders at the Registered Office of the Applicant Company up to 1 (one) day prior to the date of the
meeting between 11:00 A.M. IST and 2:00 P.M. IST on all working days, except Saturdays, Sundays and Public
Holidays.

The Members shall refer to detailed procedure on remote e-voting and postal ballot given in the remote e-voting
instruction slip and postal ballot form.



Before the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench
Company Scheme Application No. 264 of 2017

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013; (18 of 2013)
AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed
thereunder as in force from time to time;

AND

In the matter of Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956 and other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956

AND

In the matter of Composite Scheme of Arrangement
between Reliance Communications Limited (“the
Demerged Company 1") and Reliance Telecom Limited
("the Demerged Company 2") and Aircel Limited
("Resulting Company 1" or "Transferee Company") and
Dishnet Wireless Limited ("Resulting Company 2") and
Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited (“the Transferor
Company 1") and South Asia Communications Private
Limited (“the Transferor Company 2") and their respective
Shareholders and Creditors

RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED, a company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 and having its reqistered office at H Block,

Tst

Navi Mumbai - 400 710.

)
)
)
Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City, )
)

... Applicant Company

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 230 READ WITH SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 FOR THE MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS
LIMITED DIRECTED TO BE CONVENED BY MUMBAI BENCH OF HON'BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW
TRIBUNAL

Details of the Companies or Parties involved in the Scheme:

1.

2
3
4.
5
6

Reliance Communications Limited- referred to as "the Applicant Company" "the Company" or "the Demerged
Company 1" or " RCom";

Reliance Telecom Limited- referred to as "the Demerged Company 2" or " RTL";

Aircel Limited- referred to as "Resulting Company 1" or “Transferee Company” or " AL";

Dishnet Wireless Limited- referred to as "Resulting Company 2" or " DWL",

Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited- referred to as “the Transferor Company 1" or * Deccan"; and

South Asia Communications Private Limited- referred to as "the Transferor Company 2" or "SACPL".

The Composite Scheme of Arrangement between the above Companies and their respective shareholders and creditors
is referred to as "the Scheme" or "this Scheme" or "Scheme" and the above Companies together are referred to as "the
Applicant Companies". Other definitions contained in the enclosed Scheme will apply to this Statement.



This is a Statement accompanying the Notice convening the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant
Company.

Pursuant to an order dated March 15, 2017 passed by the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal
("Tribunal") in the Company Scheme Application No. 264 of 2017 referred to hereinabove, a meeting of the
Equity Shareholders of the Company is being convened and held at Reliance Energy Management Institute,
Jogeshwari-Vikhroli Link Road, Opp. SEEPZ, North Gate No.3, Aarey Colony, Aarey Colony Road, Mumbai -
400065 on April 24, 2017 at 9.30 A.M. IST. for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving
with or without modification(s), the arrangement embodied in the composite scheme of arrangement between
Reliance Communications Limited (“the Applicant Company" or "the Company" or "the Demerged Company 1"
or "RCom") and Reliance Telecom Limited ("the Demerged Company 2" or " RTL") and Aircel Limited ("Resulting
Company 1" or "Transferee Company" or " AL") and Dishnet Wireless Limited (“Resulting Company 2" or "
DWL") and Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited (“the Transferor Company 1" or " Deccan") and South Asia
Communications Private Limited ("the Transferor Company 2" or * SACPL") and their respective shareholders and
creditors ("Scheme").

In addition to the Tribunal Convened Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Company, approval of
the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Company is also sought by way of Postal Ballot and remote e-Voting
facility arranged by Karvy in compliance with Section 108 and Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 20 and Rule 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regqulation 44
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 ('SEBI LODR Regulations’).

A copy of the Scheme setting out in detail the terms and conditions of the arrangement has been approved by
the Board of Directors of the Applicant Companies at their respective board meetings held on 14th September,
2016, is attached to this Explanatory Statement and forms part of this Statement.

Details of the Companies:
Reliance Communications Limited

(a) Reliance Communications Limited ("the Applicant Company" “the Company" or "the Demerged Company 1" or
“RCom"), a Public Limited Company, having Corporate Identification Number L45309MH2004PLC147531,
was incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 in Mumbai, the State of Maharashtra
on 15th day of July, 2004 under the Companies Act, 1956 under the name of "Reliance Infrastructure
Developers Private Limited". With effect from 25th day of July, 2005, the Company was converted into a
public limited company and the word "Private" was deleted from the name of the Company. Subsequently
the name of Reliance Infrastructure Developers Limited was changed to “Reliance Communication Ventures
Limited" with effect from 3 day of Augqust, 2005 and further the name was changed to its present name
i.e. "Reliance Communications Limited" with effect from 7th day of June, 2006. Permanent Account
Number of RCom is AACCR7832C.

(b) The registered office of RCom is situated at H Block, 1° Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City,
Navi Mumbai 400 710 and e-mail address is RCom.Investors @relianceada.com.

(c)  The objects for which RCom has been established are set out in its Memorandum of Association. The main
objects of RCom are set out hereunder:

1) To carry on and undertake the business of finance, investment, loan and guarantee company and to
invest in acquire, subscribe, purchase, hold, sell, divest or otherwise deal in securities, shares, stocks,
equity linked securities, debentures, debenture stock, bonds, commercial papers, acknowledgements,
deposits, notes, obligations, futures, calls, derivatives, currencies and securities of any kind whatsoever,
whether issued or guaranteed by any person, company, firm, body, trust, entity, government, state,
dominion sovereign, ruler, commissioner, public body or authority, supreme, municipal, local or
otherwise, whether in India or abroad. The Company will not carry on any activity as per Section 45
1A of RBI Act, 1934.



2)

3)

4)

To carry on and undertake the business of financial services like financial restructuring / reorganization,
investment counseling, portfolio management and all activities and facilities of every description
including all those capable of being provided by bankers, stockbrokers, merchant-bankers, investment
bankers, portfolio managers, trustees, agents, advisors, consultants, providing other financial or related
services and to carry on the activities of hire-purchase, leasing and to finance lease operations of all
kinds, purchasing, selling, hiring or letting on hire all kinds of plant and machinery and equipment
and to assist in financing of all and every kind and description of hire- purchase or deferred payment
or similar transactions and to subsidize, finance or assist in subsidizing or financing the sale and
maintenance of any goods, articles or commodities of all and every kind and description upon any
terms whatsoever and to purchase or otherwise deal in all forms of movable property including plant
and machinery, equipments, ships, aircrafts, automobiles, computers, and all consumer, commercial,
medical and industrial items with or without security and to lease or otherwise deal with them
including resale thereof, reqardless of whether the property purchased and leased is new and/or used
and from India or abroad.

To carry on and undertake the business of acting as agent of any person, public or private sector
enterprises, financial institutions, banks, central government and state governments and to do financial
research, design and preparation of feasibility study reports, project reports and appraisal report in
India and abroad.

To carry on, manaqge, supervise and control the business of Telecommunication, infrastructure,
Telecommunication system, Telecommunication network, and Telecommunication services of all kinds
including and not limited to setting up telephone exchange, coaxial stations, Telecommunication lines
and cables of every form and description, transmission, emission, reception through various forms,
maintaining and operating all types of Telecommunication service and providing data programmes
and data bases for Telecommunication.”

RCom is engaqed in the business of provision of telecom services, covering mobile and fixed line telephony,
including broadband, national and international long distance services and data services along with an
exhaustive range of value added services and applications, data center services.

There has been no change in the name, registered office and objects of RCom during the last five years.

The equity shares of RCom are listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. Its
qlobal depository receipts are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

Capital Structure - The authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of RCom as on 30th
September, 2016 is as under:

Particulars Amount in Rs.
Authorised Capital
5,000,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each 25,000,000,000

Total 25,000,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

2,488,979,745 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid up 12,444,898,725

Total 12,444,898,725

The issued and paid-up share capital includes 1,03,55.247 (One Crore three lacs fifty five thousand two
hundred forty seven) equity shares represented by the global depository receipts as on 30th September,
2016. Subsequent to 30th September, 2016, there has been no change in the issued, subscribed and paid
up share capital of RCom.



(h)  The details of the promoters and present directors of RCom along with their addresses are as follows:

Sr. | Name Address
No.
Promoters
1. Reliance Communications 502, Plot No. 91/94 Prabhat Colony Santacruz (East)
Enterprises Private Limited Mumbai 400055
2. Reliance Wind Turbine Installators 502, Plot No. 91/94 Prabhat Colony Santacruz (East)
Industries Private Limited Mumbai 400055
3. Reliance Ornatus Enterprises and 502, Plot No. 91/94 Prabhat Colony Santacruz (East)
Ventures Private Limited Mumbai 400055
4, Reliance Innoventures Private 502, Plot No. 91/94 Prabhat Colony Santacruz (East)
Limited Mumbai 400055
5. Reliance Telecom Infrainvest Private | 502, Plot No. 91/94 Prabhat Colony Santacruz (East)
Limited Mumbai 400055
6. Shreeji Comtrade LLP 1203-06, Arcadia 195 Backbay Reclamation Nariman
Point, Mumbai 400021
7. Shrikrishna Tradecom LLP 1203-06, Arcadia 195 Backbay Reclamation Nariman
Point, Mumbai 400021
8. Mr. Anil D Ambani Seawind 39, Cuffe Parade, Opposite President Hotel,
Mumbai 400005
9. Mr. Jai Anmol A. Ambani Seawind 39, Cuffe Parade, Opposite President Hotel,
Mumbai 400005
10. | Mr. Jai Anshul A Ambani Seawind 39, Cuffe Parade, Opposite President Hotel,
Mumbai 400005
11. | Mrs. Kokila Dhirajlal Ambani Seawind 39, Cuffe Parade, Opposite President Hotel,
Mumbai 400005
12. | Mrs. Tina A Ambani Seawind 39, Cuffe Parade, Opposite President Hotel,
Mumbai 400005
13. | Reliance Capital Limited 570, Rectifier House, Naigaum Cross Road, Next To Royal
Indl. Estate, Wadala (W), Mumbai 400031
Directors
1. Mr. Anil D. Ambani Seawind 39, Cuffe Parade, Opposite President Hotel,
Mumbai 400005
2. Mr. Deepak Shourie A-31, West End, New Delhi 110021
3. Prof. J. Ramachandran 417, Faculty Quarters, Indian Institute of Management,
Bannerghatta, Bangalore 560076
4, Mr. A. K. Purwar C - 2303/4, Floor 23, Ashok Tower, 63/7-4, Dr. SS Rao
Road, Parel, Mumbai 400012
5. Mr. R. N. Bhardwaj 402, Moksh Apartments Upper Govind Nagar, Malad
(East), Mumbai 400097
6. Mrs. Manjari Kacker B-702, Beaumonde, Appa Saheb Marathe Marg,
Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400025




5.2 Reliance Telecom Limited

(a)

(b)

(d)

Reliance Telecom Limited (“the Demerged Company 2" or " RTL"), a Public Limited Company, having
Corporate Identification Number U32100MH1994PLC162841, was incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956 in Mumbai, the State of Maharashtra on 1< day of March, 1994 under the name
"Reliance Telecom Private Limited". With effect from 25% day of November, 1997, the name of RTL was
changed to "Reliance Telecom Limited". Permanent Account Number of RTL is AAACR2658E.

The registered office of RTL is situated at H Block, 1< Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City, Navi
Mumbai 400 710 and e-mail address is Rcom.Investors @relianceada.com.

The objects for which RTL has been established are set out in its Memorandum of Association. The main
objects of RTL are set out hereunder :

1. To carry on all kinds of businesses of designers, manufacturers, processors, assemblers, dealers, traders,
distributors, importers, exporters, agents consultants, system designers and contractors for erection and
commissioning on turnkey basis or to deal in any other manner including storing, packing, transporting,
converting, repairing, installing, training, servicing, maintenance of all types, varieties and kinds of (i)
telephone instruments, inter-coms, accessories and components thereof for tele-communications,
(i) radio communication equipments like receivers, transmitters, trans-receivers, walkie talkie radio
relay equipment, point to point communication equipments, antennas and associated equipment,
single channel, multi-channel, fixex frequency, variable frequency, static, mobile, airborne, shipborne,
equipments in HF, VHF, UHF and microwave, spectrum, TV Systems, receivers, transmitters, pattern
generators and associated equipments. amplifiers, oscillators synthesizers, waveform g¢enerating,
measuring and associated equipments, sonic, ultrasonic and radio frequency ranging and depth
finding sonar and Telemetry coding and data transmission equipment, data acquisition, processing
and loqqing equipments, calculators, computers, mini computers and micro-computers, printers,
headers, display terminals, facsimile transmitting and receiving equipments and systemns (iii) signaling,
Telecommunication and control equipments used in roads, railways, ships, aircrafts, ports, airports,
railway stations, public places alongwith associated accessories and test rigs (iv) instruments, testing
equipments, accessories for repair, maintenance, calibration and standardization of all the above items
in laboratories, service centres, processing plants, manufacturing plants and at customers places.

2. To plan, establish, develop, provide, operate and maintain all types of Telecommunication services
including, telephone, telex, wireless, data communication telematic and other like forms of
communication and to manufacture wireless transmitting and receiving equipments, including radios,
television equipments, broadcasting equipments, microphones, amplifiers, loud speakers & telegraphic
instruments and equipments and purchase, sell, import, export, repair, renew and deal in all or any of
the equipments and parts of the same and also to manufacture the parts and accessories of the said
instruments and articles.”

RTL is engaged in the business of provision of telecom services, covering mobile and fixed line telephony,
including broadband, national and international long distance services and data services along with an
exhaustive range of value added services and applications, data center services.

There has been no change in the name, registered office and objects of RTL during the last five years.
The equity and preference shares of RTL are not listed on any Stock Exchange in India or elsewhere.

Capital Structure - The authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of RTL as on 30th
September, 2016 is as under:
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(h)

Particulars Amount in Rs.
Authorised Capital

120,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,200,000,000

100,000,000 preference shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000,000

280,000,000 unclassified shares of Rs. 10 each 2,800,000,000
Total 5,000,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

85,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 850,000,000

45,000,000 non-convertible, non-cumulative, redeemable preference shares 450,000,000

of Rs. 10 each fully paid

13,477,000 redeemable, non-cumulative, non-convertible preference shares 134,770,000

of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Total 1,434,770,000

RTL is a wholly owned subsidiary of RCom. Subsequent to 30* September 2016, there has been no change
in the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of RTL.

The details of the promoters and present directors of RTL along with their addresses are as follows:

Sr. Name Address
No.
Promoters
1 Reliance Communications Limited H Block, 1t Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City,
Navi Mumbai 400 710
2 Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure | H Block, 15t Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City,
Limited Navi Mumbai 400 710
Directors
1. Mr. S. Seth 4th Floor, Summer Villa, 7th Road, Santa Cruz (East)
Mumbai 400055
2. Mr. Gautam Doshi 402, Hamilton Court, Tagore Road, Santa Cruz (West),
Mumbai 400054
3. Mr. Prakash Shenoy 1703, Florentina Lodha Paradise, Near Majiwade Flyover,
Thane 400601
4. Mr. Satyendra Sarupria 504-B, Dheeraj Kiran, Chincholi Bunder Road, Malad
(West), Mumbai 400064
Mr. Dagdulal Jain A 4/10, 2nd Floor Runwal Nagar, Thane 400601
6. Mrs. Grace Thomas A-1103, Pride, Plot No.-1, Ustav Chowk, Sector-7,
Kharghar, Navi Mumbai 410210

5.3 Aircel Limited

(a)

(b)

Aircel Limited("Resulting Company 1" or "Transferee Company" or "AL"), a Public Limited Company, having
Corporate Identification Number U32201MH1994PLC284030, was incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956 in Tamil Nadu on 20th day of December, 1994 under the name "“Srinivas Cellcom
Limited". With effect from 28th day of October, 1999, the name of AL was changed to "Aircel Limited".
Permanent Account Number of AL is AAACS4449).

The registered office of AL is situated at Opus Centre, 47 Central Road, Opp. Tunga Paradise, MIDC, Andheri
(East), Mumbai- 400093 and e-mail address is corporate.al@aircel.co.in.
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(c)

The objects for which AL has been established are set out in its Memorandum of Association. The main
objects of AL are set out hereunder :

1.

To carry on all or any of the business of manufacturers, designers, consultants, exporters, importers,
buyers, sellers, hirers, renters, repairers, distributors, agents and dealers in all types of telecommunication
instruments including wireless telephones, cellular mobiles phones and services, satellite commercial
equipment like V-Sat, microwave communication, paging, hand held terminals, telephone systems,
electronic switches and exchanges, antennas, satellite dishes, radios, devices, accessories, appliances,
materials and requisites, of every kind whereby sound or vision is recorded, amplified, produced,
reproduced, transmitted or received by the use of aid of electricity.

To carry on the business of electrical, telecommunications, computer, radio electronics, consulting
engineers, mechanics, fitters, mill-wrights, founders, rod millers, machinists, tool makers, wire drawers,
qalvanisers, Japanese, electroplaters, enamellers and painters, suppliers of telephone, telegraph, radio,
railway, signaling and facsimile equipment and apparatus, electric, magnetic, galvanic and other
apparatus in India or any part of the world.

To manufacture, buy, sell, exchange, and/or install dry cell, relays, meters, lamps, condensers, valves,
rectifiers, air-raid precaution equipment plastics, plasticines, resins, bitumen, Indian - Rubber or any
other water-proofing materials and paper.

To manufacture, install, operate and maintain telegraphs, phonographs, switching, centers, radio
transmitting or receiving stations or sets, dynamos, accumulators and an apparatus in connection with
the generation , accumulation, distribution, supply and employment of electricity or any power that
can be used as a substitute therefor, including all cables, wires or appliances for connecting apparatus
at a distance with other apparatus and including the formation of exchanges or centres.

To Carry on the business as National Long Distance (NLD) Telephony provider, International Long
Distance (ILD) Telephony provider, Internet Service Provider which includes providing Electronic Mail
Service, Internet, Facsimile Services, Websites creation, Mobile location services, Designing, Selling,
leasing and marketing of Web sites, Product promotion for in house as well as for clients, linking
Web Server to World Wide Web (WWW) through Satellite, transferring, downloading or uplinking
of Software Commercial Information, Voice and Data, Usaqe of Inteqrated Services Digital Network
(ISDN), Broadband Wireless Data Services, Digital Subscriber Line (DSL) Technology based services,
provision of cable television services, Direct To Home (DTH) services through deployment of GSM,
CDMA, GPRS, EDGE and such other emerging technologies and related technologies.

The Company shall obtain suitable licenses for these purposes from the LICENSOR or LICENSING
AUTHORITY of the Government(s) including Department of Telecommunications (DoT) and/or such
other departments I ministries and/or other authorities of the Government(s) and enter into with such
LICENSOR or LICENSING AUTHORITY appropriate license agreement(s) in line with the prevalent
policies, as and when required. The Company shall ensure compliance with such licence agreement(s)
without any violation. Any violation of the relevant licence agreement(s) shall automatically lead to
the company being unable to carry on the respective business governed by such license(s).”

AL is engaqed in the business of provision of telecom services, covering mobile and fixed line telephony,
including broadband, national and international long distance services and data services along with an
exhaustive range of value added services and applications, data center services.

There has been no change in the name and objects of AL during the last five years. There had been change
in the registered office of AL from state of Tamil Nadu to state of Maharashtra (Opus Centre, 47 Central
Road, Opp. Tunga Paradise, MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai- 400093) w.e.f 27th June, 2016.

The equity and preference shares of AL are not listed on any Stock Exchange in India or elsewhere.
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(9)
2016

is as under:

Capital Structure - The authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of AL as on 30th September

Particulars

Amount in Rs

Authorised Capital

5,000,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each

50,000,000,000

of Rs

15,000,000,000 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares

. 10 each

150,000,000,000

Total 200,000,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

243,243,243 equity shares of Rs. 10 each

2,432,432,430

Rs. 1

8.091,527,200 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of

0 each

80,915,272,000

Total 83,347,704,430

Subsequent to 30th September 2016, there has been no change in the issued, subscribed and paid up
share capital of AL.

(h)  The details of the promoters and present directors of AL along with their addresses are as follows:
Sr. | Name Address
No.
Promoters
1. Global Communication Services C/0 Axis Fiduciary Ltd., 2™ Floor, The Axis, 26 Cybercity,
Holdings Ltd. Ebene, Mauritius 72201
2. Deccan Digital Networks Pvt. Ltd | Opus Centre, 47, Central Road, Opposite Tunga Paradise,
M.I.D.C., Andheri East, Mumbai 400093, Maharashtra
Directors
1. Ms. Suneeta Reddy 5, Subba Rao Avenue, Chennai 600006
2. Mr. Bhaskara Nageswararao Flat No. A 906, Purva Heights, 14, Bannerghatta Road,
Mandavilli Bilekahalli, Bangalore 560076
3. Mr. Vali Nijhawan "Hari Ashray", DLF Phase ILLW-6/1, Gurgaon 122001
4. Mr. Umesh Jain PNB Senior officer's Residential Complex, Block 60,
Flat No. 23B,1st Floor, New Rohtak Road, Karol Bagh,
New Delhi 110005
5. Mr. Uthaya Kumar No.17, Lorong Batai Barat, 50490, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
6 Mr. Anand Swarup Pathak A-17. Anand Niketan, Pathak New Delhi 110021
Dr. Balasubrahmanyam Flat No.102, Tower -4 ,Vipul Belmonte, Golf Course Road,
Venkataraman Sector-53, Gurgaon 122009
8. Mr. Sheo Nandan Sahai H-23/21, DLF Phase I, Near Qutab Plaza, Gurgaon 122002

5.4 Dishnet Wireless Limited

(a)

Dishnet Wireless Limited ("Resulting Company 2" or * DWL"), a Public Limited Company, having Corporate

Identification Number U74999MH1998PLC283931, was incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 in Tamil Nadu on 10th day of March, 1998 under the name "Dishnet Limited".
Further, the name was changed to "Dishnet DSL Limited" on 3 day of November, 1999. Further, the
name was changed to "Dishnetdsl Limited" on 30* day of November, 1999. Subsequently, the name was
changed to "Dishnet Wireless Limited" on 2" day of June, 2004. Permanent Account Number of DWL is
AAACDS5767E.
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(d)

()

The registered office of DWL is situated at Opus Centre, 47 Central Road, Opp. Tunga Paradise, MIDC,
Andheri (East), Mumbai 400093 and e-mail address is corporate.dwl@aircel.co.in.

The objects for which DWL has been established are set out in its Memorandum of Association. The main
objects of DWL are set out hereunder :

1. To carry on the business of Internet Service Providers, through different or combination of emerging/
related and subsisting technologies including but not limited to satellite, transferring, downloading
or uplinking of software, commercial information, voice and data, usage of Integral Service Digital
Network (ISDN), Asymmetric Digital Subscriber Line (ADSL), Internet Telephony, Broadband Wireless
and W-LAN like Wi-fi Wi-.MAX, EV-DO and EV-DV and Video Conferencing, directly or through any
network whether within India and or abroad. The Business shall include providing Electronic Mail Service,
Internet, web site creation, designing, selling, leasing and marketing of Web Sites, product promotion
and linking web server to World Wide Web (www). To carry on all activities directly or indirectly related
to Internet and Electronic Commerce right from conception to transition/implementation and to act
as a Total Solution Provider in Internet and E-Commerce business, including establishing cyber cafes.

2. To provide in India and abroad of all kinds of telecommunication infrastructure facilities & services
including Cellular Mobile telephony, Basic Telephony, National Long Distance Telephony, International
Long Distance Telephony, Radio paging, Trunk radio system, Cordless telephony, V-Sat Network, Cable
television and Direct to Home (DTH) services through deployment of GSM, CDMA, GPRS, EDGE and
such other emerging technologies.

The Company shall obtain suitable licenses for these purposes from the LICENSOR or LICENSING
AUTHORITY of the Government(s) including Department of Telecommunications and/or such other
departments/ministries and other authorities of the Government(s) and enter into with such LICENSOR
or LICENSING AUTHORITY appropriate license agreement(s) in line with the prevalent policies, as and
when required. The Company shall ensure compliance with such licence agreement(s) without any
violation. Any violation of the relevant licence agreement(s) shall automatically lead to the company
being unable to carry on the respective business governed by such license(s)"

3. To undertake and provide turnkey telecom project management, Telecommuting, Business process
outsourcing & Infrastructure sharing services. To carry on the business of trading, export, import,
manufacturing, transmitting and otherwise deal in sale of bandwidth and all kinds of telecom
equipment & accessories to other service providers or any other users as well as engage in captive
consumption.

4. To undertake the designing and development of systems and applications software including
telecommunication software and content based programs either for captive consumption or for sale
in India or for export.”

DWL is engaged in the business of provision of telecom services, covering mobile and fixed line telephony,
including broadband, national and international long distance services and data services along with an
exhaustive range of value added services and applications, data center services.

There has been no change in the name and objects of DWL during the last five years. There had been
change in the reqistered office of DWL from state of Tamil Nadu to Mumbai, the State of Maharashtra
(Opus Centre, 47 Central Road, Opp. Tunga Paradise, MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai 400093) w.e.f 27
June, 2016.

The equity and preference shares of DWL are not listed on any Stock Exchange in India or elsewhere.
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(g) Capital Structure - The authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of DWL as on 30th
September 2016 is as under:

Particulars Amount in Rs.

Authorised Capital

75,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 750,000,000
2,000,000.,000 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of 20,000,000,000
Rs. 10 each

Total 20,750,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
29,798,130 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 297,981,300
1,608,817,590 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of 16,088,175,900
Rs. 10 each

Total 16,386,157,200

DWL is a wholly owned subsidiary of AL. Subsequent to 30th September 2016, there has been no change
in the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of DWL.

(h)  The details of the promoters and present directors of DWL along with their addresses are as follows:

Sr. | Name Address
No.
Promoters
1 Aircel Limited Opus Centre, 47, Central Road, Opposite Tunga Paradise,
M.LD.C., Andheri (E), Mumbai 400093
Directors
1. Ms. Suneeta Reddy 5, Subba Rao Avenue, Chennai 600006
2. Mr. Vali Nijhawan "Hari Ashray", DLF Phase IILW-6/1, Gurgaon 122001
3. Mr. Umesh Jain PNB Senior officer's Residential Complex, Block 60, Flat No.
23B, T1st Floor, New Rohtak Road, Karol Bagh, New Delhi
110005
4. Mr. Uthaya Kumar No.17, Lorong Batai Barat, 50490, Kuala Lumpur Malaysia
Mr. Anand Swarup Pathak A-17, Anand Niketan, New Delhi 110021
6. Dr. Balasubrahmanyam Flat No.102, Tower -4, Vipul Belmonte, Golf Course Road,
Venkataraman Sector-53, Gurgaon 122009
7. Mr. Sheo Nandan Sahai H-23/21, DLF Phase I, Near Qutab Plaza, Gurgaon 122002

5.5 Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited

(a) Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited, ("the Transferor Company 1" or "Deccan") a Private Limited
Company, having Corporate Identification Number U64202MH2006PTC288655, was incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 in New Delhi on 16th day of January, 2006 under the name
"Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited". Permanent Account Number of Deccan is AACCD3470C.

(b)  The registered office of Deccan is situated at Opus Centre, 47 Central Road, Opp. Tunga Paradise, MIDC,
Andheri (East), Mumbai 400093 and e-mail address is cflai@ maxis.com.my
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(c) The objects for which Deccan has been established are set out in its Memorandum of Association. The main
objects of Deccan are set out hereunder :

1.

To engage in the business of Telecommunications Service, cellular mobile telephone service, unified
access services either by promoting in India or elsewhere companies or body corporates engaged in
the business of Telecommunications Service cellular mobile telephone service, unified access services
in all forms and also to provide pre start-up, start-up and post start-up services, advice, consultancy
in making business plans, identifying and sourcing locations for new and existing businesses.

To carry on the business of Telecommunications Service, cellular mobile telephone service, unified access
services, manufacturers, franchisers, dealers, importers, exporters, assemblers and fabricators, repairers,
maintainers, owners and operators of all kinds of telecommunication equipment and cryptographic
equipment, including terminal equipment, exchange equipment subscriber end equipment, transmission
lines and equipment of all kinds, used to provide voice, text, data or image communications services,
including but not limited to telephone instruments of all kinds, switching exchanges of all kinds such
as public switching exchanges, private exchanges, mobile switching exchanges, radio transmitting and
receiving apparatus, commercial radio receivers, high power radio telephone telegraph transmitters
for radio links, medium, long and short wave radio broadcasting transmitters for radio links, medium,
long and short wave radio broadcasting transmitters and receivers, multichannel radio links, wireless,
cellular, mobile telephone and microwave telecommunication systems, network systems and products,
assemblies and apparatus modules and hardware and software relating thereto, including data
processing units, printers, display devices, computer keys boards and key pads, diqitizers, encoders,
storage units, optical readers compact disc and microfiche readers, video terminals and display units,
computers and computer terminals, radar and satellite communications equipment, teleprinters,
digital telemetering telecontrol systems, video terminals, computers, other sub-systems, components
and parts thereof including basic components such as valves, transistors, condensers, coils-magnetic
materials, microwave components, capacitors, integrated circuits, diodes, reqisters, electronic control
instruments, plastic, PVS and resin components, electrical wires, cables, ugs, switches and electrical
and wireless sets, magnetic materials and microwave components and to own, hire or take on lease,
hire out or provide on lease communications and information services and any equipment required
for such services whether for providing voice, text, data, or image services, including carriers for such
purposes including cables and networks whether optical or electrical microwave or satellite linkages or
any other medium that may be used for such purposes, to provide consultancy services in relation to
these activities mentioned therein.

To carry on in India or elsewhere any of the business in the field of Internet Service providers,
Telecommunications, to provide services related to E-Commerce, Electronic Data Interchange,
Networking, High End Voice, Data and Image Transfer Solutions, Web T.V, on line Shopping, creation
of Web sites and Web based solutions, CGI Interface, FTP Access, Usenet and Telnet, Internet Relay
Chat, Domain name Regqistration and Routing, Computer Storage Space Solutions, To develop, design,
conceptualize, improve, produce, reproduce, market, patent, distribute, buy, sell, license, provide,
import, export, implement, operate, support and maintain Information Technology and Communication
based products and services including those through the internet world wide computer network, voice
data and image transfer in any form including digital data packets, storage media such as floppies,
disk drives, magnetic tapes, publishing multimedia. To provide services of consultancy and training,
designing, coding and integrating systems for intranet and internet solutions, and to develop, configure
or deal in computer hardware and systems including assemblies, sub-assemblies and other accessories,
peripherals thereof, digital products and the development and marketing of software and all types of
products and services relating to the computer industry.

To engage in E-Commerce and related services for all kinds of products and services including
merchandise, financial products and services, distribution and collection services using the world wide
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computer networks and web services available and to obtain/offer agencies, tie-ups, distributorships
of organizations that develop and market internet related products and services and buy, sell, market,
distribute or deal in such products and services and acquire or rent computer/storage space on the
worldwide web or similar networks for this purpose.

To establish, promote, purchase, setup or connect with and/or lease any database, network, data and
information possessing centers and bureaus either of its own or franchise centers for dissemination of
knowledge and information related to the computer, communications and information technology
industry in various forms including print, video, CD-ROM, electronic media and digital media, internet,
intranet, Modems, Fax modems, Video Conferencing, E-Mail, Voicemail, Voice Response Systems,
Multiplexers, Line Drivers, Routers, Bridges, Hubs, VSAT's, Radio Trunking, Networking, Telecom
Software, cable, Wireless Networks, ERP solutions and satellite communications.

Assisting in applying and obtaining various government and requlatory dpprovals and to provide
management support services in relation to objects stated above.”

(d) Deccan is an investment holding company and does not have any other commercial activity.

(e) There has been no change in the name and objects of Deccan during the last five years. There had been
change in the registered office of Deccan from New Delhi to Mumbai, State of Maharashtra (Opus Centre,
47 Central Road, Opp. Tunga Paradise, MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai 400093) w.e.f 29th November,
2016.

(f)  The equity and preference shares of Deccan are not listed on any Stock Exchange in India or elsewhere.

(g) Capital Structure - The authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of Deccan as on 30th
September 2016 is as under:

Particulars Amount in Rs.
Authorised Capital
300,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 3,000,000,000
2,000,000,000 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of 20,000,000,000
Rs. 10 each

Total 23,000,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
46,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 460,000,000
1,644,594,517 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of 16,445,945170
Rs. 10 each

Total 16,905,945,170

Subsequent to 30th September 2016, there has been no change in the issued, subscribed and paid up
share capital of Deccan.

(h)  The details of the promoters and present directors of Deccan along with their addresses are as follows:

Sr. | Name Address

No.

Promoters

1 Global Communication Services C/0 Axis Fiduciary Ltd., 2ndFloor, The Axis, 26 Cybercity,
Holdings Ltd. Ebene, Mauritius 72201

2 Sindya Securities and Fifth Floor, Lakshmi Bhawan No. 609, Mount Road, Chennai,
Investments Private Limited Tamil Nadu 600006
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Name Address

South Asia Communications Opus Centre, 47, Central Road, Opposite Tunga Paradise,

Private Limited MIDC, Andheri (East) Mumbai, Maharashtra 400093
Directors

Ms. Suneeta Reddy No. 5, Subba Rao, Avenue - II Street Nungambakkam, Chennai

600006, Tamil Nadu

Mr. Bommi Narasimhavijay Tarun | 31/11, First Cross Street T.T.K. Road, Alwarpet Chennai
Reddy 600018 Tamil Nadu

Ms. Lai Choon Foong 7 Jalan Desa Baru 1B, Taman Desa Baru Kajang, Batu 12 Jalan
Cheras, 43000 Kajang Selangor, Malaysia

5.6 South Asia Communications Private Limited

(a)

South Asia Communications Private Limited, (“the Transferor Company 2" or * SACPL"), a private limited
company, having Corporate Identification Number U72900MH2006PTC288606, was incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 in New Delhi on 16th day of February, 2006 under the name
“South Asia Communications Private Limited". Permanent Account Number of SACPL is AALCS3267M.

The registered office of SACPL is situated at Opus Centre, 47 Central Road, Opp. Tunga Paradise, MIDC,
Andheri (East), Mumbai 400093 and e-mail address is oswalpunkaj@ gmail.com.

The objects for which SACPL has been established are set out in its Memorandum of Association. The main
objects of SACPL are set out hereunder :

1.

To engage in the business of Telecommunications Service, cellular mobile telephone service, unified
access services either by promoting in India or elsewhere companies or body corporates engaged in
the business of Telecommunications Service cellular mobile telephone service, unified access services
in all forms and also to provide pre start-up, start-up and post start-up services, advice, consultancy
in making business plans, identifying and sourcing locations for new and existing businesses.

To carry on the business of Telecommunications Service cellular mobile telephone service, unified access
services, manufacturers, franchisers, dealers, importers, exporters. assemblers and fabricators, repairers,
maintainers, owners and operators of all kinds of telecommunication equipment and cryptographic
equipment, including terminal equipment, exchange equipment subscriber end equipment, transmission
lines and equipment of all kinds, used to provide voice, text, data or image communications services,
including but not limited to telephone instruments of all kinds, switching exchanges of all kinds such
as public switching exchanges. private exchanges, mobile switching exchanges, radio transmitting and
receiving apparatus, commercial radio receivers, high power radio telephone telegraph transmitters
for radio links, medium, long and short wave radio broadcasting transmitters for radio links, medium,
long and short wave radio broadcasting transmitters and receivers,. multichannel radio links, wireless,
cellular, mobile telephone and microwave telecommunication systemns, network systems and products,
assemblies and apparatus modules and hardware and software relating thereto, including data
processing units, printers, display devices, computer keys boards and key pads, diqitizers, encoders,
storage units, optical readers compact disc and microfiche readers, video terminals and display units,
computers and computer terminals, radar and satellite communications equipment, teleprinters,
digital telemetering telecontrol systems, video terminals, computers, other sub-systems, components
and parts thereof including basic components such as valves, transistors, condensers, coils-magnetic
materials, microwave components, capacitors, integrated circuits, diodes, reqisters, electronic control
instruments, plastic, PVS and resin components, electrical wires, cables, ugs, switches and electrical
and wireless sets, magnetic materials and microwave components and to own, hire or take on lease,
hire out or provide on lease communications and information services and any equipment required
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(d)

for such services whether for providing voice, text, data, or image services, including carriers for such
purposes including cables and networks whether optical or electrical microwave or satellite linkages or
any other medium that may be used for such purposes, to provide consultancy services in relation to
these activities mention therein.

To carry on in India or elsewhere any of the business in the field of Internet Service providers,
Telecommunications, to provide services related to E-Commerce, Electronic Data Interchange,
Networking, High End Voice, Data and Image Transfer Solutions, Web T. V, on line Shopping, creation
of Web sites and Web based solutions, CGI Interface, FTP Access, Usenet and Telnet, Internet Relay
Chat,Domain name Registration and Routing, Computer Storage Space Solutions, To develop,
design, conceptualize, improve, produce, reproduce, market, patent, distribute, buy, sell, license,
provide, import, export, implement, operate, support and maintain Information Technology and
Communication based products and services including those through the internet worldwide computer
network, voice data andimage transfer in any form including digital data packets, storage media such
asfloppies, disk drives, magnetic tapes, publishing multimedia. To provide services of consultancy and
training, designing, coding and integrating systems for intranet and internet solutions, and to develop,
configure ,or deal m computer hardware and systems including assemblies, sub-assemblies and other
accessories, peripherals thereof, digital products and the development and marketing of software and
all types of products and services relating to the computer industry.

To establish, promote, purchase, setup or connect with and/or lease any database, network, data and
information possessing centers and bureaus either of its own or franchise centers for dissemination of
knowledge and information related to the computer, communications and information technology
industry in various forms including print, video, CD-ROM, electronic media and digital media, internet,
intranet, Modems, Fax modems, Video Conferencing, E-Mail, Voicemail, Voice Response Systems,
Multiplexers, Line Drivers, Routers, Bridges, Hubs, VSAT's, Radio Trunking, Networking, Telecom
Software, cable, Wireless Networks, ERP solutions and satellite communications.

Assisting in applying and obtaining various government and requlatory approvals and to provide
management support services in relation to objects stated above.”

SACPL is an investment holding company and does not have any other commercial activity.

There has been no change in the name and objects of SACPL during the last five years. There had been
change in the registered office of SACPL from New Delhi to Mumbai, the State of Maharshtra (Opus Centre,
47 Central Road, Opp. Tunga Paradise, MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai 400093) w.e.f. 28th November, 2016.

The equity and preference shares of SACPL are not listed on any Stock Exchange in India or elsewhere.

Capital Structure - The authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of SACPL as on 30th

September 2016 is as under:

Particulars

Amount in Rs.

Authorised Capital

300,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each

3,000,000,000

2,000,000,000 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of
Rs. 10 each

20,000,000,000

Total

23,000,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

6,217,278 equity shares of Rs. 10 each

62,172,780

1.644,461,328 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of
Rs. 10 each

16,444,613,280

Total

16,506,786,060
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Subsequent to 30th September 2016, there has been no change in the issued, subscribed and paid up
share capital of SACPL.

(h)  The details of the promoters and present directors of SACPL along with their addresses are as follows:

Sr. | Name Address
No.
Promoters
1. Global Communication Services | C/O Axis Fiduciary Ltd., 2ndFloor, The Axis, 26 Cybercity.
Holdings Ltd. Ebene, Mauritius 72201
2. Maxis Communications Berhad Level 39, Menara Maxis, Kuala Lumpur City Centre,
50088 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Directors
1. Mr. Punkaj Jain Flat No. 1202, Lucern Tower, Omaxe Forest Spa,
Surajkund Road, Faridabad 121001, Haryana, India
Mr. Uthaya Kumar No. 17, Lorong Batai Barat, 50490, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Ms. Lai Choon Foong 7 Jalan Desa Baru 1B, Taman Desa Baru Kajang, Batu 12

Jalan Cheras, 43000 Kajang Selangor, Malaysia

Relationship subsisting between the Companies who are Parties to the Scheme

(i)  RCom Group and Aircel Group are independent and unrelated groups.

(i)  RCom group consist of RCom and RTL whereas Aircel group consist of AL, DWL, Deccan and SACPL.
(i) RTLis a wholly owned subsidiary of RCom.

(iv) Deccan holds 35% equity stake in AL and DWL is a wholly owned subsidiary of AL. SACPL and Deccan are
promoter group entities.

At the meeting held on 14th September, 2016, based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, the
Board of Directors of RCom had unanimously approved the proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement, after
taking on record the Valuation reports dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co., LLP,
Chartered Accountants, an independent valuer, and Fairness Opinion dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s.
Keynote Corporate Services Limited, a SEBI registered Merchant Banker.

The said Composite Scheme of Arrangement was unanimously approved by all the Directors of RTL, AL, DWL,
Deccan and SACPL vide resolutions passed at their respective Board Meetings held on 14th September, 2016.

Names of the directors who voted in favour of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and who did not
vote or participate on such resolution:

(i)  RCom
Name of the Directors of RCom Voted in Favour/ Against/ Abstain
present in the Meeting from voting
Mr. Anil D. Ambani Favour
Mr. Deepak Shourie Favour
Prof. J. Ramachandran Favour
Mr. A. K. Purwar Favour
Mr. R. N. Bhardwaj Favour
Mrs. Manjari Kacker Favour
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

RTL

Name of the Directors of RTL
present in the Meeting

Voted in Favour/ Against/ Abstain
from voting

Mr. S. Seth Favour

Mr. Gautam Doshi Favour

Mr. Prakash Shenoy Favour

Mr. Satyendra Sarupria Favour

Mr. Dagdulal Jain Favour

Mrs. Grace Thomas Favour
AL

Name of the Directors of AL present Voted in Favour/ Against/ Abstain
in the Meeting from voting
Ms. Suneeta Reddy Favour

Mr. MBN Rao

Did not participate

Mr. Vali Nijhawan

Favour

Mr. Umesh Jain

Did not participate

Mr. Uthaya Kumar Favour
Mr. Anand Swarup Pathak Favour
Dr. B Venkataraman Favour
Mr. Sheo Nandan Sahai Favour

DWL

Name of the Directors of DWL
present in the Meeting

Voted in Favour/ Against/ Abstain
from voting

Ms. Suneeta Reddy

Favour

Mr. Vali Nijhawan

Favour

Mr. Umesh Jain

Did not participate

Mr. Uthaya Kumar Favour
Mr. Anand Swarup Pathak Favour
Dr. B Venkataraman Favour
Mr. Sheo Nandan Sahai Favour

Deccan

Name of the Directors of Deccan

Voted in Favour/ Against/ Abstain

present in the Meeting from voting
Ms. Suneeta Reddy Favour
Mr. Bommi Narasimhavijay Tarun Reddy Not Attended
Ms. Lai Choon Foong Favour

SACPL

Name of the Directors of SACPL

Voted in Favour/ Against/ Abstain

present in the Meeting from voting
Mr. Uthaya Kumar Favour
Ms. Lai Choon Foong Favour
Mr. Punkaj Jain Favour
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10.

Description of the Scheme

The Scheme provides for:

(i)

(iii)

the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings from the Demerged Companies to
the Resulting Companies on a going concern basis, and the consequent issue of shares by the Resulting
Company 1 to the Demerqged Company 1, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of law;

the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies into the Transferee Company and the consequent issue of
shares by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Companies, in the manner set out
in the Scheme and in accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
and other applicable provisions of law;

the reorqanisation and reduction of the share capital of the Resulting Company 1 by converting the
Resulting Company 1 RPS into equity shares of the Resulting Company 1 and thereafter reducing the paid
up share capital of the Resulting Company 1 in the manner set out in the Scheme and in accordance with
Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 201 3;

the conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans into equity shares of the Resulting Company
1 and thereafter reducing the paid up share capital of the Resulting Company 1 in the manner set out in
the Scheme and in accordance with Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013; and

the reduction of the preference share capital of the Transferor Company 1 in the manner set out in the
Scheme and in accordance with Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable
provisions of law.

Rationale of the Scheme or the Benefits of the Scheme as perceived by the Board of Directors of the
Company to the Company, Shareholders, Creditors and Others

Rationale for Demerger

The demerger and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings of the Demerged Companies to the Resulting
Companies pursuant to the Scheme shall, inter alia, result in following benefits:

0)

(ii)

(iii)

(vii)

consolidation of the wireless telecom business of the Demerged Companies with the Resulting Companies
provides an opportunity to the Demerged Company 1 to acquire equity interest in the Resulting Company
1

further expanding the business of the Resulting Companies into growing markets of India, thereby creating

greater value for the shareholders of the Resulting Companies;

availability of increased resources and assets which can be utilised for strengthening the customer base of
the Resulting Companies (including the customer base of the Demerged Companies) and servicing existing
as well as new customers of the Resulting Companies innovatively and efficiently;

augmenting the infrastructural capability of the Resulting Companies to effectively meet future challenges
in the ever-evolving wireless telecom business;

the combination of the Demerged Undertakings and the Resulting Companies is a strategic fit for serving
existing market and for catering to additional volume linked to new consumers;

synergies in operational process and logistics alignment leading to economies of scale for the Resulting
Companies and creation of efficiencies and benefitting customers as well as optimization of operation and
capital expenditure;

assisting the Resulting Companies and the Demerged Companies in strengthening their assets base while
also enhancing their financial flexibility;
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11.

(viii) enhance competitive strength, achieve cost reduction, efficiencies and productivity gains by pooling the
financial, managerial and technical resources, personnel capabilities, skills, expertise and technologies of the
Resulting Companies and the Demerged Companies thereby significantly contributing to future growth and
maximizing shareholders value;

(ix) reducing the direct and indirect foreign shareholding in the Resulting Company 1; and

(x)  to achieve an optimal capital structure which duly represents the intrinsic value of the Resulting Company
1, through a capital reorganization exercise which will also involve conversion of the Resulting Company 1
Shareholders Loans, which are in the nature of long term shareholder funding for the Resulting Company
1 into equity shares and thereby strengthening the balance sheet of the Resulting Companies for future
growth and expansion and to create a capital structure which is geared to take advantage of possible
growth opportunities.

Rationale for Amalgamation

The amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme will simplify
and streamline the ownership structure of the Resulting Company 1. The proposed restructuring between the
Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees
and other stakeholders, of each of the companies, as it would enable a focused business approach for the
maximization of benefits to all stakeholders.

Key salient features of the scheme and details of the capital or debt restructuring proposed in the Scheme
a) "Appointed Date" for the Scheme means the Effective Date.

b)  "Effective Date" means the day on which all of the conditions specified in Clause 42 (Conditions Precedent)
of the Scheme are complied with.

c) Demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings from the Demerged Companies to the
Resulting Companies

(i) With effect from the Effective Date, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act
and all other provisions of the Act, (i) the Demerged Undertaking 1 will be demerged and transferred
from the Demerged Company 1 and be transferred and vested unto the Resulting Company 1 (i) the
Demerqed Undertaking 2 will be demerged and transferred from the Demerged Company 1 and be
transferred and vested unto the Resulting Company 2 and (iii) the Demerged Undertaking 3 will be
demerged and transferred from the Demerged Company 2 and be transferred and vested unto the
Resulting Company 2, without any further act, deed or matter, on a going concern basis, such that
said Demerged Undertakings shall without any other order to this effect, become the properties,
assets, rights, claims, title, interest, authorities, licenses, Permits, reqistrations, quotas, allocations,
investments and liabilities of the Resulting Company 1 or Resulting Company 2, as the case may be,
simply by virtue of approval of the Scheme and in the manner provided in the Scheme.

(i)  Consideration:

(1) for the transfer and vesting of: (a) the Demerged Undertaking 1 in the Resulting Company 1;
(b) Demerged Undertaking 2 in the Resulting Company 2; and (c) Demerged Undertaking 3 in
the Resulting Company 2, the Resulting Company 1 shall, without any further application, act,
deed payment, consent, acts, instrument or deed, issue and allot to the Demerged Company 1,
14,000,000,000 fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Resulting Company 1 and
additional shares which shall not exceed 1,950,000,000 representing the Demerged Company 1
Additional Value contributed by the Demerged Companies;

(2) for the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking 2 into Resulting Company 2, the
Resulting Company 2 shall issue and allot to the Resulting Company 1; 5,352,980,622 fully
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d)

(iii)

paid up equity share of Rs. 10 each of Resulting Company 2 to Resulting Company 1 in
discharge of consideration for Demerqged Undertaking 2 as reimbursement of amount discharged
by Resulting Company 1 on an agqreqate basis as mentioned above to Demerged Company 1
for the Demerged Undertaking 2; and

(3) for the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking 3 into Resulting Company 2, the
Resulting Company 2 shall issue and allot to the Resulting Company 1; 579,999,821 fully paid
up equity share of Rs. 10 each of Resulting Company 2 to Resulting Company 1 in discharge
of consideration for Demerged Undertaking 3 as reimbursement of amount discharged by
Resulting Company 1 on an agqgreqate basis as mentioned above to Demerged Company 1 for
the Demerged Undertaking 3.

The Demerged Companies and Resulting Companies have also agreed in the Merger Agreement, to
effect certain valuation adjustments so as to equalise the value of the Demerged Undertakings and
value of the business of the Resulting Companies as on the Effective Date, in consideration of which
additional shares may be issued by the Resulting Company 1 to the Demerged Company 1 and
Global Communication Services Holding Limited, by way of a preferential allotment, in the manner
contemplated in the Merger Agreement. It is clarified that immediately upon implementation of the
Scheme (including Parts II, 111, IV, V and VI) and the completion of such valuation adjustments agreed
in the Merger Agreement, the Demerged Company 1 shall hold 50% of the fully diluted equity share
capital of the Resulting Company 1.

Amalgamation of the Transferor Companies into the Transferee Company

(i)

(iii)

With effect from the Effective Date, and subject to the provisions of the Scheme in relation to the
mode of transfer and vesting of the Undertaking of the Transferor Companies, Undertaking of the
Transferor Companies shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred
to and vested in, and/or be deemed to have been, and stand, transferred to, and vested in, the
Transferee Company, so as to become on and from the Effective Date, the estate, assets, rights, title,
interest and authorities of the Transferee Company, pursuant to Section 230 to 232 of the Act and
section 2(1B) of the Income-tax Act, 1961,

Consideration: On amalgamation of the Transferor Company 1 and the Transferor Company 2 with the
Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall issue and allot:

(1) 22,119,183 fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Transferee Company to GCSHL for
11,828,440 equity share of Rs. 10 each held by it in the Transferor Company 1;

(2) 63,900,817 fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Transferee Company to SSIPL for
34,171,560 equity share of Rs. 10 each held by it in the Transferor Company 1; and

(3) 1 fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Transferee Company to GCSHL for 6,217,278
equity share of Rs. 10 each held by it in the Transferor Company 2.

(4) 2,449,999 fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Transferee Company to GCSHL for
1,644,461,328 non-convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 each held by it in the
Transferor Company 2.

With effect from the Effective Date, and in consideration of the amalgamation of the Transferor
Companies into the Transferee Company, the investments held by the Transferor Company 1 in the
equity share capital of the Transferee Company shall stand cancelled and accordingly, the share capital
of the Transferee Company shall stand reduced to the extent of the face value of the shares held
by the Transferor Company 1 in the Transferee Company as on the Effective Date. Such reduction of
share capital of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company 1 shall be effected as a part
of the Scheme, upon which the share capital of the Transferee Company and Transferor Company 1
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shall be deemed to be reduced and the orders of the High Court sanctioning the Scheme shall be
deemed to be an order under Section 66 of the Act confirming such reduction of share capital of the
Transferee Company.

On the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Companies shall stand dissolved without winding
up. On and from the Effective Date, the name of the Transferor Companies shall be struck off from
the records of the concerned Registrar of Companies.

Reorganisation and reduction of the share capital of the Resulting Company 1

(i)

(iii)

Subject to the approval of the Reserve Bank of India and such other Permits as may be required,
the Resulting Company 1 RPS shall, on the Scheme coming into effect, without further act or
deed be converted at par into fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of the Resulting Company
1 aggreqating to 8,091,527,200 equity shares, and such equity shares (being the RPS Converted
Equity Shares) shall be allotted to GCSHL being the holders of such preference shares on the Effective
Date.

Immediately upon issuance and allotment of the RPS Converted Equity Shares, the RPS Converted
Equity Shares shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulled on and from the Effective Date and the
paid up capital of the Resulting Company 1 to that effect shall stand cancelled and reduced, which
shall be reqarded as reduction of share capital of the Resulting Company 1, pursuant to Section 66
of the Act as also any other applicable provisions of the Act.

The reduction of the share capital of the Resulting Company 1 shall be effected as an integral part of
the Scheme itself, without having to follow the process under Section 66 of the Act separately, and
the order of the High Court sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under Section
66 of the Act confirming the reduction. Notwithstanding the reduction of issued, subscribed and paid
up equity share capital of the Resulting Company 1, the Resulting Company 1 shall not be required
to add "And Reduced" as suffix to its name.

Conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans into equity shares of the Resulting Company 1
and thereafter reducing the paid up share capital of the Resulting Company 1

(i)

(iii)

Subject to the approval of the Reserve Bank of India and such other Permits as may be required, upon
the Scheme coming into effect: (a) the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans shall be converted
to 26,254,046,862 equity shares (being the SHL Converted Equity Shares); and (b) such other loans
that may have been brought towards satisfying the interim funding requirements of the Resulting
Companies in accordance with Applicable Laws, shall, without further act or deed be converted at par
into fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of the Resulting Company 1.

Immediately upon issuance and allotment of the SHL Converted Equity Shares and shares issued
above and immediately after giving effect to the reductions and cancellation of shares under Clause
31 of the Scheme, 10,550,624,970 fully paid up equity shares or such other higher number of
fully paid up equity shares of the Resulting Company 1 from the SHL Converted Equity Shares,
for maintaining an optimum capital structure as stated in Clause 19.5 of the Scheme, shall stand
cancelled, extinguished and annulled on and from the Effective Date and the paid capital of the
Resulting Company 1 to that effect shall stand cancelled and reduced, which shall be reqarded as
reduction of share capital of the Resulting Company 1, pursuant to Section 66 of the Act as also any
other applicable provisions of the Act.

The reduction of the share capital of the Resulting Company 1 shall be effected as an integral part of
the Scheme itself, without having to follow the process under Section 66 of the Act separately, and
the order of the High Court sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under Section
66 of the Act confirming the reduction.
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12.

Reduction of the preference share capital of the Transferor Company 1;

(i) Notwithstanding anything contained in the Scheme and independent of other Parts of the Scheme,
the Transferor Company 1 RPS issued by Transferor Company 1 to Transferor Company 2 (i.e. all the
1,644,594,517 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each), shall
stand cancelled, extinquished and annulled on and from the Effective Date without any consideration
and the paid up preference share capital of the Transferor Company 1 shall stand cancelled and
extinguished, which shall be reqarded as reduction of share capital of the Transferor Company 1,
pursuant to section 66 of the Act as also any other applicable provisions of the Act.

(i) The reduction of the share capital of the Transferor Company 1 shall be effected as an integral part of
the Scheme itself, without having to follow the process under Section 66 of the Act separately and
the order of the High Court sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under Section
66 of the Act confirming the reduction.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the authorised share capital of the Resulting Company 1 and
Resulting Company 2 will automatically stand increased to Rs. 750,000,000,000 and Rs. 85,000,000,000
respectively by simply filing the requisite forms with the Appropriate Authority and no separate procedure
or instrument or deed or payment of any stamp duty and registration fees shall be required to be followed
under the Act.

To enable the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 to pay the liberalisation costs to the DoT to
obtain the approval listed out in Clause 42.1.5 of the Scheme, the Resulting Company 1 be and is hereby
permitted to issue to each of GCSHL and the Demerged Company 1, equity shares of value aggreqating
to not more than the Rs. 37,050,000,000 on the date of such issue of equity shares by the Resulting
Company 1 in accordance with the provisions of the Act, memorandum of association and articles of
association.

The Scheme is and shall be conditional upon various events listed in Clause 42 - "Conditions Precedents".

The Demerged Companies (acting jointly but not separately) and/ or the Resulting Companies and the
Transferor Companies (all of the Resulting Companies and the Transferor Companies acting jointly but not
separately) acting through their respective Board shall each be at liberty to withdraw the Scheme, in the
event of expiry or termination of the Merger Agreement.

If the Scheme is not effective on or before 30 September 2017 or within such further period or periods
as may be agreed upon between the Demerged Companies and the Resulting Companies through their
respective Boards or its authorized representative, the Scheme shall become null and void and each Party
shall bear and pay its respective costs, charges and expenses for and / or in connection with the Scheme.

In the event of revocation/ withdrawal as stated above, no rights and liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to
or be incurred inter se the Demerged Companies, the Transferor Companies and the Resulting Companies or
their respective shareholders or creditors or employees or any other person save and except as provided in
the Merger Agreement.

You are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme to get fully acquainted with the provisions thereof.
The aforesaid are only some of the key provisions of the Scheme.

Summary of Valuation Reports including basis of valuation and Fairness opinions

0)

Summary of Valuation Reports obtained from M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, an
independent valuer:

(a) Valuation Report on Share Entitlement for demerger of Demerged Undertakings from Demerged
Companies to the Resulting Companies- AL and the Specified Telecom Operations of RCom were
valued using Sum-of-the-Parts (‘'SOTP') analysis (circle wise Net asset value method ('NAV') /
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13.

14.

(i)

(iii)

Comparable Companies Quoted Multiple ('CCM) methods). The valuer have assigned higher weight to
SOTP method and lower weight to CCM method.

Valuation Report on Fair Equity Exchange Ratio/Share Entitlement for the Merger of Deccan and
SACPL into AL- The valuer has considered NAV on a replacement basis as the appropriate method for
valuation of AL considering that telecom spectrum is a significant intangible asset for which auction
price benchmarks are available. Apart from spectrum and other select intangibles the balance sheets
have been primarily considered at book values. While applying this method, SOTP analysis circle by
circle where certain circles with potential intrinsic value / possible differential strategic options are
value based on NAV method (while others continue to value based on CCM method). Considering
Deccan and SACPL do not have any business operations, valuer have used NAV (book value adjusted
for value of underlying investments).

Fairness Opinion obtained from M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited, Merchant Banker.

(a)

(b)

()

Fairness Opinion obtained on Valuation Report on Share Entitlement for demerger of Demerged
Undertakings from Demerged Companies to the Resulting Companies.

Fairness Opinion obtained on Valuation Report on Fair Equity Exchange Ratio / Share Entitlement for
the Merger of Deccan and SACPL into AL.

The share entitlement for the equity shareholders as suggested by M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, an independent valuer for the demerger as well as merger is fair in their
opinion based on the information, data made available to them including the valuation reports.

The valuation reports are available for inspection at the Registered office of RCom.

Statutory Auditors of RCom, M/s. Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered Accountants had vide certificate dated 14th
September, 2016 confirmed that the accounting treatment proposed in the Scheme for RCom is in accordance
with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 201 3.

Approvals / Sanctions/ No-Objections from Regqulatory or any Governmental Authorities

(a)

The Company has received, in terms of Requlation 37 of SEBI LODR Regulations, Observation Letters dated
3 March, 2017 both from the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. Copies of the
said letters are enclosed as Annexures to this Notice.

As required by the SEBI Circular, RCom has filed the Complaints Reports with the National Stock Exchange
of India Limited and BSE Limited. After filing of the Complaint Reports, RCom has not received any
complaint. Copies of the said reports are enclosed as Annexures to this Notice.

The Scheme is inter-alia, conditional upon receipt of approvals of the following requlatory and governmental
authorities:

Reserve Bank of India ("RBI").

Competition Commission of India (*CCI");

Department of Telecommunications ("DoT");
Committee on Foreign Investment in the United States;

Federal Communications Commission of the United States;
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15. Amounts due to unsecured creditors as on 30th September, 2016 (provisional)

6.

Particulars of amounts due to Unsecured Creditors from respective Company's involved in the Scheme as at
September 30, 2016 is detailed herein:

Name of the Applicant Companies

Amount (in Rs.)

RCom

139,346,540,789

RTL 68,552,453,017
AL 148,342,478,394
DWL 130.746,965,403
Deccan 3,480,329
SACPL 2,522,415

Effect of the Scheme on various parties

a)

Directors & Key Managerial Personnel - The Directors or KMPs or their relatives of the respective
Companies involved in the Scheme do not have any other interest in the Scheme otherwise than that as
shareholders in any of Applicant Companies involved in the scheme. Further, none of the managers, key
managerial personnel and/or relatives of the directors / KMPs of the respective Companies involved in the
Scheme is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed Scheme. Save as aforesaid,
none of the Directors of the respective Companies involved in the Scheme have any material interest in
the proposed Scheme. The effect of the Scheme on interests of the Directors or KMPs or their relatives, is
not any different from the effect of the Scheme on like interests of other persons. The Directors and KMPs
of the Transferor Companies viz. Deccan and SACPL shall cease to be Directors and/or KMP consequent to
their dissolution upon amalgamation with AL as detailed in the Scheme.

Details of the present Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their respective equity
shareholding as on date in other Applicant Companies are as follows:

RCom
Sr. | Name of the Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
No. | Directors and KMP held in held in held in held in held in held in
of RCom RCom RTL AL DWL Deccan SACPL
Directors
1. Mr. Anil D. Ambani 1,859,171 - - - - -
2. Mr. Deepak Shourie - - - _ _ _
3. Prof. J. Ramachandran - - - - - _
4. Mr. A. K. Purwar - - - - - -
5. Mr. R. N. Bhardwaj - - - - - -
6. Mrs. Manjari Kacker - - - - - -
KMPs
1. Mr. Prakash Shenoy, - 1* - - - -
Company Secretary
and Manager
2. Mr. Manikantan Iyer, - - - - - -
Chief Financial Officer

*jointly with Reliance Communications Limited
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RTL

Sr. | Name of the Directors | Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
No. | and KMP of RTL held in held in held in held in held in held in
RCom RTL AL DWL Deccan SACPL
Directors
1. Mr. S. Seth - - - - - _
2. Mr. Gautam Doshi - - - - - _
3. Mr. Prakash Shenoy - 1* - - - -
4. Mr. Satyendra Sarupria - - - - - -
5. Mr. Dagdulal Jain - - - - - -
6. Mrs. Grace Thomas - - - - - _
KMPs
1. Mr. Gaurang Shah, 25 1* - - - -
Company Secretary and
Manager
2. Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agarwal, 1 - - - - -
Chief Financial Officer
*jointly with Reliance Communications Limited
AL
Sr. | Name of the Directors Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
No. | and KMP of AL held in held in held in held in held in held in
RCom RTL AL DWL Deccan SACPL
Directors
1. Ms. Suneeta Reddy - - - - - -
2. Mr. Bhaskara 201+ - - - - -
Nageswararao Mandavilli
3. Mr. Vali Nijhawan 1,220* - - - - -
4. Mr. Umesh Jain 204* - - - - _
5. Mr. Uthaya Kumar - - - - - -
6. Mr. Anand Swarup Pathak - - - - - -
7. Dr. Balasubrahmanyam - - - - - -
Venkataraman
8. Mr. Sheo Nandan Sahai - - - - - _
KMPs
1. Dr. Kaizad Heerjee, - - - - - -
Chief Executive Officer

*includes joint holding
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DWL

Sr. | Name of the Directors Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
No. | and KMP of DWL held in held in held in held in held in held in
RCom RTL AL DWL Deccan SACPL
Directors
1. Ms. Suneeta Reddy - - - - - -
2. Mr. Vali Nijhawan 1,220* - - - - -
3. Mr. Umesh Jain 204~ - - - - -
4, Mr. Uthaya Kumar - - - - - -
5. Mr. Anand Swarup Pathak - - - - - -
6. Dr. Balasubrahmanyam - - - - - -
Venkataraman
7. Mr. Sheo Nandan Sahai - - - - - _
KMPs
1. Dr. Kaizad Heerjee, - - - - _ _
Chief Executive Officer
2. Mr. Nalin Kumar Asthana, - - - - - _
Company Secretary
*includes joint holding
Deccan
Sr. | Name of the Directors | Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
No. | and KMP of Deccan held in held in held in held in held in held in
RCom RTL AL DWL Deccan SACPL
Directors
1. Ms. Suneeta Reddy - - - - - -
2. Mr. Bommi Narasimhavijay - - - - - -
Tarun Reddy
3. Ms. Lai Choon Foong - - - - - -
KMPs
1. Mr. K Balasubramanian | - | - - - - -
SACPL
Sr. | Name of the Directors Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
No. | and KMP of SACPL held in held in held in held in held in held in
RCom RTL AL DWL Deccan SACPL
Directors
1. Mr. Punkaj Jain - - - - - -
2. Mr. Uthaya Kumar - - - - - -
3. Ms. Lai Choon Foong - - - - - -
KMPs
1. Mr. Dharmender Kumar | - | - - - - -

30




b)

c)

Promoter & Non-Promoter Equity Shareholders of RCom, RTL, AL and DWL and preference shareholders
of RTL, AL and DWL:

Vi.

Vi,

viii.

The proposed Scheme contemplates creation of a Joint Venture between RCom Group and Aircel
Group with a commercial understanding that each of the Group will hold 50% Equity stake in the
combined entity, which is proposed to be AL, on fully diluted basis with equal representation on the
Board of Directors and all Committees.

It is also commercially agreed between the both Groups to restrict the respective Group's debt in the
combined entity (i.e. AL) at pre-agreed amount.

It is in the interest of both the groups to hold 50% Equity in the combined entity since holding of less
than 50% will upset the balance of other and result in the promoters of one group having complete
control over the combined entity. This would be totally contrary to the commercial interests of both
the groups who are telecom operators and not mere investors in the telecom field.

Since there would effectively be only two promoters in the combined entity viz. RCom and the
promoters of Aircel who between them hold 100% of the combined entity, the shares of the AL
cannot be listed.

Further, allotment of 50% Equity stake to RCom is in the interest of RCom, such allotment would
also be in the best interest of all its stakeholders including RCom's shareholders.

Since respective Group's debt in the combined entity is restricted at pre-agreed amount, all existing
Preference Shares of AL would first be converted into Equity Shares of AL and subsequently be
cancelled to arrive at the desired equal equity stake of both the Groups in the combined entity.

As the Scheme does not provide for reorqganize the terms of the Preference Shareholders of RTL and
DWL, their rights would not be affected.

Overall the Scheme, inter-alia, provides for the consolidation of the wireless telecom business of RCom
qgroup and Aircel group, it will enhance competitive strength; achieve cost reduction, efficiencies and
productivity gains by pooling financial, managerial and technical resources, personnel capabilities, skills,
expertise and technologies; thereby significantly contributing to the future growth and maximizing
shareholders' value.

Promoter & Non-Promoter Equity and Preference Shareholders of Deccan and SACPL:

Equity shareholders of Deccan and SACPL and Preference Shareholders of SACPL shall be eligible for
issuance of Shares of AL based on the valuation report obtained from M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, an independent valuer.

Consequent to amalgamation of Deccan and SACPL, such preference share capital of the Deccan,
which are entirely held by SACPL, shall be cancelled.

Thus, the rights and interest of the Promoters and Non-Promoter Shareholders of Companies involved in
the Scheme will not be prejudicially affected by the Scheme.
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The pre and post (expected) Scheme shareholding patterns of the respective companies involved in the
Scheme as on 30th September 2016 is as follows:

RCom

Description

Pre-Scheme shareholding of

RCom

Post-Scheme shareholding of
RCom (Expected)

Number of shares

% (A+B+C)

Number of shares | % (A+B+C)

Promoter and promoter
group

Indian

Individuals / Hindu
Undivided Family

98,45,709

0.40%

98,45,709 0.40%

Central Government/ State
Government(s)

Financial Institutions/

Banks

Any other -

1,4548,51,135

58.45%

1454851135 58.45%

Sub-Total A(1):

1,46,46,96,844

58.85%

1,46,46,96,844 58.85%

Foreign

Individuals (Non-Residents
Individuals / Foreign
Individuals)

Government

Institutions

Foreign Portfolio Investor

Any Other (specify)

Sub-Total A(2) :

Total A=A(1)+A(2)

1.46,46,96,844

58.85%

1,46,46,96,844 58.85%

PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

Institutions

Mutual Funds/UTI

3,99,40,777

1.60%

3,99,40,777 1.60%

Venture Capital Funds

Alternate Investment
Funds

Foreign Venture Capital
Investors

Foreign Portfolio Investors

29,95,93,082

12.04%

29,95,93,082 12.04%

Financial Institutions /
Banks

63.09.871

0.25%

63.09.871 0.25%

Insurance Companies

17.62,68,422

7.08%

17,62,68,422 7.08%

Provident Funds/ Pension
Funds

Any other - FII

11,04,27.881

4.44%

11.04,27,881 4.44%

Sub-Total B(1) :

63,25,40,033

25.41%

63,25,40,033 25.41%
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Description Pre-Scheme shareholding of Post-Scheme shareholding of
RCom RCom (Expected)
Number of shares | % (A+B+C) | Number of shares | % (A+B+C)
B(2) | Central Government/ State 12,21,257 0.05% 12,21.,257 0.05%
Government(s)/ President
of India
Sub-Total B(2): 12,21,257 0.05% 12,21,257 0.05%
B(3) | NON-INSTITUTIONS
Individual share capital 23.77,87,599 9.55% 23.77,87,599 9.55%
upto Rs. 2 Lacs
Individual share capital in 2,51,83,173 1.01% 2,51,83,173 1.01%
excess of Rs. 2 Lacs
NBFCs reqistered with RBI - - - -
Employee Trusts - - - -
Overseas Depositories - - - -
(holding DRs)
Any Other - NRI & OCBs 9,59,16,592 3.85% 9,59,16,592 3.85%
Sub-Total B(3): 35,88,87,364 14.42% 35,88,87,364 14.42%
Total B=B(1)+B(2)+B(3): 99,26,48,654 39.88% 99,26,48,654 39.88%
C | Non Promoter-
Non Public
(C1) | Shares underlying DRs 1.03,55.247 0.42% 1.03,55,247 0.42%
(C2) | Shares held by Employee 2,12,79,000 0.85% 2,12,79,000 0.85%
Trust
Total Non Promoter-Non 3,16,34,247 1.27% 3,16,34,247 1.27%
Public Shareholding (C)=
(©)(1)+(C) (2):
GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) : | 248,89,79,745| 100.00% | 248,89,79,745| 100.00%

Note : There will be no change in the Equity shareholding pattern of RCom post Scheme as no shares would
be issued pursuant to the Scheme. The above shareholding pattern does not include issue of 276,553,305
equity shares of Rs. 5 each agggreqating to ten per cent (10%) of the total issued and fully paid up share
capital of the Company, on a fully diluted basis, pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement between Sistema
Shyam TeleServices Limited and the Company.

RTL
Equity Capital:

Sr. | Name of the Shareholder Pre-Scheme shareholding | Post-Scheme shareholding
No. of RTL of RTL (Expected)
No. of shares % No. of shares %
1. Reliance Communications Limited 66,980,100* | 78.80% 66,980,100| 78.80%
2. Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Limited® 18,019,900| 21.20% 18,019,900| 21.20%
Total 85,000,000 | 100.00% 85,000,000 | 100.00%

* 5 shares jointly held by 5 (five) individuals one share each for statutory requirements of which Reliance
Communications Limited has ownership and beneficial interest.

# a wholly owned subsidiary of RCom
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Preference Share Capital:

a. 1% Non convertible, non cumulative, redeemable preference shares

Sr. | Name of the Shareholder Pre-Scheme shareholding | Post-Scheme shareholding
No. of RTL of RTL (Expected)

No. of shares % No. of shares %
1. Reliance Communications Limited 45,000,000 | 100.00% 45,000,000 | 100.00%

Total | 45,000,000 | 100.00% 45,000,000 | 100.00%

b. 1% Redeemable, non cumulative, non convertible preference shares

Sr. | Name of the Shareholder Pre-Scheme shareholding | Post-Scheme shareholding
No. of RTL of RTL (Expected)
No. of shares % No. of shares %

1. Reliance Communications Tamilnadu Limited 13,477,000|100.00% 13,477,000 | 100.00%

Total| 13,477,000|100.00% 13,477,000 | 100.00%

Note: There will be no change in the Equity and Preference shareholding pattern of RTL post Scheme as no
shares would be issued pursuant to the Scheme.

AL

Equity Capital:

Sr. | Name of the Shareholder Pre-Scheme shareholding of | Post-Scheme shareholding of
No. AL AL (Expected) (Refer Note)
No. of shares % No. of shares %
1. Deccan Digital Networks Pvt. Ltd. 85135, 135| 35.00% - -
2. Global Communication Services 158,108,108 | 65.00% |15.886,099,183*| 49.80%
Holdings Ltd
3. Sindya Securities & Investment - - 63,900,817 0.20%
Pvt. Ltd.
4. Reliance Communications Limited - - 15,950,000,000 | 50.00%
Total 243,243,243 | 100.00% | 31,900,000,000 | 100.00%

Note:

* Global Communication Services Holdings Limited (GCSHL) holds 158,108,103 shares in AL in its own name.
It also holds 5 shares jointly with five of its associate companies. Thus GCSHL together with its associates holds
158,108,108 shares of AL, representing 65% of the total paid-up share capital of AL.

# 5 Shares Jointly held by 5 (five) associate companies each for statutory requirements of which GCSHL has
ownership and beneficial interest.

In addition to the shares issued under the Scheme, AL and DWL may be required to pay to the DoT towards
liberalisation costs. AL may be required to issue shares worth Rs. 37,050,000,000 (Rupees Three Thousand
Seven Hundred Five Crore only) to each of Global Communication Services Holdings Ltd., Mauritius and Reliance
Communications Limited between the date on which the Board of Directors approved the Scheme till the Effective
Date of the Scheme.
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Preference Share Capital:

Sr. | Name of the Shareholder Pre-Scheme shareholding of AL

No. No. of shares %

1. Global Communication Services Holdings Ltd 8,091,527,200 100.00%
Total 8,091,527,200 100.00%

Post Scheme: All the preference shares would be converted into equity shares in accordance with the provisions
of the Scheme. Thus, no preference shares would exist post implementation of the Scheme.

DWL
Equity Capital:
Sr. | Name of the Shareholder Pre-Scheme shareholding Post-Scheme shareholding
No. of DWL of DWL (Expected)
No. of shares % No. of shares %
1. | Aircel Limited 29,798,130* | 100.00% | 5,962,778,573* | 100.00%
Total 29,798,130 | 100.00% | 5,962,778,573 | 100.00%

* AL holds 29,798,124 shares in DWL in its own name. It also holds 6 shares jointly with 6 individuals. Thus,
AL together with individuals holds 29,798,130 shares of DWL, representing 100% of the total paid-up share
capital of DWL.

# 6 Shares jointly held by 6 (six) individuals each for statutory requirements of which AL has ownership and
beneficial interest.

Preference Capital:

Sr. | Name of the Shareholder Pre-Scheme shareholding Post-Scheme shareholding
No. of DWL of DWL (Expected)
No. of shares % No. of shares %
1. Global Communication Services 1,608,817,590 | 100.00% - -
Holdings Ltd
2. Aircel Limited - -| 1,608,817,590 | 100.00%
Total | 1,608,817,590 | 100.00% | 1,608,817,590 | 100.00%

Deccan

Equity Capital:

Sr. | Name of the Shareholder Pre-Scheme shareholding of Deccan
No. No. of shares %
1. Sindya Securities & Investment Pvt. Ltd. 34,171,560 74.29%
2. Global Communication Services Holdings Ltd. 11,828,440 25.71%
Total 46,000,000 100.00%
Preference Capital:
Sr. | Name of the Shareholder Pre-Scheme shareholding of Deccan
No. No. of shares %
1. South Asia Communications Pvt. Ltd. 1,644,594,517 100.00%
Total 1,644,594,517 100.00%

Post Scheme:Not Applicable as Deccan would be merged with AL pursuant to the Scheme and entire Pre-Scheme
Paid-up Equity and Preference Share Capital of Deccan shall stand cancelled in pursuance of the Scheme.
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SACPL
Equity Capital

Sr. | Name of the Shareholder Pre-Scheme shareholding of SACPL
No. No. of shares %
1. Global Communication Services Holdings Ltd. 6,217,277 99.99%
2. Maxis Communications Berhad jointly with Global 1 0.01%
Communications Services Holdings Limited
Total 6,217,278 100.00%
Preference Capital:
Sr. | Name of the Shareholder Pre-Scheme shareholding of SACPL
No. No. of shares %
1. Global Communication Services Holdings Ltd 1,644,461,328 100.00%
Total 1,644,461,328 100.00%

Post Scheme: Not Applicable as SACPL would be merged with AL pursuant to the Scheme and entire Pre-
Scheme Paid-up Equity Share Capital of SACPL shall stand cancelled in pursuance of the Scheme.

d)

e)

f)

Creditors - The rights and interest of the respective creditors of Companies involved in the Scheme will
not be prejudicially affected by the Scheme as post Scheme, the respective companies shall meet their
respective liabilities as they arise in the ordinary course of business. Further the rights and interests of the
Creditors will not be prejudicially affected by the Scheme as there is no Compromise and/or Arrangement
with the Creditors (except in the case of AL for the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans) since no
sacrifice or waiver is, at all, called from them nor are their terms or rights sought to be modified in any
manner.

Debenture Holders and Debenture Trustees of RCom- There is expected to be no adverse effect of the
Scheme on debenture holders and debenture trustees as there is no Compromise and/or Arrangement with
the Debenture Holders since no sacrifice or waiver is, at all, called from them nor are their terms or rights
sought to be modified in any manner.

Employees

(a) Employees of the three Demerqged Undertakings, RCom or RTL, as the case may be - The rights and
interests of the Transferred Employees of the Demerged Undertakings (identified in the manner as set
out in the Merger Agreement) of RCom or RTL, as the case may be, will not be prejudicially affected
by the Scheme as such Transferred Employees will become Employees of AL or DWL, as the case may
be, on terms and conditions that are no less favourable without any break or interruption in service. The
period of services of all such Transferred Employees with RCom or RTL, as the case may be, prior to the
Effective Date shall be taken into account for the purposes of all benefits of AL or DWL, as the case
may be, to which the said Transferred Employees may be eligible, including for the purpose of payment
of any remuneration or contracts or statutory benefits, incentive plans, retrenchment compensation,
gratuity and other terminal benefits. Save as expressly provided for in this Scheme, the Transferred
Employees who become employees of AL or DWL, as the case may be, by virtue of this Scheme,
shall not be entitled to the employment policies and shall not be entitled to avail of any schemes and
benefits that may be applicable and available to any of the other employees of AL or DWL, as the case
may be, unless otherwise determined by the AL or DWL, as the case may be. AL or DWL, as the case
may be, also undertakes to continue to abide by any agreement / settlement, if any, entered into or
deemed to have been entered into by RCom or RTL, as the case may be, with any union/ Transferred
Employee of RCom or RTL, as the case may be.

36



(b)  Employees of the Transferor Companies viz. Deccan and SACPL -

The rights and interests of the Employees of the Transferor Companies will not be prejudicially affected
by the Scheme as such employees will become employees of AL on same terms and conditions on
which they are engaged by the Transferor Companies without any interruption of service as a result
of the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with AL. The period of services of all employees
with the Transferor Companies prior to the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with AL shall
be taken into account for the purposes of all benefits to which the said employees may be eligible,
including for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other terminal
benefits. Save as expressly provided for in this Scheme, the employees of the Transferor Companies
who become employees of AL by virtue of this Scheme, shall not be entitled to the employment
policies and shall not be entitled to avail of any schemes and benefits that may be applicable and
available to any of the other employees of AL (including the benefits of or under any employee stock
option schemes applicable to or covering all or any of the other employees of AL) unless otherwise
determined by the AL. AL also undertakes to continue to abide by any agreement / settlement, if
any, entered into or deemed to have been entered into by Transferor Companies, with any union/
Transferred Employee of Transferor Companies.

17. CAPITAL STRUCTURE PRE AND POST SCHEME

Pre & Post Scheme Capital structure of all the Companies involved in the Scheme will be as under:

RCom
Pre-Scheme as on Post- Scheme
30th September, 2016 (Expected)
No. of Shares | Rs. in crores No. of Shares | Rs. in crores

Authorised Share Capital:

Equity Shares of Rs.5 each 5,000,000,000 2,500.00 | 5,000,000,000 2,500.00
Total | 5,000,000,000 2,500.00 | 5,000,000,000 2,500.00

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Share

Capital:

Equity Shares of Rs.5 each fully paid | 2,488,979,745 124448 | 2,488,979,745 1244.48

up

Total | 2,488,979,745 1244.48 | 2,488,979,745 1244.48

Note: There will be no change in the Shareholding Pattern of Equity Shares of RCom, pre and post scheme.
RTL

Pre-Scheme as on Post- Scheme
30th September, 2016 (Expected)

No. of Shares Rs. in crores No. of Shares Rs. in crores

Authorised Share Capital:

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 120,000,000 120.00 120,000,000 120.00
Preference shares of Rs. 10 each 100,000,000 100.00 100,000,000 100.00
Unclassified shares of Rs. 10 each 280,000,000 280.00 280,000,000 280.00

Total 500.00 500.00
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Pre-Scheme as on Post- Scheme
30th September, 2016 (Expected)

No. of Shares Rs. in crores No. of Shares Rs. in crores

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Share

Capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 85,000,000 85.00 85,000,000 85.00
Non-convertible, non-cumulative, 45,000,000 45.00 45,000,000 45.00

redeemable preference shares of Rs.
10 each fully paid

Redeemable, non-cumulative, non- 13,477,000 13.48 13,477,000 13.48
convertible preference shares of Rs. 10
each fully paid

Total 143.48 143.48

Note: There will be no change in the Shareholding Pattern of Equity and Preference Shares of RTL, pre and post
scheme.

AL
Pre-Scheme as on Post- Scheme
30th September, 2016 (Expected)
No. of Shares | Rs. in crores No. of Shares | Rs. in crores
Authorised Share Capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 5,000,000,000 5,000 | 75,000,000,000 75,000.00
Redeemable cumulative non- | 15,000,000,000 15,000 - -
convertible preference shares of Rs.
10 each
Total 20,000 75,000.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Share
Capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 243,243,243 243.24 | 31,900,000,000 31,900.00
Redeemable cumulative non-| 8,091,527,200 8091.53 - -
convertible preference shares of Rs.
10 each
Total 8334.77 31,900.00

Notes: (i) In addition to the shares issued under the Scheme, AL and DWL may be required to pay to the DoT
towards liberalisation costs. AL may be required to issue shares worth Rs. 37,050,000,000 (Rupees Three
Thousand Seven Hundred Five Crore only) to each of Global Communication Services Holdings Ltd., Mauritius
and Reliance Communications Limited between the date on which the Board of Directors approved the Scheme
till the Effective Date of the Scheme.

(i) The Preference Shares would be converted into Equity Shares of AL in accordance with the provisions of the
Scheme. Hence, no preference shares would exist post implementation of the Scheme.
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DWL

Pre-Scheme as on Post- Scheme
30th September, 2016 (Expected)
No. of Shares Rs. in crores No. of Shares Rs. in crores

Authorised Share Capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 75,000,000 75.00| 6,500,000,000 6,500.00
Redeemable cumulative non- 2,000,000,000 2,000.00| 2,000,000,000 2,000.00
convertible preference shares of Rs.
10 each

Total 2,075.00 8,500.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Share
Capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 29,798,130 29.80| 5962,778,573 5962.78
Redeemable cumulative non- 1,608,817,590 1,608.82| 1,608,817,590 1,608.82
convertible preference shares of Rs.
10 each

Total 1638.62 7571.59
Deccan

Pre-Scheme as on
30th September, 2016

No. of Shares Rs. in crores

Authorised Share Capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 300,000,000 300.00
Redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of Rs. 2,000,000,000 2,000.00
10 each

Total 2,300.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Share Capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 46,000,000 46.00
Redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of Rs. 1,644,594,517 1,644.59
10 each

Total 1,690.59

Note: Deccan would be merged with AL pursuant to the Scheme and entire Pre-Scheme Paid-up Equity Share

Capital of Deccan shall stand cancelled in pursuance of the Scheme.
SACPL

Pre-Scheme as on
30th September, 2016

No. of Shares Rs. in crores

Authorised Share Capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 300,000,000 300.00
Redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of Rs. 2,000,000,000 2,000.00
10 each

Total 2,300.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Share Capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 6,217,278 6.22
Redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of Rs. 1,644,461,328 1644.46
10 each

Total 1650.68

Note: SACPL would be merged with AL pursuant to the Scheme and entire Pre-Scheme Paid-up Equity Share

Capital of SACPL shall stand cancelled in pursuance of the Scheme.
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18. The copy of draft scheme has been filed with the Registrar of Companies.

19. No investigation proceedings have been instituted or are pending under applicable provisions of Companies Act,
2013 or erstwhile provisions of Companies Act, 1956 against RCom.

20. No winding up petition has been admitted against the RCom.

21. On the Scheme being approved by the requisite majority of the shareholders of the respective Companies
involved in the Scheme as per the requirement of Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013, all the Companies
will file a petition with the Tribunal at Mumbai for sanction of the Scheme.

22. The following documents will be open for inspection by the equity shareholders of RCom up to 1 (one) day prior
to the date of the meeting at its registered office between 11:00 A.M. and 2:00 P.M. on all working days, except
Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays:

0)

(vii)

(xi)

Copy of the Order dated March 15, 2017 of the Tribunal at Mumbai passed in Company Scheme Application
No. 264 of 2017 directing the convening of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of RCom;

Copy of the Company Scheme Application No. 264 of 2017;

Composite Scheme of Arrangement;

Memorandum and Articles of Association of RCom, RTL, AL, DWL, Deccan and SACPL;

Annual Report of RCom, RTL, AL, DWL, Deccan and SACPL for the financial year ended March 31, 2016;

Copies of the report on the Share Entitlement for demerger dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s.
S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, an independent valuer and Fairness Opinions dated 14th
September, 2016 issued by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited thereon;

Copies of the report on the Share Entitlement for merqer dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s.
S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, an independent valuer and Fairness Opinions dated 14th
September, 2016 issued by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited thereon;

Certificates issued by respective Statutory Auditors of RCom, RTL, AL, DWL, Deccan and SACPL in relation
to the accounting treatment prescribed in the Scheme is in compliance with the Accounting Standards;

Copy of the Complaints Report submitted to National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited and
also uploaded on the Company's website.

Copy of Observation letters issued by National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.
Reqister of Director's Shareholdings of RCom, RTL, AL, DWL, Deccan and SACPL.

This statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act,
2013. A copy of the Scheme, Explanatory Statement and Proxy Form may be obtained from the Registered Office of
RCom or/ and at the office of advocate situated at 16, Oriental Building, 30, Nagindas Master Road, Flora Fountain,
Mumbai 400 001,

R. N. Bhardwaj

Chairperson appointed for the meeting.

Place: Mumbai
Date: March 17, 2017

Registered Office:

Reliance Communications Limited,

H Block, 1+t Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City,
Navi Mumbai 400 710

CIN - L45309MH2004PLC147531
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COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

UNDER SECTIONS 391 TO 394 READ WITH SECTIONS 100-104 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 AND OTHER

(i)

(iii)

APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
BETWEEN
RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

AND

RELIANCE TELECOM LIMITED
AND

AIRCEL LIMITED

AND

DISHNET WIRELESS LIMITED
AND

DECCAN DIGITAL NETWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED
AND
SOUTH ASIA COMMUNICATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES

Reliance Communications Limited, the "Demerged Company 1", is a public listed company incorporated
under the Companies Act, 1956 under the corporate identity number L45309MH2004PLC147531.The
Demerged Company 1 is engaged, inter alia, in the business of providing telecom services, covering mobile
and fixed line telephony, including broadband, national and international long distance services and data
services along with an exhaustive range of value added services and applications, data centre services.

Reliance Telecom Limited, the “Demerged Company 2", is a public company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 under the corporate identity number U32100MH1994PLC162841. The Demerged
Company 2 is engaqed, inter alia, in the business of providing telecom services, covering mobile and fixed
line telephony, including broadband, national and international long distance services and data services
along with an exhaustive range of value added services and applications, data centre services.

Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited, the “Transferor Company 1", is a private company incorporated
under the Companies Act, 1956 under the corporate identity number U64202DL2006PTC144852. The
Transferor Company 1 is a shareholder of the Resulting Company 1.

South Asia Communications Private Limited, the "Transferor Company 2", is a private company incorporated
under the Companies Act, 1956 under the corporate identity number U72900DL2006PTC146401. The
Transferor Company 2 is a shareholder of the Transferor Company 1.

Aircel Limited, the "Resulting Company 1" or "Transferee Company", is a public company incorporated
under the Companies Act, 1956 under the corporate identity number U32201MH1994PLC284030. The
Resulting Company 1 is engaqed, inter alia, in the business of providing telecom services, covering mobile
and fixed line telephony, including broadband, national and international long distance services and data
services along with an exhaustive range of value added services and applications, data centre services.
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(vi) Dishnet Wireless Limited, the "Resulting Company 2", is a public company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 under the corporate identity number U74999MH1998PLC283931. The Resulting
Company 2 is engaqed, inter alia, in the business of providing telecom services, covering mobile and fixed
line telephony, including broadband, national and international long distance services and data services
along with an exhaustive range of value added services and applications, data centre services.

RATIONALE FOR THIS SCHEME

The demerger and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings (defined hereinafter) of the Demerged Companies
(defined hereinafter) to the Resulting Companies (defined hereinafter) pursuant to this Scheme shall, inter alia,
result in following benefits:

(i)  consolidation of the wireless telecom business of the Demerged Companies with the Resulting Companies
provides an opportunity to the Demerged Company 1 to acquire equity interest in the Resulting Company
1

(i) further expanding the business of the Resulting Companies into growing markets of India, thereby creating
greater value for the shareholders of the Resulting Companies;

(i) availability of increased resources and assets which can be utilised for strengthening the customer base of
the Resulting Companies (including the customer base of the Demerged Companies) and servicing existing
as well as new customers of the Resulting Companies innovatively and efficiently;

(iv) augmenting the infrastructural capability of the Resulting Companies to effectively meet future challenges
in the ever-evolving wireless telecom business;

(v) the combination of the Demerged Undertakings and the Resulting Companies is a strategic fit for serving
existing market and for catering to additional volume linked to new consumers;

(vi) synergies in operational process and logistics alignment leading to economies of scale for the Resulting
Companies and creation of efficiencies and benefitting customers as well as optimization of operation and
capital expenditure;

(vii) assisting the Resulting Companies and the Demerged Companies in strengthening their assets base while
also enhancing their financial flexibility;

(vii) enhance competitive strength, achieve cost reduction, efficiencies and productivity gains by pooling the
financial, managerial and technical resources, personnel capabilities, skills, expertise and technologies of the
Resulting Companies and the Demerged Companies thereby significantly contributing to future growth and
maximizing shareholders value;

(ix) reducing the direct and indirect foreign shareholding in the Resulting Company 1; and

(x)  to achieve an optimal capital structure which duly represents the intrinsic value of the Resulting Company
1, through a capital reorganization exercise which will also involve conversion of the Resulting Company 1
Shareholders Loans (as defined hereinafter) which are in the nature of long term shareholder funding for
the Resulting Company 1 into equity shares and thereby strengthening the balance sheet of the Resulting
Companies for future growth and expansion and to create a capital structure which is geared to take
advantage of possible growth opportunities.

The amalgamation of the Transferor Companies (defined hereinafter) with the Transferee Company pursuant to
this Scheme will simplify and streamline the ownership structure of the Resulting Company 1. The proposed
restructuring between the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company is in the interest of the shareholders,
creditors, employees and other stakeholders, of each of the companies, as it would enable a focused business
approach for the maximization of benefits to all stakeholders.
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C.

OVERVIEW AND OPERATION OF THIS SCHEME

(i) This Scheme provides for:

(a)

the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerqged Undertakings from the Demerged Companies
to the Resulting Companies on a qoing concern basis, and the consequent issue of shares by the
Resulting Company 1 to the Demerqed Company 1, in accordance with the provisions of Sections
391 to 394 of the Act (as defined hereinafter) and other applicable provisions of law;

the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies into the Transferee Company/Resulting Company 1,
and the consequent issue of shares by the Resulting Company 1 to the shareholders of the Transferor
Companies, in the manner set out in this Scheme and in accordance with the provisions of Sections
391 to 394 of the Act and other applicable provisions of law;

the reorganisation and reduction of the share capital of the Resulting Company 1 by converting the
Resulting Company 1 RPS (as defined hereinafter) into equity shares of the Resulting Company 1 and
thereafter reducing the paid up share capital of the Resulting Company 1 in the manner set out in this
Scheme and in accordance with Sections 100 to 103 and Sections 391 to 394 of the Act;

the conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans (as defined hereinafter) into equity
shares of the Resulting Company 1 and thereafter reducing the paid up share capital of the Resulting
Company 1 in the manner set out in this Scheme and in accordance with Sections 100 to 103 and
Sections 391 to 394 of the Act; and

the reduction of the preference share capital of the Transferor Company 1 in the manner set out in
this Scheme and in accordance with the provisions of Sections 100 to 103 and Sections 391 to 394
of the Act and other applicable provisions of Applicable Law.

The Demerged Companies will continue to pursue their interests in the Remaining Business (as defined hereinafter)
as is presently being carried out.

PARTS OF THIS SCHEME

This Scheme is divided into the following parts:

(i)  PART I deals with the definitions of capitalized terms used in this Scheme and the share capital of the
Demerged Companies, the Transferor Companies and the Resulting Companies;

(i)  PART II deals with the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings from the Demerged Companies
into the Resulting Companies, the manner of vesting of the Demerged Undertakings and the consideration
thereof;

(i) PART III deals with the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company and the
consideration thereof;

(iv)  PART IV deals with the conversion of the Resulting Company 1 RPS (defined hereinafter) into equity shares
and the subsequent reduction and cancellation of such equity shares;

(v)  PARTV deals with the conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans (defined hereinafter) into
equity shares and the subsequent reduction and cancellation of a part of such equity shares;

(vi) PART VI deals with the reduction and cancellation of the Transferor Company 1 RPS; and

(vii) PART VII deals with the general terms and conditions that would be applicable to this Scheme.
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1.1,

PART I
DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL
DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the subject or context, the following expressions shall have the following
meanings:

"Act" means the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent of the provisions notified and the Companies Act, 1956
to the extent of its provisions in force and shall include any other statutory amendment or re-enactment or
restatement and the rules and/or requlations and/or other quidelines or notifications under Applicable Laws,
made thereunder from time to time;

"Affiliate" of a specified Person, means a Person that directly or indirectly Controls, is directly or indirectly
Controlled by, oris, directly or indirectly, under common Control with, such specified Person;

"Appointed Date" means the Effective Date;

"Applicable Law" means any applicable national, foreign, provincial, local or other law including all applicable
provisions of all (a) constitutions, decrees, treaties, statutes, laws (including the common law), codes, notifications,
rules, requlations, policies, quidelines, circulars, directions, directives, ordinances or orders of any Appropriate
Authority, statutory authority, court, tribunal having jurisdiction over the Parties; (b) Permits; and (c) orders,
decisions, injunctions, judgments, awards and decrees of or agreements with any Appropriate Authority having
jurisdiction over the Parties and shall include, without limitation, the listing agreement executed with the Stock
Exchanges in the case of Demerged Company 1.

"Appropriate Authority” means:

(i)  the government of any jurisdiction (including any national, state, municipal or local government or any
political or administrative subdivision thereof) and any department, ministry, agency, instrumentality, court,
central bank, commission or other authority thereof;

(i) any public international organisation or supranational body and its institutions, departments, agencies and
instrumentalities;

(i) any governmental, quasi-governmental or private body or agency lawfully exercising, or entitled to exercise,
any administrative, executive, judicial, legislative, requlatory, licensing, competition, tax, importing or other
governmental or quasi-governmental authority; and

(iv) any Stock Exchange.

"Board" in relation to each of the Transferor Companies, the Demerged Companies and the Resulting Companies,
as the case may be, means the board of directors of such company, and shall include a committee of directors
or any person authorized by the Board or such committee of directors duly constituted and authorized for the
purposes of matters pertaining to the amalgamation, this Scheme and/or any other matter relating thereto.

“Business Day" means a day (other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a public holiday) when commercial banks are
open for ordinary banking business in Mumbai, India and Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, in the context of a payment
being made to or from a scheduled commercial bank in a place other than Mumbai, India or Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia, in such other place;

"Cash/ Cash Equivalent” shall mean the cash or cash equivalent to be contributed by the Demerged Companies
to the Demerged Undertakings on or prior to the Effective Date and shall be determined in the following manner:

(@) if the Demerged Company 1 Qualifying Capex is equal to or greater than INR 13,000,000,000 then
Cash/ Cash Equivalent to be contributed shall be an amount equal to INR 19,500,000,000 MINUS INR
13,000,000,000 MINUS the amount of Qualifying Deferred Spectrum Payments; or
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(b) if the Demerged Company 1 Qualifying Capex is less than INR 13,000,000,000 then Cash/ Cash Equivalent
to be contributed shall be equal to INR 19,500,000,000 MINUS such amount of Demerged Company 1
Qualifying Capex MINUS the amount of Qualifying Deferred Spectrum Payments.

"Control" of a specified Person means the direct or indirect power to direct, or cause the direction of, the
management or policies of the specified Person, through the ownership of shares, by contract or otherwise. A
Person will be deemed to Control such a specified Person if: (a) that Person has the direct or indirect power: (i) to
exercise or cause the exercise of more than 50% of the voting rights (or equivalent) in respect of the specified
Person; or (ii) to appoint or cause the appointment of more than half of the board of directors or similar governing
body of the specified Person; or (b) the specified Person is a limited partnership and the Person is the general
partner or manager of that limited partnership and the terms "Controlled by" and "under common Control with"
shall be construed accordingly.

"CDMA" means Code Division Multiple Access;

"CDMA Business" means the wireless communication business of the Demerged Companies comprising both
voice and data services utilising administratively allocated spectrum in the 850 MHz band based on the CDMA
protocol and/or CDMA 2000, 1XRTT and HSIA technologies, and includes the CDMA business acquired by the
Demerqged Company 1 under the SSTL Scheme;

"Demerged Carved Out Undertaking” means the wireless telecom business undertaking of Demerged Company
2 that is proposed to be demerged and transferred to Demerged Company 1 pursuant to the Demerged
Companies’ Scheme, conducted in Madhya Pradesh (including Chhattisgarh), West Bengal, Bihar (including
Jharkhand), Himachal Pradesh and Orissa comprising solely and exclusively of: (i) the Identified Assets 3 Carved
Out; (ii) the Identified Liabilities 3 Carved Out; and (iii) the Identified Litigations as they relate to such business,
together with: (i) all contracts relating to the Demerqged Undertaking 3, but excluding at all times: (a) any
contracts between Demerged Company 1 and/ or Demerqged Company 2, on the one hand, and Reliance Infratel
Limited or a member of the RCOM Group, on the other hand, to the extent they do not relate to the RCOM
Specified Circles Sites; (b) any master service agreements and tower tenancy agreements to the extent they do
not relate to the Transferred Tenancy Agreements relating to the sites identified in the Merger Agreement; and
(c) any TS Contracts; and (i) Transferred Employees relating to Demerged Carved Out Undertaking;

“"Demerged Companies” means collectively, the Demerged Company 1 and the Demerged Company 2;

“"Demerged Company 1" means Reliance Communications Limited, a public listed company incorporated under
the Act under the corporate identity number L45309MH2004PLC147531 and having its registered office at H
Block, 1st Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City, Navi Mumbai 400 710, India;

“"Demerged Company 1 Additional Value" shall mean the agqreqate of Demerged Company 1 Qualifying Capex,
Cash/ Cash Equivalent and Qualifying Deferred Spectrum Payments;

“"Demerged Company 1 Qualifying Capex" shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the Merger Agreement;

"Demerged Company 2" means Reliance Telecom Limited, a public company incorporated under the Act under
the corporate identity number U32100MH1994PLC162841 and having its registered office at H Block, 1st
Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City, Navi Mumbai 400 710, India;

“"Demerged Company Material Adverse Change" means RCOM Material Adverse Change;

"Demerged Companies’' Scheme" means the scheme of arrangement between the Demerged Company 1 and
the Demerged Company 2 pursuant to the provisions of the Act for the demerger and transfer of the Demerged
Carved Out Undertaking from the Demerged Company 2 to the Demerged Company 1 as approved by their
respective Boards on 24 June 2016 and notified to the Stock Exchange on 24 June 2016;

"Demerged Undertakings" means collectively, the Demerged Undertaking 1, the Demerged Undertaking 2 and
the Demerqged Undertaking 3, including for the avoidance of doubt Demerged Company 1 Qualifying Capex,
Qualifying Deferred Spectrum Payments and Cash/Cash Equivalent;
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"Demerged Undertaking 1" means the wireless telecom business undertaking of the Demerged Company 1 as carried
on at the Appointed Date (or where this Scheme requires otherwise, the relevant date of determination), conducted in
Andhra Pradesh, Delhi, Gujarat, Karnataka, Maharashtra, Mumbai, Rajasthan and Tamil Nadu telecom circles, comprising
solely and exclusively of: (i) the Identified Assets 1; (ii) the Identified Liabilities 1 and including the RCOM Assumed
Debt; (iii) the RCOM Completion Cash Amount; and (iv) the shares in New Holdco and indirectly the shares of the
Transferred Subsidiaries, together with: (i) all contracts relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1, but excluding at
all times: (a) any contracts between Demerged Company 1 and/ or Demerged Company 2, on the one hand, and
Reliance Infratel Limited or a member of the RCOM Group, on the other hand, to the extent they do not relate to the
RCOM Specified Circles Sites; (b) any master service agreements and tower tenancy agreements to the extent they do
not relate to the Transferred Tenancy Agreements relating to the sites identified in the Merger Agreement; and (c) any
TS Contracts, (i) the relevant Transferred Employees; (iii) the Identified IPR relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1;
and (iv) in addition to other assets that are part of Demerged Undertaking 1 and to the extent not part of Demerged
Undertaking 2, 1200 Huawei 1200 MHz Base Trans Receiver Stations. On and from the date on which the SSTL
Scheme becomes effective, the Demerged Undertaking 1 shall also include the SSTL Business 1;

"Demerged Undertaking 2" means the wireless telecom business undertaking of the Demerged Company 1 as
carried on at the Appointed Date (or where this Scheme requires otherwise, the relevant date of determination),
conducted in Bihar (including Jharkhand), Haryana, Himachal Pradesh, Jammu and Kashmir, Kerala, Kolkata, Madhya
Pradesh (including Chhattisgarh), Orissa, Punjab, Uttar Pradesh (East), Uttar Pradesh (West) and West Bengal telecom
circles comprising solely and exclusively of: (i) the Identified Assets 2; (ii) the Identified Liabilities 2; together with:
(i) all contracts relating to the Demerged Undertaking 2, but excluding at all times: (a) any contracts between
the Demerged Company 1 and/ or the Demerged Company 2, on the one hand, and Reliance Infratel Limited or
a member of the RCOM Group, on the other hand, to the extent they do not relate to the RCOM Specified Circles
Sites; (b) any master service agreements and tower tenancy agreements to the extent they do not relate to the
Transferred Tenancy Agreements relating to the sites identified in the Merger Aqreement; and (c) any TS Contracts; (ii)
the relevant Transferred Employees relating to Demerged Undertaking 2; and (iii) in addition to other assets that are
part of Demerged Undertaking 1 and to the extent not part of Demerqged Undertaking 2, 1200 Huawei 1200 MHz
Base Trans Receiver Stations. On and from the date on which (i) the SSTL Scheme becomes effective, the Demerged
Undertaking 2 shall also include the SSTL Business 2; and (i) the Demerged Companies' Scheme becomes effective,
the Demerged Undertaking 2 shall also include the Demerged Carved Out Undertaking;

"Demerged Undertaking 3" means the wireless telecom business undertaking of Demerged Company 2 as carried on
at the Appointed Date (or where this Scheme requires otherwise, the relevant date of determination), conducted in
Kolkata, Madhya Pradesh (including Chhattisgarh), West Bengal, Assam, Bihar (including Jharkhand), Himachal Pradesh,
North East and Orissa telecom circles comprising solely and exclusively of: (i) the Identified Assets 3; and (ii) the
Identified Liabilities 3; together with: (i) all contracts relating to the Demerged Undertaking 3, but excluding at all
times: (a) any contracts between Demerged Company 1 and/ or Demerged Company 2, on the one hand, and
Reliance Infratel Limited or a member of the RCOM Group, on the other hand, to the extent they do not relate to the
RCOM Specified Circles Sites; (b) any master service agreements and tower tenancy agreements to the extent they
do not relate to the Transferred Tenancy Agreements relating to the sites identified in the Merger Agreement; and (c)
any TS Contracts; (ii) Transferred Employees and IPR relating to the Demerged Undertaking 3. Provided that upon the
Demerged Companies Scheme coming into effect, the Demerged Undertaking 3 shall exclude the Demerged Carved
Out Undertaking;

"DoT" means the Department of Telecommunications of the Ministry of Communications and Information Technology,
Government of India, or any predecessor or successor body;

"Effective Date" means the day on which all of the conditions specified in Clause 42 (Conditions Precedent) of this
Scheme are complied with;

"Encumbrance" means (i) any charqe, lien (statutory or other), or mortgage, any easement, encroachment, right
of way, right of first refusal or other encumbrance or security interest securing any obligation of any person; (i) pre-
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emption right, option, right to acquire, right to set off or other third party right or claim of any kind, including any
restriction on use, voting, Transfer, receipt of income or exercise; or (i) any equity, assignments hypothecation, title
retention, restriction, power of sale or other type of preferential arrangements; or (iv) any agreement to create any of
the above; the term “Encumber” shall be construed accordingly;

"Excluded Assets” means any asset of the Demerged Companies, the New Holdco or the Transferred Subsidiaries
which is not an Identified Asset, and, for the avoidance of doubt, shall include: (a) all assets relating to the CDMA
Business; (b) any CENVAT credit acquired by Demerged Company 1 from SSTL under the SSTL Scheme; and (c) any IT
related assets not specifically included in "SSTL Assets", and acquired by Demerged Company 1 from SSTL under the
SSTL Scheme;

"Excluded Employees" means all employees of the Demerged Companies, that are not Transferred Employees;
"Excluded IPR" means IPR other than Identified IPR;
"Excluded Liabilities” means:

(a) any and all liabilities relating to the Excluded Assets (including for the avoidance of doubt costs arising from the
termination of the CDMA Business), Excluded Employees, Excluded IPR or Excluded Litigations;

(b) any obligation or liability not predominantly relating to the Demerged Undertakings;
(c) any and all RCOM Direct Tax Liabilities;

(d) any and all RCOM Excluded Regqulatory Liabilities;

(e) any and all RCOM Excluded Indirect Tax Liabilities;

(f) any and all RCOM Excluded Third Party Liabilities;

(g) any liabilities of the Demerged Companies to Reliance Infratel Limited, any of their respective shareholders or any
of their respective Affiliates;

(h) any and all liabilities arising as a result of surrender of 900 MHz 2G spectrum in the circles of Assam, North East,
Bihar, West Bengal and Orissa and the resulting shutdown and/or exit from certain towers, including any site
tenancy lease termination costs;

(i)  any and all liabilities arising as a result of the bank quarantee provided by Axis or any other bank guarantee
relating to the Option Agreements, save and except the bank quarantee to DoT relating to OTSC that is required
to be replaced by the bank quarantee to be given by Aircel to DoT as per applicable DoT gquidelines;

(j)  any liability of SSTL relating to IP Colo penalties;

(k) any liabilities of the Demerged Company 1 pursuant to an earn out deed dated 2 November 2015 between
Demerged Company 1, SSTL and STA Capital LLC;

() any IT related liabilities or other liabilities not specifically included in "SSTL Liabilities" acquired by the Demerged
Company 1from SSTL under the SSTL Scheme;

"Excluded Litigations" means all actions and legal proceedings involving any member of the Demerged Companies,
New HoldCo or any Transferred Subsidiary other than the Identified Litigations;

"GAAP" means the accounting standards and principles as applicable in India and as issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Government of India ("Notified Accounting Standards") and in effect as of the Effective Date and where there
is no specific quidance given by the Notified Accounting Standards, quidance given in any pronouncement issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India;

"GCSHL" means Global Communication Services Holding Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Mauritius,
with registration number BRN C14014292, and having its reqgistered offices at c¢/o AXIS Fiduciary Limited, 2nd Floor,
The AXIS, 26 Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Republic of Mauritius;
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"High Court" means the High Court(s) having jurisdiction over the Transferor Companies, the Demerged Companies
and the Resulting Companies, as the case may be and shall include the relative bench of the National Company Law
Tribunal having jurisdiction over them;

"Identified IPR" means the IPR listed as part of the Identified Assets in the Merger Agreement and on and from the
date on which the SSTL Scheme becomes effective, shall also include the IPR acquired from SSTL in accordance with
the SSTL Scheme;

"Identified Assets" means collectively, Identified Assets 1, Identified Assets 2 and Identified Assets 3;

"Identified Assets 1" means the assets of the Demerged Company 1 that form part of the Demerged Undertaking 1,
and are to be transferred by Demerged Company 1 to the Resulting Company 1 pursuant to this Scheme, including but
not limited to the categories of which are set out in Part A of Part 1 of Schedule 1, and shall on and from the date
on which the SSTL Scheme becomes effective, the Identified Assets 1 shall also include the SSTL Assets pertaining
to Demerged Undertaking 1. For the avoidance of doubt, any 2016 Spectrum acquired by Demerged Company 1 or
any member of the RCOM Group in relation to telecom circles forming part of Demerged Undertaking 1 shall be an
Identified Assets 1;

"Identified Assets 2" means the assets of Demerged Company 1 that form part of the Demerged Undertaking 2,
and are to be transferred by Demerged Company 2 to the Resulting Company 2 pursuant to this Scheme, including
but not limited to the categories of which are set out in Part B of Part 1 of Schedule 1. For the avoidance of doubt,
any 2016 Spectrum acquired by Demerged Company 1 or any member of the RCOM Group in relation to telecom
circles forming part of Demerged Undertaking 2 shall be an Identified Assets 2. On and from the date on which: (a)
the SSTL Scheme becomes effective, the Identified Assets 2 shall also include the SSTL Assets pertaining to Demerged
Undertaking 2; and (b) the Demerged Companies Scheme becomes effective, the Identified Assets 2 shall also include
the Identified Assets 3 Carved Out;

"Identified Assets 3" means the assets of Demerged Company 2 that form part of the Demerged Undertaking 3, and
are to be transferred by Demerged Company 2 to the Resulting Company 2 pursuant to this Scheme, including but
not limited to the cateqories of which are set out in Part C of Part 1 of Schedule 1. For the avoidance of doubt, any
2016 Spectrum acquired by Demerged Company 2 or any member of the RCOM Group in relation to telecom circles
forming part of Demerged Undertaking 3 shall be an Identified Assets 3. Provided that upon the Demerged Companies
Scheme coming into effect, Identified Assets 3 shall exclude Identified Asset 3 Carved Out. On and from the date on
which the SSTL Scheme becomes effective, the Identified Assets 2 shall also include the SSTL Assets pertaining to
Demerged Undertaking 2;

"Identified Assets 3 Carved Out" means the assets of the Demerged Company 2 that are to be transferred to
Demerged Company 1 pursuant to the Demerged Companies' Scheme that set out in Part D of Part 1 of Schedule 1;

"Identified Liabilities" means collectively, Identified Liabilities 1, Identified Liabilities 2 and Identified Liabilities 3;

"Identified Liabilities 1" means the obligations and liabilities of the Demerged Company 1 that form part of the
Demerqed Undertaking 1 and are to be novated to or assumed by the Resulting Company 1, pursuant to this Scheme,
including but not limited to the cateqories of which are set out in Part A of Part 2 of Schedule 1, and shall: (i) on
and from the date on which the SSTL Scheme becomes effective, include the SSTL Liabilities pertaining to Demerged
Undertaking 1; and (i) include deferred Spectrum liabilities in respect of the 2016 spectrum acquired by Demerged
Company 1 or any member of the RCOM Group in relation to telecom circles forming part of Demerged Undertaking
1. if any;

"Identified Liabilities 2" means the obligations and liabilities of the Demerged Company 1 that form part of the
Demerqed Undertaking 2 and are to be novated to or assumed by the Resulting Company 2, pursuant to this Scheme,
including but not limited to the categories of which are set out in Part B of Part 2 of Schedule 1, and shall: (i) on
and from the date on which the SSTL Scheme becomes effective, include the SSTL Liabilities pertaining to Demerged
Undertaking 2; and (i) include deferred Spectrum liabilities in respect of the 2016 spectrum acquired by Demerged
Company 1 or any member of the RCOM Group in relation to telecom circles forming part of Demerged Undertaking

2, if any;
fany 48



"Identified Liabilities 3" means the obligations and liabilities of the Demerged Company 2 that form part of the
Demerged Undertaking 3 and are to be novated to or assumed by the Resulting Company 2, pursuant to this Scheme,
including but not limited to the cateqories of which are set out in Part C of Part 2 of Schedule 1, and shall: (i) on
and from the date on which the SSTL Scheme becomes effective, include the SSTL Liabilities pertaining to Demerged
Undertaking 3; and (i) include deferred Spectrum liabilities in respect of the 2016 spectrum acquired by Demerged
Company 2 or any member of the RCOM Group in relation to telecom circles forming part of Demerged Undertaking
3. if any;

"Identified Liabilities 3 Carved out" means the obligations and liabilities of the Demerged Company 2 that form
part of the Demerged Carved Out Undertaking and are to be novated to or assumed by the Demerged Company 1,
pursuant to this Demerged Companies Scheme, including but not limited to the categories of which are set out in Part
D of Part 2 of Schedule 1;

"Identified Litigations" means any and all actions, arbitrations, litigations, proceedings, demands, enquiries, notices
and claims in relation to the Demerged Undertakings as identified pursuant to the Merger Agreement;

"Indebtedness" means any of the following: (a) any indebtedness for borrowed money, (b) any obligation evidenced
by bonds, debentures, notes or other similar instruments, except trade accounts payable and other current liabilities
arising in the Ordinary Course of Business, (c) any quarantee of any of the foregoing, in each case, that has a term of
12 months or more and is capable of being repaid or discharged, and (d) to the extent reflected in the current liabilities
section of a Party's accounts, the current portion of any of the indebtedness listed in sub-paragraphs (a), (b) or (c)
above;

"INR" means Indian Rupee, the lawful currency of the Republic of India;

"IPR" means all inventions (whether patentable or not), patents, utility models, petty patents, registered designs,
design rights, database rights, copyright and related rights, moral rights, semiconductor topography rights, plant variety
rights, service marks, logos, get up, trade names, business names, domain names, trademarks (in each case whether
registered or unregistered) and including any applications for registration and any renewals or extensions of any of the
foreqgoing, and, in each case, the goodwill attaching to any of the foreqoing, rights to sue for passing off or for unfair
competition, and any rights or forms of protection of a similar nature or having equivalent or similar effect to any of
them which subsist anywhere in the world;

"Liberalisation Costs" shall mean the liberalisation fee that will be payable at or immediately prior to the Effective
Date in accordance with the "Guidelines for Liberalisation of Administratively Allocated Spectrum"” in the 800 MHz
band and the 1800 MHz band dated 5 November 2015, issued by the DoT, and in satisfaction of the Condition
Precedent set out in Clause 42.1.5;

"Merqger Agreement” means the framework merger agreement dated 14 September 2016, entered into between
the Demerqged Companies, the Resulting Companies, Transferor Company 1, Transferor Company 2, GCSHL, SSIPL, the
Transferred Subsidiaries and the New HoldCo;

"New HoldCo" means Aircom Holdco B.V., a company incorporated in the Netherlands with establishment number
(vestigingsnummer) 000035108371 and its registered office (Bezoekadres) at Haaksbergqweg 71, 1101BR
Amsterdam, the Netherlands;

"New Holdco Reorganisation” means the internal reorganisation to be undertaken by the Demerqged Company 1 and
its relevant subsidiaries before the Effective Date in such manner as may be agreed in writing between GCSHL and the
Demerged Company 1 so that: (a) the shares in the Transferred Subsidiaries are held by the New Holdco immediately
before the Effective Date; (b) the shares in New Holdco are held by Demerged Company 1 immediately before the
Effective Date; and (c) any Excluded Assets previously held by the Transferred Subsidiaries (if any) are not, immediately
before the Effective Date, owned or held by such Transferred Subsidiaries;

"Parties" shall mean collectively the Resulting Companies, the Demerged Companies, GCSH, the Transferor Companies,
SSIPL, the Transferred Subsidiaries and New Holdco, and "Party” shall mean each of them, individually;
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"Permits" means all consents, licences, permits, permissions, authorisations, rights, clarifications, approvals, clearances,
confirmations, declarations, waivers, exemptions, registrations, filings, whether governmental, statutory, requlatory
under Applicable Law;

"Qualifying Deferred Spectrum Payments" means the instalments paid to the DoT by the Demerged Companies
or Resulting Company 1, as the case may be, during the period specified in the Merger Agreement, in respect of the
spectrum for which notices inviting applications were issued in 2013 and 2014;

"RCOM Assumed Debt" means, as at the Effective Date, Indebtedness of Demerged Company 1 identified in accordance
with the Merger Agreement, which Indebtedness, together with accrued interest, any break fees, repayment costs and
other charges with respect to the discharge of such Indebtedness, would be discharged in full by the payment to the
relevant creditors at Effective Date of: (a) INR 140,000,000,000 (Indian Rupees One hundred and forty Billion); or
(b) such amount lower than 140,000,000,000 (Indian Rupees One hundred and forty Billion) as Demerged Company
1 may elect and notify to Resulting Company in accordance with the Merger Agreement. The RCOM Assumed Debt
shall form part of the Demerged Undertaking 1;

"Person"” means an individual, a partnership, a corporation, a limited liability partnership, a limited liability company, an
association, a joint stock company, a trust, a joint venture, an unincorporated organization or an Appropriate Authority;

"Remaining Business” means all the business, units, divisions, and their respective assets and liabilities including,
Excluded Assets, Excluded Employees, Excluded IPR, Excluded Liabilities and Excluded Litigation of the Demerged
Companies, other than those forming part of the Demerged Undertakings;

"Resulting Companies" means collectively, the Resulting Company 1 and the Resulting Company 2;

"Resulting Company 1" or "Transferee Company” means Aircel Limited, a company incorporated in under the
Companies Act, 1956 under the corporate identity number U32201MH1994PLC284030, having its registered office
at Opus Centre, 47 Central Road, Opp. Tunga Paradise, MIDC, Andheri (E), Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400093;

"Resulting Company 2" means Dishnet Wireless Limited, a company incorporated in under the Companies Act, 1956
under the corporate identity number U74999MH1998PLC283931 having its registered office at Opus Centre, 47
Central Road, Opp. Tunga Paradise, MIDC, Andheri (E), Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400093;

"Resulting Company Material Adverse Change" means an Aircel Material Adverse Change;

“Resulting Company 1 RPS" means INR 80,915,272,000 (Indian Rupees eighty billion nine hundred fifteen million
and two hundred seventy two thousand) redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of face value INR
10, issued by the Resulting Company 1 to GCSHL.

"Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans" means shareholder debts of the Resulting Company 1, agqreqating to INR
262,540,468,625 (Indian Rupees two hundred sixty two billion five hundred forty million four hundred sixty eight
thousand and six hundred twenty five) and shall include: (a) a book debt of INR 229,370,968,625 (Indian Rupees two
hundred twenty nine billion three hundred seventy million nine hundred sixty eight thousand and six hundred twenty
five), or such other amount of book debt that may exist on the Effective Date in the records of the Resulting Company
1; and (b) Indian Rupee denominated bonds aggregating to INR 33,169,500,000 (Indian Rupees thirty three billion
one hundred sixty nine million and five hundred thousand), or such other amount of Indian Rupee denominated bonds,
issued by the Resulting Company 1 as of the Effective Date; and shall include any interest or coupons payable in
respect of such debts;

"Resulting Company 1 SHL Lenders" means the lenders to whom the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans are
owed as on the Effective Date;

“RPS Converted Equity Shares" means 8,091,527,200 (eight billion ninety one million five hundred twenty seven
thousand two hundred) fully paid up equity shares of INR 10 each of the Resulting Company 1 issued and allotted as
provided in Clause 30.1;

"RoC" means the relevant Reqistrar of Companies;
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"Scheme" means this Scheme of Arrangement, with or without any modification approved or imposed or directed by
the High Court;

"SEBI" means the Securities and Exchange Board of India;

"SHL Converted Equity Shares" means 26,254,046,862 (twenty six billion two hundred and fifty four million forty
six thousand eight hundred sixty two) fully paid up equity shares of INR 10 each of the Resulting Company 1 issued
and allotted as provided in Clause 33.1;

"Stock Exchanges" means BSE Limited ("BSE") and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (*NSE") where the
shares of the Demerged Company 1 are listed;

"SSIPL" means Sindya Securities & Investments Private Limited, a private limited company incorporated under the laws
of India, with corporate identity number U67120TN2006PTCO58605 and having its registered office at 5th Floor,
Lakshmi Bhawan No. 609, Mount Road, Chennai Tamil Nadu 600006, Republic of India;

"SSTL" means Sistema Shyam Teleservices Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of India having corporate
identification number U64201RJ1995PLCO17779 with its registered office at MTS Tower, Amrapali Circle, Vaishali
Nagar, Jaipur 302 021, Rajasthan, India;

"SSTL Assets" means the spectrum held by SSTL that forms part of the SSTL Business and acquired by Demerged
Company 1, and the microwave supporting frequencies and their associated NMS, software and licences being allocated
or transferred to Demerged Company 1 on and from the date on which the SSTL Scheme becomes effective, excluding
for the avoidance of doubt, any site tenancy agreements and any other assets of SSTL that exclusively form part of
the SSTL CDMA Business;

"SSTL Business" means collectively the SSTL Business 1 and the SSTL Business 2;

"SSTL Business 1" means the wireless telecom business undertaking of Demerged Company 1 comprising of SSTL
Assets and SSTL Liabilities to be acquired by Demerged Company 1 from SSTL pursuant to the SSTL Scheme, conducted
in Delhi, Gujarat, Karnataka, Rajasthan and Tamil Nadu telecom circles, together with the relevant contracts and SSTL
Employees pertaining to those telecom circles, and all SSTL IPR;

"SSTL Business 2" means the wireless telecom business undertaking comprising of SSTL Assets and SSTL Liabilities
to be acquired by Demerged Company 1 from SSTL pursuant to the SSTL Scheme, conducted in Kerala, Kolkata, Uttar
Pradesh (West) and West Bengal telecom circles, together with the relevant contracts and SSTL Employees pertaining
to those telecom circles;

"SSTL CDMA Business” means the Code Division Multiple Access business acquired by Demerged Companies under
the SSTL Scheme;

"SSTL Employees” means the employees to be transferred to Demerged Company 1 pursuant to the SSTL Scheme,
excluding for the avoidance of doubt any employees working exclusively in the CDMA Business;

"SSTL IPR" means the IPR listed as part of the SSTL Assets in the SSTL Scheme and transferred to Demerged
Company by SSTL on the date on which the SSTL Scheme becomes effective in accordance with the SSTL Scheme;

"SSTL Scheme" means the scheme of arrangement entered into between the Demerged Company 1, SSTL and their
respective shareholders and creditors, approved by their respective board of directors on 2 November 2015;

"SSTL Liabilities" means the liabilities of SSTL relating to the SSTL Assets and to be acquired by Demerged Company 1
on the date on which the SSTL Scheme becomes effective, excluding for the avoidance of doubt any liabilities relating
to the SSTL CDMA Business;

"Taxation" or "Tax" means all forms of taxation and statutory, governmental, state, provincial, local governmental or
municipal impositions, duties, contributions and levies and whether levied by reference to income, profits, gains, net
wealth, asset values, turnover, added value or otherwise and shall further include payments in respect of or on account
of Tax, whenever and wherever imposed and whether chargeable directly or primarily against or attributable directly or
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primarily to Demerged Company 1 or Demerged Company 2 or any other Person and all penalties, charges, costs and
interest relating thereto;

"Transfer" means to transfer, sell, convey, assign, pledge, hypothecate, create a security interest in or Encumbrance on,
place in trust (voting or otherwise), transfer by operation of law or in any other way subject to any Encumbrance or
dispose of, whether or not voluntarily, and "Transferring” and "Transferred" have corresponding meanings

“Transferred Employees" means all employees of the Demerged Companies engaged in the Demerged Undertakings
that will be transferred pursuant to this Scheme;

"Transferred Subsidiaries” shall mean collectively, Reliance Communication Inc., Reliance Communication
International Inc., Reliance Communications Canada Inc., Reliance Communications (Hong Kong) Limited and Reliance
Communications (UK) Limited. "Transferred Subsidiary" shall mean any one of the Transferred Subsidiaries;

"Transferor Companies” means collectively the Transferor Company 1 and the Transferor Company 2;

"Transferor Company 1" means Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited, a private company, limited by shares,
incorporated underthe provisions of the Companies Act 1956, under Corporate Identity No. U64202DL2006PTC144852
and having its registered office at 13, Abul Fazal Road, Bengali Market, New Delhi - 110001, India;

"Transferor Company 2" means South Asia Communications Private Limited, a private company, limited by shares,
incorporated underthe provisions of the Companies Act 1956, under Corporate Identity No. U72900DL2006PTC146401
and having its registered office at 13 Abul Fazal Road, Bengali Market New Delhi;

"Transferor Company 1 RPS" means 1,644,594,517 (one billion six hundred forty four million five hundred ninety
four thousand five hundred and seventeen) redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of face value
INR 10 each issued to Transferor Company 2 by Transferor Company 1;

"Transferor Undertaking 1" means the Undertaking belonging to Transferor Company 1;
"Transferor Undertaking 2" means the Undertaking belonging to Transferor Company 2;

"TS Contract" means all contracts of New Holdco or the Transferred Subsidiaries in existence at Completion that relate
exclusively to the Demerged Undertakings, but to which no member of the RCOM Group (other than New Holdco
and/or one or more Transferred Subsidiaries) is a party;

"Undertaking" shall mean and include the entire business, all the undertakings, assets, properties, investments and
liabilities of whatsoever nature and kind, and wheresoever situated, of the Transferor Company 1 or the Transferor
Company 2, as the case may be, on a going concern basis, together with all its assets and liabilities and shall include
(without limitation), but to the extent applicable:

(a) Al the assets and properties (whether movable or immovable, tangible or intangible, in possession or reversion,
corporeal or incorporeal, present, future or contingent), whether situated in India or abroad, including but
not limited to machinery, generator sets, equipment, capital work-in-progress, office equipment, computers,
appliances, accessories, stocks and inventory, leasehold assets and other properties, the cash in hand, amounts
lying in the banks to the credit of the Transferor Company 1 or the Transferor Company 2, as the case may be,
investments of all kinds (including shares, scrips, stocks, bonds, debentures stocks, units, or securities of all kind
and nature), claims, powers, authorities, allotments, Permits, consents, letters of intent, registrations, contracts,
engagements, arrangements, rights, credits, titles, interests, benefits, advantages, leasehold rights, memoranda of
understanding, brands, sub-letting tenancy rights, with or without the consent of the landlord as may be required
by Applicable Laws, licensee and licensor rights, goodwill, other intangibles, industrial and other licenses, permits,
authorisations, trademarks, trade names, patents, patent rights, copyrights, and other industrial and intellectual
properties and rights of any nature whatsoever including know-how, domain names, or any applications for the
above, assignments and grants in respect thereof, import quotas and other quota rights, right to use and avail of
telephones, telex, facsimile and other communication facilities, connections, installations and equipment, utilities,
electricity and electronic and all other services of every kind, nature and description whatsoever, provisions, funds,

52



1.2

and benefits of all agreements, arrangements, deposits, advances, recoverable and receivables, whether from
qovernment, semi-government, local authorities or any other person including customers, contractors or other
counterparties, etc., all earnest monies and/or deposits, privileges, liberties, easements, advantages, benefits,
exemptions, Permits of whatsoever nature including but not limited to benefits of tax exemptions/benefits and/
or exemption entitlements, all tax holidays, tax relief including under the Income-tax Act, 1961 such as credit
for advance tax, taxes deducted at source, brought forward accumulated tax losses, unabsorbed depreciation,
minimum alternate tax, etc. and under indirect taxes such as CENVAT credit, service tax credits, and wheresoever
situated, belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession or control of or vested in or granted in favour of
or enjoyed by the Transferor Company 1 or the Transferor Company 2, as the case may be, as on the Effective
Date;

All agreements, rights, contracts (including but not limited to agreements with respect to immoveable and
movable properties being used by, or under the power, possession or control of, the Transferor Company 1 or
the Transferor Company 2, as the case may be, by way of leasehold, license or any other rights or privileges or
other arrangements), bids, tenders, letters of intent, expressions of interest, entitlements, licenses, permissions,
incentives, Permits, registrations, tax deferrals & exemptions and benefits, subsidies, income tax benefits and
exemptions including the right to deduction under applicable provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 in respect
of the profits of the undertaking for the residual period, i.e., for the period remaining as on the Effective Date out
of the total period for which the deduction is available in Applicable Laws if the amalgamation pursuant to this
Scheme does not take place, concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, tenancy rights, liberties, special status
and other benefits or privileges and claims as to any patents, trademarks, designs, quotas, rights, engagements,
arrangements, authorities, allotments, security arrangements, benefits of any quarantees, reversions, powers and
facilities of every kind, nature and description whatsoever, provisions and benefits of all agreements, contracts
and arrangements and all other interests in connection with or relating to the Transferor Company 1 or the
Transferor Company 2, as the case may be, and all other Permits of every kind, nature and description whatsoever
relating to business activities and operations of the Transferor Company 1 or the Transferor Company 2, as the
case may be, and that may be required to carry on the operations of the Transferor Company 1 or the Transferor
Company 2, as the case may be;

Amounts claimed by the Transferor Company 1 or the Transferor Company 2, as the case may be, whether or not
so recorded in the books of account of the Transferor Company 1 or the Transferor Company 2, as the case may
be, from any third party, counterparty, Appropriate Authority, under any Applicable Laws, act, scheme or rule, as
refund of any tax, duty, cess or of any excess payment;

All other obligations of whatsoever kind, including liabilities of the Transferor Company 1 or the Transferor Company
2, as the case may be, with regqard to their employees, with respect to the payment of gratuity, superannuation,
pension benefits and the provident fund or other compensation or benefits, if any, whether in the event of
resignation, death, retirement, retrenchment or otherwise;

All employees engaged by the Transferor Company 1 or the Transferor Company 2, as the case may be, at various
locations;

All the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations including contingent liabilities of the Transferor Company 1 or the
Transferor Company 2, as the case may be, as on the Effective Date; and

All books, records, files, papers, process information, records of standard operating procedures, computer
programmes along with their licenses, drawings, manuals, data, catalogues, quotations, sales and advertising
materials, lists of present and former customers and suppliers, customer credit information, customer pricing
information and other records whether in physical or electronic form, in connection with or relating to the
Transferor Company 1 or the Transferor Company 2, as the case may be.

In this Scheme unless repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning thereof: (i) capitalised terms defined by

inclusion in quotations and/ or parenthesis have the meanings so ascribed:; (ii) subject to (iii) below, all terms and

words not defined in this Scheme shall have the same meaning ascribed to them under Applicable Laws; and (iii)
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1.3

2.
2.1

all terms and words not defined in this Scheme but defined in the Merger Agreement shall have the meaning
ascribed to it in the Merger Agreement.

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:

1.31
1.3.2

1.3.3
1.3.4

1.3.5
1.3.6

1.3.7

1.3.8

1.3.10

1.3.11

words denoting sinqular shall include plural and vice versa;

headings and bold typeface are only for convenience and shall be ignored for the purposes of
interpretation;

references to the word "“include” or "including” shall be construed without limitation;

a reference to an article, clause, section, paragraph or schedule is, unless indicated to the contrary, a
reference to an article, clause, section, paragraph or schedule of this Scheme;

unless otherwise defined, the reference to the word “days" shall mean calendar days;

Reference in this Scheme or the Merger Agreement to the date of “coming into effect of this
Scheme" or "effectiveness of this Scheme" shall mean the Effective Date;

reference to a document includes an amendment or supplement to, or replacement or novation of,
that document;

word(s) and expression(s) elsewhere defined in this Scheme will have the meaning(s) respectively
ascribed to them;

in the context of the "Demerged Undertaking 1", (a) the relevant Demerged Company shall mean the
Demerged Company 1; (b) the relevant contracts shall mean the contracts relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 1; (c) Identified Assets shall mean those assets relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1;
(d) the Identified Liabilities shall mean the Identified Liabilities 1 and the RCOM Assumed Debt; and
(e) the Identified Litigations shall mean Identified Litigations relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1;

in the context of "Demerged Undertaking 2", (a) the relevant Demerged Company shall mean
Demerged Company 1; (b) the relevant contracts shall mean the contracts relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 2; (c) Identified Assets shall mean those assets relating to the Demerged Undertaking
2: (d) the Identified Liabilities shall mean the Identified Liabilities 2; and (e) the Identified Litigations
shall mean Identified Litigations relating to the Demerged Undertaking 2;

in the context of "Demerged Undertaking 3", (a) the relevant Demerged Company shall mean
Demerged Company 2; (b) the relevant contracts shall mean the contracts relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 3; (c) Identified Assets shall mean those assets relating to the Demerged Undertaking
3: (d) the Identified Liabilities shall mean the Identified Liabilities 3; and (e) the Identified Litigations
shall mean the Identified Litigations relating to the Demerqged Undertaking

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital structure of the Demerged Company 1 as on 9 September 2016 is as follows:

| INR
Authorised Share Capital
5,000,000,000 equity shares of INR 5 each 2,5000,000,000
Total 2,5000,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
2,488,979,745 equity shares of INR 5 each 12,444,898,725
Total 12,444,898,725
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The equity shares of the Demerged Company 1 are listed on the Stock Exchanges and its global depository
receipts are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The issued and paid-up share capital includes 10,355,247
(ten million three hundred and fifty five thousand two hundred and forty seven) equity shares represented by the
qlobal depository receipts as on 9 September 2016. Subsequent to 9 September 2016, as on the date of this
Scheme being approved by the Board of the Demerged Company 1, there is no change in the authorized, issued,
subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Demerged Company 1.

2.2. The share capital structure of the Demerged Company 2 as on 9 September 2016 is as follows:

2.3.

| INR
Authorised Share Capital
120,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 120,00,00,000
100,000,000 preference shares of INR 10 each 100,00,00,000
280,000,000 unclassified shares of INR 10 each 280,00,00,000
Total 500,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
85,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 85,00,00,000
45,000,000 non-convertible, non-cumulative, redeemable preference shares of INR
10 each fully paid P f 45.00,00.000
13,477,000 redeemable, non-cumulative, non-convertible preference shares of INR
10 each fully paid ! f 13:47,70.000
Total 143,47,70,000

The Demerged Company 2 is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company 1. The equity shares of the
Demerged Company 2 are not listed on any recognised stock exchange in India or elsewhere. Subsequent to
9 September 2016, as on the date of this Scheme being approved by the Board of the Demerged Company
2, there is no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Demerged
Company 2.

The share capital structure of the Transferor Company 1 as on 9 September 2016 is as follows:

| INR

Authorised Share Capital
300,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 3,000,000,000

2,000,000,000 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of INR
10 each

20,000,000,000

Total 23,000,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

46,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 460,000,000

1,644,594,517 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of INR

16,445,94517
10 each 6.445,945.170

Total 16,905,945,170
The equity shares of the Transferor Company 1 are not listed on any recognised stock exchange in India or
elsewhere. Subsequent to 9 September 2016, as on the date of this Scheme being approved by the Board of
the Transferor Company 1, there is no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share
capital of the Transferor Company 1.
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2.4. The share capital structure of the Transferor Company 2 as on 9 September 2016 is as follows:

| INR

Authorised Share Capital

300,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 3,000,000,000

2,000,000,000 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of INR 20.000.000,000

10 each

Total 23,000,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
6,217,278 equity shares of INR 10 each 62,172,780

1,644,461,328 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of INR

16,444,613,2
10 each 6 613,280

Total 16,506,786,060
The equity shares of the Transferor Company 2 are not listed on any recognised stock exchange in India or
elsewhere. Subsequent to 9 September 2016, as on the date of this Scheme being approved by the Board of
the Transferor Company 2, there is no change in authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital
of the Transferor Company 2.

2.5. The share capital structure of the Resulting Company 1 as on 9 September 2016 is as follows:

| INR
Authorised Share Capital
5,000,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 50,000,000,000
1(5).(;);)2\.000,000 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of INR 150.000.000.000

Total 200,000,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

243,243,243 equity shares of INR 10 each 2,432,432,430

8.091,527,200 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of INR

80,915,272,000
10 each

Total 83,347,704,430
The equity shares of the Resulting Company 1 are not listed on any recognised stock exchange in India or
elsewhere. Subsequent to 9 September 2016, as on the date of this Scheme being approved by the Board of the
Resulting Company 1, there is no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital
of the Resulting Company 1.

2.6. The share capital structure of the Resulting Company 2 as on 9 September 2016 is as follows:

| INR

Authorised Share Capital
75,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 750,000,000
12,OOZ)§)C,EOO.OOO redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of INR 20.000.000,000

Total 20,750,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
29,798,130 equity shares of INR 10 each 297,981,300
1,608,817,590 redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of INR

16, 175,
10 each 6,088,175,900

Total 16,386,157,200
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3.2.

4.2.

4.3.

The Resulting Company 2 is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Resulting Company 1. The equity shares of the
Resulting Company 2 are not listed on any recognised stock exchange in India or elsewhere. Subsequent to 9
September 2016, as on the date of this Scheme being approved by the Board of the Resulting Company 2, there
is no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Resulting Company 2.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THIS SCHEME

. This Scheme as set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s), as may be approved or imposed or

directed by the High Court or made as per Clause 41 of this Scheme, shall become operative and effective from
the Effective Date.

Without prejudice to the aforesaid and notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, in order to ensure
compliance with the requirements of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 including the foreign direct
investment policy thereto:

3.2.1 the actions set out in Part VI of this Scheme shall precede the actions set out in all other Parts of this
Scheme;

3.2.2 the actions set out in Part II of this Scheme shall precede the actions set out in Part III, Part IV and
Part V of this Scheme;

3.2.3 the actions set out in Part III of this Scheme shall precede the actions set out in Part IV and Part V
of this Scheme; and

3.2.4 the actions set out in Part IV of this Scheme shall precede the actions set out in Part V of this
Scheme.

PART II

DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKINGS
SECTION I: DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 1
DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 1

. With effect from the Effective Date, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 391 to 394 of the Act and all

other provisions of the Act, the Demerged Undertaking 1 will be demerged and transferred from the Demerged
Company 1 and be transferred and vested unto the Resulting Company 1, without any further act, deed or
matter, on a going concern basis, such that the Demerqged Undertaking 1 shall without any other order to this
effect, become the properties, assets, rights, claims, title, interest, authorities, licenses, Permits, registrations,
quotas, allocations, investments and liabilities of the Resulting Company 1 simply by virtue of approval of this
Scheme and in the manner provided in this Scheme.

Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 4.1 above and upon coming into effect of this Scheme the entire
business and undertaking of the Demerged Undertaking 1, including the properties, claims, title, interest, assets
of whatsoever nature such as Permits relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and all other right, title, interest,
contracts or powers of every kind, nature and description of whatsoever nature and where-so-ever situated and
forming part of the Identified Assets 1, be and shall stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 1
as a going concern pursuant to the provisions of Section 394 of the Act, and other applicable provisions, if any.
of the Act and pursuant to the order of the High Court sanctioning this Scheme and without any further act or
deed or instrument and subject to the manner contemplated in this Scheme for the vesting of certain Identified
Assets 1 and assumption of certain Identified Liabilities 1, comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 1.

In respect of such of the assets and properties forming part of the Identified Assets 1 pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 as are movable in nature or are otherwise capable of transfer by delivery or possession, or by
endorsement and/ or delivery, the same shall stand transferred by the Demerged Company 1 upon coming into
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4.4,

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

52.

5.3.

effect of this Scheme and shall, ipso facto and without any other order to this effect, become the assets and
properties of the Resulting Company 1.

In respect of assets other than those dealt with in Clause 4.3 above and forming part of the Identified Assets 1,
including but not limited to sundry debts, receivables, bills, credits, loans, advances and deposits if any, pertaining
to the Demerged Undertaking 1, whether recoverable in cash orin kind or for value to be received, the same shall
stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 1 without any notice or other intimation to any Person
in pursuance of the provisions of the Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956, read with other relevant
provisions of the Act to the end and intent that the right of the Demerged Company 1 to recover or realise the
same stands transferred to the Resulting Company 1.

The Demerged Company 1 shall, at its sole discretion but without being obliged, give notice in such form as it
may deem fit and proper, to such Persons, as the case may be, that the said debt, receivable, bill, credit, loan,
advance or deposit stands transferred and vested in the Resulting Company 1 and that appropriate modification
should be made in their respective books/records to reflect the aforesaid changes and the Demerqed Company
1 shall provide all necessary assistance required in this reqard to the Resulting Company 1.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the Identified Liabilities 1 exclusively relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 which arose out of the activities or operations of the Demerged Undertaking 1 and which are
more particularly set out in in Part A of Part 2 of Schedule 1 shall without any further act or deed be and stand
transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 1 and shall become the debt, duties, undertakings, liabilities
and obligations of the Resulting Company 1.

All the Identified Assets 1 and the Identified Liabilities 1 of the Demerged Undertaking 1, as set out in Part A of
Part 1 of Schedule 1 and Part A of Part 2 of Schedule 1, respectively, shall be deemed to be transferred on the
Effective Date, for the consideration provided in Clause 19, in the manner set out in this Section I.

In accordance with the MODVAT/CENVAT/VAT rules framed under the Central Excise Act, 1944, or relevant state
legislation, as prevalent, the unutilized credit relating to excise duties and value added taxes paid on inputs/
capital goods lying to the account of the Demerged Undertaking 1, shall be permitted to be transferred to the
credit of the Resulting Company 1. The Resulting Company 1 shall accordingly be entitled to set off all such
credits aqainst excise duty / applicable valued added tax payable by it.

PERMITS

. With effect from the Effective Date, Permits relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 shall be transferred to and

vested in the Resulting Company 1 and the concerned licensor and grantors of such Permits shall endorse where
necessary, and record the Resulting Company 1 on such Permits so as to empower and facilitate the approval and
vesting of the Demerged Undertaking 1 in the Resulting Company 1 and continuation of operations pertaining
to the Demerged Undertaking 1 in the Resulting Company 1 without any hindrance, and shall stand transferred
to and vested in and shall be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 1 without any
further act or deed and shall be appropriately mutated by the Appropriate Authorities concerned therewith in
favour of the Resulting Company 1 as if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of the
Resulting Company 1 and the Resulting Company 1 shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and
duties thereunder and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to the Resulting Company 1. It
is clarified that the demerger and transfer of Demerged Undertaking 1 from Demerqed Company 1 to Resulting
Company 1 is subject to receipt of written approval of the DoT and satisfaction of all the conditions stipulated in
such approval of the DoT in the manner contemplated under Clause 42.1.5.

The benefit of all Permits pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking 1 shall without any other order to this effect,
transfer and vest into and become available to the Resulting Company 1 pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme.

The Demerged Company 1 in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 1 may be entitled to various benefits
incentive schemes and pursuant to this Scheme, it is declared that the benefits under all such schemes and policies
pertaining to the Demerqged Undertaking 1 shall stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 1 and
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6.2.

7.2.

all benefits, entitlements and incentives of any nature whatsoever including benefits under Tax, including the excise,
sales tax, service tax, exemptions, concessions, remissions, and subsidies, to the extent statutorily available, shall be
claimed by the Resulting Company 1. Provided however that any and all benefits, entitlements and incentives of
any nature whatsoever relating to income tax shall not be transferred to the Resulting Company 1.

CONTRACTS

. Subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements and other instruments

as set out under the Merger Agreement, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 1, to which the Demerged
Company 1 is a party and which is subsisting or having effect on or immediately before the Effective Date shall
remain in full force and effect against or in favour of the Resulting Company 1 and shall be binding on and be
enforceable by and against the Resulting Company 1 as fully and effectually as if the Resulting Company 1 had
at all material times been a party or beneficiary or oblige thereto. The Resulting Company 1 will, if required,
enter into a novation agreement in relation to such contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements and other instruments
as stated above. Provided however that and unless expressly provided in the Merger Agreement, the benefits
conferred upon Demerged Company 1 under the SSTL FMA in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 1 shall be
assigned to Resulting Company 1 and the SSTL FMA shall not be novated to Resulting Company 1.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the
Demerqed Undertaking 1 occurs by virtue of this Scheme, the Resulting Company 1 may, at any time after
the coming into effect of this Scheme, in accordance with the provisions hereof and the Merger Agreement,
if so required under any Applicable Law or otherwise, take such actions and execute such deeds (including
deeds of adherence), confirmations, other writings or tripartite arrangements with any party to any contract or
arrangement to which the Demerged Company 1 is a party or any writings as may be necessary in order to give
formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme. With effect from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company 1
shall under the provisions of this Scheme, be deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of
the Demerged Company 1 to carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the
part of the Demerged Company 1.

EMPLOYEES

. Upon this Scheme coming into effect and with effect from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company 1

undertakes to enqaqge all Transferred Employees relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1, identified in the manner
as set out in the Merger Agreement, on terms and conditions that are no less favourable to such Transferred
Employees than the corresponding terms of such Transferred Employees' contract of employment with the
Demerged Company 1, as existing immediately prior to the date on which an offer of employment was made
to such Transferred Employees by the Resulting Company 1, without any interruption of service as a result of
transfer of the Demerged Undertaking 1 to the Resulting Company 1. The Resulting Company 1 agrees that
the period of services of all such Transferred Employees with the Demerged Company 1 prior to the Effective
Date shall be taken into account for the purposes of all benefits of the Resulting Company 1 to which the said
Transferred Employees may be eligible, including for the purpose of payment of any remuneration or contracts
or statutory benefits, incentive plans, retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other terminal benefits and to
this effect the accumulated balances, if any, standing to the credit of the Transferred Employees in the existing
provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund of which they are members will be transferred to such
provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation funds nominated by the Resulting Company 1 and/or such new
provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund to be established and caused to be recognized by the
Appropriate Authorities, by the Resulting Company 1.

Pending the transfer as aforesaid, the provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund dues of the
Transferred Employees would be continued to be deposited in the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and
superannuation fund respectively of the Demerged Company 1. It is clarified that upon transfer of the aforesaid
funds to the respective funds of the Resulting Company 1, the existing trusts created for such funds by the
Demerged Company 1 shall stand dissolved.
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7.3.

8.2

8.3

It is clarified that save as expressly provided for in this Scheme, the Transferred Employees who become employees
of the Resulting Company 1 by virtue of this Scheme, shall not be entitled to the employment policies and shall
not be entitled to avail of any schemes and benefits that may be applicable and available to any of the other
employees of the Resulting Company 1, unless otherwise determined by the Resulting Company 1. The Resulting
Company 1 undertakes to continue to abide by any agreement / settlement, if any, entered into or deemed to
have been entered into by the Demerged Company 1 with any union/ Transferred Employee of the Demerged
Company 1.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, Identified Litigations relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 shall
not abate or be discontinued or be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of this Scheme or by anything
contained in this Scheme but shall be continued and be enforced by or against the Resulting Company 1 with
effect from the Effective Date in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been
continued and enforced by or against the Demerqged Company 1.

The Resulting Company 1: (a) shall be replaced/ added as party to such Identified Litigations relating to the
Demerged Undertaking 1; and (b) shall prosecute or defend such proceedings at its own cost and the liability of
the Demerqged Company 1 shall consequently stand nullified.

It is clarified that except, as otherwise provided herein or the Merger Agreement, the Demerged Company 1 shall
in no event be responsible or liable in relation to any Identified Litigations relating to the Demerqged Undertaking
1 that stand transferred to the Resulting Company 1.

SECTION II: DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 2

9.

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 2

With effect from the Effective Date, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 391 to 394 of the Act and all
other provisions of the Act, the Demerged Undertaking 2 will be demerged and transferred from the Demerged
Company 1 and be transferred and vested unto the Resulting Company 2, without any further act, deed or
matter, on a going concern basis, such that the Demerged Undertaking 2 shall without any other order to this
effect, become the properties, assets, rights, claims, title, interest, authorities, licenses, Permits, registrations,
quotas, allocations, investments and liabilities of the Resulting Company 2 simply by virtue of approval of this
Scheme and in the manner provided in this Scheme.

Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 9.1 above and upon coming into effect of this Scheme the entire
business and undertaking of the Demerged Undertaking 2, including the properties, claims, title, interest, assets
of whatsoever nature such as Permits relating to the Demerged Undertaking 2 and all other right, title, interest,
contracts or powers of every kind, nature and description of whatsoever nature and where-so-ever situated and
forming part of the Identified Assets 2, be and shall stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 2
as a going concern pursuant to the provisions of Section 394 of the Act, and other applicable provisions, if any.
of the Act and pursuant to the order of the High Court sanctioning this Scheme and without any further act or
deed or instrument and subject to the manner contemplated in this Scheme for the vesting of certain Identified
Assets 2 and assumption of certain Identified Liabilities 2, comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 2.

In respect of such of the assets and properties forming part of the Identified Assets 2 pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking 2 as are movable in nature or are otherwise capable of transfer by delivery or possession, or by
endorsement and/ or delivery, the same shall stand transferred by the Demerged Company 1 upon coming into
effect of this Scheme and shall, ipso facto and without any other order to this effect, become the assets and
properties of the Resulting Company 2.

In respect of assets other than those dealt with in Clause 9.3 above and forming part of the Identified Assets 2,
including but not limited to sundry debts, receivables, bills, credits, loans, advances and deposits if any, pertaining
to the Demerged Undertaking 2, whether recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received, the same shall
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9.5.

9.6.

9.7.

9.8.

10.
10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 2 without any notice or other intimation to any Person
in pursuance of the provisions of the Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956, read with other relevant
provisions of the Act to the end and intent that the right of the Demerqed Company 1 to recover or realise the
same stands transferred to the Resulting Company 2.

The Demerged Company 1 shall, at its sole discretion but without being obliged, give notice in such form as it
may deem fit and proper, to such Persons, as the case may be, that the said debt, receivable, bill, credit, loan,
advance or deposit stands transferred and vested in the Resulting Company 2 and that appropriate modification
should be made in their respective books/ records to reflect the aforesaid changes and the Demerged Company
1 shall provide all necessary assistance required in this reqard to the Resulting Company 2.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the Identified Liabilities 2 exclusively relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 2 which arose out of the activities or operations of the Demerged Undertaking 2 and which are
more particularly set out in Part B of Part 2 of Schedule 1 shall without any further act or deed be and stand
transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 2 and shall become the debt, duties, undertakings, liabilities
and obligations of the Resulting Company 2.

Al the Identified Assets 2 and the Identified Liabilities 2 of the Demerged Undertaking 2, as set out in Part B of
Part 1 of Schedule 1 and Part B of Part 2 of Schedule 1, respectively, shall be deemed to be transferred on the
Effective Date, for the consideration provided in Clause 19, in the manner set out in this Section II.

In accordance with the MODVAT/CENVAT/VAT rules framed under the Central Excise Act, 1944, or relevant state
legislation, as prevalent, the unutilized credit relating to excise duties and value added taxes paid on inputs/
capital goods lying to the account of the Demerqged Undertaking 2, shall be permitted to be transferred to the
credit of the Resulting Company 2. The Resulting Company 2 shall accordingly be entitled to set off all such
credits aqainst excise duty / applicable valued added tax payable by it.

PERMITS

With effect from the Effective Date, the Permits relating to Demerged Undertaking 2 shall be transferred to and
vested in the Resulting Company 2 and the concerned licensor and grantors of such Permits shall endorse where
necessary, and record the Resulting Company 2 on such Permits so as to empower and facilitate the approval and
vesting of the Demerged Undertaking 2 in the Resulting Company 2 and continuation of operations pertaining
to the Demerged Undertaking 2 in the Resulting Company 2 without any hindrance, and shall stand transferred
to and vested in and shall be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 2 without any
further act or deed and shall be appropriately mutated by the Appropriate Authorities concerned therewith in
favour of the Resulting Company 2 as if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of the
Resulting Company 2 and the Resulting Company 2 shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and
duties thereunder and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to the Resulting Company 2. It
is clarified that the demerger and transfer of Demerged Undertaking 2 from Demerged Company 1 to Resulting
Company 2 is subject to receipt of written approval of the DoT and satisfaction of all the conditions stipulated in
such approval of the DoT in the manner contemplated under Clause 42.1.5.

The benefit of all Permits pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking 2 shall without any other order to this effect,
transfer and vest into and become available to the Resulting Company 2 pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme.

The Demerged Company 1 in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 2 may be entitled to various benefits
incentive schemes and pursuant to this Scheme, it is declared that the benefits under all such schemes and
policies pertaining to the Demerqed Undertaking 2 shall stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company
2 and all benefits, entitlements and incentives of any nature whatsoever including benefits under Tax, including
the excise, sales tax, service tax, exemptions, concessions, remissions, and subsidies, to the extent statutorily
available, shall be claimed by the Resulting Company 2. Provided however that any and all benefits, entitlements
and incentives of any nature whatsoever relating to income tax shall not be transferred to the Resulting Company
2.
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11.

11.2.

12.
12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

CONTRACTS

.Subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements and other instruments

as set out under the Merger Agreement, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 2, to which the Demerged
Company 1 is a party and which is subsisting or having effect on or immediately before the Effective Date shall
remain in full force and effect against or in favour of the Resulting Company 2 and shall be binding on and be
enforceable by and against the Resulting Company 2 as fully and effectually as if the Resulting Company 2 had
at all material times been a party or beneficiary or oblige thereto. The Resulting Company 2 will, if required,
enter into a novation agreement in relation to such contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements and other instruments
as stated above. Provided however that and unless expressly provided in the Merger Aqreement, the benefits
conferred upon Demerged Company 1 under the SSTL FMA in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 2 shall be
assigned to Resulting Company 1 and the SSTL FMA shall not be novated to Resulting Company 1.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the
Demerqged Undertaking 2 occurs by virtue of this Scheme, the Resulting Company 2 may. at any time after
the coming into effect of this Scheme, in accordance with the provisions hereof and the Merger Agreement,
if so required under any Applicable Law or otherwise, take such actions and execute such deeds (including
deeds of adherence), confirmations, other writings or tripartite arrangements with any party to any contract or
arrangement to which the Demerged Company 1 is a party or any writings as may be necessary in order to give
formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme. With effect from the Effective Date the Resulting Company 2 shall
under the provisions of this Scheme, be deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of the
Demerged Company 1 to carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the part
of the Demerged Company 1.

EMPLOYEES

Upon this Scheme coming into effect and with effect from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company 2
undertakes to enqage all Transferred Employees relating to Demerged Undertaking 2, and identified in the manner
as set out in the Merger Agreement, on terms and conditions that are no less favourable to such Transferred
Employees than the corresponding terms of such Transferred Employees' contract of employment with the
Demerged Company 1, as existing immediately prior to the date on which an offer of employment was made to
such Transferred Employees by the Resulting Company 1, without any interruption of service as a result of transfer
of the Demerged Undertaking 2 to the Resulting Company 2. The Resulting Company 2 agrees that the period
of services of all such Transferred Employees with the Demerqged Company 1 prior to the Effective Date shall
be taken into account for the purposes of all benefits of the Resulting Company 2 to which the said Transferred
Employees may be eligible, including for the purpose of payment of any remuneration or contracts or statutory
benefits, incentive plans, retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other terminal benefits and to this effect the
accumulated balances, if any, standing to the credit of the Transferred Employees in the existing provident fund,
gratuity fund and superannuation fund of which they are members will be transferred to such provident fund,
gratuity fund and superannuation funds nominated by the Resulting Company 2 and/or such new provident
fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund to be established and caused to be recognized by the Appropriate
Authorities, by the Resulting Company 2.

Pending the transfer as aforesaid, the provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund dues of the
Transferred Employees would be continued to be deposited in the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and
superannuation fund respectively of the Demerged Company 1. It is clarified that upon transfer of the aforesaid
funds to the respective funds of the Resulting Company 2, the existing trusts created for such funds by the
Demerged Company 1 shall stand dissolved.

It is clarified that save as expressly provided for in this Scheme, the Transferred Employees who become employees
of the Resulting Company 2 by virtue of this Scheme, shall not be entitled to the employment policies and shall not
be entitled to avail of any schemes and benefits that may be applicable and available to any of the other employees
of the Resulting Company 2, unless otherwise determined by the Resulting Company 2. The Resulting Company
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13.
13.1

2 undertakes to continue to abide by any agreement / settlement, if any, entered into or deemed to have been
entered into by the Demerged Company 1 with any union/ Transferred Employees of the Demerged Company 1.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, Identified Litigations relating to the Demerged Undertaking 2 shall
not abate or be discontinued or be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of this Scheme or by anything
contained in this Scheme but shall be continued and be enforced by or aqainst the Resulting Company 2 with
effect from the Effective Date in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been
continued and enforced by or against the Demerqged Company 2.

13.2 The Resulting Company 2: (a) shall be replaced/added as party to such Identified Litigations relating to the

Demerged Undertaking 2; and (b) shall prosecute or defend such proceedings at its own cost and the liability of
the Demerged Company 2 shall consequently stand nullified.

13.3 Except, as otherwise provided herein or the Merger Agreement, the Demerqed Company 2 shall in no event be

14.
141

responsible or liable in relation to any Identified Litigations relating to the Demerqged Undertaking 2 that stand
transferred to the Resulting Company 2.

SECTION III: DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 3
DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 3

.With effect from the Effective Date, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 391 to 394 of the Act and all

other provisions of the Act, the Demerged Undertaking 3 will be demerged and transferred from the Demerged
Company 2 and be transferred and vested unto the Resulting Company 2, without any further act, deed or
matter, on a going concern basis, such that the Demerged Undertaking 3 shall without any other order to this
effect, become the properties, assets, rights, claims, title, interest, authorities, licenses, Permits, registrations,
quotas, allocations, investments and liabilities of the Resulting Company 2 simply by virtue of approval of this
Scheme and in the manner provided in this Scheme.

14.2.Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 14.1 above and upon coming into effect of this Scheme the entire

business and undertaking of the Demerged Undertaking 3, including the properties, claims, title, interest, assets
of whatsoever nature such as Permits relating to the Demerged Undertaking 3 and all other right, title, interest,
contracts or powers of every kind, nature and description of whatsoever nature and where-so-ever situated and
forming part of the Identified Assets 3, be and shall stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 2
as a going concern pursuant to the provisions of Section 394 of the Act, and other applicable provisions, if any.
of the Act and pursuant to the order of the High Court sanctioning this Scheme and without any further act or
deed or instrument and subject to the manner contemplated in this Scheme for the vesting of certain Identified
Assets 3 and assumption of certain Identified Liabilities 3, comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 3.

14.3.1In respect of such of the assets and properties forming part of the Identified Assets 3 pertaining to the Demerged

Undertaking 3 as are movable in nature or are otherwise capable of transfer by delivery or possession, or by
endorsement and/ or delivery, the same shall stand transferred by the Demerged Company 2 upon coming into
effect of this Scheme and shall, ipso facto and without any other order to this effect, become the assets and
properties of the Resulting Company 2.

14.4.In respect of assets other than those dealt with in Clause 14.3 above and forming part of the Identified Assets 3,

including but not limited to sundry debts, receivables, bills, credits, loans, advances and deposits if any, pertaining
to the Demerged Undertaking 3, whether recoverable in cash orin kind or for value to be received, the same shall
stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 2 without any notice or other intimation to any Person
in pursuance of the provisions of the Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956, read with other relevant
provisions of the Act to the end and intent that the right of the Demerged Company 2 to recover or realise the
same stands transferred to the Resulting Company 2.
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14.5.

14.6.

14.7.

14.8.

15.
15.1.

15.2.

15.3.

16.
16.1.

The Demerged Company 2 shall, at its sole discretion but without being obliged, give notice in such form as it
may deem fit and proper, to such Persons, as the case may be, that the said debt, receivable, bill, credit, loan,
advance or deposit stands transferred and vested in the Resulting Company 2 and that appropriate modification
should be made in their respective books/ records to reflect the aforesaid changes and the Demerged Company
2 shall provide all necessary assistance required in this regard to the Resulting Company 2.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the Identified Liabilities 3 exclusively relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 3 which arose out of the activities or operations of the Demerged Undertaking 3 and which are
more particularly set out in Part C of Part 2 of Schedule 1 shall without any further act or deed be and stand
transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 2 and shall become the debt, duties, undertakings, liabilities
and obligations of the Resulting Company 2.

All the Identified Assets 3 and the Identified Liabilities 3 of the Demerged Undertaking 3, as set out in Part C of
Part 1 of Schedule 1 and Part C of Part 2 of Schedule 1, respectively, shall be deemed to be transferred on the
Effective Date, for the consideration provided in Clause 19, in the manner set out in this Section III.

In accordance with the MODVAT/CENVAT/VAT rules framed under the Central Excise Act, 1944, or relevant state
legislation, as prevalent, the unutilized credit relating to excise duties and value added taxes paid on inputs/
capital goods lying to the account of the Demerged Undertaking 3, shall be permitted to be transferred to the
credit of the Resulting Company 2. The Resulting Company 2 shall accordingly be entitled to set off all such
credits aqainst excise duty / applicable valued added tax payable by it.

PERMITS

With effect from the Effective Date, Permits relating to Demerged Undertaking 3 shall be transferred to and
vested in the Resulting Company 2 and the concerned licensor and grantors of such Permits shall endorse where
necessary, and record the Resulting Company 2 on such Permits so as to empower and facilitate the approval and
vesting of the Demerged Undertaking 3 in the Resulting Company 2 and continuation of operations pertaining
to the Demerged Undertaking 3 in the Resulting Company 2 without any hindrance, and shall stand transferred
to and vested in and shall be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 2 without any
further act or deed and shall be appropriately mutated by the Appropriate Authorities concerned therewith in
favour of the Resulting Company 2 as if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of the
Resulting Company 2 and the Resulting Company 2 shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and
duties thereunder and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to the Resulting Company 2. It
is clarified that the demerger and transfer of Demerged Undertaking 3 from Demerged Company 2 to Resulting
Company 2 is subject to receipt of written approval of the DoT and satisfaction of all the conditions stipulated in
such approval of the DoT in the manner contemplated under Clause 42.1.5.

The benefit of all Permits pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking 3 shall without any other order to this effect,
transfer and vest into and become available to the Resulting Company 2 pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme.

The Demerged Company 2 in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 3 may be entitled to various benefits
incentive schemes and pursuant to this Scheme, it is declared that the benefits under all such schemes and
policies pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking 3 shall stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company
2 and all benefits, entitlements and incentives of any nature whatsoever including benefits under Tax, including
the excise, sales tax, service tax, exemptions, concessions, remissions, and subsidies, to the extent statutorily
available, shall be claimed by the Resulting Company 2. Provided however that any and all benefits, entitlements
and incentives of any nature whatsoever relating to income tax shall not be transferred to the Resulting Company
2.

CONTRACTS

Subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements and other instruments
of as set out under the Merger Agreement, in relation to the Demerqged Undertaking 3, to which the Demerged
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16.2.

17.
17.1.

17.2.

17.3.

Company 2 is a party and which is subsisting or having effect on or immediately before the Effective Date shall
remain in full force and effect against or in favour of the Resulting Company 2 and shall be binding on and be
enforceable by and against the Resulting Company 2 as fully and effectually as if the Resulting Company 2 had
at all material times been a party or beneficiary or oblige thereto. The Resulting Company 2 will, if required,
enter into a novation agreement in relation to such contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements and other instruments
as stated above.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the
Demerqged Undertaking 3 occurs by virtue of this Scheme, the Resulting Company 2 may, at any time after
the coming into effect of this Scheme, in accordance with the provisions hereof and the Merger Agreement,
if so required under any Applicable Law or otherwise, take such actions and execute such deeds (including
deeds of adherence), confirmations, other writings or tripartite arrangements with any party to any contract or
arrangement to which the Demerged Company 2 is a party or any writings as may be necessary in order to give
formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme. With effect from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company 2
shall under the provisions of this Scheme, be deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of
the Demerged Company 2 to carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the
part of the Demerged Company 2.

EMPLOYEES

Upon this Scheme coming into effect and with effect from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company 2
undertakes to enqage all Transferred Employees relating to the Demerged Undertaking 3, and identified in
the manner as set out in the Merger Agreement, on terms and conditions that are no less favourable to such
Transferred Employees than the corresponding terms of such Transferred Employees contract of employment
with the Demerged Company 2, as existing immediately prior to the date on which an offer of employment was
made to such Transferred Employees by the Resulting Company 2, without any interruption of service as a result
of transfer of the Demerqed Undertaking 3 to the Resulting Company 2. The Resulting Company 2 agrees that
the period of services of all such Transferred Employees with the Demerged Company 2 prior to the Effective
Date shall be taken into account for the purposes of all benefits of the Resulting Company 2 to which the said
Transferred Employees may be eligible, including for the purpose of payment of any remuneration or contracts
or statutory benefits, incentive plans, retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other terminal benefits and to
this effect the accumulated balances, if any, standing to the credit of the Transferred Employees in the existing
provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund of which they are members will be transferred to such
provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation funds nominated by the Resulting Company 2 and/or such new
provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund to be established and caused to be recognized by the
Appropriate Authorities, by the Resulting Company 2.

Pending the transfer as aforesaid, the provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund dues of the
Transferred Employees would be continued to be deposited in the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and
superannuation fund respectively of the Demerged Company 2. It is clarified that upon transfer of the aforesaid
funds to the respective funds of the Resulting Company 2, the existing trusts created for such funds by the
Demerged Company 2 shall stand dissolved.

It is clarified that save as expressly provided for in this Scheme, the Transferred Employees who become employees
of the Resulting Company 2 by virtue of this Scheme, shall not be entitled to the employment policies and shall
not be entitled to avail of any schemes and benefits that may be applicable and available to any of the other
employees of the Resulting Company 2, unless otherwise determined by the Resulting Company 2. The Resulting
Company 2 undertakes to continue to abide by any agreement / settlement, if any, entered into or deemed to
have been entered into by the Demerged Company 2 with any union/ Transferred Employees of the Demerged
Company 2.
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18. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

18.1 Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, Identified Litigations relating to the Demerged Undertaking 3 shall
not abate or be discontinued or be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of this Scheme or by anything
contained in this Scheme but shall be continued and be enforced by or against the Resulting Company 2 with
effect from the Effective Date in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been
continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company 2.

18.2 The Resulting Company 2: (a) shall be replaced/added as party to such Identified Litigations relating to the
Demerged Undertaking 3; and (b) shall prosecute or defend such proceedings at its own cost and the liability of
the Demerqged Company 2 shall consequently stand nullified.

18.3 It is clarified that except as otherwise provided herein or the Merger Agreement, the Demerged Company 2 shall
in no event be responsible or liable in relation to any Identified Litigations relating to the Demerqged Undertaking
3 that stand transferred to the Resulting Company 2.

19. CONSIDERATION

19.1 Upon this Scheme coming into effect and in consideration of and subject to the provisions of this Scheme:

19.1.1.

19.1.2

for the transfer and vesting of: (a) the Demerged Undertaking 1 in the Resulting Company 1; (b)
Demerged Undertaking 2 in the Resulting Company 2; and (c) Demerged Undertaking 3 in the
Resulting Company 2; pursuant to provisions of this Scheme and Applicable Law, the Resulting
Company 1 shall, without any further application, act, deed payment, consent, acts, instrument or
deed, issue and allot to the Demerqed Company 1, 14,000,000,000 (fourteen billion) fully paid
up equity shares of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each of Resulting Company 1 and additional shares
which shall not exceed 1,950,000,000 (one billion nine hundred and fifty million) representing
the Demerged Company 1 Additional Value contributed by the Demerged Companies, the Resulting
Company 1 shall, representing 8,067,019,557 (eight billion sixty seven million nineteen thousand
five hundred and fifty seven) fully paid up equity share of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each of
Resulting Company 1 in respect of Demerged Undertaking 1, 5,352,980,622 (five billion three
hundred and fifty two million nine hundred and eighty thousand six hundred and twenty two) fully
paid up equity share of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each of Resulting Company 1 in respect of
Demerged Undertaking 2 and 579,999,821 (five hundred and seventy nine million nine hundred and
ninety nine thousand eight hundred and twenty one) fully paid up equity share of INR 10 (Indian
Rupees Ten) each of Resulting Company 1 in respect of Demerged Undertaking 3;

for the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking 2 into Resulting Company 2 pursuant to
provisions of this Scheme and Applicable Law, the Resulting Company 2 shall, without any further
application, act, deed payment, consent, acts, instrument or deed, issue and allot to the Resulting
Company 1; 5,352,980,622 (five billion three hundred and fifty two million nine hundred and eighty
thousand six hundred and twenty two) fully paid up equity share of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten)
each of Resulting Company 2 to Resulting Company 1 in discharge of consideration for Demerged
Undertaking 2 as reimbursement of amount discharged by Resulting Company 1 on an aggreqate basis
as mentioned under Clause 19.1.1 above to Demerqged Company 1 for the Demerged Undertaking
2. It is clarified that such consideration discharged by Resulting Company 2 shall be deemed to be
the consideration discharged by Resulting Company 2 with respect to the transfer and vesting of
Demerqed Undertaking 2 from Demerged Company 1 to the Resulting Company 2. Accordingly, the
consideration for the said undertaking acquired by Resulting Company 2 for which consideration is
discharged by Resulting Company 2 as above, shall be accounted for and available as cost of the
assets and liabilities comprised therein for Resulting Company 2, based on purchase price allocation
carried out by an independent valuer; and
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19.1.3.  forthe transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking 3 into Resulting Company 2 pursuant
to provisions of this Scheme and Applicable Law, the Resulting Company 2 shall, without any
further application, act, deed payment, consent, acts, instrument or deed, issue and allot to
the Resulting Company 1; 579,999,821 (five hundred and seventy nine million nine hundred
and ninety nine thousand eight hundred and twenty one) fully paid up equity share of INR
10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each of Resulting Company 2 to Resulting Company 1 in discharge of
consideration for Demerqed Undertaking 3 as reimbursement of amount discharged by Resulting
Company 1 on an agqreqate basis under Clause 19.1.1 above to Demerged Company 1 for the
Demerged Undertaking 3. It is clarified that: (A) such consideration discharged by Resulting
Company 2 shall be deemed to be the consideration discharged by Resulting Company 2 with
respect to the transfer and vesting of Demerged Undertaking 3 from Demerged Company 1 to
the Resulting Company 2; and (B) the Demerged Company 1 shall be receiving consideration on
behalf of the Demerged Company 2 for the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking
3 by Demerged Company 2 to Resulting Company 2. Accordingly, the consideration for the said
undertaking acquired by Resulting Company 2 for which consideration is discharged by Resulting
Company 2 as above, shall be accounted for and available as cost of the assets and liabilities
comprised therein for Resulting Company 2, based on purchase price allocation carried out by
an independent valuer.

19.2 The equity shares of the Resulting Company 1 or Resulting Company 2, as the case may be, to be issued and

allotted as provided in Clause 19.1 above shall be subject to the provisions of the memorandum of association
and articles of association of the Resulting Company 1 or Resulting Company 2, as the case may be, and shall
rank pari-passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of the Resulting Company 1 or Resulting
Company 2, as the case may be, after the Effective Date including with respect to dividend, bonus, right shares,
voting rights and other corporate benefits.

19.3 The issue and allotment of equity shares as provided in Clause 19.1, is an integral part hereof and shall be

deemed to have been carried out without requiring any further act on the part of the Resulting Companies or
the Demerged Companies or their shareholders and as if the procedure laid down under Section 62 of the Act
and any other applicable provisions of the Act, as may be applicable, and such other Applicable Laws as may be
applicable were duly complied with. It is clarified that the approval of the members and creditors of the Resulting
Companies and/ or the Demerged Companies to this Scheme, shall be deemed to be their consent/ approval for
the issue and allotment of equity shares pursuant to this Clause 19.

19.4 The equity shares issued pursuant to Clause 19.1 shall be in dematerialized form, provided all details relating to

the relevant depository participants are available with the Resulting Company 1 or Resulting Company 2, as the
case may be. If such details are not provided, the equity shares shall be issued to it in the physical form.

19.5 The Demerged Companies and Resulting Companies have also agreed in the Merger Agreement, to effect certain

20.

20.1

valuation adjustments so as to equalise the value of the Demerged Undertakings and value of the business of
the Resulting Companies as on the Effective Date, in consideration of which additional shares may be issued by
the Resulting Company 1 to the Demerged Company 1 and GCSHL, by way of a preferential allotment, in the
manner contemplated in the Merqer Agreement. It is clarified that immediately upon implementation of this
Scheme (including Parts II, III, IV, V and VI) and the completion of such valuation adjustments agreed in the
Merqer Agreement, the Demerqged Company 1 shall hold 50% of the fully diluted equity share capital of the
Resulting Company 1.

ACCOUNTING BY THE DEMERGED COMPANIES AND THE RESULTING COMPANIES IN RESPECT OF ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES

.Accounting treatment in the books of the Demerged Company 1

Upon this Scheme becoming effective:
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20.11 Demerged Company 1, shall reduce the book value of Identified Assets 1, Identified Assets 2, shares
in New HoldCo, Identified Liabilities 1 and Identified Liabilities 2 pertaining to Demerged Undertaking
1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 from its books of accounts;

20.1.2 Demerqged Company 1 shall record the equity shares issued to Demerged Company 1 by Resulting
Company 1 pursuant to Clause 19.1 at fair value

20.1.3 Demerqged Company 1 shall adjust an amount of receivable from Demerged Company 2 equivalent to
the fair value of the equity shares of Resulting Company 1 received by the Demerged Company 1 as
consideration for the transfer to the Resulting Company 2 of Demerged Undertaking 3 by Demerged
Company 2;

20.2 Accounting treatment in the books of the Demerged Company 2

Upon this Scheme becoming effective:

20.2.1 Demerged Company 2, shall reduce the book value of Identified Assets 3 and Identified Liabilities 3
pertaining to Demerged Undertaking 3 from its books of accounts; and

20.2.2 Demerged Company 2 shall adjust as no longer payable an amount of payable to Demerged Company
1 equivalent to the fair value of equity shares of Resulting Company 1 received by Demerged Company
1 being the entitlement of the Demerged Company 2 allowed to be obtained and retained by the
Demerqged Company 1.

20.3 Accounting treatment in the books of the Resulting Company 1

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and upon the arrangement becoming operative the Resulting Company
1 shall record the Identified Assets 1 and Identified Liabilities 1 comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 1
transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 1 pursuant to this Scheme at the fair market value as
determined by an independent valuer and approved by the Board of the Resulting Company 1 as on the close of
business on the day prior to the Effective Date in accordance with the Indian GAAP applicable to the Resulting
Company 1. The Resulting Company 1 shall record the face value of equity share capital issued by Resulting
Company 2 pursuant to Clause 19.1 of this Scheme as investments.

20.4 Accounting treatment in the books of the Resulting Company 2

21.
21.1

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and upon the arrangement becoming operative: (a) the Resulting
Company 2 shall record the Identified Assets 2 and Identified Liabilities 2 comprised in the Demerged Undertaking
2 transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 2 pursuant to this Scheme; and (b) the Resulting Company
2 shall record the Identified Assets 3 and Identified Liabilities 3 comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 3
transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 2, pursuant to this Scheme at the fair market value as
determined by and independent valuer and approved by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company 2 as
on the close of business on the day prior to the Effective Date in accordance with the Indian GAAP applicable to
the Resulting Company 2.

REMAINING BUSINESS

The Remaining Business and all the assets, investments, liabilities and obligations including without limitation the
Excluded Assets, Excluded Employees, Excluded IPR, Excluded Liabilities and Excluded Litigation of each of the
Demerqged Companies, shall continue to belong to and be vested in and be managed by the relevant Demerged
Company.

21.2 All leqal, Taxation and/ or other proceedings by or against the Demerged Companies under any statute, whether

pending on the Effective Date or which may be instituted at any time thereafter, and relating to the Remaining
Business of the Demerged Companies (including those relating to any property, right, power, liability, obligation
or duties of the Demerged Companies in respect of the Remaining Business) shall be continued and enforced
aqainst the Demerged Companies.
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22.
22.1.

22.2

22.3

224

22.5

PART III
AMALGAMATION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANIES WITH TRANSFEREE COMPANY
AMALGAMATION TRANSFER AND VESTING OF TRANSFEROR UNDERTAKINGS

With effect from the Effective Date, and subject to the provisions of this Scheme in relation to the mode of
transfer and vesting of the Undertaking of the Transferor Companies, Undertaking of the Transferor Companies
shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in, and/or be deemed
to have been, and stand, transferred to, and vested in, the Transferee Company, so as to become on and from
the Effective Date, the estate, assets, rights, title, interest and authorities of the Transferee Company, pursuant
to Section 394(2) of the Act and section 2(1B) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, subject however, to all charges,
liens, mortgages, then affecting the Transferor Companies or any part thereof; provided always that this Scheme
shall not operate to enlarge the scope of security for any loan, deposit or facility created by or available to
Transferor Companies, which shall be deemed to have been vested with the Transferee Company by virtue of
the amalgamation, and the Transferee Company shall not be obliged to create any further or additional security
therefore upon coming into effect of this Scheme or otherwise, except in case where the required security has
not been created and in such case if the terms thereof require, the Transferee Company will create the security
in terms of the issue or arrangement in relation thereto. Similarly, the Transferee Company shall not be required
to create any additional security over assets acquired by it under this Scheme for any loans, deposits or other
financial assistance availed/to be availed by it.

Provided that for the purpose of qiving effect to the vesting order passed under Sections 391 to 394 of the Act
in respect of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall at all times be entitled to get effected the change in
the title and the appurtenant leqal right(s) upon the vesting of such properties of the Transferor Companies in
accordance with the provisions of Section 391 to 394 of the Act, at the offices of any Appropriate Authority.

With respect to the assets forming part of the Undertaking of the Transferor Companies that are movable in
nature or are otherwise capable of being transferred by manual delivery or endorsement and/or delivery, the
same may be so transferred by the Transferor Companies without any further act or execution of an instrument
with the intent of vesting such assets with the Transferee Company as on the Effective Date.

With respect to the assets of the Undertaking of the Transferor Companies other than those referred to in Clause
22.2 above, the same shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to and vested in and/
or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company on the Effective Date pursuant to
the provisions of Section 394 of the Act, with effect from the Effective Date. It is hereby clarified that all the
investments made by the Transferor Companies and all the rights, title and interests of the Transferor Companies
in any leasehold properties in relation to the Undertaking of the Transferor Companies, if any, shall, pursuant to
Section 394(2) of the Act and the provisions of this Scheme, without any further act or deed, be transferred to
and vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company. With regard to
the licenses of the properties, the Transferee Company will enter into novation agreements, if it is so required.

For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that upon the coming into effect of this Scheme; and in accordance with
the provisions of relevant Applicable Laws, consents, permissions, licences, certificates, authorities (including for
the operation of bank accounts), powers of attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Transferor
Companies, and the rights and benefits under the same shall, and all quality certifications and approvals,
trademarks, brands, patents and domain names, copyrights, industrial designs, trade secrets and other intellectual
property and all other interests relating to the goods or services being dealt with by the Transferor Companies, be
transferred to and vest in the Transferee Company.

Subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements and other instruments
of whatsoever nature to which the Transferor Companies is a party subsisting or having effect on or immediately
before the Effective Date shall remain in full force and effect against or in favour of the Transferee Company and
shall be binding on and be enforceable by and aqainst the Transferee Company as fully and effectually as if the
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22.6

22.7

22.8

22.9

Transferee Company had at all material times been a party thereto. The Transferee Company will, if required, enter
into a novation agreement in relation to such contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements and other instruments as stated
above. Any inter-se contracts between the Transferor Companies on the one hand and the Transferee Company on
the other hand shall stand cancelled and cease to operate upon the coming into effect of this Scheme.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the
Undertaking of the Transferor Companies occurs by virtue of this Scheme, the Transferee Company may. at any
time after the coming into effect of this Scheme, in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under
any Applicable Law or otherwise, take such actions and execute such deeds (including deeds of adherence),
confirmations, other writings or tripartite arrangements with any party to any contract or arrangement to which
the Transferor Companies is a party or any writings as may be necessary in order to give formal effect to the
provisions of this Scheme. The Transferee Company shall under the provisions of this Scheme, be deemed to be
authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of the Transferor Companies to carry out or perform all such
formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of the Transferor Companies.

In so far as the various incentives, tax exemption and benefits, tax credits, subsidies, grants, special status
and other benefits or privileges enjoyed, granted by any Appropriate Authority, or availed of by the Transferor
Companies are concerned as on the Effective Date, including income tax benefits and exemptions under
applicable provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961, the same shall, without any further act or deed, vest with
and be available to the Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions on and from the Effective Date.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor
Companies shall, pursuant to the provisions of Section 394(2) and other applicable provisions of the Act,
without any further act, instrument or deed be and stand transferred to, and vested in, and/or deemed to
have been and stand transferred to, and vested in, the Transferee Company, so as to become on and from the
Effective Date, the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company on the same terms and
conditions as were applicable to the Transferor Companies and it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent
of any person who is a party to contract or arrangement by virtue of which such debts, liabilities, duties and
obligations have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this Clause.

Without prejudice to the provisions of the foregoing Clauses, and upon this Scheme becoming effective, the
Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company shall execute any and all instruments or documents and do
all the acts and deeds as may be required, including filing of necessary particulars and/or modification(s) of
charge, with the concerned Registrar of Companies, to give formal effect to the above provisions.

22.10 If and to the extent there are loans, deposits or balances or other outstanding inter-se between the Transferor

Companies and the Transferee Company, the obligations in respect thereof shall, on and from the Effective
Date, come to an end and suitable effect shall be given in the books of the Transferee Company. For removal
of doubts, it is hereby clarified that with effect from the Effective Date, there would be no accrual of interest
or other charges in respect of any such loans, deposits or balances inter-se between the Transferor Companies
and the Transferee Company.

22.11 With effect from the Effective Date, there would be no accrual of income or expense on account of any

transactions, including inter alia any transactions in the nature of sale or transfer of any goods, materials or
services between the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company.

22.12 Any tax liabilities under the Income-tax Act, 1961, Customs Act, 1962, Central Excise Act, 1944, value added

tax laws, as applicable to any State in which the Transferor Companies operates, Central Sales Tax Act, 1956,
any other State sales tax / value added tax laws, or service tax, or corporation tax, or other Applicable Laws
and requlations dealing with taxes/ duties/ levies/cess (hereinafter in this Clause referred to as "Tax Laws") to
the extent not provided for or covered by tax provision in the Transferor Companies' accounts made as on the
date immediately preceding the Effective Date shall subject to the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961, be
transferred to the Transferee Company. Any surplus in the provision for taxation/ duties/ levies account including
advance tax and tax deducted at source, tax refunds and MAT credit entitlement as on the date immediately
preceding the Effective Date will also be transferred to the account of and belong to the Transferee Company.
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22.13 Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company is expressly permitted to revise and file its
income tax returns including service tax returns, sales tax and value added tax returns and other tax returns
(including revised returns) as may be necessary and expressly reserves the right to make such provisions in its
returns, and to claim refunds and credits etc. pertaining to the Transferor Companies notwithstanding that the
statutory period for such revision and filing may have lapsed. The Transferee Company shall be entitled to claim
and be allowed credit or benefits of all tax deduction certificates, advance tax or other tax payments, credits
or drawbacks or any other credit or benefit of any tax, duty, CENVAT, incentive etc. relating to the Transferor
Companies, notwithstanding that such certificates or challans or any other documents for tax payments or
credits/benefits etc. may have been issued or made in the name of the Transferor Companies. Such credit/
benefit shall be allowed without any further act or deed by the Transferee Company or the need for any
endorsements on such certificates, challans, documents etc. to be done by the issuers or any authority.

22.14 Upon this Scheme becoming effective, any TDS deposited, TDS certificates issued or TDS returns filed by the
Transferor Companies shall continue to hold good as if such TDS amounts were deposited, TDS certificates were
issued and TDS returns were filed by the Transferee Company.

22.15 Al expenses incurred by the Transferor Companies under Section 43B of the Income-tax Act, 1961, in relation
and pertaining to its business, shall be claimed as a deduction by the Transferee Company and the transfer of
the entire business shall be considered as succession of business by the Transferee Company.

22.16 Any refunds under the Tax Laws due to the Transferor Companies consequent to the assessment and which have
not been received by the Transferor Companies as on the date immediately preceding the Effective Date shall
also belong to and be received by the Transferee Company.

22.17 Without prejudice to the generality of the above, all benefits including under Tax Laws, to which the Transferor
Companies are entitled to in terms of the applicable Tax Laws, including but not limited to advances recoverable
in cash or kind or for value, and deposits with any Appropriate Authority or any third party/entity, shall be
available to and vest in the Transferee Company.

22.18 All debentures, bonds, other debt securities and other instruments of like nature (whether convertible into
equity shares or not) including non-convertible debentures issued to/held by the Transferor Companies, shall
upon coming into effect of this Scheme pursuant to the provisions of Sections 391 to 394 and other relevant
provisions of the Act, without any further act, instrument or deed shall stand transferred to and vested in or be
deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company.

22.19 It is hereby clarified that in case of any refunds, benefits, incentives, grants, subsidies etc, the Transferor
Companies shall, if so required by the Transferee Company, issue notices in such form as the Transferee Company
may deem fit and proper stating that pursuant to the High Court having sanctioned this Scheme under Sections
391 to 394 of the Act, the relevant refund, benefit, incentive, grant, subsidies, be paid or made good or held
on account of the Transferee Company, as the person entitled thereto, to the end and intent that the right of
the Transferor Companies to recover or realise the same, stands transferred to the Transferee Company and that
appropriate entries should be passed in their respective books to record the aforesaid changes.

22.20 Without prejudice to the provisions of this Scheme, with effect from the Effective Date, all inter-party
transactions between the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company shall be considered as intra-party
transactions for all purposes, from the Effective Date.

22.21 On and from the Effective Date, and thereafter, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to operate all bank
accounts of the Transferor Companies and realize all monies and complete and enforce all pending contracts
and transactions and to accept stock returns and issue credit notes in respect of the Transferor Companies in
the name of the Transferor Companies in so far as may be necessary until the transfer of rights and obligations
of the Transferor Companies to the Transferee Company under this Scheme have been formally given effect to
under such contracts and transactions.
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22.22 For avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the applicable provisions of this Scheme, it is

23.

24.
24.1

clarified that with effect from the Effective Date and till such time that the name of the bank accounts of the
Transferor Companies have been replaced with that of the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall be
entitled to operate the bank accounts of the Transferor Companies in the name of the Transferor Companies in
so far as may be necessary. All cheques and other neqotiable instruments, payment orders received or presented
for encashment which are in the name of the Transferor Companies after the Effective Date shall be accepted
by the bankers of the Transferee Company and credited to the account of the Transferee Company, if presented
by the Transferee Company. The Transferee Company shall be allowed to maintain bank accounts in the name
of the Transferor Companies for such time as may be determined to be necessary by the Transferee Company
for presentation and deposition of cheques and pay orders that have been issued in the name of the Transferor
Companies. It is hereby expressly clarified that any legal proceedings by or against the Transferor Companies
which are in the name of the Transferor Companies shall be instituted, or as the case maybe, continued by or
aqainst the Transferee Company after the coming into effect of this Scheme.

PERMITS

With effect from the Effective Date, all the Permits held or availed of by, and all rights and benefits that have
accrued to, the Transferor Companies, pursuant to the provisions of Section 394(2) of the Act, shall without
any further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to, and vest in, or be deemed to have been transferred to,
and vested in, and be available to, the Transferee Company so as to become as and from the Effective Date, the
Permits, estates, assets, rights, title, interests and authorities of the Transferee Company and shall remain valid,
effective and enforceable on the same terms and conditions to the extent permissible in Applicable Laws. Upon
the Effective Date and until the Permits are transferred, vested, recorded, effected, and/or perfected, in the
record of the Appropriate Authority, in favour of the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company is authorized
to carry on business in the name and style of the Transferor Companies and under the relevant license and/or
permit and/or approval, as the case may be, and the Transferee Company shall keep a record and/or account of
such transactions.

EMPLOYEES

Upon this Scheme coming into effect and with effect from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company undertakes
to engaqe all the employees of the Transferor Companies on the same terms and conditions on which they are
engaged by the Transferor Companies without any interruption of service as a result of the amalgamation of
the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company. The Transferee Company agrees that the services of all
such employees with the Transferor Companies prior to the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the
Transferee Company shall be taken into account for the purposes of all benefits to which the said employees may
be eligible, including for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other terminal
benefits and to this effect the accumulated balances, if any, standing to the credit of such employees in the
existing provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund of which they are members will be transferred to
such provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation funds nominated by the Transferee Company and/or such
new provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund to be established and caused to be recognized by the
Appropriate Authorities, by the Transferee Company. Pending the transfer as aforesaid, the provident fund, gratuity
fund and superannuation fund dues of such employees would be continued to be deposited in the existing
provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund respectively of the Transferor Companies. It is clarified that
upon transfer of the aforesaid funds to the respective funds of the Transferee Company, the existing trusts created
for such funds by the Transferor Companies shall stand dissolved.

24.2 Tt is clarified that save as expressly provided for in this Scheme, the employees of the Transferor Companies

who become the employees of the Transferee Company by virtue of this Scheme, shall not be entitled to the
employment policies and shall not be entitled to avail of any schemes and benefits that may be applicable
and available to any of the other employees of the Transferee Company (including the benefits of or under any
employee stock option schemes applicable to or covering all or any of the other employees of the Transferee
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25.

26.
26.1

Company), unless otherwise determined by the Transferee Company. The Transferee Company undertakes to
continue to abide by any agreement/ settlement, if any, entered into or deemed to have been entered into by
the Transferor Companies with any union/ employee of the Transferor Companies.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

If any suit, cause of actions, appeal or other leqal, quasi-judicial, arbitral or other administrative proceedings of
whatever nature (hereinafter called the "Proceedings") by or against the Transferor Companies be pending on the
Effective Date, the same shall not abate, be discontinued or be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of the
amalgamation or of anything contained in this Scheme, but the Proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and
enforced by or aqainst the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might
have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferor Companies as if this Scheme had not
been made. On and from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company may initiate any legal proceeding for and
on behalf of the Transferor Companies.

CONSIDERATION

Upon this Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies
into the Transferee Company, including the transfer and vesting of the Transferor Undertakings of the Transferor
Companies into the Transferee Company pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall
without any further application, act, instrument or deed, issue and allot:

26.1.1 22,119,183 (twenty two million one hundred and nineteen thousand one hundred and eighty three)
fully paid up equity shares of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each of Transferee Company to GCSHL for
11,828,440 (eleven million eight hundred and twenty eight thousand four hundred and forty) equity
share of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each held by GCSHL in the Transferor Company 1;

26.1.2 63,900,817 (sixty three million nine hundred thousand eight hundred and seventeen) fully paid up
equity shares of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each of Transferee Company to SSIPL for 34,171,560
(thirty four million one hundred and seventy one thousand five hundred and sixty) equity share of INR
10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each held by it in the Transferor Company 1; and

26.1.3 1 (one) fully paid up equity shares of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each of Transferee Company to
GCSHL for 6,217,278 (six million two hundred and seventeen thousand two hundred and seventy
eight) equity share of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each held by it in the Transferor Company 2.

26.1.4 2,449,999 (two million four hundred and forty nine thousand nine hundred and ninety nine) fully
paid up equity shares of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each of Transferee Company to GCSHL for
1,644,461,328 (one billion six hundred and forty four million four hundred and sixty one thousand
and three hundred and twenty eight) non-convertible redeemable preference shares of INR 10
(Indian Rupees Ten) each held by it in the Transferor Company 2.

26.2.Cancellation of equity shares of the Resulting Company 1 held by the Transferor Company 1

26.2.1 With effect from the Effective Date, and in consideration of the amalgamation of the Transferor
Companies into the Transferee Company, including the transfer and vesting of the Transferor
Undertakings of the Transferor Companies into the Transferee Company pursuant to the provisions
of this Scheme, the investments held by the Transferor Company 1 in the equity share capital of
the Transferee Company shall stand cancelled and accordingly, the share capital of the Transferee
Company shall stand reduced to the extent of the face value of the shares held by the Transferor
Company 1 in the Transferee Company as on the Effective Date.

26.2.2 Such reduction of share capital of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company 1 as provided
in this Clause 26.2 shall be effected as a part of this Scheme, upon which the share capital of the
Transferee Company and Transferor Company 1 shall be deemed to be reduced and the orders of the
High Court sanctioning this Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under Sections 100 to 103 of
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26.3

26.4

26.5

26.6

27.
27.1.

28.

29.

the Act confirming such reduction of share capital of the Transferee Company. Notwithstanding the
reduction of issued subscribed and paid up preference share capital of the Transferee Company, the
Transferee Company shall not be required to add "And Reduced" as a suffix to its name.

The equity shares of the Transferee Company to be issued and allotted as provided in Clause 26.1 above shall be
subject to the provisions of the memorandum and articles of association of the Transferee Company, and shall
rank pari-passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of the Transferee Company, after the Effective
Date including with respect to dividend, bonus entitlement, rights' shares' entitlement, voting rights and other
corporate benefits.

The issue and allotment of the equity shares as provided in Clause 26.1 above is an integral part hereof and shall
be deemed to have been carried out without requiring any further act on the part of the Transferor Companies
or the Transferee Company or their shareholders and as if the procedure laid down under Section 62 of the Act
and any other applicable provisions of the Act, as may be applicable, and such other Applicable Laws as may be
applicable were duly complied with. It is clarified that the approval of the members and creditors of the Transferor
Companies and/ or Transferee Company to this Scheme, shall be deemed to be their consent/ approval for
the issue and allotment of equity shares pursuant to Clause 26.1 above and the cancellation of equity shares
pursuant to Clause 26.2 above.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and upon the equity shares being issued and allotted as provided in
Clause 26.1 of this Scheme, the equity shares of the Transferor Companies, both in dematerialized form and in
physical form, shall be deemed to have been automatically cancelled and shall be of no effect on and from the
Effective Date. Wherever applicable, the Transferee Company may, instead of requiring the surrender of the share
certificates of the Transferor Companies, directly issue and dispatch the new share certificates of the Transferee
Company.

The equity shares issued pursuant to Clause 26.1 shall be in dematerialized form, provided all details relating to
the relevant depository participants are available with the Transferee Company. If such details are not provided,
the equity shares shall be issued to it in the physical form.

ACCOUNTING BY THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY IN RESPECT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Accounting treatment in the books of the Transferee Company:

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and upon the arrangement becoming operative the Transferee Company
shall record the all the assets and liabilities comprised in the Transferor Companies at the fair market value as
determined by an independent valuer and approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company as on
the close of business on the day prior to the Effective Date in accordance with the Indian GAAP applicable to the
Transferee Company.

VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS, ETC.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the resolutions of the Transferor Companies, as are considered
necessary by the Board of the Transferee Company, and that are valid and subsisting on the Effective Date, shall
continue to be valid and subsisting and be considered as resolutions of the Transferee Company, and if any such
resolutions have any monetary limits approved under the provisions of the Act, or any other applicable statutory
provisions, then said limits as are considered necessary by the Board of the Transferee Company shall be added
to the limits, if any, under like resolutions passed by the Transferee Company and shall constitute the aggreqate
of the said limits in the Transferee Company.

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

On this Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Companies shall stand dissolved without winding up. On
and from the Effective Date, the name of the Transferor Companies shall be struck off from the records of the
concerned Regqistrar of Companies.
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PART IV
REORGANISATION OF RESULTING COMPANY 1 RPS
30 CONVERSION OF RESULTING COMPANY 1 RPS

30.1.Subject to the approval of the Reserve Bank of India and such other Permits as may be required, the Resulting
Company 1 RPS shall, on this Scheme coming into effect, without further act or deed be converted at par into
fully paid up equity shares of INR 10 each of the Resulting Company 1 aggreqating to 8,091,527,200 (eight
billion ninety one million five hundred twenty seven thousand and two hundred) equity shares, and such equity
shares (being the RPS Converted Equity Shares) shall be allotted to GCSHL being the holders of such preference
shares on the Effective Date.

30.2 The RPS Converted Equity Shares shall be subject to the provisions of the memorandum and articles of association
of the Resulting Company 1, and shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of
the Resulting Company 1, after the Effective Date including with respect to dividend, bonus entitlement, rights'
shares' entitlement, voting rights and other corporate benefits.

30.3 The issue and allotment of the RPS Converted Equity Shares is an integral part hereof and shall be deemed to
have been carried out without requiring any further act on the part of the Resulting Company 1 or its shareholders
and as if the procedure laid down under Section 62 of the Act and any other applicable provisions of the Act, as
may be applicable, and such other Applicable Laws as may be applicable were duly complied with. It is clarified
that the approval of the members and creditors of the Resulting Company 1 to this Scheme, shall be deemed to
be their consent/ approval also to the conversion, issue and allotment of RPS Converted Equity Shares.

31 REDUCTION AND CANCELLATION OF RPS CONVERTED EQUITY SHARES

31.1 Immediately upon issuance and allotment of the RPS Converted Equity Shares, the RPS Converted Equity Shares
shall stand cancelled, extinquished and annulled on and from the Effective Date and the paid up capital of the
Resulting Company 1 to that effect shall stand cancelled and reduced, which shall be reqgarded as reduction
of share capital of the Resulting Company 1, pursuant to Section 100 of the Act as also any other applicable
provisions of the Act.

31.2.The reduction of the share capital of the Resulting Company 1 shall be effected as an integral part of this Scheme
itself, without having to follow the process under Sections 100 to 103 of the Act separately, and the order of the
High Court sanctioning this Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under section 102 of the Act confirming the
reduction. Notwithstanding the reduction of issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of the Resulting
Company 1, the Resulting Company 1 shall not be required to add "And Reduced" as suffix to its name.

31.3.0n effecting the reduction of the RPS Converted Equity Shares, the share certificates in respect of the RPS
Converted Equity Shares held by their respective holders shall also be deemed to have been cancelled.

32. ACCOUNTING BY THE RESULTING COMPANY 1

32.1 On the Effective Date, Resulting Company 1 shall credit its share capital account in its books of account with
the aggreqate face value of the RPS Converted Equity Shares. The excess, if any, of the value of the Resulting
Company 1 RPS over the face value of RPS Converted Equity Shares issued by the Resulting Company 1 shall be
recorded in the securities premium account in the books of Resulting Company 1.

32.2 The capital reserve in the books of the Resulting Company 1 shall be increased to the extent of the amount of
equity shares of the Resulting Company 1 cancelled as per Clause 31.
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PART V
REORGANISATION OF RESULTING COMPANY 1 SHAREHOLDER LOANS
33. CONVERSION OF RESULTING COMPANY 1 SHAREHOLDER LOANS

33.1 Subject to the approval of the Reserve Bank of India and such other Permits as may be required, upon this Scheme
coming into effect: (a) the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans shall be converted to 26,254,046,862
(Twenty six billion two hundred fifty four million forty six thousand and eight hundred sixty two) equity shares
(being the SHL Converted Equity Shares); and (b) such other loans that may have been brought towards satisfying
the interim funding requirements of the Resulting Companies in accordance with Applicable Laws, shall, without
further act or deed be converted at par into fully paid up equity shares of INR 10 each of the Resulting Company
1.

33.2 The SHL Converted Equity Shares or such other number shares issued pursuant to Clause 33.1(b) shall be subject
to the provisions of the memorandum and articles of association of the Resulting Company 1, and shall rank
pari-passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of the Resulting Company 1, after the Effective
Date including with respect to dividend, bonus entitlement, rights' shares' entitlement, voting rights and other
corporate benefits.

33.3 The issue and allotment of the SHL Converted Equity Shares or such other number shares issued pursuant to
Clause 33.1(b) is an integral part hereof and shall be deemed to have been carried out without requiring any
further act on the part of the Resulting Company 1 SHL Lender or the Resulting Company 1 or their shareholders
and as if the procedure laid down under Section 62 of the Act and any other applicable provisions of the Act, as
may be applicable, and such other Applicable Laws as may be applicable were duly complied with. It is clarified
that the approval of the members and creditors of the Resulting Company 1 to this Scheme, shall be deemed to
be their consent/ approval also to the conversion, issue and allotment of SHL Converted Equity Shares and such
other number shares issued pursuant to Clause 33.1(b).

34. REDUCTION AND CANCELLATION OF SHL CONVERTED EQUITY SHARES

34.1 Immediately upon issuance and allotment of the SHL Converted Equity Shares and shares issued under Clause
33.1(b) above and immediately after giving effect to the reductions and cancellation of shares under Clause 31
above, 10,550,624,970 (ten billion five hundred and fifty million six hundred and twenty four thousand nine
hundred and seventy) fully paid up equity shares or such other higher number of fully paid up equity shares of
the Resulting Company 1 from the SHL Converted Equity Shares, for maintaining an optimum capital structure
as stated in Clause 19.5 above, shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulled on and from the Effective Date
and the paid capital of the Resulting Company 1 to that effect shall stand cancelled and reduced, which shall be
reqarded as reduction of share capital of the Resulting Company 1, pursuant to Section 100 of the Act as also
any other applicable provisions of the Act. For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that equity shares reduced
under this clause does not include equity shares converted from the Indian Rupee denominated bonds.

34.2 The reduction of the share capital of the Resulting Company 1 shall be effected as an integral part of this Scheme
itself, without having to follow the process under Sections 100 to 103 of the Act separately, and the order of the
High Court sanctioning this Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under section 102 of the Act confirming the
reduction. Notwithstanding the reduction of issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of the Resulting
Company 1, the Resulting Company 1 shall not be required to add "And Reduced" as suffix to its name.

34.3 On effecting the reduction of the share capital as stated in Clause 34.1 above, the share certificates in respect
of such Equity Shares held by their respective holders shall also be deemed to have been cancelled.

35. ACCOUNTING BY THE RESULTING COMPANY 1

35.1 On the Effective Date, Resulting Company 1 shall credit its share capital account in its books of account with
the agqreqate face value of the SHL Converted Equity Shares. The excess, if any, of the value of the Resulting
Company 1 Shareholders Loan over the face value of SHL Converted Equity Shares issued by the Resulting
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Company 1 shall be recorded in the securities premium account in the books of Resulting Company 1.

35.2 The capital reserve in the books of the Resulting Company 1 shall be increased to the extent of the amount of
equity shares of the Resulting Company 1 cancelled as per Clause 34.

PART VI
REDUCTION AND REORGANISATION OF SHARE CAPITAL OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY 1
36. REDUCTION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY 1 RPS

36.1 Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme and independent of other Parts of this Scheme, the
Transferor Company 1 RPS issued by Transferor Company 1 to Transferor Company 2 (i.e. all the 1,644,594,517
(one billion six hundred and forty four million five hundred and ninety four thousand five hundred and seventeen)
redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of INR 10 each), shall stand cancelled, extinquished
and annulled on and from the Effective Date without any consideration and the paid up preference share capital
of the Transferor Company 1 shall stand cancelled and extinquished, which shall be reqarded as reduction of share
capital of the Transferor Company 1, pursuant to section 100 of the Act as also any other applicable provisions
of the Act.

36.2.The reduction of the share capital of the Transferor Company 1 shall be effected as an integral part of this
Scheme itself, without having to follow the process under Sections 100 to 103 of the Act separately and the
order of the High Court sanctioning this Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under section 102 of the Act
confirming the reduction.

36.3.0n effecting the reduction of the preference share capital as stated in Clause 36.1 above, the share certificates
in respect of Transferor Company 1 RPS held by their respective holders shall also be deemed to have been
cancelled.

36.4 It is clarified that upon the Scheme becoming effective, the reduction of the Transferor Company 1 RPS as stated
above shall precede all other actions proposed under this Scheme.

36.5 The capital reserve in the books of the Transferor Company 1 shall be increased to the extent of the amount of
redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of the Transferor Company 1 cancelled as per Clause
36.1.

PART VII
GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS
37. INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE RESULTING COMPANIES

37.1 Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the authorised share capital of the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting
Company 2 will automatically stand increased to INR 750,000,000,000 (Rupees seven hundred and fifty billion)
and INR 85,000,000,000 (Rupees eighty five billion) respectively by simply filing the requisite forms with the
Appropriate Authority and no separate procedure or instrument or deed or payment of any stamp duty and
reqistration fees shall be required to be followed under the Act.

37.2 Consequently:

37.2.1 the Memorandum of Association of the Resulting Company 1 shall without any act, instrument or
deed be and stand altered, modified and amended pursuant to Sections 13 and 61 of the Companies
Act 2013 and Section 394 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and
Companies Act, 201 3, as the case may be, and be replaced by the following clause:

"“The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs 75,000,00,00,000 (Rupees Seventy five thousand
crore) divided into 7500,00,00,000 (Seven thousand five hundred crore) Equity Shares of Rs 10/-
(Rupees Ten only) each with power to increase and reduce the capital of the Company or to divide
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37.2.2

the shares in the capital for the time being into several classes and to attach thereto respectively any
preferential, deferred, qualified or special rights, privileges or condition as may be determined by or
in accordance with the Articles of the Company and to vary, modify or abrogate any such rights,
privileges or conditions in such manner as may be for the time being provided by the Articles of the
Company and the legislative provisions for the time being in force.".

the Memorandum of Association of the Resulting Company 2 shall without any act, instrument or deed
be and stand altered, modified and amended pursuant to Sections 13 and 61 of the Companies Act
2013 and Section 394 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and Companies
Act, 2013, as the case may be, and be replaced by the following clause:

“The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs 8,500,00,00,000 (Rupees Eight thousand five
hundred crore) divided into 650,00,00,000 (Six hundred fifty crore) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- (Rupees
Ten only) and 200,00,00,000 (two hundred crore) Preference Shares of Rs 10/- (Rupees Ten only)
each with power to increase and reduce the capital of the Company or to divide the shares in the
capital for the time being into several classes and to attach thereto respectively any preferential,
deferred, qualified or special rights, privileges or condition as may be determined by or in accordance
with the Articles of the Company and to vary, modify or abrogate any such rights, privileges or
conditions in such manner as may be for the time being provided by the Articles of the Company and
the legislative provisions for the time being in force.”

37.3 It is clarified that the approval of the members of the Resulting Companies to this Scheme shall be deemed
to be their consent/ approval also to the consequential alteration of the Memorandum of Association of the
Resulting Companies and the Resulting Companies shall not be required to seek separate consent/ approval of
their respective shareholders for such alteration of the Memorandum of Association of the Resulting Company 1
as required under Sections 13, 14, 61, 62 and 64 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provision of the Companies Act, 1956.

38. BUSINESS UNTILL EFFECTIVE DATE

38.1 With effect from date when the Boards of each of the Demerged Companies and the Resulting Companies
approve this Scheme and up to and including the Effective Date, each of the Demerged Companies shall:

38.1.1

38.1.2

take reasonable steps to preserve and protect the Demerged Undertakings and not to dispose of any
of the Identified Assets save in the ordinary and usual course of business; and

notify the Resulting Companies in writing, as soon as reasonably practicable, of any matter,
circumstance, act or omission which is or may be a breach of this Clause 37.

38.2 The Demerged Companies and the Resulting Companies shall make necessary applications before the High
Courts for the sanction of this Scheme under Sections 391 and 394 of the Act. The Demerged Companies and
the Resulting Companies may in due course apply for one or more orders under Section 394 of the Act for vesting
of the Demerged Undertakings under this Scheme.

38.3 With effect from date when the Board of each of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company approve
this Scheme and up to and including the Effective Date, each of the Transferor Companies shall:

38.3.1

38.3.2

take reasonable steps to preserve and protect the Undertakings of the Transferor Companies and not
to dispose of any of the assets of the Transferor Companies save in the ordinary and usual course of
business;

notify the Transferee Company and the Demerged Company 1 in writing the existing management
reports which the management of the Transferor Companies uses for business reviews at the same
time as they are provided to the management of the Transferor Companies; and
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39.

40.

41.

41.2

42.
42.1.

38.3.3 notify the Transferee Company and the Demerged Company in writing as soon as reasonably practicable
of any matter, circumstance, act or omission which is or may be a breach of this Clause 37.

The Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company shall make necessary applications before the High Courts
for the sanction of this Scheme under Sections 391 and 394 of the Companies Act, 1956. The Transferor
Companies and the Transferee Company may in due course apply for one or more orders under Section 394 of
the Companies Act, 1956 for vesting of the Transferor Undertakings under this Scheme.

OTHER ISSUANCES OF EQUITY SHARES BY THE RESULTING COMPANIES

To enable the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 to pay the liberalisation costs to the DoT to
obtain the approval listed out in Clause 42.1.5, the Resulting Company 1 be and is hereby permitted to issue
to each of GCSHL and the Demerged Company 1, equity shares of value agqreqating to not more than the INR
37.050,000,000 (thirty seven billion fifty million) on the date of such issue of equity shares by the Resulting
Company 1 in accordance with the provisions of the Act, memorandum of association and articles of association.

INDEMNITY

The Demerged Companies, the Resulting Companies and GCSHL have agreed to indemnify each other for certain
events as provided in the Merger Agreement.

MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO THIS SCHEME

On behalf of each of the Transferor Companies, the Demerged Companies and the Resulting Companies, the
Boards of the respective companies acting themselves or through authorized persons, may consent jointly but not
individually, on behalf of all persons concerned, to any modifications or amendments of this Scheme at any time
and for any reason whatsoever, or to any conditions or limitations that the High Court or any other Appropriate
Authority may deem fit to direct or impose or which may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or
appropriate by both of them (i.e. the Board of the Demerged Companies, the Board of the Resulting Companies
and the Board of the Transferor Companies) and solve all difficulties that may arise for carrying out this Scheme
and do all acts, deeds and things necessary for putting this Scheme into effect.

For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modification thereof the Boards of the Transferor
Companies, the Demerged Companies and the Resulting Companies acting themselves or through authorized
persons may jointly but not individually, give and are jointly authorised to give such directions including directions
for settling any question of doubt or difficulty that may arise and such determination or directions, as the case may
be, shall be binding on all parties, in the same manner as if the same were specifically incorporated in this Scheme.

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT
This Scheme is conditional on and subject to:

42.1.1 this Scheme being agreed to by the respective requisite majorities of the various classes of members
and creditors (where applicable) of the Demerged Companies, Transferor Companies and Resulting
Companies as required under Section 391 of the Act and other applicable provisions of the Act;

42.1.2 this Scheme having been approved by the High Court or the National Company Law Tribunal which
has jurisdiction over the relevant parties thereto, either on the terms as originally approved by the
relevant parties, or with or subject to such modifications as the relevant parties may agree (and, to
the extent required, the High Court or the National Company Law Tribunal, as the case may be, may
have approved or be willing to approve);

42.1.3 The Demerged Company 1 having received a "no adverse objection letter" from the Stock Exchanges
for the demerger and transfer of the Demerged Undertakings from the Demerged Companies to the
Resulting Companies, other arrangement as set out in this Scheme and the Merger Agreement and
as required under Applicable Law, such no-objection letter to be in form and substance acceptable to
the Demerged Company 1 and the Resulting Company 1, both acting reasonably;
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42.1.4

42.1.5.

42.1.6

42.1.7

42.1.8

42.1.9
42.1.10

42.1.11

pursuant to the provisions of the Competition Act: (i) the Competition Commission of India
("CCI") (or any appellate authority in India which has appropriate jurisdiction) having granted
approval (or being deemed, under Applicable Law, to have granted approval) for the Transactions
set out in this Scheme and the Merger Agreement, such approval to be in form and substance
acceptable to both the Demerged Company 1 and the Resulting Company 1, both acting
reasonably; and any conditions contained in such approval (or deemed approval) that are
required to be satisfied at any time prior to the Effective Date having been so satisfied (or, where
applicable, waived);

(a) the written approvals from the DoT with respect to the transactions contemplated under
this Scheme and other Transaction Documents (including the Merger Agreement), having been
received, such approvals to be in form and substance acceptable to both Demerged Company
1 and Resulting Company 1, both acting reasonably, and any conditions contained in such
approvals that are required to be satisfied on the Effective Date having been so satisfied (or,
where applicable, waived) other than any condition relating to the payment of demands or
charges set out in such written approvals (including but not limited to the Liberalisation Costs)
and any other conditions which by their nature are capable of satisfaction only on orimmediately
prior to Effective Date; (b) any demands or charges (other than Liberalisation Costs) required to
be paid by the terms of the written approvals referred to in Clause 42.1.5(a) having been paid
in accordance with Applicable Law, by the Party stated as being responsible for such demands
or charges under such written approvals, immediately prior to Effective Date (or such other
time as may be required by such approvals) in accordance with the terms thereof; and (c) any
demands or charges in relation to the Liberalisation Costs required to be paid by the terms of
the written approvals referred to in Clause 42.1.5(a) having been paid by Resulting Company 1
and/or Resulting Company 2 immediately prior to Effective Date (or such other time as may be
required by such approvals) in accordance with the terms thereof;

the certified/authenticated copies of the orders of the High Court sanctioning this Scheme
having been filed with the Registrar of Companies having jurisdiction, if and to the extent that
such orders do not contain a dispensation allowing for them to be filed with the Registrar of
Companies after the Effective Date;

each of the Demerged Undertakings, New Holdco and the Transferred Subsidiaries having
obtained all consents, approvals and waivers from their respective lenders (including potential
lenders under undrawn facilities) and from the lenders identified in the Merger Agreement in a
form and substance acceptable, to both Demerged Company 1 and Resulting Company 1, both
acting reasonably;

each of the Resulting Companies having obtained all consents, approvals and waivers from their
respective lenders (including potential lenders under undrawn facilities) and from the lenders
identified in the Merger Agreement in a form and substance acceptable, to both Demerged
Company 1 and Resulting Company 1, both acting reasonably;

SSTL Scheme becoming effective in accordance with the terms thereof;

The New Credit Facility and the Fund Flow Agreement being executed in the manner set out in
the Merger Aqreement and the satisfaction of any conditions set out in the New Credit Facility
or the Fund Flow Agreement, which are required to be satisfied before this Scheme becoming
effective, in the manner specified therein or in the Merger Agreement;

mandatory requlatory approvals that are required for the transfer of the shares in New Holdco to
Resulting Company 1 on and subject to the terms of this Merger Agreement and this Scheme
having been obtained from: (a) the Committee on Foreign Investment in the United States and
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the Federal Communications Commission of the United States; and (b) the Reserve Bank of
India separately in respect of: (i) Demerged Companies' transfer of shares in New Holdco to
Resulting Company 1; and (i) Resulting Company 1's acquisition of the shares in New Holdco
from Demerqged Company 1; in each case on terms and subject to conditions acceptable to both
Demerged Company 1 and Resulting Company 1, both acting reasonably and (in each case) any
conditions contained in such approvals that are required to be satisfied at any time prior to the
Effective Date having been so satisfied (or, where applicable, waived);

the New Holdco Reorganisation having been completed;

the lenders under the New Credit Facility having credited at least INR 28,000 crore (in aggreqgate)
to an escrow account in anticipation of occurrence of Effective Date and in accordance with
the Funds Flow Agreement, such escrow account to be with an escrow agent acceptable to the
relevant Parties and other relevant persons;

mandatory approvals that are required for the conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder
Loans and the Resulting Company 1 RPS on and subject to the terms of the Merger Agreement
and this Scheme having been received from the Reserve Bank of India, in the manner set out
in the Merqer Agreement;

there having been no Demerged Company Material Adverse Change or Resulting Company
Material Adverse Change;

there having been no change in Applicable Law (including any change in interpretation of
Applicable Law by any relevant Appropriate Authority) or ruling, decree or direction by any
Appropriate Authority until the Effective Date which would prohibit or make unlawful, the
performance by any Party (or its respective Affiliates) of its (or their) material obligations;

the Demerged Companies' Scheme having become effective (in accordance with the provisions
of the Demerged Companies' Scheme);

Issue of the RCOM CP Satisfaction Notices by Demerged Company 1 confirming satisfaction (or,
where applicable, waiver) of all the Conditions Precedent to be fulfilled by Demerged Company
1 in accordance with the Merger Agreement.

Issue of the Aircel CP Satisfaction Notices by Resulting Company 1 confirming satisfaction (or,
where applicable, waiver) of all the Conditions Precedent to be fulfilled by Resulting Company
1 in accordance with the Merger Agreement.

42.2 The effectiveness of this Scheme shall be subject to the satisfaction or waiver (if capable of waiver) of the
Conditions Precedent, at or prior to the Effective Date, or such other date as is mentioned above in Clause 42.1.

42.3 It is hereby clarified that submission of this Scheme to the High Court and to the Appropriate Authorities for their
respective approvals is without prejudice to all rights, interests, titles or defences that the Demerged Companies,
the Transferor Companies and/ or the Resulting Companies may have under or pursuant to all Applicable Laws.

42.4 On the approval of this Scheme by the shareholders and the creditors of the Demerged Companies, the Transferor
Companies and the Resulting Companies such shareholders and creditors shall also be deemed to have resolved
and accorded all relevant consents under the Act or otherwise to the same extent applicable in relation to the
amalgamation set out in this Scheme, related matters and this Scheme itself.
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43. EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF PERMITS AND MATTERS RELATING TO REVOCATION/ WITHDRAWAL OF THIS
SCHEME

43.1 The Demerged Companies (acting jointly but not separately) and/ or the Resulting Companies and the Transferor
Companies (all of the Resulting Companies and the Transferor Companies acting jointly but not separately)
acting through their respective Board shall each be at liberty to withdraw this Scheme, in the event of expiry or
termination of the Merger Agreement.

43.2.If this Scheme is not effective on or before 30 September 2017 or within such further period or periods as may
be agreed upon between the Demerged Companies and the Resulting Companies through their respective Boards
or its authorized representative, this Scheme shall become null and void and each Party shall bear and pay its
respective costs, charges and expenses for and / or in connection with this Scheme.

43.3 In the event of revocation/ withdrawal under Clause 43.1 or Clause 43.2 above, no rights and liabilities
whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter se the Demerged Companies, the Transferor Companies and the
Resulting Companies or their respective shareholders or creditors or employees or any other person save and
except as provided in the Merger Agreement.

44. COSTS AND TAXES

44 .1 Stamp duty on the orders of the High Courts or the National Company Law Tribunal, as applicable, and on the
issuance of shares as set out in this Scheme, if any, and to the extent applicable, shall be borne and paid by the
Resulting Company 1.

44.2 The Demerged Companies, the shareholders of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company should
independently assess the tax consequences of this Scheme and obtain independent advice on this issue.

443 Neither of the Resulting Companies, Demerged Companies, the Transferor Companies are providing any advice or
indication reqarding the tax implications in the hands of the respective shareholders.

SCHEDULE 1
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

PART 1 | ASSETS
PART A | IDENTIFIED ASSETS 1
The following assets relating to Demerged Undertaking 1:

a. Telecom equipment centralised or decentralised pertaining to 2nd, 3rd and 4th generation of wireless
telecommunications technology (excluding CDMA), Radio Access Network, microwave network equipment,
Mobile Switching Centre/Global System for Mobile Communication (Including Home Location Register, HSS &
Intelligent Network), Media Gateway, Base Station Controller, Radio Network Controllers, NMS Servers, Signal
transfer Point, Packet Core nodes, Policy and Charging Rules Function, Short Message Service Centre, Short
Messaging Service agqgreqator, Lawful Interception servers, CRBT, MCA, Unstructured Supplementary Service
Data, mobile switching centre, Consent gateway, DSTK, Mobile Internet Gateway, Internet gateway, other VAS
nodes, IP assets (L2/L3 switches, firewall, routers), SBC, CCT assets etc and electronics of Media Convergence
Node other than Dense Wavelength Division Multiplexing & Synchronous Digital Hierarchy;

b.  Media Gateway and Media Gateway Controller associated with National Long Distance voice;

o Equipment pertaining to 5 gateways ILT switch in Mumbai, Delhi, Kolkata, Chennai and Ernakulam (excluding land
and building);

d. Al assets of New Holdco and the Transferred Subsidiaries including 4 International POP locations — Hong Kong,
New York, Los Angeles, London;
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Equipments pertaining to MCN locations with complete passive infrastructure including DG sets, AMF panel,
Distribution panels, Transformers, PAC, AC, False floor, IBMS, SMPS, Battery Banks, UPS, UPS batteries and
electrical Cables etc (excluding land and building);

All spare equipment modules and consumables available at warehouses and/or any network facility related to
above list of equipments/nodes;

All end-user equipment used by staff (insourced or outsourced) moving from Demerged Company 1 to Resulting
Company 1 including handsets, dongles/MiFi devices and laptop & desktop computers (other than those provided
as services under the Office Services agreement).

The equipment (excluding CDMA-specific equipment) on operational and non-operational sites/ circles, and
equipment de-installed from operational and non -operational sites and circles presently stored in the warehouses;

All telecom licenses as set out in Annexure A of this Schedule 1;

All rights to use spectrum as set out in Annexure A of this Schedule 1, including the frequency and microwave
spots (pertaining to liberalised and non-liberalised spectrum) Disclosed in Annexure TOE(7) and Annexure
10E(10) to the RCOM Execution Disclosure Letter, and RCOM Completion Disclosure Letter, as applicable;

Available CENVAT credit on the Completion Date to Demerged Company 1 relating to Demerged Undertaking 1;
RCOM Wireless Business IPR;

Working capital assets including but not limited to advances, deposits, receivables etc., set out in the RCOM
Completion Date Accounts;

All assets (including network assets) set out in the fixed assets register and Capital work in Progress (CWIP)
disclosed as part of the RCOM Completion Date Accounts;

SSTL Assets pertaining to SSTL Business 1, limited only to spectrum as detailed in Annexure E of this Schedule
and also microwave supporting microwave frequencies as detailed in Annexure 1T0E(11) of the RCOM Execution
Disclsoure Letter allocated to or being transferred to Aircel and their associated NMS, software and licenses, but
excluding CDMA specific assets;

All test, monitoring, operations, management equipment, tools and systems associated with the networks being
transferred; and

Where not included in paragraphs (a) to (p) above, assets relating to Demerged Undertaking 1 accounted for
(but not necessarily expressly listed) in the Accounts, the RCOM Measurement Date Accounts or the RCOM
Completion Date Accounts, including all assets being used in conduct of the Demerged Undertaking 1 and/or in
possession of any third parties under any contract or otherwise.

PART B | IDENTIFIED ASSETS 2

The following assets relating to Demerged Undertaking 2:

a.

Telecom equipment centralised or decentralised pertaining to 2nd, 3rd and 4th generation of wireless
telecommunications technology (excluding CDMA), Radio Access Network microwave network equipment,
Mobile Switching Centre/Global System for Mobile Communication (Including Home Location Register, HSS &
Intelligent Network), Media Gateway, Base Station Controller, Signal transfer Point, Radio Network Controllers,
NMS Servers, Packet Core nodes, Policy and Charging Rules Function, Short Message Service Centre, Short
Messaging Service agqreqator, Lawful Interception servers, CRBT, MCA, Unstructured Supplementary Service
Data, mobile switching centre, Consent gateway, DSTK, Mobile Internet Gateway, Internet qateway, other VAS
nodes, IP assets ( L2/L3 switches, firewall, routers), SBC, CCT assets etc and electronics of Media Convergence
Node other than Dense Wavelength Division Multiplexing & Synchronous Digital Hierarchy;

Media Gateway and Media Gateway Controller associated with National Long Distance voice;
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Equipments pertaining to MCN locations with complete passive infrastructure including DG sets, AMF panel,
Distribution panels, Transformers, PAC, AC, False floor, IBMS, SMPS, Battery Banks, UPS, UPS batteries and
electrical Cables etc. (excluding land and building);

All spare equipment modules and consumables available at warehouses and/or any network facility related to
above list of equipments/nodes;

All end-user equipment used by staff (insourced or outsourced) moving from Demerged Company 1 to Resulting
Company 2 including handsets, dongles/MiFi devices and laptop & desktop computers (other than those provided
as services under the Office Services agreement).

The equipment (excluding CDMA-specific equipment) on operational and non-operational sites/circles, and
equipment de-installed from operational and non-operational sites and circles presently stored in the warehouses;

All telecom licenses as set out in Annexure B of this Schedule 1;

All rights to use spectrum as set out in Annexure B of this Schedule 1, including the frequency and microwave
spots (pertaining to liberalised and non-liberalised spectrum) Disclosed in Annexure TOE(7) and Annexure
10E(10) to the RCOM Execution Disclosure Letter, and the RCOM Completion Disclosure Letter, as applicable;

Available CENVAT credit on the Completion Date to Demerged Company 1 relating to Demerged Undertaking 2;

Working capital assets including but not limited to advances, deposits, receivables etc., set out in RCOM
Completion Date Accounts;

All assets (including network assets) set out in the fixed assets register and CWIP disclosed as part of the RCOM
Completion Date Accounts;

SSTL Assets pertaining to SSTL Business 2, limited only to spectrum as detailed in Annexure F of this Schedule
and also microwave supporting microwave frequencies as detailed in Annexure TOE(11) of the RCOM Execution
Disclsoure Letter allocated to or being transferred to Aircel and their associated NMS, software and licenses, but
excluding CDMA specific assets;

All test, monitoring, operations, management equipment, tools and systems associated with the networks being
transferred; and

Where not included in paragraphs (a) to (m) above, assets relating to Demerged Undertaking 2 accounted for
(but not necessarily expressly listed) in the Accounts, the RCOM Measurement Date Accounts or the RCOM
Completion Date Accounts, all assets being used in conduct of the Demerged Undertaking 2 and/or in possession
of any third parties under any contract or otherwise.

PART C | IDENTIFIED ASSETS 3

The following assets relating to Demerged Undertaking 3:

a.

Telecom equipment centralised or decentralised pertaining to 2nd, 3rd and 4th generation of wireless
telecommunications technology (excluding CDMA), Radio Access Network, microwave network equipment,
Mobile Switching Centre/Global System for Mobile Communication (Including Home Location Register, HSS &
Intelligent Network), Media Gateway, Base Station Controller, Signal transfer Point Radio Network Controllers,
NMS Servers, Packet Core nodes, Policy and Charging Rules Function, Short Message Service Centre, Short
Messaging Service agqreqator, Lawful Interception servers, CRBT, MCA, Unstructured Supplementary Service
Data, mobile switching centre, Consent gateway, DSTK, Mobile Internet Gateway, Internet qateway, other VAS
nodes, IP assets ( L2/L3 switches, firewall, routers), SBC, CCT assets etc and electronics of Media Convergence
Node other than Dense Wavelength Division Multiplexing & Synchronous Digital Hierarchy;

Media Gateway and Media Gateway Controller associated with National Long Distance voice;
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Equipments pertaining to MCN locations with complete passive infrastructure including DG sets, AMF panel,
Distribution panels, Transformers, PAC, AC, False floor, IBMS, SMPS, Battery Banks, UPS, UPS batteries and
electrical Cables etc (excluding land and building).

All spare equipment modules and consumables available at warehouses and/or any network facility related to
above list of equipments/nodes;

All end-user equipment used by staff (insourced or outsourced) moving from Demerged Company 2 to Resulting
Company 2 including handsets, dongles/MiFi devices and laptop & desktop computers (other than those provided
as services under the Office Services agreement).

The equipment (excluding CDMA-specific equipment) on operational and non-operational sites/circles, and
equipment de-installed from operational and non-operational sites and circles presently stored in the warehouses;

All telecom licenses as set out in Annexure C of this Schedule 1;

All rights to use spectrum as set out in Annexure C of this Schedule 1, including the frequency and microwave
spots (pertaining to liberalised and non-liberalised spectrum) Disclosed in Annexure TOE(7) and Annexure
10E(10) to the RCOM Execution Disclosure Letter, and the RCOM Completion Disclosure Letter, as applicable;

Available CENVAT credit on the Completion Date to Demerged Company 2 relating to Demerged Undertaking 3;
RTL Wireless Business IPR;

Working capital assets including but not limited to advances, deposits, receivables etc., set out in the RCOM
Completion Date Accounts;

All assets (including network assets) set out in the fixed assets register and CWIP, disclosed as part of the RCOM
Completion Date Accounts;

All test, monitoring, operations, management equipment, tools and systems associated with the networks being
transferred; and

Where not included in paragraphs (a) to (m) above, assets relating to Demerged Undertaking 3 accounted for
(but not necessarily expressly listed) in the Accounts, the RCOM Measurement Date Accounts or the RCOM
Completion Date Accounts, including all assets being used in conduct of the Demerged Undertaking 3 and/or in
possession of any third parties under any contract or otherwise.

PART D | IDENTIFIED ASSETS 3 CARVED OUT

The following assets relating to Demerged Carved Out Undertaking:

a.

Telecom equipment centralised or decentralised pertaining to 2nd, 3rd and 4th generation of wireless
telecommunications technology (excluding CDMA), Radio Access Network, microwave network equipment,
Mobile Switching Centre/Global System for Mobile Communication (Including Home Location Register, HSS &
Intelligent Network), Media Gateway, Base Station Controller, Signal transfer Point, Packet Core nodes, Policy and
Charging Rules Function, Short Message Service Centre, Short Messaqing Service agqreqator, Lawful Interception
servers, CRBT, MCA, Unstructured Supplementary Service Data, mobile switching centre, Consent gateway, DSTK,
Mobile Internet Gateway, Internet gateway, other VAS nodes, IP assets (L2/L3 switches, firewall, routers), SBC,
CCT assets etc and electronics of Media Convergence Node other than Dense Wavelength Division Multiplexing
& Synchronous Digital Hierarchy;

Media Gateway and Media Gateway Controller associated with National Long Distance voice;

Equipments pertaining to MCN locations with complete passive infrastructure including DG sets, AMF panel,
Distribution panels, Transformers, PAC, AC, False floor, IBMS, SMPS, Battery Banks, UPS, UPS batteries and
electrical Cables etc. (excluding land and building);
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All spare equipment modules and consumables available at warehouses and/or any network facility related to
above list of equipments/nodes;

All end-user equipment used by staff (insourced or outsourced) moving from RTL to Aircel including handsets,
dongles/MiFi devices and laptop & desktop computers (other than those provided as services under the Office
Services agreement).

The equipment (excluding CDMA-specific equipment) on operational and non-operational sites/circles, and
equipment de-installed from operational and non-operational sites and circles presently stored in the warehouses;

All telecom licenses as set out in Annexure D of this Schedule 1;

All rights to use spectrum as set out in Annexure D of this Schedule 1, including the frequency and microwave
spots (pertaining to liberalised and non-liberalised spectrum) Disclosed in Annexure TOE(7) and Annexure
10E(10) to the RCOM Execution Disclosure Letter, and the RCOM Completion Disclosure Letter, as applicable;

Available CENVAT credit on the Completion Date of Demerged Company 2 relating to Demerged Carved Out
Undertaking; and

Working capital assets including but not limited to advances, deposits, receivables etc., set out in the RCOM
Completion Date Accounts;

All assets (including network assets) set out in the fixed assets register and CWIP disclosed as part of the RCOM
Completion Date Accounts;

All test, monitoring, operations, management equipment, tools and systems associated with the networks being
transferred; and

Where not included in paragraphs (a) to (1) above, assets relating to the Demerged Carved Out Undertaking
accounted for (but not necessarily expressly listed) in the Accounts, the RCOM Measurement Date Accounts or
the RCOM Completion Date Accounts, including all assets being used in conduct of the Demerged Carved Out
Undertaking and/or in possession of any third parties under any contract or otherwise.

PART 2 | LIABILITIES
PART A | IDENTIFIED LIABILITIES 1

The following liabilities relating to Demerqged Undertaking 1:

a.

Deferred spectrum payment obligations (including interest accrued but not due) relating to the 2013, 2014
and 2015 spectrum auctions conducted by Department of Telecommunications, Ministry of Communications &
Information Technology, Government of India, to the extent they form part of RCOM Requlatory Liabilities;

Only such SSTL Liabilities pertaining specifically to only those SSTL Assets being transferred under SSTL Business
1 under this Schedule, and for the avoidance of doubt, excluding those relating to the shutdown and/or exit of
the SSTL CDMA business, including any site tenancy lease termination costs;

RCOM Regulatory Liabilities to the extent Disclosed or unknown at the Execution Date;
RCOM Indirect Tax Liabilities to the extent Disclosed or unknown at the Execution Date

RCOM Third Party Liabilities, to the extent Disclosed at the Execution Date, excluding those arising from sites
in the circles of Assam, North East, Bihar, West Bengal and Orissa no longer radiating due to loss of 900Mhz
spectrum and/or the shutdown and/or exit of those sites, including any site tenancy lease termination costs;

Liabilities arising from or relating to the Identified Litigations;

RCOM Assumed Debt;
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Working capital liabilities reflected in the RCOM Completion Date Accounts, as adjusted in accordance with the
Merqer Agreement;

Where not included in paragraphs (a) to (h) above, liabilities relating to Demerged Undertaking 1 accounted
for (but not necessarily expressly listed) in the Accounts, the RCOM Measurement Date Accounts or the RCOM
Completion Date Accounts, provided no such liability is either not an Excluded Liability or not specifically excluded
in this Schedule 1.

PART B | IDENTIFIED LIABILITIES 2

The following liabilities relating to Demerged Undertaking 2:

a.

Deferred spectrum payment obligations (including interest accrued but not due) relating to the 2013, 2014
and 2015 spectrum auctions conducted by Department of Telecommunications, Ministry of Communications &
Information Technology, Government of India, to the extent they form part of RCOM Requlatory Liabilities;

Only such SSTL Liabilities pertaining specifically to only those SSTL Assets being transferred under SSTL Business
2 under this Schedule, and for the avoidance of doubt, excluding those relating to the shutdown and/or exit of
the SSTL CDMA business, including any site tenancy lease termination costs;

RCOM Regulatory Liabilities to the extent Disclosed or unknown at the Execution Date;
RCOM Indirect Tax Liabilities, to the extent Disclosed or unknown at the Execution Date;

RCOM Third Party Liabilities, to the extent Disclosed at the Execution Date, excluding those arising from sites
in the circles of Assam, North East, Bihar, West Bengal and Orissa no longer radiating due to loss of 900Mhz
spectrum and/or the shutdown and/or exit of those sites, including any site tenancy lease termination costs;

Liabilities arising from or relating to the Identified Litigations;

Working capital liabilities reflected in the RCOM Completion Date Accounts, as adjusted in accordance with the
Merger Agreement;

Where not included in paragraphs (a) to (g) above, liabilities relating to Demerged Undertaking 2 accounted
for (but not necessarily expressly listed) in the Accounts, the RCOM Measurement Date Accounts or the RCOM
Completion Date Accounts, provided no such liability is either not an Excluded Liability or not specifically excluded
in this Schedule 1.

PART C | IDENTIFIED LIABILITIES 3

The following liabilities relating to Demerged Undertaking 3:

a.

Deferred spectrum payment obligations (including interest accrued but not due) relating to the 2013, 2014
and 2015 spectrum auctions conducted by Department of Telecommunications, Ministry of Communications &
Information Technology, Government of India, to the extent they form part of RCOM Requlatory Liabilities;

RCOM Regulatory Liabilities to the extent Disclosed or unknown at the Execution Date;
RCOM Indirect Tax Liabilities to the extent Disclosed or unknown at the Execution Date;

RCOM Third Party Liabilities to the extent Disclosed at the Execution Date, excluding those arising from sites
in the circles of Assam, North East, Bihar, West Bengal and Orissa no longer radiating due to loss of 900Mhz
spectrum and/or the shutdown and/or exit of those sites, including any site tenancy lease termination costs;

Liabilities arising from or relating to the Identified Litigations;
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Working capital liabilities reflected in the RCOM Completion Date Accounts, as adjusted in accordance with the
Merger Agreement; and

Where not included in paragraphs (a) to (f) above, liabilities relating to the Demerged Undertaking 3 accounted
for (but not necessarily expressly listed) in the Accounts, the RCOM Measurement Date Accounts or the RCOM
Completion Date Accounts provided no such liability is either not an Excluded Liability or not specifically excluded
in this Schedule 1.

PART D | IDENTIFIED LIABILITIES 3 CARVED OUT

The following liabilities relating to Demerged Carved Out Undertaking:

a.  Deferred spectrum payment obligations (including interest accrued but not due) relating to the 2013, 2014
and 2015 spectrum auctions conducted by Department of Telecommunications, Ministry of Communications &
Information Technology, Government of India, to the extent they form part of RCOM Requlatory Liabilities;

b.  RCOM Regqulatory Liabilities to the extent Disclosed or unknown at the Execution Date;

c.  RCOM Indirect Tax Liabilities to the extent Disclosed or unknown at the Execution Date;

d. RCOM Third Party Liabilities to the extent Disclosed at the Execution Date, excluding those arising from sites
in the circles of Assam, North East, Bihar, West Bengal and Orissa no longer radiating due to loss of 900Mhz
spectrum and/or the shutdown and/or exit of those sites, including any site tenancy lease termination costs;

e.  Working capital liabilities reflected in the RCOM Completion Date Accounts, as adjusted in accordance with the
Merger Agreement;

f. Liabilities arising from or relating to the Identified Litigations;

9. Where not included in paragraphs (a) to (f) above, liabilities relating to the Demerged Carved Out Undertaking
accounted for (but not necessarily specifically listed) in the Accounts, the RCOM Measurement Date Accounts
or the RCOM Completion Date Accounts provided no such liability is either not an Excluded Liability or not
specifically excluded in this Schedule 1.

ANNEXURE A | DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 1 LICENSES
Reliance Communications Limited
The validity of the Licenses is 20 years.

UASL License Agreements(Access)
Sr. Service Area License No. Date of Effective Date of Valid Upto
No. Agreement Agreement
1. ANDHRA PRADESH 10-02/2004-BS-1I/RIL/A.P. 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
2. DELHI 10-21/2004-BS-II/RIL/DELHI 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
3. GUJARAT 10-05/2004-BS-11/RIL/GUJARAT 14-Nov-03 30-Sep-97 29-Sep-17
4, KARNATAKA 10-09/2004-BS-11/RIL/KARNATAKA 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
5. MAHARASHTRA 10-12/2004-BS-11/RIL/MAHARASHTRA 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
6. MUMBAL 10-23/2004-BS-1I/RIL/MUMBAI 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
7. RAJASTHAN 10-16/2004-BS-1I/RIL/RAJASTHAN 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
8. TAMILNADU (Incl.Chennai) | 10-17/2004-BS-II/RIL/ TAMILNADU 14-Nov-03 26-Sep-01 25-Sep-21
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DETAILS OF SPECTRUM RELATING TO DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 1

Sr. | Circle 800 MHz - Liberalized | 800 MHz - Auction 1800 MHz - Admin 1800 MHz - Auction | 2100 MHz - Auction
No. Spectrum Expiry | Spectrum | Expiry | Spectrum Expiry Spectrum Expiry | Spectrum Expiry
MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date
1 Delhi 1.25 19-Jul- 4.4 19-Jul-21 5 31-
(875.550) 21 (1843.1- (2164- Aug-30
1847.5) 2169)
2 Mumbai 5 19-Jul- 4.4 19-Jul-21 0.6 07- 5 31-
(883.53, 21 (1843.3- (1828.1- | Sep-34 (2149- Aug-30
884.76, 1847.7) 1828.7) 2154)
885.99,
887.22)
3 Andhra 1.25 19-Jul- 4.4 19-Jul-21
Pradesh (881.07) 21 (1846.3-
1850.7)
4 Gujarat 2.5 27- 4.4 29-Sep-
(882.60, | May- | (1839.3- 17
883.830) 35 1843.7)
5 Karnataka 1.25 19-Jul- 4.4 19-Jul-21 0.6 26-
(881.07) 21 (1838.5- (1830.1- | May-35
1842.9) 1830.7)
6 Maharashtra 1.25 19-Jul- 4.4 19-Jul-21
(881.37) 21 (1838.1-
1842.5)
7 Tamil Nadu 1.25 25-Sep- 4.4 25-Sep-
(881.07) 21 (1805.2- 21
1809.4)
8 Rajasthan 1.25 19-Jul- 4.4 19-Jul-21 5 31-
(885.99) 21 (1855.5- (2149- Aug-30
1859.9) 2154)
12.5 2.5 35.2 1.2 15
ANNEXURE B | DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 2 LICENSES
Reliance Communications Limited
The validity of the Licenses is 20 years.
UASL License Agreements(Access)
Sr. Service Area License No. Date of Effective Date of Valid Upto
No. Agreement Agreement
1. BIHAR 10-04/2004-BS-1I/RIL/BIHAR 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
2. HARYANA 10-06/2004-BS-II/RIL/HARYANA 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
3. HIMACHAL PRADESH 10-07/2004-BS-1I/RIL/H.P. 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
4. JAMMU KASHMIR 20-208/2004-RELIANCE/BSIII 21-Sep-04 6-Sep-04 5-Sep-24
5. KERALA 10-10/2004-BS-1I/RIL/KERALA 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
6. KOLKATA 10-22/2004-BS-1I/RIL/KOLKATA 21-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
7. MADHYA PRADESH 10-11/2004-BS-1I/RIL/MADHYAPRADESH 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
8. ORISSA 10-14/2004-BS-1I/RIL/ORISSA 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
9. PUNJAB 10-15/2004-BS-1I/RIL/PUNJAB 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
10. | UTTAR PRADESH(EAST) 10-19/2004-BS-1I/RIL/UP(E) 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
11. | UTTAR PRADESH(WEST) 10-18/2004-BS-II/RIL/UP(W) 14-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
12. | WEST BENGAL 10-01/2004-BS-1I/RIL/WESTBENGAL 21-Nov-03 20-Jul-01 19-Jul-21
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DETAILS OF SPECTRUM RELATING TO DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 2

Sr. | Circle 800 MHz - 800 MHz - Auction 1800 MHz - 1800 MHz - 2100 MHz -
No. Liberalized Admin Auction Auction
Spectrum | Expiry | Spectrum | Expiry | Spectrum | Expiry | Spectrum | Expiry | Spectrum | Expiry | Spectrum | Expiry
MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date
1 Kolkata 1.25 20-
(882.9) Dec-
35
2 Haryana 3.75 19-Jul- 1.25 27- 4.4 19- 0.6 26-
(874.32, 21 (873.09) | May- (1839.7- | Jul-21 | (1828.7- | May-
875.55, 35 1844.1) 1829.3) 35
876.78)
3 Kerala 1.25 19-Jul- 4.4 19-
(881.07) 21 (1853.7- | Jul-21
1858.1)
4 Madhya 5 19-Jul-
Pradesh (881.07 21
882.3
883.53
884.76
5 Punjab 1.25 20- 1.25 27- 4.4 19- 0.6 26- 5 31-
(878.61) | Dec- | (879.84) | May- | (1840.5- | Jul-21 | (1822.5- | May- (2154- Aug-
35 35 1844.9) 1823.1) 35 2159) 30
6 Uttar 3.75 19-Jul- 4.4 19-
Pradesh (875.55, 21 (1844.9- | Jul-21
(East) 876.78, 1849.3)
878.01)
7 Uttar 1.25 27- 4.4 19-
Pradesh (880.47) | May- (1852.1- | Jul-21
(West) 35 1856.5)
8 West 1.25 27-
Bengal (887.22) | May-
35
9 Bihar 5 19-Jul-
(878.61, 21
879.84,
881.07,
882.3)
10 | Himachal 2.5 19-Jul- 2.5 27-
Pradesh | (881.07, 21 (878.61, | May-
882.3) 879.84) 35
11 |Jammu & 2.5 5-Sep- 2.5 27- 4.4 05- 5 31-
Kashmir (886.59, 24 (884.13, | May- (1817.3- | Sep- (2159- Aug-
887.82) 885.36) 35 1821.1), 24 2164) 30
(1825.5-
1826.1)
12 | Odisha 3.75 19-Jul- 1.25 27-
(879.84, 21 (878.61) | May-
881.07, 35
882.3)
27.5 12.5 1.25 26.4 1.2 10
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ANNEXURE C | DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 3 LICENSES

DEMERGED COMPANY 2

THE VALIDITY OF THE LICENSES IS 20 YEARS.

Sr. Service Area UL License No. Effective Date of Agreement Valid Upto
No.
1 ASSAM 11.12.2035
2 BIHAR 11.12.2035
3 HIMACHAL PRADESH 11.12.2035
20-473/2015 AS-1/
4 MADHYA PRADESH 12.12.2015 11.12.2035
dated17.08.2015
5 NORTH EAST 11.12.2035
6 ORISSA 11.12.2035
7 WEST BENGAL 11.12.2035
UASL after Migration (Access)
Date of Migration Agreement Valid Upto
8 KOLKATA 18-2/2009/AS-111/RTL/Kolkata 16-Apr-09 26.09.2021
DETAILS OF SPECTRUM RELATING TO DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 3
Sr. | Circle 800 800 MHz - Auction 900 MHz - 1800 MHz - 1800 MHz - 2100 MHz -
No. MHz - Auction Admin Auction Auction
Liberalized
Spectrum | Spectrum | Expiry | Spectrum | Expiry | Spectrum | Expiry | Spectrum | Expiry | Spectrum | Expiry | Spectrum | Expiry
MHz MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date
1 | Kolkata 6.2 19- 5 31-
(1844.9- | Jul- (2164- | Aug-
1851.1) | 21 2169) 30
2 | Madhya 5 11- 5 31-
Pradesh (935.1- | Dec- (2154- | Aug-
940.1) 35 2159) 30
3 | West 5 31-
Bengal (2154- | Aug-
2159) 30
4 | Assam 2.5 11- 2.5 27- 5 31-
(885.99,| Dec- |(883.53, | May- (2149- | Aug-
887.22) | 35 | 884.76) | 35 2154) 30
5 |Bihar 5 31-
(2159- | Aug-
2164) 30
6 | Himachal 5 11- 5 31-
Pradesh (935.1- | Dec- (2164- | Aug-
940.1) 35 2169) 30
7 | North 2.5 11- 2.5 27- 5 11- 5 31-
East (881.07,| Dec- |(878.61,| May- (1831.1- | Dec- | (2164~ | Aug-
882.3) 35 | 879.84) | 35 1836.1) 35 2169) 30
8 | Odisha 5 11- 5 31-
(1831.3- | Dec- | (2164- | Aug-
1836.3) 35 2169) 30
0 5 5 10 6.2 10 40

91




ANNEXURE D | DEMERGED CARVED OUT UNDERTAKING LICENSES

DEMERGED COMPANY 2
The validity of the Licenses is 20 years.

Sr. Service Area UL License No. Effective Date of Valid Upto
No. Agreement

1 BIHAR 11.12.2035

2 HIMACHAL PRADESH 11.12.2035

3 MADHYA PRADESH 20-473/2015 AS-1/ dated17.08.2015 12.12.2015 11.12.2035

4 ORISSA 11.12.2035

5 WEST BENGAL 11.12.2035

DETAILS OF SPECTRUM RELATING TO DEMERGED CARVED OUT UNDERTAKING
Sr. Circle 800 800 MHz - Auction 900 MHz - 1800 MHz - 1800 MHz - Auc- 2100 MHz -
No. MHz - Auction Admin tion Auction
Liber-
alized
Spec- | Spec- | Expiry | Spec- | Expiry | Spec- Expiry | Spec- | Expiry | Spectrum | Expiry | Spec- Expiry
trum trum trum trum trum trum
MHz MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date
1 Bihar 5 31-
A -
(@159- | "33
2164)

2 Him- 5 11- 5 31-
achal Dec- Aug-
Pradesh (935.1- 35 (2164- 30

940.1) 2169)
3 Madhya 5 11- 5 31-
Pradesh Dec- Aug-
(9351-| '35 (2154- | 39
940.1) 2159)
4 Odisha 5 11- 5 31-
Dec- Aug-
(1831.3- 35 (2164- 30
1836.3) 2169)
5 West 5 31-
Bengal Aug-
¢ (2154~ ;g
2159)
0 0 10 0 5 25
ANNEXURE E | SSTL BUSINESS 1 LICENSES
Sistema Shyam Teleservices Limited
The validity of the Licenses is 20 years.
UASL License Agreements(Access)

Sr. Service Area License No. Date of Agreement Effective Date of Valid Upto

No. Agreement

1. DELHI 20-384/2013 AS-I Vol-1I 03.10.2013 03.10.2013 02-0ct-33

2. GUJARAT 20-384/2013 AS-I Vol-1I 03.10.2013 03.10.2013 2-0ct-33

3. KARNATAKA 20-384/2013 AS-1 Vol-1I 03.10.2013 03.10.2013 2-0ct-33

4, RAJASTHAN 10-16/2004-BS-11/STL/Rajasthan 14.11.2003 04.03.1998 03-Mar-18

5. TAMILNADU (Incl.Chennai) 20-384/2013 AS-1Vol-1II 03.10.2013 03.10.2013 2-0ct-33
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DETAILS OF SPECTRUM RELATING TO SSTL BUSINESS 1

Sr. Circle 800 MHz - 800 MHz - Auction 1800 MHz - Admin 1800 MHz - Auction | 2100 MHz - Auction
No. Liberalized
Spectrum Expiry Spectrum Expiry Spectrum Expiry | Spectrum Expiry Spectrum Expiry
MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date
1 Delhi 3.75 2-Oct-
(874.02, 33
886.59,
887.82)
2 Gujarat 3.75 2-Oct-
(872.79, 33
874.02,
881.07)
3 Karnataka 3.75 2-Oct-
(874.02, 33
886.59,
887.82)
4 Tamil Nadu 3.75 2-Oct-
(874.02, 33
886.59,
887.82)
5 Rajasthan 2.5 03-Mar- 4.4 03-Mar-
(872.79, 18 (1832.5- 18
874.02) 1836.9)
2.5 18.75 4.4
ANNEXURE F | SSTL BUSINESS 2 LICENSES
Sistema Shyam Teleservices Limited
The validity of the Licenses is 20 years.
UASL License Agreements(Access)
Sr. | Service Area License No. Date of Effective Date of Valid Upto
No. Agreement Agreement
1. KERALA 20-384/2013 AS-I Vol-1I 03.10.2013 03.10.2013 2-0ct-33
2. KOLKATA 20-384/2013 AS-I Vol-1I 03.10.2013 03.10.2013 2-0Oct-33
3. UTTAR PRADESH(WEST) 20-384/2013 AS-I Vol-1I 03.10.2013 03.10.2013 2-0ct-33
4. West Bengal 20-384/2013 AS-IVol-1I 03.10.2013 03.10.2013 2-0ct-33
DETAILS OF SPECTRUM RELATING TO SSTL BUSINESS 2
Sr. Circle | 800 MHz - Liberalized | 800 MHz - Auction 1800 MHz - Admin 1800 MHz - Auction 2100 MHz - Auction
No. Spectrum Expiry Spectrum Expiry Spectrum Expiry Spectrum Expiry Spectrum Expiry
MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date MHz Date
1 Kolkata 3.75 2-Oct-33
(877.08,
880.17,
881.4)
2 Kerala 3.75 2-0ct-33
(874.02,
886.59,
887.82)
3 Uttar 3.75 2-0ct-33
Pradesh| (874.02,
(West) 886.59,
887.82)
4 We st 3.75 2-0ct-33
Bengal (876.78.
880.77,
882.0)
11.25 3.75
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14th Floor, The Ruby
SR.Barusor & Co. LLP 29 Senapati Bapat harg
Chartered Accountants mma(lyggso‘)oze, Indla

Tel : +91 22 6192 0000
fax : +91 22 6192 1000

Dated: 14 September 2016

To

The Aucit Committee ' The Audit Committee
Reliance Commntunications Limited Aircel Limited o

H Block, Ist Floor, Aircel, 5th Floot, Building 10A,
Dhirubhai Ambani Kndwledge City, DLF Cyber City, DLF Phase 2
Navi Mumbai — 4007 10, Mahavashtra, Gurgaon-122002, Haryana
Todia. India,

Sub: Recommendation of the share entitfement for the proposed demerger of the
Speeified Telecom O|)e1 ations of Reliance Communications Limited in to Aircel
Limited

Dear Sir / Madam,

We rofer to the engagement letters wherein Aircel Limited (hereinafter after referred to as
“Aircel”) and Reliance Communications Limited (hereinafier after referred to as “RCOM™)
have requested S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP (hereinafter referred to ag “SRBC”, ‘we’, or ‘us’) to

AMMMWMMMPWMM
Operations of RCOM in to Aircel.

RCOM and Aircel are togsther hereinafter referred to as the ‘Companies’.
SCOPT. AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

RCOM is a listed company headquatieted in Mumbai, Indiz, RCOM provides
telecommunication services to individuals, enterprise, and carrier customers in India and
internationally, The company offers voice and data wireless services, witeline broadband
services, tower infrastructure services and ethernet services ete. For the yeat ended 31 March
2016, the company reported audited consolidated income from operations and profit after tax
of ¥21,711 orores and Y681 ctores respectively.

Alreel provides GSM mobile services in India. 1t offers voice and data services ranging from
post-paid and prepaid plans and 2G and 3G services. Aircel wag incorporated in 1994 and is
based in Gurgaon, India. For the year ended 31 December 2015, Aircsl reported audited
consolidated revenue from operations and loss of T11,396 crores and 2,215 crores
respectively.

Page 1 of 10
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S.R. Batrisoi& Co. LLP ’

Ghartered Accountants

Recommendation of share entitlement for the proposed demerger of the Specified Telecom
Operations of RCOM into Aircel

We understand that the Management of the Compaties are contemplating a demerger of the
witeless operations and International/National Long distance operations of RCOM / Reliance
Telecom Limited (“RTL”, a 100% subsidiary of the RCOM) and the recent operations / assets
to be acquired from Sistema ShyamTeleServices Limited (“SSTL”), hercinafter collectively
tefored to as the “Specified Telecom Operations of RCOM”. The Specified Telecom
Operations of RCOM would be then transferred in to the operations of Aircel / Dishnet
Wireless Limited (“DWL”, a 100% subsidiary of Alircel) (“Transaction”) through a
Composite Scheme of Arrangement. As consideration for the saue, Alrcel would issue equity
shates to RCOM. I this connection, the Companies have appointed SRBC to recommend a
share entitlement for tlie proposed demerger, o

We understand that the appointed date for the Transaction will be the offective, date.

For the aforesald purpose, the Companies have appointed SRBC to prepare a report to be
placed befors the Board of DirectorstAudit Committee of the Companies on the share
entitlement for the proposed demetger of the Specified Telecom Operations of RCOM in to
Alrcel, .

We have been provided with special purpose audited financials of Aircel for the 12 months
ended 31 December 2015 and unaudited financial information for the Specified Telecom
Cperations of RCOM for nine menths ended 31 December 2015, The Management hag
informed us that they do not expect significant changes in the business il the effective date.
Further, we have been informed that the existing promoter loans and redeemable preference
shares in Aircel would get converted into equity shares {out of which, some of them would
get subsequently cancelled by way of capital reduction) such that the debt of Aircel would

spdiane 40 F1 4 OQN

1. fL. 1 —}
teaucsto b0 croresasonrtheeffective date:

We understand from the Management of RCOM that demerger of (a) certain circles of RTI,
into RCOM and (b) SSTL undertaking into RCOM, will get completed before the effective
date, We have considered the same in our analysis and made adjustments. for further facts
made known (past or future) to us till the date of our report,

We understand from the Management that except for the shareholder loans/RPS conversion
and capital reductions, there would not be any cupital variation in Aircel till the effective date,
other than those necessary to fund interim capex/opex requirements, These will be done 'at
par value' and will not impact the effective shareholding of RCOM in the combined sntity.
We have relied on the same for our analysis,

We have relied o the above for the purposes of our analysis.
This report is our deliverable for the aforesaid purpese,
This report is subject to the scope, assumptions, exclusions, limitations and disclaimers

defailed hereinafter. As suely, the report is to be read in totality, and net in parts, in
conjunction with the relevant documents referred to thetein.

Page2of 10
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SR Bartsor & Co. LLP ’

Chartored Accountants

Recommendation of share entitlement for the proposed demerger of the Specified Telecom

Operations of RCOM inte Aircel

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

Tn connection with this exercise, we have used the following information received from the
Management/their representatives and / or gathered from public domain:

o With respect to Aircel

Q

00 0 OO0

o Wit
o

[+]
o3
Q

O
o]

Consolidated Annual reports of Aircel for year ended 31 March 2015 and special
purpose andited consofidated financials for year ended 31 December 2015

Unaudited quartetrly financial statements ended 31 March 2015 to 31 December 2015
Historical circle-wise key operational parameters including revenue and subscriber
Current Shareholding Pattern of Aircel

Details of deferred spectrnm Hability

Details of circle-wise Spectrum holdings

I respect to RCOM -

Annual report of RCOM for year onded 31 March 2015 and other publicly available
finaneial information

Unaudited financial statements of the Specified Telecom Operations -of RCOM for
nine months ended 31 December 2015

Historical circle-wise key operational parameters including revenue and subscriber
split into GSM and CDMA.

Details of deferred spectrum liability

Details of circle-wise Spectrum holdings

Circle wise revenue details for the thiee Demerged Undertakings of RCOM/RTL

o Draft Composite Scheme of Amalgamation

During

the discussions with the Management, we have also obtained explanations and

information considered reasonably necessary for our exetcise. The Companies have been
provided with the opportunity to review the draft report (excluding share entitlement) as part
of our standard practice to ensure that factual inaceuracies / omissions are avoided in our final

report,
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SR, BATL!BOI&CO; LLP ’

Ghartored Accountants

Recommendation of shave entitlement for the proposed demerger of the Specified Telecom
Operations of RCOM into Aircel

SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND
DISCLAIMERS

Provision of valuation gpinions and consideration of the issues described herein are areas of
our regular practice, The services do not represent accounting, assurance, accounting / tax due
diligence, consulting or tax related services that may otherwise be provided by us or our
affiliates, . .

This report, its contents and the results herein are specific to (i) the purpose of valuation

agreed ns per the terms of our engagement; (1i) the date of this report and (iii) are based on the

audited balance sheet as at 31 December 2015 of Aircol and the unaudited balance sheet as at

31 December 20135 of the Specified Telscom Operations of RCOM. A valuation of this nature

Lo is necessarily based on the prevailing stock market, financial, ecenomic and other conditions
tn general and industry trends in particular as in effect on, and the mformation made available
to us as of, the date hereof. Events occurring after the date hereof may affeot this report and
the asspmptions used in preparing it, and we do not assume any obligation to update, revise or
reaffirm this report.

The recommendation(s) rendered in this report only represent our recommendation(s) based

_upon information till date, furnished by the Management (or its representatives) and other
sources and the said recommendation(s) shall be considered to be in the nature of non-binding
advice, (our recommendation will however not be used for advising anybody to take buy or
sell decision, for which specific opinion needs to be taken from expert advisors). We have no
obligation to update this report.

hrﬁ <l ] b!ﬂ iliiﬁ'[lﬂ{[tl‘oll;
including market, technical, financial and operating data. In accordance with the terms of our
engagements and as is customary in valuations, we have assumed and relied upon, without
independlent verification, the accuracy of. information made available to vs by the Companies.
We have not audited, reviewed or otherwise Investigated the financial information provided to
us. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion or offer-any form of assurange regarding the
truth and fairness of the financial position as indicated in the financial statements. Also, with
tespect to explanations and information sought fiom the Companies, we have been given to
understand by the Companies that they have not omitted any relevant and material factors and
that they have checked the relevance or materiality of any specific information to the present
exercise with us in case of any doubt. Our conclusions are based on the assumptions and
information given by/on behalf of the Companies. The Management has indicated to us that
they have understood that any omissions, inaceuracies or misstatements may materially affect
our valuation analysisfresults. Accordingly, we assume no responsibility for any errors in the
information furnished by the Companies and their impact on the report. Also, we assume no
responsibility for technical information fuenished by the Companies. However nothing has
come to our aftention to indicate that the information provided was materially mis-stated/
incorrect or would not afford reasonable grounds upon which to base the report. We do not
imply and it should not be construed that we have verified any of the information provided to
us, or that our ingquiries conld have verified any matter, which a more extensive examination
might disclose, : '

—
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S.R. BarLisor & Co. LLP )

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of shate entitlement for the proposed demerger of the Speoified. Telecom
Operations of RCOM into Adrcel

The Report agsumes that the Companies comply fully with relevant laws and regulations
applicable in all its aress of operations unless otherwise stated, and that the Companies will be
managed [n a competent and responsible manner, Further, except as specifically stated to the
confrary, this valuation report has given no consideration to matters of a legal nature,
including jssues of legal title and compliance with local laws, and litigation ‘and other
contingent liabilities that are not recorded in the financial statements of the Companies.

This report does not look Into the business/ comumercial reasons behind the Transaction nor
the likely benefits arising out of the same. Sitnilarly, it does not address the relative merits of
the Transaction as compared with any other alternative business transaction, or other
alternatives, or whether or not such alternatives could be achieved or are available, We
express no opinion. or recommendation as to how the shareholders of the Companies should
Lo vote at any shareholders’' meeting(s) to be held in connection with the Transaction.

No consideration has been given to liens or encumbrances against the assets, beyond the loans
disclosed in the accounts, Therefors, no respousibility is assumed for matters of a legal
nature.

The fee for the engagement is nof contingent upon the results reported.
We owe responsibility to only RCOM and Aircel and nobody else. We will not be liable for
any losses, claiims, damages or liabilities arising out of the actions taken, omissions of or

advice given by any other to the Companies.

We do not gecept any liability to any third party in 1el'1t10n to the issue of this Report, 1t is
—————tinderstood-that thisanatysis-does et representa-faitness-opinion:

This valuation repott is subject to the laws of India.

Neither the valuation report nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any tegistration

( statement, prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement ot other
agreement or document given to third parties, other than in connection with the proposed
Scheme of Arvangement, without our prior written consent,
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S.R. BarLigoi & Co. LLP ’

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of share entitlement for the proposed demerger of the Specified Telecom
Operations of RCOM into Aircel

SHART CAPITAL

Reliance Communications Limited

The issued, subsoribed and paid up equity share capital of RCOM as at 30 June 2016 is
¥1,244 croves consisting of 2,48,89,79,745 equity shares of T 5 each fully paid up. The
shareholding pattern is as follows:

Partieulars ' Nuniber of % shareholding

) ~ shares
(A) Promoter & Promoter Group 1,46,46,96,844 59%
(B) Public 99,45,88,264 40% |
{C) Non Promater-Non Public 2,96,94,637 1%
-Grand Total (A+ B + C) 2,48,89,79,745 100%

Sowurce: BSE filing (As at 30 June 2016)

Aircel Limited

The cutrent issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of Aircel is T 243 crores,
consisting of 24,32,43,243 equity shares of face value of ¥ 10 each fully paid up. The
shareholding pattern is as follows:

Particulars Number of % sharehelding
“shares ‘
(Al Global Communication Services Holdings Lid. 15,81,08,108 ' 65%
(B} Deccan Digital Networks Pvt Ltd 8,51,35,135 _35%
Grand Total [AB) 24,32,43,243 100%

Sonrce: Management
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S.R. BatLigor & Co. LLP )

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of share entitlement for the proposed demerger of the Specified Telecom
Operations of RCOM into Alircel

APPROACH - BASIS OF THE DEMERGER

We understand from the Management that the proposed Scheme of Arrangement
contemplates the demerger of the Specified Telecom Operations of RCOM in to Alrcel
pursuant to the Scheme under sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956, Arrlving at the
fair share entitlement for the proposed demerger of the Specified Telecom Opsrations. of
RCOM in to Alreel would require determining the fair value of Aircel in terms of the fair
value of the Speeified Telecom Operations of RCOM. These values are to be determined
indepeniclently without considering the current demerger Transaction or possible upside on
account of synergies, and hence do not include any possible strategic premium. ’

Thete are several commonky used and accepted methods for determining the fair value of the
Aircel / Specified Telecom Operations of RCOM, which have been considered in the present
case, to the extent relevant and applicable, including; '

1. Market Price method

2. Comparable Companies Quoted Multiples method
3, Discounted Cash Flows method

4, Net Asset Value meihod

It should be understoad that the valuation of any business / company or its assets is inherently
subjective and is subject fo cortain uncertainties and contingencies, all of which are difficult
to predict and are beyond ous control, In addition, this valvation will fluctuate with changes in
provaifing market conditions, the conditions and prospects, financial and otherwise, of the
companies, and other factors which generally influence the valuation of business / companies

and their assets.

The application of any particular method of valuation depends on the purpose for which the
valuation is done. Although different values may exist for different purposss, it cannot bo too
strangly ermphasized that a valuer can only arrive at one value for one purpose, Our choice of
methodology of valvation has been arrived at using usual and conventional methodologies
adopted for transactions of a similar nature and our reasonable judgment, in an independent
and bona fide manner, based on our previous experience of assignments of a similar nature.

Market Price (MP) Method

The market price of an equity share as quoted on a stock exchange is normally considered as
the velue of the equity shares of that company whete such quotations are arising from the
shares being regularly and freely traded in, subject to the element of speculative support that
may be inbuilt in the value of the shares. But there could be situations where the value of the
share as quoted on the stock market would not be regarded as a proper index of the fair value
of the share espeeially where the market values are fluctuating in & volatile capital market.
Further, in the case of a merger/detmerget, where thers is a question of evaluating the shares
of one company against those of another, the volume of transactions and the number of shares
available for trading on the stock exchange over a reasonable period ould have to be of a
comparable standard. :

Page 7 of 10
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S.R. BarLizot & Co. MP ’

Chertered Accountants

Reconnnendation of share entitlement for the proposed demerger of the Spesified Telecom
Operations of RCOM into Alrcel

Even though RCOM is a listed company, ouly the Specified Telecom Operations of RCOM
are part of the Transaction and Aircel is not listed on any stock exchange. Hence, we have not
considered market price method for the present exsroise.

Comparable Companies® Quoted Multiple (CCM) method

Under this method, value of the company is arrived at by using multiples derived from
valuations of comparable companies, as manifest through stock market valuations of listed
companies, This valuation is based on the principle that market valuations, taking place
between informed buyers and informed sellers, incorporate all factors relevant to valuation,
Relevant multiples need to be chosen carefully and adjusted for differences between the
circamstances,

We have considered the Enterprise Value (EV)/SaIes of listed comparable compames for the
purpose of our valuation analysis,

Discounted Cash Flows (DCF) Method

-Under the DCF method, the projected free cash flows to the fitm are discounted at the
weighted average cost of capital, The sum of the discounted value of such free cash flows is
the value of the firm.

Usitig the DCF analysis involves determining the following:

Estimating future free cash flovs:

Free cash flows are the cash flows expected to be generated by the company that are available

————toattproviders of the company®s capitat="both-debt-and-equity:

Appropriate discount rate o be applied 1o cash flows i.e. the cost of capital:

This discount rate, which is applied to the free cash flows, should reflect the opportunity cost

to all the capital providers (namely shaceholders and creditors), weighted by their relative

‘ contributions to the total capital of the company. The opportunity cost to the capital provider

. equals the rate of retutn the capital provider expects to eam on othet investments of
equivalent risk,

The Management has not provided us the business plans, Given the aforesaid, we have not
undertaken a Discounted Cash Flosws (DCF) analysis.

Net Asset Value (NAV) Mothodology

The asset based valuation technique is based on the value of the underlying net assets of the
business, either on a book valuse basis or realizable value basis or replacement cost basis.

We have considered it approptiate to use NAV on a replacement cost basis in our analysis
considering that telecom spectrum is a significant intangible asset for fhese businesses for
which auction price benchmarks are available. Apart from spectrum and other select
intangib} balance, assets have been primarily considered at book values.
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S.R. BarLisoi & Co. MP ’

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of share entitlement for the proposed demerger of the Specified Telecom
Operations of RCOM iato Aireel

While applying this method, we have effectively done a Sum-of-the- Parts (SOTP) analysis
circle by eircle, where certain circles with potential intrinsic value/possible differential
strategic options are valued based on NAV method (while others continue to be vatued based
ott CCM method).

BASIS OF THE DEMERGER

The basis of valuation would have to be determined after taking into consideration all the
factors anc methodologies mentioned hereinabove.

Alrcet and the Specified Telecom Operations of RCOM were valued using SOTP (circle wise
NAV/CCM) and CCM methods, We have considered appropriate to assign higher weight to
SOTP method and Jower weight to CCM methad,

In the ultimate analysis, valuation will have to be tempered by the exercise of judicious
diseretion by the Valuers and judgment taking into accounts all the relevant factors. Tliete
will always be several factors, e.g, quality and integrity of the Management, present and
prospective competition, yield on comparable securities and market sentiment, ete. which are
not evident from the face of the balance shests but which will strongly influence the worth of
a share. This concept is also recognised in judicial decisions.

In light of the above, and o a consideration of all the relevant factors and cirouipstances as

discussed and outlmed hereinabove, we recomimend that the fair entitlement for the Proposed
mmlmfﬁeewknﬁoﬁrrcefﬁmﬁt%bmdﬁhﬁt———u——

additional equity shares of 97% to 105% (rounded off) of pre-demerger share capital of Alrcel

{post conversion of planned shareholder loans/preference shares into equity and reduction of

capital) gets issued-to RCOML. The planned conversion of shareholder loans / preference

shates in fo equity is a condifion precedetit to our Report.
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SR Baroi & Co. LLP ’

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of share entitlement for the proposed demerger of the Specified Telecom
Operations of RCOM into Aircel

It should be noted that we have not examined any other matter including economic rationale
Tor the Transaction per se or accounting, legal or tax matters involved in the Transaction,

Respectfully submitted,

SR, Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration Number: 301003 5/E300005

Rt

Per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership No: 49365
Place: Mumbai

Date: 14 September 2016

i~
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R 14th Floor, The Rusby
<« SR Barusor & Co. LLP : - B3 St Gt arg
Chartered Accountants aﬂﬁ;a([?g)s;i)za, Indiz

Tel $+91 22 6192 Q000
Fax t+91 22 6192 1000

1Dated: 14 September 2016
TO;

The Board of Direciors

Aircel Limited

Alrgel, 5th Floor, Building 104,
DLF Cyher City, DLF Phase 2 -
Gurgaon- 122002, Haryana (India).

_Sub: Recomwmendation of the fair equity excliauge ratio/share entitlernent for the
proposed_merger of Deccan Digital Nefworks Private Limifed and Sowth Asia
Conynmugications Private Limited in fo Aj reel Eimited

Dear Sir / Madam,

We refer to the engagement letter wherain Aireel Limited (hereinafier afier refarred to gs
Alrcel”) has tequesied $.R. Batlibei & Co. LLP (hereinafter referred to as ‘SRBC*, *we', or
‘us’) to recommiend a fair equity exchange ratio/share entitlement for ths proposed merger of
Deccan Digital Netwotks Private Limited (“Decoan”) and South Asia Commumications
Private Limited (*SAC™) in fo Afrcel,

Decean, SAC avd Alvos] ars together hereinafter refertad to as the ‘Companies’,

SCOPE AND PURPOSE O THIS REPORT

Alrgel provides GSM mobile services in Tndia. Tt offers voice and data services ranging from
post-pald and prepaid plans sod 2G 'and 3G services. The company was ncorporgted in 1994
and is based i1 Gurgaon, India. For the year ended 31 December 20135, the company reported
audited consolidated revenues and loss of T1 1,396 crores md 2,215 crores ras pectively.

Deeean is a private company holding 35% stake In Adrcel in form of eguity shares, Sindya
Seeurities & Tnvestments Private Limited (“SSIPL™) owns 74.3% stake in Decean, with the
balanes 25.7% owned by Global Communication Services Holdings ("GCSH, Mauritius),
GCSH is an indirect 100% subsidiary of Maxis Communication Berhard of Malaysia, and
owns balance 65% atake in Arcsl. :

SAC is o 100% subsidiary of GCSH and holds investment in Deccan in the fopm of
cumulative non-convertible Redeemable Proference Shares {"RPS”) of 1,645 erores of T10
each. These preference shures are redeemable in 2026 at a premium: of 22% over face value
and have a coupon rate of 0,01% p.a. : :

Decean and 8AC ate holding companies without any operations. Further, effectively SAC”s
only Investment is in Decean and Deccan’s only investment is in Adveol. :

We understand that the Management of the Companies are conterplating amalgamation of
the Decean and SAC into Aircel (*Proposed Metger™) through a Scheme of Arrangement

SR Balifht] 4 Uo, LLP, & Limiled Liakitity Pertnershia with LLE Icznifly No, AAB-4294
Regu. Office 1 22, Caipac Stieet, Biock *C', 3nd Fltor, Koleate-?00 016

104



SR BATLIBOI & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of the fair equity exchange ratio/share ent]tlemen‘t for the proposed merger
of Deccan and SAC in to Alicel

undet the provisions of Section 391-394 of the Compe.mes Act, 1956 (*Scheme of
Arrangement’). As consideration for this Froposed Mer gm Aireel proposed to issue equity
shares to the shareholders of Deccan and SAC,

The RPS held by S8AC in Deocan Is proposed to be cancelled by way of capital reduction as
part of the same Scheme of Arrangement. As provided in the scheme, the aforesaid capital
reduction is independent of other parts iu the Schems of Atrangemenl and precedes ofher
actions proposed il the Scheme. The aforesaid capital reduction is a condition precedent to
this report.

For the aforesald purpose, Aircel have appoinfed SRBC to prepare a report to be placed
before the Board of Directors of the Companies on recoramendation of the fair equity
exchange mtlolshare entitlement for the Proposed Merger.

We huave besn provided with audited financials of Aircel up to 31 December 2615 and

unandited financials of Deccan and SAC up fo 31 March 2016. Purther, we have bgen ~
irformed that the promoter loans and redecmable preference shaves i Aitcel would get

convetted into equify shaves (out of which, some of them would get subsequently cancelled '
by way of capital reduction) such that the debt of Aircel would reduce to T 14,000 crozes us

ot the effective date and the revised number of equity shares of Aircel would be
13,99,66,65,135 (excluding the impact of capex / opex funding in the interim period vp to

Schema hecommg effective).

The Management of Alrcel has ropresented To us thai there is' no significant ¢hange in
busittess operations and firancial position of Aircel from last reported financials as of 31
December 2015 provided to us fill date.

The Manigement of SAC and the Meanagement of Deccan has tepresenied to us that there s~
no significant change in the financial position of SAC and Deccan from last reparted
financials as of 31 March 2016 provided to us till date.

We have relied ont the above for the parposes of our analysis,
This repozt is ouf deliverable for the aforesad purpose,
This report is subject to the scope, assumptions, exclusions, Hmitations and discldmers

detatied hersinafter. As such, the report is to be read in tofalily, and not In parts, in
conjunetion with the velevant documents referred to therein.
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Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of the fair equity exchange ratiofshare entitlernent for the proposed inerger
of Decean and SAC in o Aircel

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

in copnection with this exercize, we have used the following information received from the
Management/their representatives and / or pathered from publie domain:

.o Withrespect o Alrcel

o Audited consofidated fuancial statements of Airced for Yyear ended 31 March 2015
and special pwrpose audited consolidated financials for year ended 31 Decernber
2015,
Unaudited guarterly financial statemnents ended 31 March 2015 to 31 Decembm 2015,
Current Shateholding Pattern of Ajrcel,
Dretails of deferred spectrum Jiability
Details of elréle-wise Spectrum hoklings

oo 00

¢ With respect to SAC
"o Audited finaitelal statements for the year ended 31 Maich 2015
o Unawdjted financial statemsnts of SAC for year ended 31 March 2016 includicg
balance sheet, statetrent of profit & loss, cash flow statement and notes to the
financlal statements.

»  With respect to Decean
o Andited financial statements for the year ended 3 § Maroly 20135
o Unaudited financial staternents of Decean for year ended 31 March 2016 ncluding
balance sheet, statement of profit-& loss, eash flow statement and notes to the
finaneial statements.

v Draft Scheme of Arrangement

During the disoussions with the Management, we have also obinined explanations and
111f01'ma11{:-n considercd reasonably necessary for owt excroiss, The Companies have been
pravided with the opportunity o review the drafl report, and check with Decean and SAC as
appropriate, as part of our standard practice {0 ensue facmal inaecuracies / omissions is
avoided in our final veport,
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Chariered Accountants

Recommendation of the falr equity exchange ratio/share entitlement for the proposed merger
of Decean and SAC in to Aircel

SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND
DISCLATMERS

- Pravision of veluatlon ophﬂons and consideration of the jssues deseribed hevein are areas of
aur regular practics, The services de not Topr esent accounting, assurancs, accounting / tax dus
dillgence, consulting or tax related services that may otherwise be provided by us or our
affiliates.

This report, its contents and fhe results herein are specific to (i) the purpose of valuation
agresd as per the terns of olr engageient; (if) the dale of this report and (1) are based on the
special purpose sudited belance sheet as at 31 December 2015 of Airce! and the upaudited
bafance sheet as at 31 March 2016 of Decsan and SAC. A valuation of this sature is
necessatily based on the information made available to us as of, the date hereof, Events
occutring after the date heveof may affeet this report and the assumptions used in preparing it,
and \ve do ot agstime any obligation to update, revise or reaffinm this report.

The recommendation(s) rendered in this report only mplescnt our 1ecomm&udatzon[s) based
ugon information till dute, furnished by the Management {or its representatives) and other
sources and the said recominendation(s) shall be considered to be in the natute of non-hind; ing
advics, (our recominendation will however not be used for advising anybody to take buy or
sell decision, for which specific opinion needs to be taken from expert advisors). We have no
obligation to update this report,

In the course of the valuation, we were provided with both writteh and verbal information,
ingluding merket, technical, financial and operating data. In accordante with the terms of opr
engagaments and as s customary in valuztions, we have assumed and relied upon, without
independlesnt verification, the accurasy of information mads available to us by the ﬂempame,s
We nave not andited, reviews oﬁimmﬁnau

us. Accordingly, we do noet gxpress an opinion or offer any form of assurance regarding the
truth and faimess of the financial position as indicated in the financial statements. Also, with
respect to explanations and information scught from the Comapanies, we have been given to
mnderstand by the Companies that they have not cinitted my relevant and material factors and
that they have checked the relevance or matertality of any specliic Informatien to the present
exercise with us in case of any deubt, Om conclusions are based on the assumptions ard
informaticn giver by/on behalf of the Compunies, The Management hias indicated (o us that
they have understood that any omdssions, inacceracies of misstatements may materially affect
our valuetion analysis/results, Aceordingly, we assume no responsibility for any ewrors fn the
information furnished by the Companies and their mpact on the report. Alto, we azsume no
vesponaibility for technical Information finmished by the Companies, Hlowever nothing hag
come to our aitention to indicate that the mformation provided was meterially mis-stated/
incarzect or would hiof afford reascnable grownds upon whish to base the report. We do ot
imply and it shonld not be-construed that we have verificd any of the information provided fo
us, ot that our inguiries could [vave verified any matter, which a more extensive examination
might diselose

The Repor] asswmes that the Companies comply fully with relevant laws and regulations
applicable in all ifs areas of operatfons including legal siructure, forelgn exchange/direct
. investment repulations, efe. unless otherwise stated, and that the Companies will be managed
it 8 compefent and responsible manner, Purther, except as specifically stated to the contrary,
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this vafvation report has given no consideration to matters of « legal nature, including issues

of legal titte and compliance with [ocal laws, and litigation and other contingsnt labilities that
are ot recorded In the financial statements of the Companies,

This report dees not Jook intd the business/ commsreial reasons behind the Froposed Merger
nor the likely berefits arising out of the same. Similarly, it does not address the relative merits
of the Propased Merger as compared with any other alternative business transaction, or other
alternatives, or whether or not such alternatives could be achieved o are gyailable. We
express 10 opinion of recommendation a3 to how the shareholders of the Companies shonld
vote in connection with the Propossd Merger, '

No consideration hes been givei to liens or eicumbrances against the assets, beyond the loans
disclosed fu the accounts. Therefore, no responsibility Is assumed for matters of a legal
nature. .

The fee {or the engagement is not coniingent upon the results reported.

We ows responsibility to only the Aircef and nobody else, We will not be Ligble for any
fosses, cleims, damages or [iabilities arising out of the actiahs taken, omissions of or advics
piven: by any other io the Companies.

We do not accept any lability to any third party in relation fo the issue of this Rapot, Tt is
understood that this anslysis does not represent a faimess opinfon.

This valwation report is subject fo the laws of India,

Neither the valuation report nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any registation

T StAlemiEnT, PrOspects, CLIeTINE  LCIIOraiuN,  anial Teport, 1080 GgreeInenf of OHer
agroement of document given to thind parties, other than in. connection with the proposed
Scheme of Artangeiaent, without our pricr wiflten eonsent,

W "
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SHARE CAPITAL,

‘Alreel Limited

The issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of Aircel as at 31 March 2016 is 243 .
crores, consisting of 243,243,243 equity shares of face value of T 10 sach fuolly paid up. The
sharsholding pattern is as follows!

Portienlars Number of shares % sharcholding

(A) Global Communication Servives Holdirigs Limited 15,81,08,108 G5%
(B} Deccan Digital Networka Private Limited 8,51,35,135 5%
Grand Total {(A+B) 24.,32.43.243 100%

Souree: Manngement

The Scheme of Arrangement also proposes a separate Wemerger transaction with Rellance
Comtmumications Linvited (hersinafter afler referted to as “RCOM®), which would result in
Alreel lssuing additional shares as consideration for the demerger, However the demerger
tramsaction svould not change the per share value of equity shares of Adree! that needs to be
coitsidersd for the purposes of the Proposed Merger.

Decean Digital Networks Private Limited
The issued, subscribed and paid up equity shave capital of Deccan as at 31 March 2016 is ¥ 46

crores, consisting of 46,000,000 equity sharss of face value of ¥ 10 each fully paid up. The
shareholding pattern is as follows:

Mumberal

Parbieuiy’s . shares shareholling
{A) Sindya Secirittes and Investinents Private Limited 141,721,560 74.29%
(B) Global Conmmunication Services Holdings Lid,

Mauritug 1,15,2¢8,440 25.11%
Grasd 'Total (A+B) ' 4,60,00,000 100.00%

Source: Manogentent

Tn addition, as mentioned eatlier, SAC has also invested in RPS of Decoan. The Management
of the Companies bas informed us that the KPS would get cancelled before the Proposed
Meorger.

Boutl Asia Communications Private Limited

The issued, subsoribed and paid up equity share capital of SAC as at 31 March 2016 is T 6.2
crores, consisting of 6,217,278 equity shates of fave value of T 10 each fully paid up. As
informed by the Management, these are entirely held by GCSH. i

TIn addition, GCSH has also invested in RPS of 3AC (which has in furn been used by SAC o
invest in RPS of Deccan).
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APPROACH - BASIS OF THE MERGER

Wo undorstand from the Management that the proposed Scheme of -Arvangement
contemplates the Amalgamation of the Companies pursuant to the Schieme under Section 391-
394 of the Compentes Act, 1956, Arriving at the fair share entitlenent for (e Proposed
Merger Decean and SAC ju to Alrcel would require determining the fair. value of Ajroe] in
terins of the fair valus of Decoan and SAC. These values are to be deternnined independently
without considering the Proposed Merger,

There are several commanly used and accepted methods for deterinining the fair valus of the
Companies, which have been considered in the présent case, to the extent relevant and
applicable, including: .

.- Market Price method

% Comparable Companies Quoted Multiples method
3. Discounted Cash Flows method

4_ Net Asset Value method

It should be understoad that the valuation of any business / company or its assets fs Inherontly
subjective and Is subject to certain uncertainties and contingsncies, all of which are difficult
te predict and are beyond our contral.

The application of any particular method of vahiation deperids on the purpose for which the
valuation i3 done and surrounding facts. Although different values may exist for different
purposes, it caniot bs too strongly emphasized that a valuer can only airive at one value for
one purpose. Our choice of mothodolegy of vatuation has been amived at using usual and
conventional methodelogies adopted fov transactions of a similar nature and our reasonable

ona—{ide-manver;basedorourpreviomsexpettenceof—————————

assignments of a simdlar nature.

. Market Price {(MP) Method

The market price of an equity share as quoled on a stoek exchange is normally considered as
the value of the equity shares of that ceinpany where such guotations are arising from the
shares being tegularly and freely traded in, subject to the clement of speculative support that
imay be dnbuilt in the vahie of the shares. But there could be situations whers the vahwe of the
ghare as quoted on the stock market would not be regarded as a proper index of the fair value
of the share espesially where the market values are fluctuating in a volatile capital market.
Purther, in the case of a merger, where there is a question of evaluating the shares of one
company against those of another, the volume of transactions and the nwmber of shares
available for trading on the siock exchangs over a reasonable period would have to be of a
comparable standard.

Since Alreel, BAC and Deccan ave not listed on any stock exchange, we have not considered
this zrethod,

Comparable Comp anies® Quoted Multiple (CCM) methad
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Under this method, value of the company is arrived at by using multiples derived from
vafuations of comparable eompantes, as manifest through stock market valuations of listed
companies, This valuation Is based on flie prineiple that market veluations, taking place
betiveen informed buyers aud informed seflers, incorporate all factors refevant to valuation,
Relsvant moltiples need to be chosen carefully and adjusted for differences between the
cireumstances.

For valuation of Aircel, we have considered the Brferprise Vahie (EV)/Salss multiple of listed
comparable companies, . '

Considering Decean and SAC do not have any business operations, we have not uged this
sthod.

Discounted Cash Flows (DCF) Method

Under the DCF inothod, the projected free cash flows to the fitm ars discounted at fie
weighted average cost of capital, The sum of the discounted value of such fres cash flows is
the valus of the finm.

Using the DCF analysis involves determtining the followin I

Estimaling futiire fiee cash flows:

Free cash flows are the cash flows expected to be generated by the company that are available
to all providers of the company’s cdpital — both debt and equity, ;

Apprapriate discomf rate 10 be applied fo cash flows i.e. the cost of caplial:
This discount rate, which is apphied to the free cash flows, shonld reflect the opportunity cost

o aithecapital-providers (namely sirreiolders - oreditors);, Weighied by their relative
contribution to the total capital of the company, The opportunity cost to the capita) provider
equals the rate of returfi the capital provider expects to eam on other investmonts of
equivalent risk.

The Management has not provided us the business plan of Aircel. Given the aforesald, we
have not wadertaken & DCF analysiz,

Considering Deccan and SAC do not have any business operations, we have not used this
methad.

Additionally, we have used a Sume-ofthe-Parts (SOTP) approach for Aircel, whets we have
done our analysis by applying the aforesaid methods cirele-wise,

Net Asset Value (NAY) Methodology

The asset based valuation techalgue is based on the valve of the nnderlying net assets of the
business, either on a book value basis or vealizable value basis or replaceinsnt cost basis. We
have considered it appropiiate to use NAV en a replacement cost basis in our analysis for
vatugtion of Aircel considering that telecom spectrum 13 a significant intangible asset for
which auction price benchmarks are available, Apart from specitum and ether selet
intaugibles, the balance assets have been primarily considered at book values, While applving

Bl
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thig methad, we have effeotively done a Sum-of-the-Parts (SOTP) analysis circle by circle,
where certain cireles with potential intrinsio value/posstble differential strafegic options are
valued based on NAV method ¢(while others continue to bo valued based on COM wethod),

Considesing Decean and SAC do not have any business operations, we have used NAV (book
value adjusted for value of undertying investments).
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BASIS OF THE MERGER

The basis of valuation would have to be determined affer taking into consideration all the
factors and methodologies mentioned hereinsbovs,

Aircel has been valued vsing SOTP (circle wise NAV/CCM) and CCM msthods. Deccan and
SAC have been valued using NAV (book valne adjusted for value of undérlytng investments).

In the ultinate analysis, vahation will have fo be tempered by the cxercise of judicious
discretion by the Valuer and judgment taking into accounts all the relevant factors. This
concept is afso recognized in judicial decisions.

In light of the above, and on & consideration of all the relevant factors and circunistances ag

discussed and outlined hereinabove, we recommend:

+ Share swap ratio for the proposed merger of Decean in to Afrcel should be 187 {One
hundred eighty seven) equity shares of Alrcel of €10/- each fully paid up to be issued for
overy 100 (One Hundrod) equily shares of Descan of € 10/- aach fully paid up. '

» 24,49.999' equity shaves of Aiccel of €10/~ each fully paid up o GCSH for its RPS held
in 8AC,

¢ As per owr computation, no consideration is fo be paid to the equity shares of SAC.
However, the Management has represented to vs that they would [ike to issue 1 (one)
equity share of Adrcel of Y10/ fully paid up to GCSH for its equity sheves held iu 8AC, as
a token consideration. Considering that GUSH halds a1l sharss in SAC, we believe this is
not unfair, '

The Management has inforned ns that the cedustion uf sharcholder loans/RPS of Adresl and
reduction of share eapjtal of Afrcel (such that debt in Adrcsl becomes T 14,000 croies and

number of shares of Aireal becomes 13,99 66,65,135 befors the Proposed Merger in Aireel) s
sitnuitaneous with other steps in the Scheme bat also condition precedents to other steps.
Further, the capital reduction in Deccan is an independent step happoning prior to other steps.
Therefors our analysisirecermendation would changs in case these condition precedents are
ot fulfilled or eapital reduction i1 Decsan doss not meterialize earlier,

124,550,000 {ronnded off) equity shares of Aivce] Less 1{one} equity share of Adreel to GOSH for its
equity shares held in SAC ' e
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I should be noted that we have not exantined any other wattor including economic rationale
for the Proposed Merger per se or accoy nting, legal or tax matters involved in the Pro posed
Merger. :

Respectiolly submifted,

S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Mumbet: 301 0035/E300005 .

Per Ravi Bansal
Partner
Membership Mo: 49365
Place: Mumbai

Date: 14 September 2016
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14 September, 2016
‘The Board of Directors

Reliance Communications Limited

H Black, 1 Floor,

Dhirubhat Ambani Knowledge City,

Navi Mumbai -~ 400710, Maharashtra, india

Dear Sirs,

Reg: Fairness Opinion on the recommendation of share entitlement for the proposed demerger of part
Undertakings of Reliance Communications Limited {“RCom”} and its wholly owned subsidiary
Reliance Telecom Limited ("RTL”} into Afrcel Limited (“Alrcel”) and s subsidiary Dishnet Wireless

 Limited ("DWLY} In consideration for lssue of shares of Alrcel Limitad,

Keynote Corporate Services Limited (“Keynote” or “we” or “us”) Is Category [ Merchant Banker registered
with Securities Exchange Board of India {"SEBI”). We have been reguested to issue a report on falress on
the Share Entitlernent for the transaction of transfer of part uridertakings of Rellance Communications
Limited (“RCom") and its wholly owned subsidiary Reliange Telecom Limited {"RTL") to Aircel Limited
{("Alrcel”) and its subsidiary Dishnet Wireless Limited {“DWL"} In consideration for issue of shares of Aircal
timited. We have perused the documents/ Information provided by you in raspect of the said
Arrangement and the Yaluatlon Report as issued by S.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP dated 14 September 2016 and
state as follows:

Company Proftle:

Reflance Communications Limited is an India-based company that provides telscommunications setvices
to individuals, enterprise and carrder customers In india and internationally. RCom itself and, through its
subsidiarias, offers a chaln of wireless (third generation (36) services), wireline broadband services,
national long distance, international, volce, data, video, direct-to-home (DTH) and Internet-based
communications services. It operatas in two segments: the Indla Dperations and the Global Operations.
RCom’'s tndis operations segment includes wireless telecommunications services to retall customers
through code division multiple access {COMA) and global system for mobile (GSM) technology-based
networks across india. Its Global Business Unit offers & portfolio of enterprise, information teehnology (IT}
Infrastructire and international long distance voice, video and data netwark services across the globe.
RCom offers next generation, integrated and convergant digital network that supports services spanning
the entire communications value chaln, The registered office of RCom I3 situated in Mumbai.

For the year ended 3T March 2016, , RCom reported audited consolidated revenue from operations and
profit after tax of INR 21,711 crove and INR 681 crore respectively. The issued, subscribed and paid up
equity share capital of RCom as at 30 June 2046 is INR 1,244 crore consisting of 2,488,979,745 syulty
Shares of INR 5 each fully paid up,

Alrcel is a public company incorporated under the Companies Act 1956 anid provides GSM mobile services
in India. It offers voice and data services ranging frort post-paidd and prepald plens and 26 and 3G services.
Aircel was incorporated in 1994 and is based in Gurgaon, India. The registered office of Aircel is situated in

%Mumbai‘
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Keynote Corporate Services Limited
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For the year ended 31 Decembar 2015, Aircal reported sudited consulidated revenue from operations and

loss of INR 11,396 crore and INR 2,215 crore respectively, The current issued, subscribed snd paid up

equity share capital of Alrcel fs INR 243 crore consisting of 243,243,243 equity Shares of INR 10 each fully
pald up.

Rationale of the Report:

We have been Informed that the management of RCom and Aircel are contemplating 2 demerger of the
wiraless operations and International / National Long distance operations of RCom /  RTL and recent
operatiohs / assets to be acquired from Sistema Shyam TeleServicas Limited {"SSTL"), herelnafter
collectively referred to as the “Specified Telecom Dperations of RCom”. The Specifled Telecom Operations
of RCom wouid be then transferred to Aircel / DWL through & Compaosite Scheme of Arrangemsnt under
the provisions of Section 391-394 read with section 100-104 of the Companies Act, 1956 {“Scheme of
Arrangement” or “Proposed Demerger” or “Transaction”) and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. As consideration for this Proposed Demerger, RCom will be issued equity shares of
Alrcel,

In this regard, we have been requested to suggest Falrmess on the Share Entitlement for the Proposed
Demerger, *

Sources of Information:

For arriving at the fairness opinion set forth below, we have relied upon the foliowing sources of
infgrmation:

s With respect 1o Alrcel:

» Consolidated Annual reports of Aircel for year ended March 31, 2015 and special purpc:se
audited consolidated financlals for the year ended December 31, 2015,

Un-audited quartarly financial statements ended March 31,2015 to December 31, 2015
Historkal circle-wise key aperational paramaters including revenue and subscriber

Detalls of Beferred Spectrum Liability

Details of circle wise spectrum holdings

& 4 & &

e« With respect to RCOM:

‘ Annual Repert of RCOM for year ended March 31, 2015 and other publicly available
financlal Information

o Financial Statements of the Specifled Telecom Cperations of RCom for 9 months ended
Decamber 31, 2015,

U Historical circle-wise key operatlonal parameters including revenue and subscriber split
Into G5M and CDMA

* Details of cirtle wise spectrum holdings

» Details of Deferred Spectruny Liabilities

. Circle wise revenug detalls for the three demerged Undertakings of RCOM/RTL

- Draft Compostie Scheme of Arrengement

Page 2 of &
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tn addition to the above, we have also obiained such other infarmation and explanations, which were
considered relevant for the purpase of our analysis.

Our Recommendation:

As stated W the Valuation Report, S.R: Batliboi & Co. LLP have recommended the following Share
Entitlement:

"Additional equity shares of 97% 10 105% (rounded off} of pre-demarger share capital of Alrcel {(Post
conversion of planned shareholder loans/preference shares Into equity and reduction of capltal} gets
issued to RCom®

The aforesaid Arrangement shall be pursuant to the Draft Scheme of Arrangement and shall be subject to
receipt of approval from the Jurisdictional High Court and other statutory approvals as may be required.
The detalled terms and conditions of the demerger are more fully set forth in the Draft Scheme of
Arrangement. Keynote has lssued the faimess opinion with the understanding that Draft Scheme of
Arrangement shalt not be materially altered and the parties hereto agree that the Eairness Opinton would
not stand good in case the final Scheme of Arrangement alters the transaction,

Based on the Information, dats made avallable 1o us, Including the Valuation Raport, 10 the best of our
knowledge and bellaf, the share entitlement for the equity shareholdars as suggested by LR, Batliboi &
Co. LLP proposed under the Schemie of Arrangement is falr In our eplnion.

Exclustons and Limitations:

We have assumed and relled upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and completeness of
all information that was publicly available or provided or otherwise made available to us by RCom & Aircel
for tha purpose of this opinfon. We express no opinion and accardingly accept no responsibility with
respect to or for such estimated financials or the assumptions on-which they were based. Qur work does
nat constitute an audit or certification or due diligence of the working results, financial statements, or
estimates of value to be realized for the assets of RCom & Alrcel. We have solely relied upan the
Information provided to us by RCom & Alreel. We have not reviewed any books of records of RCom &
Alrcel {other than those provided or made avallabie to us). We have not assurmned any obligation fo
conduct, nor have we conducted any physical inspection or title verification of the properties or facilities
of RCom & Aircel and nelther exprass any opinion with respect thereto nor accapt any responsibliity
therefore. We have not made any independant valuation or appraisal of the assets or liabilitias of RCom &
Alrcal, We have not reviewed any internal management infermation statements or any non-public reports,
and, instead, with your consent weé have relied upen Information which was pubdlicly available or provided
ar otherwise made avaltable to us by RCom & Aircel for the purpose of this opinion. We are not experts in
the evaluation of litigation ar other actual or thresten claims and hence have not commented on the
effect of such litlgation or clalims on the valuation. We are not legal, tax, regulatory or actuariat advisors.
We are financial advisors only and have relied upon, without independent verification, the assessment of
RCom & Aircel with respect to these matters. In addition, we have assumed that the Draft Scheme of
Arrangement will be approved by the regulatory authorities and that the preposed transaction will be
consummated substantially In accordance with the terms sat forth In the Draf Scheme of Arrangemaent,

¥
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We understand that the managements of RCom & Aircel during our discussion with them would have
drawn our attention to all such information and matters which may have an impact on our analysis and
apinion. We have assumed that in the course of obtaining necessary regulatory or other consents or
approvals for the Draft Scheme of Arrangenient, no restrictions will be imposed that will have a material
ardverse effect on the benefits of the transaction that RCom & Aircel may have contemplated. Qur opinion
18 necessarily based on financial, economic, market and other conditions as they currently exist and on the
information made avaflable to us as of the date hareof. It should be understood that although subseguent
developments may affect this opinion, we do not have any ohligation to update, revise or reaffirm this
epinion. [n arriving at our opinion, we are not authorized to solicit, and did not solicit, interests for any
parly with respect to the acquisition, business combination or other extra-ordinary transaction Involving
RCom & Aircel or any of Its assets, nor did we negotiate with any ather party In this rogard.

We have acted as d financial advisor to RCom & Aircel for providing & fairness view on the share
entitiement and will receive a fee for our services,

In the ordinary course of business, Keynote Is engaged in securlties trading, securities brokerage and
investment activities, as wall as providing investment banking and investment aduisory services. In the
ordinary course of its trading, brokerage and financing activities, any member of Keynote may at any time
hold long or short positions, and may trade or otherwise effact transactions, for ils own account or the
accounts of customers, in debt or equity securities or senior loans of any company that may be invoived in
the transaction.

it is umderstood that this letter is solely for the henefit of and confidential use by the Board of Directors of
RCom & Aircel for the purpose of this transaction and for the purpose of obtaining judiclal and regulatory
approvals for the transaction and the Proposed Demerger and may not be relied upon by any other person
and may not be used or disclosed for any other purpose withaut our prior written consent, The epinion is
not meant for meeting any other regulatory or disclosure requirements, save and except as specified
above, under any Indlan or foreign law, Statute, Act, guideline or similar instruction, Management of
RCom & Alreel should not make this report available to any party, including any regulatory or corpliance
authorliy/agency except as- mentlonstd above for the purpose of obtaining judictal and repulatory
approvals for the transaction and the Propused Demerger. The letler is only intended for the
aforementionad spectfic purpose and if it Is used for any other purpose; we will not be lable for any
consequences thereof,

We express no opinion whatever and make no recommendation at all as to RCom's or RCom & Alrcal’s
underlying decislon to effect to the proposed tranisaction or as to how the holders of agquity shares or
preference shares or secured or unsecured creditors of RCom & Alrcel should vote at their respective
meetings held in connection with the transaction. We do not express and should not be deemed to have
expressed any views an any other terms of transaction. We also express no opinian and accordingly accept
no responsibitity for or as to the prices at which the equity shares of RCam will trade following the
announgerment of the transaction or as to the finendial performance of RCom & Aircel following the
consummation of the transaction,

%
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In no circumstances however, will Keynote Corporate Services Limited or its associates, directors or
employees accept any responsthility or lability to any third party and in the unforeseen event of any such
responstoility or liability being imposed on Keynote Corporate Services Limited or its associates, diractors
or employees by any third party, RCom & Airce! and their affiliates shall indemnify them.

For KEYNOTE CORPORATE SERVICES LYD

\\ /M
Nipun Lodha
Exarutive Vice-President & Head- Corporate Finance
SEBt Registration No. INMOD0CO3606
{Merchant Banker)
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14 September, 2016
The Board of Directors

Reliance Communications Umited

H Block, 1st Floor,

Dhirubhal Ambani Knowladge City,

Navi Mumbai - 400710, Maharashtra, India

Dear Sirs,

Reg: Fairngss Opinion on the recommendation of the fair equity exchange ratio/share entitlement for
the proposed merger of Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited {"Deccan”] and South Asia
Comrnunications Private Limited ("SAC") in to Alrcel Limited (“Alrcal”}.

Keynote Carporate Services Limited (“Keynote” or “we” or "us”) is Category | Merchant Banker registered

with Securities Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"), We have been requested to issue a report on fairmess on

the fair equity exchange ratio/share entitlement for the proposed merger of Deccan Digital Networks

Private Limited and South Asla Communications Private Limfted in to Aircel Limited, We have perused the

documents/ information provided by you in respect of the said Arrangement and the Valuation Report as

tssued by 8.1, Batlibol & Co. LLP dated 14 September 2016 and state as follows:

Company Profile:

Alreal is a public company incorporated under the Companies Act 1856 provides GSM mabile services in
fndla. t offers voice and data services ranging from post-paid and prepaid plans and 26 and 3G services.
Ajrcel was incorporated in 1994 and is based in Gurgaon, India. The registered office of Aircel is situated at
Mumbai.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, Aircel reported audited consalidated revenue from operations and
foss of INR 11,396 crore and INR 2,215 crore respectively.

Deccan is a private company holding 35% stake In Aircel in form of equity shares. Sindya Securities &
fnvestments Private Limitedt ("SSIPL"} owns 74.3% stake In Dectan, with the balance 25.7% owned by
Global Comrhuriliation Services Holdings ("GCSH”, Mauritiug), GCSH 15 an indirect 100% subsiglary of
Maxis Communication Berhard of Malaysia, and owns Balance 65% stake in Aircel,

SAC is a 100% subsidiary of GCSH and holds investment In Deccan in the form of cumulative rnon-
convertible Redeemable Preference Sharas (“RPS”] of Rs.1645 crore of R&.10 exch, These Proference
shares are redeemable In 2026 at a premium of 22% over face value and have a coupon rate of 0.01 % p.a.

Deccan and SAC are holding companies without any operations, Further, effectively SAC’S only investment
is in Decean and Deccan’s only investment is in Alrcel. ’

Rationale of the Report:
We have been informed that the management of the Companies are contemplating amalgamation of

Deccan and SAL into Alrcel ("Proposed Merger” or “Transaction”) through a Compasite Scheme of
fi  Arrangement under the provisions of Section 391-394 read with section 100-104 of the Companies Act,
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1956 {"Scheme of Arrangement”} and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, As
eonsideration for this Proposed Marger, Aircel proposed 1o issue equity shares to the shareholder of
Daccan and SAC.

In this regard, we have been reguested to suggest Fairness on the Share Entitlement for the Proposed
Merger.

Sources of Information:
For arriving st the faimess opinion set forth below, we have relied upon the following sources of

information:
e With respect to Aircel:

® Consolidated Annual reports of Alrcel for year ended March 31, 2015 and special purpose
audited consolidated financials for the year ended December 31, 2045.

. Un-audited quarterly financial statements ended Mareh 31, 2005 to December 31, 2015

o Historical circle-wise key operational parameters Including revenue and subscriber

. Dretalls of Deferred Spectrum Liability

» Details of circle wise spestrum holdings P

s With respect to SAC:

® Augdited financial statements for year ended March 31, 2015

* Unaudited financial statements of 5AC for the year ended March 31, 2018 including
balance sheet, statament of profit & loss, cash flow statement and notes to the financial
statements.

e With respect to Decean :

U Audited financlal statements far year ended March 31, 201%

» Unaudited financist statements of SAC for the year ended March 31, 2016 including
balance sheet, statement of profit & loss, cash flow statement and notes to the financiat
statements,

®  Draft Scheme of Arrangement

In addition to the above, we bave also obtalned such other information and explanations, which were
considared relevant for the purpose of our Analysis.

Our Recommendation:

As stated in the Valuatlon Report. S.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP have recommaended the following Share
Entitlement:
= Share swap ratio for the proposed merger of Deccan in to Alrcel should be 187 {one hundred
eighty seven} equity shares of Aircel of Rs10/- each fully paid up to be issued for every 1006 (one
hundrad) equity shares of Deccan of Rs10 /- sach fully paid up,
s 24,49,999 euuity shares of Aircsl of Rs 10 /- each fully paid up to GCSH for its RPS held in SAC

4%
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¢ As per our computation, no consideration Is to be paid to the equity shares of SAC. However,
the Management has rapresented to us that they would fike to Issue 1 fone) equity share of
Aircel of Rs.10/- fully paid up to GCSH for its equity shares held in SAC, as a token of
consideration. Considering that GCSH halds all shares In SAC, we believe this Is fair.”

The aforesaid arrangement shall be pursuant to the Draft Scheme of Arrangament and shall be subject to
recelpt of approval from the Jurisdictional High Court and other statutory approvals as may be required.
The detalied terms and conditions of the merger are more fully set forth in the Draft Scheme of
Arrangement. Keynote has issued the fairness opinion with the understanding that Draft Scheme of
Arrangement shall not be materially altered and the management has also informed us that the reduction
of sharehaolders loans/RPS of Alrcel and reduction of share capital {such that debt in Aircel becomes
Rs.14000 crore and number of shares of Arcel becomes 1399,66,65,135 before the Proposet Merger in
Aircel} Is simuftaneous with other steps in the Schema but alss conditions pracedents to other steps;
further, the capital reduction in Deccan is an independent step happening prior to the other steps, The
parties hereto agree that the Fairmess Opinion would not stand gond in case the final Schems of
Arrangement alters the transaction or the conditions precedent are ot fulfilled or capital reduction in
Deccan does not materlalize earlier,

Based on the information, data made avallable to us, including the Valuation Repart, to the hest of our
krowladge and bellef, the share entitlement for the equity shareholders as suggested by 5.8. Batlibsl &
Co. LLP proposed under the Scheme of Arrangement is falr In our opinion,

Exclusions and Limitations:

We have assumed and refied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and completeness of
all information that was publicly available or provided or otherwise made svailable ta us by Deccan, $AC &
Alrcel for the purpese of this apinion, We express no opirion and accordingly accept no responsibility with
respect to or for such estimated financials or the assumptions on which they were based, Our work does
not constitute an audit or certification o due diligence of the working results, financlai statements, or
sstimates of value to be realized for the assets of Deccan, SAC & Aircel, We have solely relied upon the
information provided to us by Deccan, SAC & Alrcel, We have not reviewed any books or records of
Deccan, SAC & Alrcel {other than those provided or made svailable to us]. We have not assumed any
cbligation to conduct, nor have we conducted any physical Inspection or title verification of the properties
or facilities of Deccan, SAC & Alrcel and neither express any opinion with respect thereto nor accept any
respensibility therefore. We have not made any independent valuation or appraisal of the assets or
liabilities of Deccan, SAC & Aircel, We have not reviewed any internal management information
statements or any non-public reperts, and, instead, with your consent we have relied upen information
which was publicly available or provided or otherwise made avallable to us by Deecan, SAC & Alrcel for the
purpese of this opinfon. We are niot experts in the evaluation of litigation or other actual or threaten
claims and hence have not commented on the effect of such fitigation or claims on the valuation, We are
not legal, tax, regulatory or actuarlal advisors. We are financial advisors only and have felied upon,
without independent verification, the assessment of Deccan, SAC & Aircel with respact to these matters,
In addition, we have assumed that the Draft Scheme of Arrangement will be approved by the regulatory
authorities and that the propesed transaction will be consummated substantially in accordance with the
terms set forth in the Draft Scheme of Arrangement, :

b
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We understand that the managements of Deccan, SAC & Alrcel during our discussion with them would
have drawn our attention to all such information and matters which may have an lmpact on our anatysis
and oplnion. We have assumed that In the course of obtalning necessary regulatory or other consents or
approvals for the Draft Scheme of Arrangement, no restrictions will be Inaposed that will have a material
adverse effect on the benefits of the transaction that Deccan, SAC & Ajrce! ray have contemplated. Our
aplnion Is necessarily based on financial, economic, market and other conditions as they currently exist
and on the information made available to us a5 of the date hereof. It shauld be understood that although
subsequent developments may affect this opinion, we do not have any obligation to update, revise or
reaffirm this apinlon, In arriving af our opinion, we are not authorizad to solicit, and did not solicit,
interests for any parly with respect to the acquisition, business combination or other extra-ordinary
transaction involving Decean, SAC & Aircel or any of its assets, nor did we negotiate with any other party In
this regard.

We have acted as a financial advisor to Deccan, SAC & Alrcel for providing a falrmess view on the share
emitlement and will receive a fee for our services,

I the ordinary course of business, Keynete is engaged in securttjes trading, securities brolerage and
investment activitles, as well as providing Investment banking and Investment advisory services. in the
ordinary course of its trading, brokerage and financing activities, any member of Keynate may at any time
hold long or short positions, and may trede or otherwise effect transactions, for its own account or the
avcounts of customers, in debt or equity securities or senior Ioans of any company that may be Involved in
the transaction.

it s understood that this latter Is solely for the benefit of and confidential use by the Board of Directors of
Peccan, SAC & Alrcel for the purpose of this transaction and for the purpose of obtaining judiclal and
regulatary approvals for the transaction and the Proposed Demerger and may not be relied upon by any
other person and may not be used or disclosed for any other purpose without our prior written consent.
The opinion is not meant for meating any other regulatory or disclosure reguirements, save and gxcapt 45
specified mbove, under any Indian or foreign law, Statute, Act, guideline or similar nstruction,
Management of Deccan, SAC & Alrcel should not make this report available to any party, including any
regulatory or compllance authority/agency except as mentioned above for the purpase of obtaining
jutlicial and regulatory approvals for the transaction and the Proposed Demerger. The letter Is only
Intended for the aforementioned specific purpose and i it Is used for any other purpose; we will nat be
liable for any consequences thereof.

We express o opinion whatever and make no recommendation at all as to Deccan, SACS or Airgel’s
underlving decision to effect to the proposed transaction or as to how the holders of equity shares or
preference shares or secured or unsecured creditors of Deccan, SAC & Aircel should vote at their
respective meetings held in connection with the transaction. We do not express and should not he
deamed to have expressed any views on any other terms of transaction, We also express no apinion and
accordingly accept no responsibility for or as to the prices at which the equity shares of Deccan, SAC will
trade following the announcement of the transaction or as to the financial performance of Daccan, SAC &
Aircel following the consummation of the transaction,
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In no circumstances however, will Keynote Corporate Services Limitdd or s associates, directors or
employees accept any responsibility or liability to any third party and in the unforeseen event of any such
responsibility or liability being imposed on Keynote Corporate Services Limlted or its associates, directors
or amployees by any third party, Deccan, SAC & Alrcel and thelr affillates shall indemnify tham,

For KEYNO'TE CORPORATE SERVICES LTD

Nipun Lodha .

Exgcutive Vice-President & Head- Corporate Finance
SEBI Registration No. INMOOODDZ6DG

{Merchant Banker}
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RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED ON THE COMPOSITE SCHEME OF
ARRANGEMENT AMONG THE COMPANY, RELIANCE TELECOM LIMITED,AIRCEL LIMITED, DISHNET WIRELESS LIMITED,
DECCAN DIGITAL NETWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED AND SOUTH ASIA COMMUNICATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED AND THEIR
RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS ("SCHEME")

1.
1.1

1.2

1.3

2.

Background:

A meeting of the Board of Directors (‘Board') of Reliance Communications Limited was held on 14th September, 2016 to

consider and recommend the proposed the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Reliance Communications Limited (

“the Company" or "the Demerged Company 1" or "RCom") and Reliance Telecom Limited (“the Demerged Company 2" or *

RTL") and Aircel Limited ("Resulting Company 1" or "Transferee Company" or " AL") and Dishnet Wireless Limited ("Resulting

Company 2" or " DWL") and Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited ("the Transferor Company 1" or " Deccan") and South

Asia Communications Private Limited ("the Transferor Company 2" or " SACPL") and their respective shareholders and creditors

("Scheme").

In terms of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013, a report from the Board of the Company explaining the effect of

the compromise on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters, and non-promoter shareholders has to

be appended with the notice of the meeting of shareholders and creditors. Further the said report has to specify any special

valuation difficulties, if any in the valuation. This report of the Board is made in order to comply with the requirements of

Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013.

While deliberating on the Scheme, the Board had, inter-alia, considered and took on record following necessary documents

('Documents'):

a. Draft Scheme of Arrangement among the Company, RTL, AL, DWL, Deccan, SACPL and their respective shareholders and
creditors;

b. Valuation Reports dated 14thSeptember, 2016 issued by M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP on the proposed demerger of the
Specified Telecom Operations of Reliance Communications Limited in to Aircel Limited;

c. Fairness Opinion dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited on the proposed
demerqer of the Specified Telecom Operations of Reliance Communications Limited in to Aircel Limited;

d. Report of the Audit Committee dated 14th September, 2016, recommending the Scheme to the Board for approval.
Backqground to the Proposed Scheme:

The Scheme, interalia, provides for the following:

a)

e)

transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings(as defined in the Scheme) from the Demerged Companies (as defined in
the Scheme) into the Resulting Companies(as defined in the Scheme), the manner of vesting of the Demerged Undertakings
and the consideration thereof;

Amalgamation of the Transferor Companies(as defined in the Scheme) with the Transferee Company (as defined in the Scheme)
and the consideration thereof;

Conversion of the Resulting Company 1 RPS (as defined in the Scheme) into equity shares and the subsequent reduction and
cancellation of such equity shares;

Conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans (as defined in the Scheme) into equity shares and the subsequent
reduction and cancellation of a part of such equity shares;

Reduction and cancellation of the Transferor Company 1 RPS(as defined in the Scheme).

Rationale of the Scheme

The demerger and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings of the Demerged Companies to the Resulting Companies pursuant to the
Scheme shall, inter alia, result in following benefits:

(i)

(vii)
(viii)

(ix)

consolidation of the wireless telecom business of the Demerged Companies with the Resulting Companies provides an
opportunity to the Demerged Company 1 to acquire equity interest in the Resulting Company 1;

further expanding the business of the Resulting Companies into growing markets of India, thereby creating greater value for the
shareholders of the Resulting Companies;

availability of increased resources and assets which can be utilised for strengthening the customer base of the Resulting
Companies (including the customer base of the Demerged Companies) and servicing existing as well as new customers of the
Resulting Companies innovatively and efficiently;

augmenting the infrastructural capability of the Resulting Companies to effectively meet future challenges in the ever-evolving
wireless telecom business;

the combination of the Demerged Undertakings and the Resulting Companies is a strategic fit for serving existing market and
for catering to additional volume linked to new consumers;

synergies in operational process and logistics alignment leading to economies of scale for the Resulting Companies and creation
of efficiencies and benefitting customers as well as optimization of operation and capital expenditure;

assisting the Resulting Companies and the Demerqged Companies in strengthening their assets base while also enhancing their
financial flexibility;

enhance competitive strength, achieve cost reduction, efficiencies and productivity gains by pooling the financial, managerial
and technical resources, personnel capabilities, skills, expertise and technologies of the Resulting Companies and the Demerged
Companies thereby significantly contributing to future growth and maximizing shareholders value;

reducing the direct and indirect foreign shareholding in the Resulting Company 1; and
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(x)  to achieve an optimal capital structure which duly represents the intrinsic value of the Resulting Company 1, through a capital
reorganization exercise which will also involve conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholders Loans which are in the
nature of long term shareholder funding for the Resulting Company 1 into equity shares and thereby strengthening the balance
sheet of the Resulting Companies for future growth and expansion and to create a capital structure which is geared to take
advantage of possible growth opportunities.

The amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme will simplify and streamline the
ownership structure of the Resulting Company 1. The proposed restructuring between the Transferor Companies and the Transferee
Company is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees and other stakeholders, of each of the companies, as it would
enable a focused business approach for the maximization of benefits to all stakeholders.
3. Valuation
The Reports on valuation have been obtained from M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, an independent valuer. The
valuations have been arrived at based on the various methodologies explained in the Report and various qualitative factors relevant
to the Business and the business dynamics and growth potentials of the business, having reqard to information base, key underlying
assumptions and limitations.The valuation has been reviewed for fairness by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited, Category-I
Merchant Banker.
As per the commercial understanding agreed between RCom Group and Aircel Group (herein referred to as “the Parties"), each of the
Parties will hold 50% stake in the combined entity (i.e. AL) on fully diluted basis with equal representation on the Board of Directors
and all Committees. It is also commercially agreed between the Parties to restrict the respective Party's debt in AL at pre-agreed
amount.
The valuation report states that the fair entitlement, for the proposed of the Demerged Undertakings of the Demerged Companies to
the Resulting Companies, should be such that additional equity shares in the range of 97% to 105% of pre demerqer share capital
of combined entity (i.e. AL) be issued to RCom. The range per valuation report of 97% to 105% signifies that the value of RCom's
business being transferred and AL is virtually equal and therefore, the Audit Committee of RCom and the Board of directors of RTL,
AL, DWL, Deccan and SACPLhave concluded that it is fair and reasonable as also in the interest of RCom, RTL, AL, DWL, Deccan
and SACPL and its shareholders that RCom and the existing shareholders of AL have equal ownership holding i.e. 50% of equity
share capital in the combined entity (i.e. AL). Thus, Clause 19 "Consideration", provides that 1400,00,00,000 (Fourteen hundred
crores) Equity Shares in AL, shall be issued to RCom, which shall be equal to estimated pre demerger capital of AL. This would ensure
that both the Parties own 50% of equity share capital in the combined entity (i.e AL), post the Scheme coming into effect. Out of
1400,00,00,000 (Fourteen hundred crores) Equity Shares issued to RCom, 579,999,821 (five hundred and seventy nine million
nine hundred and ninety nine thousand eight hundred and twenty one) equity shares is in respect of the undertaking demerged from
the Company.

4. Impact on key stakeholders

There is expected to be no adverse effect of the said Scheme on the key managerial personnel, directors, promoters and non-
promoter shareholders of the Company.

RELIANCE TELECOM LIMITED

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF RELIANCE TELECOM LIMITED ON THE COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

AMONG RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED, THE COMPANY, AIRCEL LIMITED, DISHNET WIRELESS LIMITED, DECCAN

DIGITAL NETWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED AND SOUTH ASIA COMMUNICATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE

SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS ("SCHEME")

1. Background:

1.1 A meeting of the Board of Directors (‘Board') of Reliance Telecom Limited was held on 14th September, 2016 to consider and
recommend the proposed the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Reliance Communications Limited ("the Demerged
Company 1" or "RCom") and Reliance Telecom Limited ("The Demerged Company 2" or " RTL" or "the Company") and Aircel
Limited ("Resulting Company 1" or "Transferee Company” or * AL") and Dishnet Wireless Limited (“Resulting Company 2" or "
DWL") and Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited (“The Transferor Company 1" or " Deccan") and South Asia Communications
Private Limited ("The Transferor Company 2" or " SACPL") and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Scheme").

1.2 In terms of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013, a report from the Board of the Company explaining the effect of
the compromise on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters, and non-promoter shareholders has to
be appended with the notice of the meeting of shareholders and creditors. Further the said report has to specify any special
valuation difficulties, if any in the valuation. This report of the Board is made in order to comply with the requirements of
section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013.

1.3 While deliberating on the Scheme, the Board had, inter-alia, considered and took on record following necessary documents
('Documents'):

a. Draft Scheme of Arrangement among RCom, AL, DWL, Deccan, SACPL and the Company and their respective shareholders
and creditors;

b. Valuation Report dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP on the proposed demerger of the
Specified Telecom Operations of Reliance Communications Limited in to Aircel Limited;

c. Fairness Opinion dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited on the proposed
demerger of the Specified Telecom Operations of Reliance Communications Limited in to Aircel Limited;

2. Background to the Proposed Scheme:

The Scheme, interalia, provides for the following:

a) transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings (as defined in the Scheme) from the Demerged Companies (as defined in
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the Scheme) into the Resulting Companies (as defined in the Scheme) , the manner of vesting of the Demerged Undertakings
and the consideration thereof;

b)  Amalgamation of the Transferor Companies (as defined in the Scheme) with the Transferee Company (as defined in the Scheme)
and the consideration thereof;

c) Conversion of the Resulting Company 1 RPS (as defined in the Scheme) into equity shares and the subsequent reduction and
cancellation of such equity shares;

d) Conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans (as defined in the Scheme) into equity shares and the subsequent
reduction and cancellation of a part of such equity shares;

e) Reduction and cancellation of the Transferor Company 1 RPS (as defined in the Scheme).

Rationale of the Scheme

The demerqer and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings of the Demerged Companies to the Resulting Companies pursuant to the

Scheme shall, inter alia, result in following benefits:

(i) consolidation of the wireless telecom business of the Demerged Companies with the Resulting Companies provides an
opportunity to the Demerged Company 1 to acquire equity interest in the Resulting Company 1;

(i) further expanding the business of the Resulting Companies into growing markets of India, thereby creating greater value for the
shareholders of the Resulting Companies;

(i)  availability of increased resources and assets which can be utilised for strengthening the customer base of the Resulting
Companies (including the customer base of the Demerged Companies) and servicing existing as well as new customers of the
Resulting Companies innovatively and efficiently;

(iv)  augmenting the infrastructural capability of the Resulting Companies to effectively meet future challenges in the ever-evolving
wireless telecom business;

(v)  the combination of the Demerged Undertakings and the Resulting Companies is a strategic fit for serving existing market and
for catering to additional volume linked to new consumers;

(vi)  synergies in operational process and logistics alignment leading to economies of scale for the Resulting Companies and creation
of efficiencies and benefitting customers as well as optimization of operation and capital expenditure;

(vii) assisting the Resulting Companies and the Demerged Companies in strengthening their assets base while also enhancing their
financial flexibility;

(viii) enhance competitive strength, achieve cost reduction, efficiencies and productivity qains by pooling the financial, managerial
and technical resources, personnel capabilities, skills, expertise and technologies of the Resulting Companies and the Demerqed
Companies thereby significantly contributing to future growth and maximizing shareholders value;

(ix)  reducing the direct and indirect foreign shareholding in the Resulting Company 1; and

(x)  to achieve an optimal capital structure which duly represents the intrinsic value of the Resulting Company 1, through a capital

reorganization exercise which will also involve conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholders Loans which are in the
nature of long term shareholder funding for the Resulting Company 1 into equity shares and thereby strengthening the balance
sheet of the Resulting Companies for future growth and expansion and to create a capital structure which is geared to take
advantage of possible growth opportunities.
The amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme will simplify and
streamline the ownership structure of the Resulting Company 1. The proposed restructuring between the Transferor Companies
and the Transferee Company is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees and other stakeholders, of each of the
companies, as it would enable a focused business approach for the maximization of benefits to all stakeholders.

3. Valuation

The Reports on valuation have been obtained from M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, an independent valuer. The
valuations have been arrived at based on the various methodologies explained in the Report and various qualitative factors relevant
to the Business and the business dynamics and growth potentials of the business, having reqard to information base, key underlying
assumptions and limitations. The valuation has been reviewed for fairness by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited, Category-I
Merchant Banker.

As per the commercial understanding agreed between RCom Group and Aircel Group (herein referred to as “the Parties"), each of the
Parties will hold 50% stake in the combined entity (i.e. AL) on fully diluted basis with equal representation on the Board of Directors
and all Committees. It is also commercially agreed between the Parties to restrict the respective Party's debt in AL at pre-agreed
amount.

The valuation report states that the fair entitlement, for the proposed of the Demerged Undertakings of the Demerqed Companies
to the Resulting Companies, should be such that additional equity shares in the range of 97% to 105% of pre demerger share
capital of combined entity (i.e. AL) be issued to RCom. The range per valuation report of 97% to 105% signifies that the value of
RCom's business being transferred and AL is virtually equal and therefore, the Audit Committee of RCom and the Board of directors
of the Company. AL, DWL, Deccan and SACPL have concluded that it is fair and reasonable as also in the interest of RCom, RTL, AL,
DWL, Deccan and SACPL and its shareholders that RCom and the existing shareholders of AL have equal ownership holding i.e. 50%
of equity share capital in the combined entity (i.e. AL). Thus, Clause 19 "Consideration", provides that 1400,00,00,000 (Fourteen
hundred crores) Equity Shares in AL, shall be issued to RCom, which shall be equal to estimated pre demerger capital of AL. This
would ensure that both the Parties own 50% of equity share capital in the combined entity (i.e. AL), post the Scheme coming into
effect. Out of 1400,00,00,000 (Fourteen hundred crores) Equity Shares issued to RCom, 579,999,821 (five hundred and seventy
nine million nine hundred and ninety nine thousand eight hundred and twenty one) equity shares is in respect of the undertaking
demerqed from the Company.

4. Impact on key stakeholders

There is expected to be no adverse effect of the said Scheme on the key managerial personnel, directors, promoters and non-
promoter shareholders of the Company.
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AIRCEL LIMITED

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF AIRCEL LIMITED ON THE COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT AMONG

RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED, RELIANCE TELECOM LIMITED, THE COMPANY, DISHNET WIRELESS LIMITED, DECCAN

DIGITAL NETWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED AND SOUTH ASIA COMMUNICATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE

SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS ("SCHEME")

1. Background:

1.1 A meeting of the Board of Directors (‘Board') of Aircel Limited was held on 14th September, 2016 to consider and recommend
the proposed the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Reliance Communications Limited ("the Demerged Company 1" or
"RCom") and Reliance Telecom Limited ("The Demerged Company 2" or " RTL") and Aircel Limited (“the Company" or "Resulting
Company 1" or "Transferee Company” or " AL") and Dishnet Wireless Limited (“Resulting Company 2" or " DWL") and Deccan
Digital Networks Private Limited ("The Transferor Company 1" or " Deccan”) and South Asia Communications Private Limited ("The
Transferor Company 2" or " SACPL") and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Scheme").

1.2 In terms of section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013, a report from the Board of the Company explaining the effect of the
compromise on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters, and non-promoter shareholders has to be
appended with the notice of the meeting of shareholders and creditors. Further the said report has to specify any special valuation
difficulties, if any in the valuation. This report of the Board is made in order to comply with the requirements of section 232(2)
(c) of Companies Act, 2013.

1.3 While deliberating on the Scheme, the Board had, inter-alia, considered and took on record following necessary documents

(‘Documents'):

a) Draft Scheme of Arrangement among RCom, RTL, the Company, , DWL, Deccan, SACPL and their respective shareholders and

creditors;

b) Valuation Reports dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP on the proposed demerger of the
Specified Telecom Operations of Reliance Communications Limited into Aircel Limited:;

c) Valuation Reports dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP on the proposed merger of Deccan
Digital Networks Private Limited and South Asia Communications Private Limited into Aircel Limited;

d) Fairness Opinion dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited on the proposed demerger
of the Specified Telecom Operations of Reliance Communications Limited into Aircel Limited;

e) Fairness Opinion dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited on the proposed merger
of Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited and South Asia Communications Private Limited into Aircel Limited.

2. Background to the Proposed Scheme:

The Scheme, interalia, provides for the following:

a) transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings (as defined in the Scheme) from the Demerged Companies (as defined in
the Scheme) into the Resulting Companies (as defined in the Scheme), the manner of vesting of the Demerged Undertakings
and the consideration thereof;

b) Amalgamation of the Transferor Companies (as defined in the Scheme) with the Transferee Company (as defined in the
Scheme) and the consideration thereof;

c) Conversion of the Resulting Company 1 RPS (as defined in the Scheme) into equity shares and the subsequent reduction and
cancellation of such equity shares;

d) Conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans (as defined in the Scheme) into equity shares and the subsequent
reduction and cancellation of a part of such equity shares;

e) Reduction and cancellation of the Transferor Company 1 RPS (as defined in the Scheme).

Rationale of the Scheme

The demerger and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings of the Demerged Companies to the Resulting Companies pursuant to

the Scheme shall, inter alia, result in following benefits:

(i) consolidation of the wireless telecom business of the Demerged Companies with the Resulting Companies provides an
opportunity to the Demerged Company 1 to acquire equity interest in the Resulting Company 1;

(ii) further expanding the business of the Resulting Companies into growing markets of India, thereby creating greater value for
the shareholders of the Resulting Companies;

(iii) availability of increased resources and assets which can be utilised for strengthening the customer base of the Resulting
Companies (including the customer base of the Demerged Companies) and servicing existing as well as new customers of the
Resulting Companies innovatively and efficiently;

(iv) augmenting the infrastructural capability of the Resulting Companies to effectively meet future challenges in the ever-

evolving wireless telecom business;

(v) the combination of the Demerged Undertakings and the Resulting Companies is a strategic fit for serving existing market and
for catering to additional volume linked to new consumers;

(vi) synergies in operational process and logistics alignment leading to economies of scale for the Resulting Companies and
creation of efficiencies and benefitting customers as well as optimization of operation and capital expenditure;

(vii) assisting the Resulting Companies and the Demerged Companies in strengthening their assets base while also enhancing their

financial flexibility;

(vii)  enhance competitive strength, achieve cost reduction, efficiencies and productivity gains by pooling the financial,

managerial and technical resources, personnel capabilities, skills, expertise and technologies of the Resulting Companies
and the Demerged Companies thereby significantly contributing to future growth and maximizing shareholders value;
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(ix) reducing the direct and indirect foreign shareholding in the Resulting Company 1; and

(x) to achieve an optimal capital structure which duly represents the intrinsic value of the Resulting Company 1, through a capital
reorqanization exercise which willalsoinvolve conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholders Loans which are in the nature of
long term shareholder funding for the Resulting Company 1 into equity shares and thereby strengthening the balance sheet of the
Resulting Companies for future growth and expansion and to create a capital structure which is geared to take advantage of possible
growth opportunities.

The amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme will simplify and streamline

the ownership structure of the Resulting Company 1. The proposed restructuring between the Transferor Companies and the

Transferee Company is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees and other stakeholders, of each of the companies,

as it would enable a focused business approach for the maximization of benefits to all stakeholders.

Valuation

The Reports on valuation have been obtained from M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, an independent valuer.

The valuations have been arrived at based on the various methodologies explained in the Report and various qualitative factors

relevant to the Business and the business dynamics and growth potentials of the business, having reqard to information base, key

underlying assumptions and limitations. The valuation has been reviewed for fairness by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited,

Cateqory-I Merchant Banker.

As per the commercial understanding agreed between RCom Group and Aircel Group (herein referred to as "the Parties"), each of

the Parties will hold 50% stake in the combined entity (i.e. AL) on fully diluted basis with equal representation on the Board of

Directors and all Committees. It is also commercially agreed between the Parties to restrict the respective Party's debt in AL at

pre-aqreed amount.

Demerger

The valuation report states that the fair entitlement, for the proposed of the Demerged Undertakings of the Demerged Companies

to the Resulting Companies, should be such that additional equity shares in the range of 97% to 105% of pre demerger share

capital of combined entity (i.e. AL) be issued to RCom. The range per valuation report of 97% to 105% signifies that the value of

RCom's business being transferred and AL is virtually equal and therefore, the Audit Committee of RCom and the Board of directors

of RCom, RTL, AL, DWL, Deccan and SACPL have concluded that it is fair and reasonable as also in the interest of RCom, RTL,

AL, DWL, Deccan and SACPL and its shareholders that RCom and the existing shareholders of AL have equal ownership holding

i.e. 50% of equity share capital in the combined entity (i.e. AL). Thus, Clause 19 "Consideration", provides that 1400,00,00,000

(Fourteen hundred crores) Equity Shares in AL, shall be issued to RCom, which shall be equal to estimated pre demerger capital

of AL. This would ensure that both the Parties own 50% of equity share capital in the combined entity (i.e AL), post the Scheme

coming into effect.

Merger of Deccan into AL

The valuation report states that the fair entitlement for the proposed merger of Deccan into AL should be 187 equity shares of

Rs 10 each fully paid up for every 100 shares of Deccan of Rs 10 each fully paid up. The Management is of the view that the

same is fair and reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders.

Merger of SACPL into AL

24,49,999 equity shares of AL of Rs 10 each fully paid up should be issued to Global Communications Services Holdings Limited

("GCSHL") for its holding in Redeemable Preference Shares of SACPL. As per their computation, no consideration is to be paid to

the equity shares of SACPL. However, it was decided to issue 1 (One) equity share of AL of Rs.10 each to GCSHL for its holding

in equity shares of SACPL as token consideration. The Management is of the view that the same is fair and reasonable and in the

interest of the shareholders.

Impact on key stakeholders

There is expected to be no adverse effect of the said Scheme on the key managqerial personnel, directors, promoters and non-

promoter shareholders of the Company.
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DISHNET WIRELESS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DISHNET WIRELESS LIMITED ON THE COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

AMONG RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED, RELIANCE TELECOM LIMITED, AIRCEL LIMITED, THE COMPANY, DECCAN

DIGITAL NETWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED AND SOUTH ASIA COMMUNICATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE

SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS ("SCHEME")

1. Background:

1.1 A meeting of the Board of Directors (‘Board') of Dishnet Wireless Limited was held on 14th September, 2016 to consider and
recommend the proposed the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Reliance Communications Limited ("the Demerged
Company 1" or "RCom") and Reliance Telecom Limited (“The Demerged Company 2" or " RTL") and Aircel Limited ("Resulting
Company 1" or "Transferee Company” or "AL") and Dishnet Wireless Limited (“Resulting Company 2" or " DWL" or "the Company")
and Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited ("The Transferor Company 1" or " Deccan") and South Asia Communications Private
Limited ("The Transferor Company 2" or " SACPL") and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Scheme").

1.2 In terms of section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013, a report from the Board of the Company explaining the effect of the
compromise on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters, and non-promoter shareholders has to be
appended with the notice of the meeting of shareholders and creditors. Further the said report has to specify any special valuation
difficulties, if any in the valuation. This report of the Board is made in order to comply with the requirements of section 232(2)
(c) of Companies Act, 2013.

1.3 While deliberating on the Scheme, the Board had, inter-alia, considered and took on record following necessary documents

(‘Documents'):

a) Draft Scheme of Arrangement among RCom, RTL, AL, the Company, Deccan and SACPL and their respective shareholders and

creditors;

b) Valuation Report dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP on the proposed merger of Deccan
Digital Networks Private Limited and South Asia Communications Private Limited into Aircel Limited;

c) Fairness Opinion dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited on the proposed merger
of Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited and South Asia Communications Private Limited into Aircel Limited.

2. Background to the Proposed Scheme:

The Scheme, interalia, provides for the following:

a) transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings (as defined in the Scheme) from the Demerged Companies (as defined
in the Scheme) into the Resulting Companies (as defined in the Scheme) , the manner of vesting of the Demerged
Undertakings and the consideration thereof;

b) Amalgamation of the Transferor Companies (as defined in the Scheme) with the Transferee Company (as defined in the
Scheme) and the consideration thereof;

c) Conversion of the Resulting Company 1 RPS (as defined in the Scheme) into equity shares and the subsequent reduction and
cancellation of such equity shares;

d) Conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans (as defined in the Scheme) into equity shares and the subsequent
reduction and cancellation of a part of such equity shares;

e) Reduction and cancellation of the Transferor Company 1 RPS (as defined in the Scheme).

Rationale of the Scheme

The demerqer and vesting of the Demerqged Undertakings of the Demerged Companies to the Resulting Companies pursuant to

the Scheme shall, inter alia, result in following benefits:

(i) consolidation of the wireless telecom business of the Demerged Companies with the Resulting Companies provides an
opportunity to the Demerged Company 1 to acquire equity interest in the Resulting Company 1;

(ii) further expanding the business of the Resulting Companies into growing markets of India, thereby creating greater value for
the shareholders of the Resulting Companies;

(iii) availability of increased resources and assets which can be utilised for strengthening the customer base of the Resulting
Companies (including the customer base of the Demerged Companies) and servicing existing as well as new customers of the
Resulting Companies innovatively and efficiently;

(iv) augmenting the infrastructural capability of the Resulting Companies to effectively meet future challenges in the ever-

evolving wireless telecom business;

(v) the combination of the Demerqged Undertakings and the Resulting Companies is a strategic fit for serving existing market and
for catering to additional volume linked to new consumers;

(vi) synergies in operational process and logistics alignment leading to economies of scale for the Resulting Companies and
creation of efficiencies and benefitting customers as well as optimization of operation and capital expenditure;

(vii) assisting the Resulting Companies and the Demerged Companies in strengthening their assets base while also enhancing their

financial flexibility;

(vii)  enhance competitive strength, achieve cost reduction, efficiencies and productivity gains by pooling the financial,
managerial and technical resources, personnel capabilities, skills, expertise and technologies of the Resulting Companies
and the Demerged Companies thereby significantly contributing to future growth and maximizing shareholders value;

(ix) reducing the direct and indirect foreign shareholding in the Resulting Company 1; and

(x) to achieve an optimal capital structure which duly represents the intrinsic value of the Resulting Company 1, through a
capital reorqanization exercise which will also involve conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholders Loans which are
in the nature of long term shareholder funding for the Resulting Company 1 into equity shares and thereby strengthening the
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balance sheet of the Resulting Companies for future growth and expansion and to create a capital structure which is geared
to take advantage of possible growth opportunities.
The amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme will simplify and streamline
the ownership structure of the Resulting Company 1. The proposed restructuring between the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees and other stakeholders, of each of the companies,
as it would enable a focused business approach for the maximization of benefits to all stakeholders.
3. Valuation

The Reports on valuation have been obtained from M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, an independent valuer.
The valuations have been arrived at based on the various methodologies explained in the Report and various qualitative factors
relevant to the Business and the business dynamics and growth potentials of the business, having reqard to information base, key
underlying assumptions and limitations. The valuation has been reviewed for fairness by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited,
Cateqory-I Merchant Banker.
As per the commercial understanding agreed between RCom Group and Aircel Group (herein referred to as "the Parties"), each of
the Parties will hold 50% stake in the combined entity (i.e. AL) on fully diluted basis with equal representation on the Board of
Directors and all Committees. It is also commercially agreed between the Parties to restrict the respective Party's debt in AL at
pre-agreed amount.
Demerger
The valuation report states that the fair entitlement, for the proposed of the Demerged Undertakings of the Demerged Companies
to the Resulting Companies, should be such that additional equity shares in the range of 97% to 105% of pre demerger share
capital of combined entity (i.e. AL) be issued to RCom. The range per valuation report of 97% to 105% signifies that the value of
RCom's business being transferred and AL is virtually equal and therefore, the Audit Committee of RCom and the Board of directors
of RCom, RTL, AL, DWL, Deccan and SACPL have concluded that it is fair and reasonable as also in the interest of RCom, RTL,
AL, DWL, Deccan and SACPL and its shareholders that RCom and the existing shareholders of AL have equal ownership holding
i.e. 50% of equity share capital in the combined entity (i.e. AL). Thus, Clause 19 "Consideration", provides that 1400,00,00,000
(Fourteen hundred crores) Equity Shares in AL, shall be issued to RCom, which shall be equal to estimated pre demerger capital
of AL. This would ensure that both the Parties own 50% of equity share capital in the combined entity (i.e. AL), post the Scheme
coming into effect. Out of 1400,00,00,000 (Fourteen hundred crores) Equity Shares issued to RCom by AL directly, the Company
will issue 535,29,80,622 (five hundred thirty five crores twenty nine lakhs eighty thousand six hundred and twenty two) and
579,999,821 (five hundred and seventy nine million nine hundred and ninety nine thousand eight hundred and twenty one)
equity shares to AL as reimbursement of amount discharged by AL to RCom on an aggreqate basis.

4. Impact on key stakeholders
There is expected to be no adverse effect of the said Scheme on the key managerial personnel, directors, promoters and non-
promoter shareholders of the Company.

DECCAN DIGITAL NETWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DECCAN DIGITAL NETWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE COMPOSITE SCHEME OF
ARRANGEMENT AMONG RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED, RELIANCE TELECOM LIMITED, AIRCEL LIMITED, DISHNET
WIRELESS LIMITED, THE COMPANY AND SOUTH ASIA COMMUNICATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE
SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS (“SCHEME")

1. Background:

1.1 A meeting of the Board of Directors (‘Board') of Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited was held on 14th September, 2016
to consider and recommend the proposed the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Reliance Communications Limited
("the Demerged Company 1" or "RCom") and Reliance Telecom Limited ("the Demerged Company 2" or " RTL") and Aircel
Limited ("Resulting Company 1" or "Transferee Company" or " AL") and Dishnet Wireless Limited ("Resulting Company 2" or "
DWL") and Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited (“the Company" or "the Transferor Company 1" or " Deccan") and South
Asia Communications Private Limited ( “"the Transferor Company 2" or " SACPL") and their respective shareholders and creditors
("Scheme").

1.2 In terms of section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013, a report from the Board of the Company explaining the effect of the
compromise on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters, and non-promoter shareholders has to be
appended with the notice of the meeting of shareholders and creditors. Further the said report has to specify any special valuation
difficulties, if any in the valuation. This report of the Board is made in order to comply with the requirements of section 232(2)
(c) of Companies Act, 2013.

1.3 While deliberating on the Scheme, the Board had, inter-alia, considered and took on record following necessary documents
(‘Documents'):

a) Draft Scheme of Arrangement among RCom, RTL, AL, DWL, the Company and SACPL and their respective shareholders and
creditors;

b) Valuation Reports dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP on the proposed merger of Deccan
Digital Networks Private Limited and South Asia Communications Private Limited into Aircel Limited;
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c) Fairness Opinion dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited on the proposed merger
of Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited and South Asia Communications Private Limited into Aircel Limited.

2. Background to the Proposed Scheme:
The Scheme, interalia, provides for the following:

a) transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings (as defined in the Scheme) from the Demerged Companies (as defined in
the Scheme) into the Resulting Companies (as defined in the Scheme), the manner of vesting of the Demerged Undertakings
and the consideration thereof;

b) Amalgamation of the Transferor Companies (as defined in the Scheme) with the Transferee Company (as defined in the
Scheme) and the consideration thereof;

c) Conversion of the Resulting Company 1 RPS (as defined in the Scheme) into equity shares and the subsequent reduction and
cancellation of such equity shares;

d) Conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans (as defined in the Scheme) into equity shares and the subsequent
reduction and cancellation of a part of such equity shares;

e) Reduction and cancellation of the Transferor Company 1 RPS (as defined in the Scheme).
Rationale of the Scheme

The demerger and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings of the Demerged Companies to the Resulting Companies pursuant to
the Scheme shall, inter alia, result in following benefits:

(i) consolidation of the wireless telecom business of the Demerged Companies with the Resulting Companies provides an
opportunity to the Demerged Company 1 to acquire equity interest in the Resulting Company 1;

(ii) further expanding the business of the Resulting Companies into growing markets of India, thereby creating greater value for
the shareholders of the Resulting Companies;

(iii) availability of increased resources and assets which can be utilised for strengthening the customer base of the Resulting
Companies (including the customer base of the Demerged Companies) and servicing existing as well as new customers of the
Resulting Companies innovatively and efficiently;

(iv) augmenting the infrastructural capability of the Resulting Companies to effectively meet future challenges in the ever-
evolving wireless telecom business;

(v) the combination of the Demerged Undertakings and the Resulting Companies is a strategic fit for serving existing market and
for catering to additional volume linked to new consumers;

(vi) synergies in operational process and logistics alignment leading to economies of scale for the Resulting Companies and
creation of efficiencies and benefitting customers as well as optimization of operation and capital expenditure;

(vii) assisting the Resulting Companies and the Demerged Companies in strengthening their assets base while also enhancing their
financial flexibility;
(viii) enhance competitive strength, achieve cost reduction, efficiencies and productivity qains by pooling the financial,
managerial and technical resources, personnel capabilities, skills, expertise and technologies of the Resulting Companies
and the Demerged Companies thereby significantly contributing to future growth and maximizing shareholders value;

(ix) reducing the direct and indirect foreign shareholding in the Resulting Company 1; and

(x) to achieve an optimal capital structure which duly represents the intrinsic value of the Resulting Company 1, through a
capital reorganization exercise which will also involve conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholders Loans which are
in the nature of long term shareholder funding for the Resulting Company 1 into equity shares and thereby strengthening the
balance sheet of the Resulting Companies for future growth and expansion and to create a capital structure which is geared
to take advantage of possible growth opportunities.

The amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme will simplify and streamline
the ownership structure of the Resulting Company 1. The proposed restructuring between the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees and other stakeholders, of each of the companies,
as it would enable a focused business approach for the maximization of benefits to all stakeholders.
3. Valuation

The Reports on valuation have been obtained from M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, an independent valuer.
The valuations have been arrived at based on the various methodologies explained in the Report and various qualitative factors
relevant to the Business and the business dynamics and growth potentials of the business, having reqard to information base, key
underlying assumptions and limitations. The valuation has been reviewed for fairness by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited,
Categqory-I Merchant Banker.

The valuation report states that the fair entitlement for the proposed merger of Deccan into AL should be 187 equity shares of
Rs 10 each fully paid up for every 100 shares of Deccan of Rs 10 each fully paid up. The Management is of the view that the
same is fair and reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders.

4. Impact on key stakeholders

There is expected to be no adverse effect of the said Scheme on the key manaqgerial personnel, directors, promoters and non-
promoter shareholders of the Company.
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SOUTH ASIA COMMUNICATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SOUTH ASIA COMMUNICATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE COMPOSITE SCHEME
OF ARRANGEMENT AMONG THE RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED, RELIANCE TELECOM LIMITED, AIRCEL LIMITED,
DISHNET WIRELESS LIMITED, DECCAN DIGITAL NETWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED AND THE COMPANY AND THEIR RESPECTIVE
SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS ("SCHEME")

1. Background:

1.1 A meeting of the Board of Directors (‘Board') of South Asia Communications Private Limited was held on 14th September, 2016
to consider and recommend the proposed the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Reliance Communications Limited
("the Demerged Company 1" or "RCom") and Reliance Telecom Limited ("The Demerged Company 2" or " RTL") and Aircel Limited
( "Resulting Company 1" or "Transferee Company” or " AL") and Dishnet Wireless Limited ("Resulting Company 2" or " DWL")
and Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited ("The Transferor Company 1" or " Deccan”) and South Asia Communications Private
Limited ("the Company” or "The Transferor Company 2" or " SACPL") and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Scheme").

1.2 In terms of section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013, a report from the Board of the Company explaining the effect of the
compromise on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters, and non-promoter shareholders has to be
appended with the notice of the meeting of shareholders and creditors. Further the said report has to specify any special valuation
difficulties, if any in the valuation. This report of the Board is made in order to comply with the requirements of section 232(2)
(c) of Companies Act, 2013.

1.3 While deliberating on the Scheme, the Board had, inter-alia, considered and took on record following necessary documents

(‘Documents'):

a. Draft Scheme of Arrangement among the Company, RTL, RCom, AL, DWL and Deccan and their respective shareholders and
creditors;

b. Valuation Reports dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP on the proposed demerger of the
Specified Telecom Operations of Reliance Communications Limited into Aircel Limited:;

c. Fairness Opinion dated 14th September, 2016 issued by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited on the proposed demerger
of the Specified Telecom Operations of Reliance Communications Limited into Aircel Limited.

2. Background to the Proposed Scheme:
The Scheme, interalia, provides for the following:

a) transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings (as defined in the Scheme) from the Demerged Companies (as defined in
the Scheme) into the Resulting Companies (as defined in the Scheme), the manner of vesting of the Demerged Undertakings
and the consideration thereof;

b) Amalgamation of the Transferor Companies (as defined in the Scheme) with the Transferee Company (as defined in the
Scheme) and the consideration thereof;

c) Conversion of the Resulting Company 1 RPS (as defined in the Scheme) into equity shares and the subsequent reduction and
cancellation of such equity shares;

d) Conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholder Loans (as defined in the Scheme) into equity shares and the subsequent
reduction and cancellation of a part of such equity shares;

e) Reduction and cancellation of the Transferor Company 1 RPS (as defined in the Scheme).
Rationale of the Scheme

The demerger and vesting of the Demerged Undertakings of the Demerged Companies to the Resulting Companies pursuant to
the Scheme shall, inter alia, result in following benefits:

(i) consolidation of the wireless telecom business of the Demerged Companies with the Resulting Companies provides an
opportunity to the Demerged Company 1 to acquire equity interest in the Resulting Company 1;

(ii) further expanding the business of the Resulting Companies into growing markets of India, thereby creating greater value for
the shareholders of the Resulting Companies;

(iii) availability of increased resources and assets which can be utilised for strengthening the customer base of the Resulting
Companies (including the customer base of the Demerged Companies) and servicing existing as well as new customers of the
Resulting Companies innovatively and efficiently;

(iv) augmenting the infrastructural capability of the Resulting Companies to effectively meet future challenges in the ever-
evolving wireless telecom business;

(v) the combination of the Demerged Undertakings and the Resulting Companies is a strategic fit for serving existing market and
for catering to additional volume linked to new consumers;

(vi) synergies in operational process and logistics alignment leading to economies of scale for the Resulting Companies and
creation of efficiencies and benefitting customers as well as optimization of operation and capital expenditure;

(vii) assisting the Resulting Companies and the Demerged Companies in strengthening their assets base while also enhancing their
financial flexibility;

(vii)enhance competitive strength, achieve cost reduction, efficiencies and productivity gains by pooling the financial, managerial
and technical resources, personnel capabilities, skills, expertise and technologies of the Resulting Companies and the
Demerged Companies thereby significantly contributing to future growth and maximizing shareholders value;
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(ix) reducing the direct and indirect foreign shareholding in the Resulting Company 1; and

(x) to achieve an optimal capital structure which duly represents the intrinsic value of the Resulting Company 1, through a
capital reorganization exercise which will also involve conversion of the Resulting Company 1 Shareholders Loans which are
in the nature of long term shareholder funding for the Resulting Company 1 into equity shares and thereby strengthening the
balance sheet of the Resulting Companies for future growth and expansion and to create a capital structure which is geared
to take advantage of possible growth opportunities.

The amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme will simplify and streamline
the ownership structure of the Resulting Company 1. The proposed restructuring between the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors, employees and other stakeholders, of each of the companies,
as it would enable a focused business approach for the maximization of benefits to all stakeholders.

Valuation

The Reports on valuation have been obtained from M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, an independent valuer.
The valuations have been arrived at based on the various methodologies explained in the Report and various qualitative factors
relevant to the Business and the business dynamics and growth potentials of the business, having reqard to information base, key
underlying assumptions and limitations. The valuation has been reviewed for fairness by M/s. Keynote Corporate Services Limited,
Category-I Merchant Banker.

The valuation report states that the fair entitlement for the proposed merger of Deccan into AL should be 187 equity shares of
Rs 10 each fully paid up for every 100 shares of Deccan of Rs 10 each fully paid up. Further, 24,49,999 equity shares of AL
of Rs 10 each fully paid up should be issued to Global Communications Services Holdings Limited for its holding in Redeemable
Preference Shares of SACPL. As per their computation, no consideration is to be paid to the equity shares of SACPL. The
Management is of the view that the same is fair and reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders.

Impact on key stakeholders

There is expected to be no adverse effect of the said Scheme on the key manaqerial personnel, directors, promoters and non-
promoter shareholders of the Company.
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Reliance Communications Limited

Supplementary Unaudited Accounting Statements as at September 30, 2016

RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

Unaudited Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2016

ASSETS
Non Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capital Work in Progress
(c) Investment Property
(d) Other Intangible Assets
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(i) Loans
(iii) Others

(g) Income Tax
(h) Deferred tax Assets (net)
(i) Other Non Current Assets

Current Assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(i) Trade Receivable
(iii) Cash and Cash equivalents
(iv) Loans
(v) Others

(c) Other Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity

LIABILITIES
Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Deferred Payment Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Provisions
(c) Other Non Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Trade Payables
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Other Current Liabilities
(c) Provisions

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

2.01
2.02
2.03
2.04

2.05
2.06
2.07

2.08

2.09

2.10
2.1
212
213
214

215

2.16
217

218

2.19
2.20

2.21
2.22

2.23
2.24
2.25

2.26
2.27

(X in crore)

14,669
1,075
3
15,241

17,090
2,719
76
19,885
218
1,966
4,670

63

4,712
1,567
578
4,294
497
11,648
5,591

1,244
24,351

22,363
1,374
18

224
23,979
29

92

4,132
4,096
10,000
18,228
5,872
1,234

As at

September 30, 2016

57,727

17,302

75,029

25,595

24,100

25,334

75,029



RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

Unaudited Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended September 30, 2016

(X in crore)
Notes For the period ended
September 30, 2016
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 2.28 4,694
Other Income 2.29 184
Total Income 4,878
EXPENDITURE
Access Charges, License Fees and Network Expenses 2.30 3,903
Employee Benefits Expenses 2.31 101
Finance Costs 2.32 1,223
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 1,210
Depreciation/ Amortisation adjusted against General Reserve Il (465)
Other Expenses 2.33 642
Total Expenses 6,614
Profit/ (Loss) before Exceptional items, Tax and Adjustments (1,736)
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (1,736)
Provision for
- Short provisions of earlier years -
- Deferred Tax charge/ (credit) (313)
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (1,423)
Other Comprehensive Income
Measurement of defined benefit plans -
Total Comprehensive Income (1,423)
Note: 2.01 Property, Plant and Equipment (X in crore)
particulars Leasehold Freehold Buildings Plant and Office Furniture and Vehicles Total
Land Land Machinery | Equipments Fixtures
Gross carrying value
As at March 31, 2016 5 400 400 25,100 23 40 45 26,013
Additions - - - 804 - - - 804
Disposals - - (42) (1) - - - (43)
As at Sept 30, 2016 5 400 358 25,903 23 40 45 26,774
Accumulated Depreciation
As at March 31, 2016 1 - 119 11,446 22 39 43 11,670
Depreciation for the year - - 7 446 - - - 453
Disposals - - (18) - - - - (18)
As at Sept 30, 2016 1 - 108 11,892 22 39 43 12,105
Closing net carrying value as at 4 400 250 14,011 1 1 2 14,669

Sept 30, 2016
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RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Notes on Accounts to Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss
(X in crore)
Note: 2.02 Capital Work in Progress As at
September 30, 2016

Capital Work in Progress 1,075

Note: 2.03 Investment Property
Gross carrying value

As at March 31, 2016 3
Additions -
Transfer from CWIP -
Disposals -
As at Sept 30, 2016 3

Accumulated Depreciation
As at March 31, 2016

Depreciation for the period 0

Disposals 0

Exchange Differences 0

As at Sept 30, 2016 0

Closing net carrying value as at Sept 30, 2016 3
Note: 2.04 Other Intangible Assets (% in crore)

Indefeasible Telecom
Particulars Right of . Software Brand License Total
L. Licenses
Connectivity

Gross carrying value
As at March 31, 2016 252 25,756 397 169 26,574
Additions for the period - 8,584 19 - 8,603
Disposals - (10,803) - - (10,803)
As at Sept 30, 2016 252 23,537 416 169 24,374
Accumulated Depreciation
As at March 31, 2016 152 14,439 339 125 15,055
Depreciation for the period 7 731 15 4 757
Disposals - (6,679) - - (6,679)
As at Sept 30, 2016 159 8,491 354 129 9,133
Closing net carrying value as at Sept 30, 2016 93 15,046 62 40 15,241
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Reliance Communications Limited
Notes on Accounts to Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss

Note: 2.05

Non Current Investments

Trade Investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
In Equity Shares of Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies

Unquoted, fully paid up
9,38,00,00,000

50,00,000

6,87,066
50,000

50,000
1,00,00,000
35,63,601
50,000

20,00,000

Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited of
31 each

Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Limited of ¥ 10
each

Reliance Wimax Limited of ¥ 10 each

Reliance Bhutan Limited of ¥ 10 each ¥ 5,00,000

Reliance Webstore Limited of ¥ 10 each

3 5,00,000

Reliance Big TV Limited of ¥ 10 each

Campion Properties Limited of ¥ 10 each
Reliance Tech Services Limited of ¥ 10 each X
5,00,000

Reliance Mobile Commerce Limited of ¥ 10 each

In Equity Shares of Subsidiary Companies

Unquoted, fully paid up
6,69,80,100
14,516
12,00,000

1,00,000

Reliance Telecom Limited of ¥ 10 each

Reliance Globalcom BV of Euro 100 each
Reliance Globalcom Limited, Bermuda Class A
Common Shares of USD 0.01 each

Gateway Net Trading Pte. Limited of USD 1 each %
46,78,250

In Equity Shares of Companies

Unquoted, fully paid up
6,50,25,000

13,000

Warf Telecom International Private Limited of MRF
1 each

Mumbai Metro Transport Private Limited of X 10
each ¥ 1,30,000

In Preference Shares of Subsidiary Companies
In Government Securities (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Unquoted

6 years National Savings Certificate ¥ 45,000
(Lodged with Sales Tax Department)

5 1/2 years Kisan Vikas Patra X 5,000
(Lodged with Chennai Metropolitan Development Authority)

Aggregate Book Value of Investments

Unquoted
Quoted
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(R in crore)
As at
September 30, 2016

8,734
1,036
8
10
9

2 9,799
521
6,515
233

- 7,269
22

- 22

17,090

17,090

17,090



Reliance Communications Limited
Notes on Accounts to Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss

Note: 2.06

Loans (Non Current Financial Assets)
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless stated otherwise)

Loans to Related Parties

Note: 2.07

Other (Non Current Financial Assets)
Interest Accrued on Investments
Fixed Deposit

Note: 2.08
Other Non Current Assets
Capital Advances

Note: 2.09
Inventories
Stores and Spares
(valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is less)

Note: 2.10

Investments (Current Financial Assets)
In Government Securities (Quoted) (valued at fair value)

34,000 6.83% GOI 2039 of 3100 each fully paid up < 29,79,205

In Preference Shares of Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Unquoted, fully paid up (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

(X in crore)
As at
September 30, 2016

2,719

25
51
76

4,670
4,670

63

(R in crore)

As at

September 30, 2016

20,000 8 % Redeemable, Cumulative Preference Shares of Reliance
Communications Infrastructure Limited of ¥ 10 each ¥ 2,00,000
10,00,000 0 % Redeemable, Non Cumulative, Non Convertible Preference Shares of

Reliance WiMax Limited of ¥ 10 each

In Preference Shares of Subsidiary Companies
Unquoted, fully paid up (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

100

4,50,00,000 1% Redeemable, Non Cumulative, Non Convertible Preference Shares of

Reliance Telecom Limited of 10 each

52 1% Redeemable, Non Cumulative, Non Convertible Preference Shares of

Reliance Globalcom BV of Euro 1 each
% 29,85,060

22,143 8% Redeemable, Non Cumulative, Non Convertible, Preference Shares of

Reliance Globalcom BV of Euro 1 each

4,00,00,000 0.10% Redeemable, Non Cumulative, Non Convertible Preference Shares

of Reliance Infratel Limited of ¥ 10 each

Aggregate Book Value of Investments
Quoted ¥ 29,79,205
Unquoted
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445

167

100

4,612

4,712

4,712
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RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Notes on Accounts to Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss
(X in crore)

As at
September 30, 2016

Note: 2.11
Trade Receivables (Unsecured)(Current Financial Assets)

Considered good 1,567
Considered doubtful 1,486
3,053
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 1,486 1,567
1,567
Note: 2.12
Cash and Cash equivalents
Cheques on Hand 43
Balances with Banks 275
Earmarked Balance- Unpaid Dividend 5
Bank Deposits with less than 3 months' maturity 143
Bank Deposits with less than 12 months' maturity 112
578
Note: 2.13 As at

Loans (Current Financial Assets)
(Unsecured, Considered good unless stated otherwise)

September 30, 2016

Loans to Related Parties 4,294
Note: 2.14
Others (Current Financial Assets)
Deposits 19
Interest Accrued on Loans and Investments 114
Unbilled Revenue 364
497
Note: 2.15
Other Current Assets
Advances to Related Parties 253
Deposits 2,017
Others
Considered good 3,321
Considered doubtful 85
3,406
Less: Provision for doubtful advances 85 3,321
5,591
Note: 2.16 As at

Share Capital
Authorised

September 30, 2016

5,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares of X 5 each 2,500
2,500

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up
2,48,89,79,745 Equity Shares of X 5 each fully paid up 1,244
1,244
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RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Notes on Accounts to Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss

Note: 2.17

Other Equity
Capital Reserve X 5,00,000

Securities Premium Account
Debenture Redemption Reserve
General Reserve |
General Reserve Il
General Reserve Il
As per last Balance Sheet
Less: Transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss for depreciation/ amortisation on
fair value of assets
Reserve for Business Restructuring
Treasury Shares Receivables
Foreign Currency Monetary Items Translation Difference Account
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

As per last Balance Sheet
Add : Profit/ (Loss) for the period

Note: 2.18

(X in crore)
As at
September 30, 2016

13,894
590
5,538
2,785
8,647
465 8,182
1,287
(391)
(820)
(5,291)
(1,423)  (6,714)
_ 24,351
As at

September 30, 2016

Borrowings (Non Current Financial Liabilities)

Debentures

Secured

3,000, 11.20 % Redeemable, Non Convertible Debentures of X 1 crore each
1,500, 11.25 % Redeemable, Non Convertible Debentures of X 1 crore each

6.5% Senior Secured Notes

Term Loans

Secured
Foreign Currency Loans from Banks
Rupee Term Loan from Banks
Rupee Loans from Others
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750

1,972

9,895
6,378
368

22,363



RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Notes on Accounts to Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss
(X in crore)
Note: 2.19 As at
September 30, 2016
Trade Payable (Non Current Financial Liabilities)

Capital Creditors 18
Note: 2.20
Other Non Current Financial Liability
Interest accrued but not due 224
Note: 2.21
Provisions (Non Current Liablities)
Retirement Benefits 29
Note: 2.22
Other Non Current Liabilities
Income Received in Advance 92
92
Note: 2.23
Borrowings (Unsecured unless stated otherwise)
From Banks
Rupee Loans (Secured) 1,517
Foreign Currency Loans 410
Rupee Loans 1,400
From Others 805
4,132
Note: 2.24 As at

September 30, 2016
Trade Payables

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises 19
Others 4,077
4,096

Note: 2.25 As at

September 30, 2016
Other Financial Liabilities (Unsecured unless stated otherwise)
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts

Foreign Currency Loans from Banks (Secured) 4,046

Rupee Term Loan 61

Rupee Term Loan (Secured) 3,856

11.60% Redeemable, Non Convertible Debentures (Secured) 500

11.25% Redeemable, Non Convertible Debentures (Secured) 375 8,838
Others

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 312

Payable to tax authorities 318
Unclaimed Dividend 5
Employee Stock Options 1

Capital Creditors 526 1,162

10,000
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RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

Notes on Accounts to Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss

Note: 2.26

Other Current Liabilities (Unsecured unless stated otherwise)
Income Received in advance
Other Liabilities

Note: 2.27

Provisions

Provision for Employee benefits
Retirement Benefits

Others

Disputed Claims and Others

Wealth Tax (net of taxes paid) ¥ 23,82,817
Income Tax

Note: 2.28
Revenue From Operations

Sale of Services
Less: Service Tax

Note: 2.29
Other Income

Rent
Miscellaneous Income
Interest Income & Dividend Income

Note: 2.30
Access Charges, License Fees and Network Expenses

Access Charges

License Fees

Infrastructure Charges

Network Repairs and Maintenance
Stores and Spares Consumed
Power, Fuel and Utilities

Other Network Operating Expenses

Note: 2.31
Employee Benefits Expenses
Salaries (including managerial remuneration)

Contribution to Provident, Gratuity and Superannuation Fund
Employee Welfare and Other Amenities

143

(X in crore)

As at
September 30, 2016

510
5,362

5,872

1,215

12 1,227

1,234

For the period ended
September 30, 2016

5,446
752 4,694

4,694

2
29
153

184

For the period ended
September 30, 2016

1,595
316
1,074
333
16
464
105

3,903

85

10
101



RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

Notes on Accounts to Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss

Note: 2.32
Finance Costs

Interest and Other Charges on Term Loans
Interest on Other Loans

Other Financial Cost

Note: 2.33

Other Expenses

Selling, Marketing and Distribution Expenses

Provision for Doubtful Debts
Insurance

Rent, Rates and Taxes
Other Repairs

Travelling

Professional Fees

Loss on Sale of Capital Work in Progress

Hire Charges
Data Warehousing Charges

Other General and Administrative Expenses

Payment to Auditors
- Statutory Audit Fees
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(X in crore)

For the period ended
September 30, 2016

660
427 1,087
136
1,223

For the period ended
September 30, 2016

178
54
41
1
5
40
170
9
51
85 407
3
642



Reliance Telecom Limited
Supplementary Unaudited Accounting Statements as at September 30, 2016

Reliance Telecom Limited

Unaudited Interim Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2016

(Xin Crore)
Notes As at
September 30, 2016
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2.01 3,450.01
(b) Capital Work in Progress 2.02 150.75
(c) Other Intangible Assets 2.02 3,040.43
(d) Intangible Assets under Development 2.04 869.37
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 2.03 5.25
(f) Deferred Tax Asset (net) 29.31
(g) Other Non Current Assets 2.04 77.47
(h) Income Tax Assets (net) 2.05 114.77 7,737.36
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 2.06 5.77
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 2.07 56.19
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.08 3.46
(iii) Other Financial Assets 2.09 39.34
(c) Other Current Assets 210 1,587.44 1,692.20
Total Assets 9,429.56
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 2.1 85.00
(b) Other Equity (1,314.07) (1,229.07)
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 212 1,956.91
(i) Deferred Payment Liablities 1,921.48
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 213 298.12
(b) Provisions 214 0.90 4,177.41
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 215 4,867.99
(i) Trade Payables 2.16 627.55
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 217 708.13
(b) Other Current Liabilities 218 277.37
(c) Provisions 219 0.18 6,481.22
Total Equity and Liabilities 9,429.56
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Reliance Telecom Limited

Unaudited Interim Statement of Profit and Loss for Six months ended September 30, 2016

Vi

\'Al
Vil

X1

INCOME

Revenue from Operations
Other Income
Total Income (I + 1I)

EXPENSES

Access Charges, License Fees and Network Expenses

Employee Benefits Expenses
Finance Costs
Depreciation, Impairment and Amortisation

Sales and General Administration Expenses
Total Expenses (IV)
Profit Before Tax (llI- IV)

Tax expense:
- Current Tax
- Deferred Tax Charge/ (Credit) (net)
Profit After Tax (V - VI)
Other Comprehensive Income
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII + IX)

Earnings per Share of ¥ 10 each fully paid up
- Basic )
- Diluted (%)
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Notes

2.20
2.21

2.22
2.23
2.24
2.018&
2.02

2.25

(X in crore)
For Six months ended
September 30, 2016

991.51
0.65

992.16

884.84

2.48
150.34
198.33

73.46
1,309.45

(317.29)

(317.29)

(317.29)

(37.33)
(37.33)



Reliance Telecom Limited

Unaudited Interim Statement of Change in Equity
as at September 30, 2016

(a) Equity share capital

(% in crore)

Balance at April 1, 2016

8,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid 85.00

Change in equity share capital during the period -

Balance at September 30, 2016 85.00

(b) Other Equity (Xin Crore)

Reserves and Surplus
Preference
Particulars Share Retained Total
Redemption Earnings
Reserve

Balance as at April 1, 2016 200.00 (1,196.78) (996.78)

Loss for the period - (317.29) (317.29)

Other Comprehensive Income for the period - - -

Balance as at September 30, 2016 200.00 (1,514.07)  (1,314.07)
2.01 Property, Plant and Equipment (%in crore)

Particulars Leasehold Leasehold Buildings Plant and Machinery Equipment O_fflce Furr}lture and Vehicles Total
Land Improvement Equipment Fixtures

Gross carrying value
As at March 31, 2016 0.13 14.08 0.07 5,516.12 17.31 13.58 3.91 0.90 5,566.10
Additions -
Transfer from CWIP - - - 49.64 - - - - 49.64
Disposals - - - (6.40) - - - - (6.40)
Exchange Differences - - - 8.59 - - - - 8.59
As at September 30, 2016 0.13 14.08 0.07 5,567.95 13.58 3.91 0.90 5,617.93
Accumulated Depreciation
As at March 31, 2016 0.02 8.87 0.02 2,013.59 15.49 12.96 3.47 0.86 2,055.28
Depreciation for the period - 0.39 - 114.51 0.40 - 0.06 - 115.36
Disposals - - - (2.72) - - - - (2.72)
As at September 30, 2016 0.02 9.26 0.02 2,125.38 12.96 3.53 0.86 2,167.92
Closing net carrying value
as at September 30, 2016 0.11 4.82 0.05 3,442.57 0.62 0.38 0.04 3,450.01
Gross carrying value as at
September 30, 2016 0.13 14.08 0.07 5,567.95 13.58 3.91 0.90 5,617.93
Accumulated Depreciation 0.02 9.26 0.02 2,125.38 12.96 3.53 0.86 2,167.92
Closing net carrying value
as at September 30, 2016 0.11 4.82 0.05 3,442.57 0.62 0.38 0.04 3,450.01
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Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes to the Unaudited Interim Financial Statements

As at
September 30, 2016

2.02 Other Intangible Assets (X in crore)
Particulars Telecom Licences Software Total

Gross carrying value

As at March 31, 2016 3,458.69 0.23 3,458.92

Additions - - -

Disposals/ Discarded - - -

As at September 30, 2016 3,458.69 0.23 3,458.92

Accumulated amortisation

As at March 31, 2016 335.29 0.23 335.52

Amortisation for the period 82.97 - 82.97

Disposals/ Discarded - - -

As at September 30, 2016 418.26 0.23 418.49

Closing net carrying value as

at September 30, 2016 3,040.43 - 3,040.43

Gross carrying value as at

September 30, 2016 3,458.69 0.23 3,458.92

Accumulated amortisation 418.26 0.23 418.49

Closing net carrying value as

at September 30, 2016 3,040.43 - 3,040.43

2.03 Other Financial Assets

(X in crore)
ASar

Particulars September 30, 2016
Deposit with Bank (Margin Money Deposits) 5.25
5.25
2.04 Other Non Current Assets (in crore)
As at
Particulars September 30, 2016
Capital Advances 31.08
Prepaid Expenses 7.99
Deposits 38.40
77.47
2.05 Income Tax Assets (net) (in crore)
. As at
Particulars September 30, 2016
Advance Income Tax and Tax Deducted at 114.77
source (net of provision for tax)
114.77
2.06 Inventories (X in crore)
. As at
Particulars September 30, 2016
Stores and Spares 4.08
Stock in Trade 1.69
(Communication Devices and Accessories)
5.77
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Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes to the Unaudited Interim Financial Statements

2.07 Trade Receivables (unsecured)

(X in crore)

Particulars

As at
September 30, 2016

Considered Good 59.06
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 2.87

56.19
Considered Doubtful 91.21
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 91.21

56.19
2.08 Cash and Cash Equivalents (X in crore)

. As at
Particulars September 30, 2016
Cheques on hand 0.07
Balance with Banks 3.39

3.46
2.09 Other Financial Assets (X in crore)

. As at
Particulars September 30, 2016
Unbilled Revenue 39.34

39.34
2.10 Other Current Assets (Unsecured) (Xin crore)
As at

Particulars

September 30, 2016

a) Advances and Receivables
Considered good

Related Parties 750.16
Others 422.25
1,172.41
b) Others
Balance with Customs, Central Excise Authorities etc 191.50
Prepaid Expenses 223.53
1,587.44
2.11 Share Capital (X in crore)
. As at
Particulars September 30, 2016
Authorised

120,000,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each
100,000,000 Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each

280,000,000 Unclassified Shares of ¥ 10 each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
85,000,000 Equity Shares of X 10 each fully paid
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120.00

100.00

280.00

500.00

85.00

85.00




Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes to the Unaudited Interim Financial Statements

2.12 Borrowings (in Crore)
| As at
Particulars September 30, 2016
Secured
From Banks
Foreign Currency Loans 1,200.07
Rupee Loans 456.84
Unsecured
From Related Parties 300.00
1,956.91
2.13 Other Financial Liabilities (X in Crore)
Particulars As at
September 30, 2016
Interest Accrued but not due 298.12
298.12
2.14 Provisions
Particulars As at
September 30, 2016
Provision for Retirement Benefit 0.46
Assets retirement obligation 0.44
0.90
2.15 Borrowings (X in Crore)
Particulars As at
September 30, 2016
Unsecured
From Banks
Foreign Currency Loans-Buyers Credit 0.25
From Related Parties
Borrowings 3,475.04
Preference Shares 1,392.70
4,867.99
2.16 Trade Payables (% in Crore)
As at
Particulars September 30, 2016
Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 6.69
Related Parties 326.92
Others 293.94
627.55
2.17 Other Financial Liabilities (X in Crore)
As at

Particulars

September 30, 2016

Current Maturities of Long Term Debts
Secured
From Banks
Foreign Currency Loan from Banks
Rupee Term Loan
Others
Interest accrued but not due on loans
Capital Creditors

269.53
215.79

73.68
149.13

708.13
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Reliance Telecom Limited

Reliance Telecom Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

2.18 Other Current Liabilities (X in Crore)
As at
Particulars September 30, 2016
Accrual of Expenses 51.60
Advance from Customers 3.43
Income received in advance 131.91
Book Overdraft 19.62
Deposits 17.38
Statutory dues payable 52.66
Employee Benefits payable 0.77
277.37

2.19 Provisions (X in Crore)
As at

Particulars

September 30, 2016

Employee Benefits

2.20 Revenue from Operations

0.18

0.18

(X in crore)

Particulars

For Six months ended
September 30, 2016

Sale of Services
Less: Service Tax

2.21 Other Income

1,142.89
151.38 991.51

991.51

Particulars

For Six months ended
September 30, 2016

Interest Income
Miscellaneous Income

0.48
0.17

0.65
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Reliance Telecom Limited
Notes to the Unaudited Interim Financial Statements

2.22 Access Charges, Lcense fees and network Expenses

(X in crore)

For Six months ended

Particulars September 30, 2016
Access Charges 418.69
License Fees 70.53
Bandwidth Charges 23.61
Passive Infrastructure Charges 288.32
Rent 4.13
Rates and Taxes 0.33
Insurance 0.59
Repairs and Maintenance 49.60
Stores and Spares Consumed 8.44
Power, Fuel and Utilities 5.73
Cost of Service Contents and Applications 14.15
Other Network Operating Expenses 0.72
884.84
2.23 Employee Benefits Expenses (Xin crore)

Particulars

For Six months ended
September 30, 2016

Salaries and Wages 1.36
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 0.21
Employee Welfare and Other Amenities 0.91

2.48
2.24 Finance Costs (X in crore)

For Six months ended

Particulars September 30, 2016
Interest on Borrowings and Others 125.50
Commitment Charges/ Agency fee for Borrowings 22.35
Other Financial Cost 2.49
150.34

2.25 Sales and General Administrative Expenses (%in crore)

For Six months ended

Particulars September 30, 2016
Selling Expenses 39.31
Provision for Doubtful Debts 12.58

General Administration Expenses

Rent 0.41
Rates and Taxes 5.22
Repairs and Maintenance -Others 0.84
Travelling Expenses 1.35
Professional Fees 3.12
Net loss on Foreign currency transactions and translation 0.89
Net loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 3.35
Communication Expenses 0.03
Printing and Stationery 0.63
Billing and IT expenses 2.37
Postage and Courier 0.07
Membership and Subscription Fee 0.21
Hire Charges 0.18
Other General and Administrative Expenses 2.77 21.44
Payment to Auditors
- Audit Fees 0.13
73.46
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Aircel Limited
Supplementary Unaudited Accounting Statements as at September 30, 2016

(All amounts in rupees unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at
September 30, 2016
ASSETS
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 49,33,60,70,015
Capital work-in-progress 3,52,82,21,217
Intangible assets 2 74,21,78,54,354
Intangible assets under development 22,94,15,602
1,27,31,15,61,188
Financial assets
Investments 3 15,18,81,30,000
Security deposits 4 75,43,79,731
Margin money deposits 5 2,98,45,25,402
Other non-current assets 6 4,21,48,35,927
23,14,18,71,060
Current assets
Inventories - sim cards 5,44,06,733
Financial assets
Loans 7 8,47,69,99,499
Trade receivables 8 1,53,62,30,949
Cash and cash equivalents 9 17,69,96,66,533
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 10 2,00,98,676
Other current assets 11 10,39,22,35,015
38,17,96,37,405
Total 1,88,63,30,69,653
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 2,43,24,32,430
Other equity (1,84,27,25,82,824)
(1,81,84,01,50,394)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 12 3,13,13,89,67,373
Provisions 13 1,15,89,12,735
Other non-current liabilities 14 4,16,97,12,404
3,18,46,75,92,512
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 15 13,74,77,27,454
Trade payables 16 28,38,31,94,814
Other financial liabilities 17 5,20,49,03,976
Other current liabilities 18 4,21,68,75,683
Provisions 19 45,29,25,608
52,00,56,27,535
Total 1,88,63,30,69,653

153




Aircel Limited
Provisional Statement of Profit and Loss for the six months ended September 30, 2016
(All amounts in rupees unless otherwise stated)

Six months ended

Particul
articulars Notes September 30, 2016

Revenue from operations 20 32,00,43,54,859

Other income 21 2,70,28,31,072

Total Income 34,70,71,85,931
EXPENSES
Access charges 11,68,16,91,742
License fees and spectrum charges (revenue share) 4,54,77,18,706

Cost of materials consumed 11,33,22,998
Employee benefits expense 22 1,89,86,44,627
Other expenses 23 14,88,51,12,161
Finance costs 24 12,82,85,45,183
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 5,60,21,78,630

Total expenses 51,55,72,14,047
Loss for the period (16,85,00,28,116)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 37,90,931
Total comprehensive income/ (expense) for the period (16,84,62,37,185)
(Comprising loss and other comprehensive income/ (expense) for the period)
Loss per equity share:
- Basic (69)
- Diluted (69)
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Aircel Limited

Provisional Statement of Changes in Equity for six months ended September 30, 2016
(All amounts in rupees unless otherwise stated)

a) Equity share capital

Balance at the Changes in equity Balance at the end of

Particulars beginning of the share capital during the reporting period
reporting period the period

Equity Shares 2,43,24,32,430 - 2,43,24,32,430

b) Other equity

Particulars

Securities premium
reserve

Retained earnings

General reserve

Equity component of
redeemable preference
shares

Total

Balance at the beginning of
the reporting period

(2,42,97,90,88,368)

(1,83,74,03,32,355)

Loss for the period

11,87,53,92,570

(16,85,00,28,116)

9,51,81,63,664

37,84,51,99,779

Impact of modification of
terms of redeemable
preference shares

16,31,39,86,716

16,31,39,86,716

Other comprehensive income

37,90,931

Total comprehensive income/
(expense)

(16,84,62,37,185)

(16,84,62,37,185)

Balance at the end of the
reporting period

11,87,53,92,570

(2,59,82,53,25,553)

9,51,81,63,664

54,15,91,86,495

(1,84,27,25,82,824)
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Aircel Limited
Notes to the Provisional Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

3. Investments- Non-current financial assets

Trade investments (valued at cost)
Unquoted equity instruments
Investment in subsidiaries #

1,048,999,994 of Rs.10 each held in Aircel Cellular Limited

29,798,124 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each held in Dishnet Wireless Limited

34,999,994 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each held in Aircel Smart Money Limited

# Investment in ACL, ASML and DWL are pledged with banks as collateral security against

the borrowings.

4. Loans-Non-current Financial Assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Security deposits

5 Other-Non-current Financial Assets
Margin money deposits

6.  Other non current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Capital advances
Considered good
Considered doubtful
Provision for doubtful advances
Advances other than capital advances
Security deposit

Prepaid expenses
Advance income tax'[Net of provision of Rs. 428,597,773)
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As at
September 30,
2016

13,54,61,80,081

1,29,19,49,919

35,00,00,000

15,18.81,30.000

75,43,79,731

75.43,79,731

2,98,45,25,402

2,98.45,25.402

60,74,11,922
7,03,43,054
67,77,54,976
(7,03,43,054)
60,74,11,922

24,13,08,380
20,35,19,326
3,16,25,96,299

4,21,48,35,927



Aircel Limited
Notes to the Provisional Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

7 Loans-Current Financial Assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Security deposits
Intercorporate deposit to subsidiary

Other loans and advances to subsidiary

Others
Loans and advances to employees

8  Trade receivables
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Considered good
Considered doubtful

Provision for doubtful receivables

9 Cash and cash equivalents As at
September 30, 2016
Cash on hand 22,31,223
Cheques/Draft on hand 27,45,874
Balances with banks
-in current accounts 32,15,75,642
-deposits with original maturity of less than three months 17,37,31,13,794

17,69,96,66,533

10 Bank balances other than above
Margin money 2,00,98,676

2,00,98.676
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As at
September 30, 2016

53,53,13,499
1,05,87,28,569
6,87,84,83,980

44,73,451

8.47.69,99.499

As at
September 30, 2016

1,53,62,30,949
57,48,11,378

2,11,10,42,327
(57,48,11,378)

1,53.62,30,949




Aircel Limited

Notes to the Provisional Financial Statements As at
(All amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated) September 30, 2016
11. Other current assets

12.

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Advances other than capital advances
Advances to suppliers and others

Considered good 83,72,39,281

Considered doubtful 1,10,89,93,210
1,94,62,32,491

Less: Provision for doubtful advances (1,10,89,93,210)

83,72,39,281

Amounts receivable from DoT 4,69,67,45,699
Balances with Statutory / Government authorities
Considered good 2,40,80,65,608
Considered doubtful 8,76,81,999
2,49,57,47,607
Less: Provision for doubtful balances (8,76,81,999)
2,40,80,65,608
Prepaid expenses 1,01,69,40,652
Unamortised - debt origination cost 1,14,47,563
Accrued billing revenue 1,30,03,63,544
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 12,14,32,668

10,39,22,35,015

Borrowings-Non-current Financial Liabilities As at
September 30, 2016

Secured:

Term Loans from:
Banks - 70,87,29,26,782
Rupee loans 24,09,14,88,794

Foreign currency loans

Others- Financial Institutions
Rupee loans 94,96.,44,15,576

11,96,98,06,582

Finance lease obligations 1.06.93.42,22,158
Unsecured: 1,17,58,11,71,739
Due to related party 15,39,22,14,424
Deferred payment liabilities 73,23,13,59,052

Preference Share Capital- Debt component

2,06,20,47,45,215

3.13.13.89.67.373
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Aircel Limited
Notes to the Provisional Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

13.

14.

15.

16.

Non-Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences

Other provisions
Provision for site restoration cost
Provision for onerous contracts

Other non-current liabilities

Others:
- Liabilities for interest accrued on finance lease
- Liabilities for interest accrued on Deferred Payment Liability

Borrowings-Current Financial Liabilities

Unsecured:
Loans from banks
Buyer's credit in foreign currency

Trade payables- Current Financial Liabilities

Total outstanding dues of creditors :
(i) Acceptances
(i) Others

160

As at
September 30, 2016

4,66,47,151

2,93,03,006
1,08,29,62,578

1,15,89,12,735

1,80,53,14,737
2,36,43,97,667

4,16,97,12,404

12,97,25,00,000
77,52,27,454

13,74,77,27,454

As at
September 30, 2016

8,23,10,94,233
20,15,21,00,581

28,38,31,94,814




Aircel Limited
Notes to the Provisional Financial Statements

(All amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated) As at

September 30, 2016

17. Other financial liabilities-Current
Current maturities of finance lease obligations 2,56,04,023
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 36,56,55,057
Interest accrued and due on finance lease obligations 1,20,14,788
Interest free deposits from subscribers and others 54,28,28,948
Employee benefits payable 1,19,12,28,969
Liabilities against capital expenditure 3,06,75,72,191
5,20,49,03,976
18. Other current liabilities
Unearned revenue 2,64,73,77,446
Advance from customers 5,31,83,893
Statutory dues (including provident fund, tax deducted at source and service tax) 1,09,85,16,123
Others 41,77,98,221
4,21,68,75,683
19. Current provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity 9,94,49,079
Provision for compensated absences 2,76,91,853
Other provisions
Provision for onerous contracts 32,57,84,676
45,29,25.608
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Aircel Limited
Notes to the Provisional Financial Statements
(All amounts in rupees unless otherwise stated)

20

21.

22,

Revenue from operations

Service revenue

Other income

Interest income from :
Bank deposits
Customers on overdue amount
Profit on Sale of assets
Unwinding of discount on security deposits
Other non operating income :
Liabilities/Provision written back to the extent no longer required
Miscellaneous income

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other fund

Gratuity

Staff welfare expenses

Remeasurements of post-employment benefits obligations
Total

162

Six months ended

September 30,
2016

32,00,43,54,859

32,00.43.54.859

28,13,21,977
11,10,76,891
2,24,01,43,946
2,22,98,169

4,65,62,269
14,27,820

2,70,28,31,072

1,75,10,86,771
8,00,62,416
1,75,98,461
4,61,06,048
37,90,931

1,89.86.44.,627




Aircel Limited
Notes to the Provisional Financial Statements
(All amounts in rupees unless otherwise stated)

23. Other expenses

Advertisement and marketing

Sales commission and incentives
Business promotion

Billing and collection

Other selling distribution and marketing
Power and fuel

Rent

Repairs and maintenance to machinery
Repairs and maintenance to building
Repairs and maintenence others
Security charges

Insurance

Bandwidth, leaseline and port charges
VAS cost

Other network operating costs

Rates and taxes

Professional, legal and consultancy
Transition Charges

Recruitment and training

Travelling and conveyance
Communication

Printing and stationery

Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation (other than
considered as finance cost)

Directors' sitting fees

Bad debts

Provision for doubtful advances
Miscellaneous expenses

24. Finance cost
Interest expense
Other finance charges
Unwinding of discount on provisions and financial liabilities
Applicable net loss on foreign currency transactions and translation*®

Less: Borrowing cost capitalised on BWA/additional spectrum

* To the extent considered as an adjustment to borrowing cost

25. Depreciation, amortization and impairment expense

Depreciation on tangible assets
Amortization on intangible assets
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Six months ended
September 30,
2016

27,91,08,679
1,72,37,17,207
8,44,25 407
36,00,15,513
27,77,66,610
2,89,94,49,080
3,82,68,30,078
1,45,04,41,513
2,13,20,398
4,67,83,254
5,30,26,870
7,52,13,120
67,32,01,667
56,61,91,654
14,72,81,905
61,44,99,239
85,42,54,153
50,72,36,946
1,69,63,663
22,74,25,679
69,11,655
66,49,219
4,03,71,152

19,09,501
7,71,56,942

14,00,000
4,55,61,057

14.88,51.12.161

8,12,47,81,194
29,79,52,814
4,67,43,27,268
13,13,61,241

13,22,84,22,517
(39.98.77.334)

12,82,85.45.183

2,97,99,28,477
2,62,22,50,153

5,60,21,78,630



Dishnet Wireless Limited

Supplementary Unaudited Accounting Statements as at September 30, 2016

(All amounts in rupees unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at
September 30, 2016
ASSETS
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 62,11,02,19,643
Capital work-in-progress 2,41,91,69,569
Intangible assets 2 20,04,75,56,757
Intangible assets under development 38,03,249
84,58,07,49,218
Financial assets
Security deposits 3 54,77,12,674
Margin money deposits 4 1,55,91,80,120
Other non-current assets 5 4,25,94,60,322
6,36,63,53,116
Current assets
Inventories - sim cards 5,57,63,226
Financial assets
Trade receivables 6 3,29,70,38,074
Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,95,05,54,761
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8 1,48,16,619
Loans 9 95,20,34,519
Other current assets 10 17,79,05,90,180
24,06,07,97,379
Total 1,15,00,78,99,713
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 29,79,81,300
Other equity (1,61,92,55,42,246)
(1,61,62,75,60,946)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 11 1,97,60,41,85,384
Provisions 12 71,79,43,557
Other non-current liabilities 13 3,13,47,69,067
2,01,45,68,98,008
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14 22,12,40,14,829
Trade payables 15 31,05,92,32,710
Other financial liabilities 16 16,01,31,37,611
Other current liabilities 17 5,27,88,29,116
Provisions 18 70,33,48,385
75,17,85,62,651
Total 1,15,00,78,99,713
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Dishnet Wireless Limited

Provisional Statement of profit and loss for the six months ended September 30, 2016

(All amounts in rupees unless otherwise stated)

Six months

Particulars Note ended

September 30,
2016

Revenue from operations 19 35,56,21,83,774

Other income 20 51,28,46,023

Total Income 36,07,50,29,797

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 11,71,03,724

Access charges 8,56,29,89,313

License fees and spectrum charges (revenue share) 3,13,02,63,815

Employee benefits expense 21 1,35,62,59,534

Other expenses 22 14,37,85,71,666

Finance costs 23 8,84,80,14,259

Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 4,49,24,90,631

Total expenses 40,88,56,92,942

Loss before and after tax (4,81,06,63,145)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 2,34,857
(4,81,04,28,288)

Total comprehensive income/ (expense) for the period

(Comprising loss and other comprehensive income/ (expense) for the period

Loss per equity share

- Basic (161)

- Diluted (161)

a) Equity share capital

Balance at the Changes in equity | Balance at the end
Particulars beginning of the share capital of the reporting
reporting period | during the period period
Equity shares 29,79,81,300 - 29,79,81,300
b) Other equity
Securities Equity component

Particulars

premium reserve

General reserve

Retained earnings

of redeemable
preference shares

Total

Balance at the beginning of the
reporting period

3,08,21,31,384

20,19,21,50,689

(1,91,99,26,57,081)

11,60,32,61,050

(1,57,11,51,13,958)

Loss for the period

(4,81,06,63,145)

Other comprehensive income - - 2,34,857 - -
Total comprehensive income/
(expense) - - (4,81,04,28,288) - (4,81,04,28,288)

Balance at the end of the
reporting period

3,08,21,31,384

20,19,21,50,689

(1,96,80,30,85,369)

11,60,32,61,050

(1,61,92,55,42,246)
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Dishnet Wireless Limited
Notes to the Provisional Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Loans - Non-current Financial Assets

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits
Total

Other-Non-current Financial Assets
Margin money deposits

Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Capital advances

Considered good

Considered doubtful

Provision for doubtful advances
Advances other than Capital advances
Prepaid expenses
Security deposits

Advance income tax'[Net of provision of Rs. 360,654,957 ]

Total

Trade receivables - Current Financial Assets

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Considered good
Considered doubtful

Provision for doubtful receivables

Total

167

As at
September 30, 2016

54,77,12,674

54,77.12,674

1,55,91,80,120

1,55.91.80.,120

50,54,97,094
16,15,87,100
66,70,84,194
(16,15,87,100)
50,54,97,094

17,34,33,937
35,55,33,644
3,22,49,95,647

4.25.94.60,322

As at
September 30, 2016

3,29,70,38,074

77,28,35,750

4,06,98,73,824
(77,28,35,750)

3.29.70.38,074




Dishnet Wireless Limited
Notes to the Provisional Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

7. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Cheques/draft on hand
Bank balances
In current accounts
Demand deposits (less than 3 months maturity)

Total

8. Bank balances other than above
Margin money

Total

9. Loans - Current Financial Assets

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Security deposits
Loans to related parties

Others
-Loans and advances to employees

Total

10. Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Advances other than Capital advances
-Advances to suppliers and others
Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful advances
-Amounts paid under protest to DoT

Considered good

Considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful advance
-Balances with statutory/government authorities

Considered good

Considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful advances
-Prepaid expenses
-Accrued billing revenue
-Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Total

168

As at
September 30, 2016

5,99,403
26,248

63,03,62,818
1,31,95,66,292

1,95.05.54.761

1,48,16,619

1.48,16.619

As at
September 30, 2016

43,59,25,198
50,98,12,407

62,96,914

95,20,34.519

1,10,74,48,581
2,79,98,086
1,13,54,46,667
(2,79.98,086)
1,10,74,48,581

1,48,14,40,577
53,80,73,000
2,01,95,13,577
(53,80,73,000)
1,48,14,40,577

11,49,13,50,535
8,78,69,172
11,57,92,19,707

(8,78,69.172)
11,49,13,50,535

1,16,62,71,513
2,54,20,20,825
20,58,149

17,79,05,90,180




11. Borrowings - Non-current Financial Liabilities

Secured:
Term loans from:
Banks -
Rupee loans
Foreign currency loans
Others - Financial Institutions
Rupee loans

Finance lease obligations

Unsecured:
Due to related party
Deferred payment liabilities
Preference Share Capital- Debt component

Total

12. Non-current Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Other provisions
Site restoration cost

Provision for onerous contracts

Total

13. Other non-current liabilities

- Liabilities for interest accrued on finance lease

- Liabilities for interest accrued on Deferred Payment Liability

Total

14. Borrowings - Current Financial Liabilities

Unsecured:

Inter-corporate deposits from related parties
- Holding company

- Fellow subsidiary company

Buyer's credit in foreign currency

Total

15. Trade payables - Current Financial Liabilities

Total outstanding dues of creditors :
(i) Acceptances

(i1) Others

Total

169

As at
September 30, 2016

63,19,50,32,146
18,53,07,27,259

2,35,00,00,000

84,07,57,59,405

19,78,55,25,623

1,03,86,12,85,028

78,11,44,54,985
1,40,43,68,103
14,22,40,77,268

1,97,60.41,85,384

As at
Septeper 30, 2016

51,38,077
3,14,33,331

3,44,25,866
64,69,46,283

71,79,43,557

2,84,01,73,940
29,45,95,127

3,13,47,69,067

1,05,87,28,569
20,40,17,79,295
66,35,06,965
22,12,40,14,829

9,66,35,80,714
21,39,56,51,996
31,05,92,32,710



16.

17

18

19.

20.

Dishnet Wireless Limited
Notes to the Provisional Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Other Financial liabilities-Current

Current maturities of finance lease obligations

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Interest accrued and due on borrowings - Related Parties
Interest accrued and due on finance lease obligations
Interest free deposits from subscribers, dealers and others
Employee benefits payable

Liabilities against capital expenditure

Payable to related parties

Total

Other current liabilities
Unearned revenue
Advance from customers

Statutory dues (including provident fund, tax deducted at source and service tax)

Others

Total

Current Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences

Other provisions

Site Restoration Cost

Provision for roll out obligations
Provision for onerous contracts

Total

Revenue from operations

Mobile service
Aircel business services

Total

Other income

Interest income from :
Bank deposits
Customers on overdue amount

Profit on sale of assets
Unwinding of discount on security deposits

Other non operating income
Liabilities/provision written back to the extent no longer required
Provision for doubtful debts written back
Miscellaneous income

Total

170

As at
September 30, 2016

5,58,20,645
28,59,51,326
9,16,72,27,142
3,60,26,617
29,20,93,289
72,83,21,940
3,35,40,72,059
2,09,36,24,593

16,01,31,37,611

3,38,19,65,690
21,44,72,404
1,19,98,46,727
48,25,44,295

527,88,29,116

7,32,39,199
2,39,82,529

33,40,00,000
27,21,26,657

70,33,48,385

Six months ended
September 30, 2016

23,63,62,38,791
11,92,59,44,983

35,56,21,83,774

2,52,39,837
1,60,88,045
33,00,88,666
2,16,83,021

3,78,04,536
5,48,75,057
2,70,66,861

51,28.46,023




Dishnet Wireless Limited
Notes to the Provisional Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

21. Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other fund

Gratuity

Staff welfare expenses

Remeasurements of post-employment benefits obligations
Total

22. Other expenses
Advertisement and marketing
Sales commission and incentives
Business promotion
Billing and collection
Other selling distribution and marketing
Power and fuel
Rent expense
Bandwidth, leaseline and port charges
Repairs and maintenance- machinery
Net security expense
Insurance
VAS cost
Other network operating costs
Repairs and maintenance- building
Repairs and maintenance- others
Rates & taxes
Professional, legal and consultancy
Travelling and conveyance
Communication
Printing and stationery
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation (other than considered as finance cost)
Provision for doubtful advances
Directors' sitting fees
Bad debts
Recruitment and training
Miscellaneous expenses

Total
23. Finance costs
Interest expense
Other finance charges
Unwinding of discount on provisions and financial liabilities

Applicable net loss on foreign currency transactions and translation®

Total
* To the extent considered as an adjustment to borrowing cost

24. Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on tangible assets
Amortization on intangible assets
Reversal of impairment provision

- Tangible Assets

Total

171

Six months ended
September 30, 2016

1,24,32,20,693
5,83,86,462
1,42,70,341
4,01,47,181
2,34,857

1,35,62,59.534

11,51,17,386
1,43,73,53,539
4,05,12,977
22,63,39,880
22,63,42,042
4,16,19,42,206
3,75,43,78,371
1,10,45,99,787
1,30,88,23,670
10,58,08,999
5,95,06,748
30,31,64,064
19,44,37,004
4,49,71,951
2,36,00,762
20,08,22,572
74,01,93,869
19,13,16,297
56,12,580
52,39,197
1,41,26,653
11,44,695
18,59,251
10,30,02,149
3,21,168
80,33,849

14,37.85,71,666

7,05,66,29,669
81,98,72,976
87,03,14,937
10,11,96,677

8.84.80,14,259

3,68,07,56,148
82,56,21,345

(1,38,86,862)

4,49,24,90,631



Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited
Supplementary Unaudited Accounting Statements as at September 30, 2016

Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited
Provisional Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2016
All amounts in Indian Rupees (unless otherwise stated)

As at
Note 30 September
Particulars 2016
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment 1.1 16,84,89,45,070

16,84,89,45,070
Current assets

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1.2 66,96,260
Other current assets 1.3 4,436
67,00,696
Total Assets 16,85,56,45,766
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 1.4 46,00,00,000
Other Equity 1.5 7,23,18,64,197

7,69,18,64,197
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - unsecured (debt component of redeemable preference shares) 1.6 5,90,21,09,440
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 3,25,80,45,240

9,16,01,54,680
Current liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Trade payables 1.7 24,22.940
Other current liabilities 1.8 12,03,949
36,26,889

Total Equity and Liabilities 16,85,56,45,766
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Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited
Provisional Statement of profit and loss for six months ended 30 September 2016
All amounts in Indian Rupees (unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note Six months ended

30 September 2016
Other income 2.1 1,62,329
Total Income 1,62,329
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 22 90,000
Other expenses 2.3 10,44,004
Finance costs 2.4 31,87,93,083
Total expenses 31,99,27,087
Loss before tax (31,97,64,758)

Tax expense

Current tax expense 50,160

Deferred tax benefit (9,84,17,245)
Loss for the period (22,13,97,673)
Total comprehensive expense for the period (22,13,97,673)

Loss per equity share:
Basic (4.81)
Diluted (4.81)

173



Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial statements

1.1 - Non Current Investment Rs.
Particulars 30-Sep-16
Investment in Associate* 16,84,89,45,070
Total 16,84,89,45,070
* These Represents 85,135,135 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up of Aircel Limited

1.2 - Cash and cash equivalents Rs.
Particulars 30-Sep-16
Balances with banks:

- On cutrent accounts 27,96,260
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 39,00,000
Total 66,96,260

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,

and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

1.3 - Financial assets- Other current assets Rs.
Particulars 30-Sep-16

Interest accrued 1,683
Advance Income Tax 2,754
Total 4,436
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Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial statements

1.4 - Equity Share Capital

Particulars 30-Sep-16
Authorised Share Capital

30,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 3,00,00,00,000
Total 3,00,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed And Paid Up

Equity Shares

4,60,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 46,00,00,000
TOTAL 46,00,00,000

a. Movement in respect of Equity Shares is given below :

Particulars 30 September 2016
Nos. Amount in Rs.
At the beginning of the period 4,60,00,000 46,00,00,000
(+) Issued during the period* - -
(-) Redeemed during the period - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 4,60,00,000 46,00,00,000

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shates having a par value of Rs. 10/- pet share. The holders of the equity

shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to voting rights proportionate to

their share holding at the meetings of shareholders.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of

the company , after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of

equity shares held by the shareholders.

c. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars 30 September 2016
Nos. % of Holding
Equity Shares :-
Sindya Securities and Investments Private Limited: Holding Company 3,41,71,560 74%
Globgl Communication Services Holdings Ltd, Mauritius including its 1,18.28,440 26%
nominees
Total 4,60,00,000 100%

d. Interim Dividend "NIL" per share is paid in respect of Equity Shates in Current Year.
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Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited

Notes forming part of Financial statements

1.5 - Other Equity

Particulars

Retained Earnings

Equity component of
redeemable preference
shares

Total equity

Balance as at March 31, 2016

(7,15,15,77,902)

14,60,48,39,772

7,45,32,61,870

Profit / loss for the period

(22,13,97,673)

(22,13,97,673)

Balance at the end of the reporting period

(7,37,29,75,575)

14,60,48,39,772

7,23,18,64,197

Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited

Notes forming part of Financial statements

1.6 - Borrowings - unsecured

Particulars

30-Sep-16

Debt component of redeemable preference shares

5,90,21,09,440

Total 5,90,21,09,440
1.7 - Trade Payables - Current Rs.
Particulars 30-Sep-16

Other payables 24.22.940

Total 24,22,940
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

» Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms

» Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months

» Interest payable is normally settled quarterly throughout the financial year

1.8 - Other Current Liabilities Rs.
Particulars 30-Sep-16
Advances received from related parties 10,57,389
Statutory Liabilities 1,46,560
Total 12,03,949
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Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited

Notes to the Provisional Statement of profit and loss for six months ended 30 September 2016

2.1 - Other Income Rs.
Particulars Period Ended
30 September 2016
Interest on bank deposit (Gross) 1,62,329
Total 1,62,329
2.2 - Employee benefits expense Rs.
Particulars Period Ended
30 September 2016
Salary Cost 90,000
Total 90,000
2.3 - Other Expenses Rs.
Particulars Period Ended
30 September 2016
Professional & Consultancy Fees 7,27,500
Rent 45,000
Bank Charges 224
Audit Fees 2,50,000
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation 21,280
Total 10,44,004
2.4 - Finance Cost
Particulars Period Ended
30 September 2016
Expenses / (Income) on Fair Valuation of
- Other non current financial liabilities 31,87,93,083
Total 31,87,93,083
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South Asia Communications Private Limited
Supplementary Unaudited Accounting Statements as at September 30, 2016

All amounts in Indian Rupees (unless otherwise stated)

Note As at
Particulars 30 September 2016
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Financial Assets
Investment 1.1 5,80,76,11,322
5,80,76,11,322
Current assets
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1.2 1,81,84,588
Other current assets 1.3 51,074
1,82,35,662
Total Assets 5,82,58,46,984
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 1.4 6,21,72,780
Other Equity 1.5 (14,78,81,143)
(8,57,08,363)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - unsecured (debt component of redeemable preference sh 1.6 5,90,87,91,902
5,90,87,91,902
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 1.7 11,06,556
Other current liabilities 1.8 14,67,889
Provisions 1.9 1,89,000
27,63,445
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,82,58,46,984
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South Asia Communications Private Limited

Provisional Statement of profit and loss for six months ended 30 September 2016

All amounts in Indian Rupees (unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note Six months ended

30 September 2016
Finance income 2.1 32,54,22,298
Other income 2.2 4,22.675
Total revenue 32,58,44,973
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 23 1,35,000
Other expenses 2.4 13,54,046
Finance costs 2.5 31,88,63,024
Total expenses 32,03,52,070
Profit before tax 54,92,903
Current tax expense 1,30,607
Profit for the period 53,62,296
Total comprehensive income for the period 53,62,296
Earnings per equity share :
Basic 0.86
Diluted 0.86

179



South Asia Communications Private Limited
Notes to the Provisional Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2016

1.1 - Other Non Current Financial Assets

Particulars

30-Sep-16

Non-Convertible, Cumulative, Redeemable Preference Shares*
Add(Less) : Fair Value Impact

5,48,21,89,023
32,54,22,298

Total

5,80,76,11,322

* These Represents 1,644,594,517 Redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

up of Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited

1.2 - Cash and cash equivalents Rs.
Particulars 30-Sep-16
Balances with banks:

- On current accounts 30,64,976
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 1,51,19,612
Total 1,81,84,588

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the company, and

earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

1.3. Finacial assets-Other current assets Rs.
Particulars 30-Sep-16
Interest Accured 24,854
Advance Income Taxes 26,220
Prepayments (paid to Director for future services)

Total 51,074
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South Asia Communications Private Limited

Notes to the Provisional Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2016

1.4 - Equity Share Capital Rs.
Particulars 30-Sep-16
Authorised Share Capital
300,000,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each 3,00,00,00,000
Total 3,00,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed And Paid Up
Equity Shares
6,217,278 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 6,21,72,780
TOTAL 6,21,72,780
a. Movement in respect of Equity Shares is given below :
Particulars 30 September 2016
Nos. Amount in Rs.

At the beginning of the period 62,17,278 6,21,72,780
(+) Issued during the period* - -
(-) Redeemed during the period - -

Outstanding at the end of the period 62,17,278 6,21,72,780

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shates

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per shate. The holders of the equity shares are
entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to voting rights proportionate to their share holding at

the meetings of shareholders.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company
, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shates held by the

shareholders.

c. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars 30 September 2016
Nos. % of Holding
Equity Shares :-
Global Communication Services Holdings Ltd, Mauritius: Holding Company including 100%
its nominees 62,17,278
Total 62,17,278 100%
d. Interim Dividend "NIL" per shate is paid in respect of Equity Shares in Current Year.
1.5 - Other Equity Rs.
Equity component of
Particulars Retained Earnings redeemable preference Total equity
shares
Balance as at March 31, 2016 (14,75,68,35,579) 14,60,35,92,140 (15,32,43,439)
Add: Profit/ Loss for the year 53,62,296 - 53,62,296
Balance at the end of the reporting period (14,75,14,73,283) - (14,78,81,143)
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South Asia Communications Private Limited
Notes to the Provisional Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2016

1.6 - Borrowings - unsecured

Particulars

30-Sep-16

Debt component of redeemable preference shares

5,90,87,91,902

Total 5,90,87,91,902
1.7 - Trade Payables - Current Rs.
Particulars 30-Sep-16

Other payables 11,06,556

Total 11,06,556
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

» Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms
» Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months
» Interest payable is normally settled quarterly throughout the financial year
1.8 - Other Current Liabilities Rs.
Particulars 30-Sep-16
Advances received from related parties 14,15,859
Statutory dues - tax deducted at source 52,030
Total 14,67,889
1.9 - Short Term Provisions Rs.
Particulars 30-Sep-16
Expenses Payable 1,89,000
Total 1,89,000
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South Asia Communications Private Limited

Notes to the Provisional Statement of profit and loss for six months ended 30 September 2016

2.1 - Finance income

Particulars

Period Ended
30 September 2016

Expenses / (Income) on Fair Valuation of

- Other non cutrent financial assets (32,54,22,298)
Total (32,54,22,298)
2.2 - Other Income Rs.

Particulars Period Ended

30 September 2016

Interest on bank deposit (Gross) 4,22.675
Others -
Total 4,22,675
2.3 - Employee benefits expense Rs.
Particulars Period Ended
30 September 2016
Salaries and Bonus 1,35,000
Total 1,35,000
2.4 - Other Expenses Rs.
Particulars Period Ended

30 September 2016

Professional & Consultancy Fees 9,49,030
Audit Fees 2,50,000
Bank charges 1,006
Interest charges on Delayed remittance of Stautory dues 1,33,456
Miscellaneous Expenses 20,554
Total 13,54,046
2.5 - Finance Cost Rs.
Particulars Period Ended
30 September 2016

Expenses / (Income) on Fait Valuation of

- Other non current financial liabilities 31,88,63,024

Total

31,88,63,024
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Reliance Communications Limited
R@I I A N‘ @ Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City Tel : +91 22 3037 3333
Navi Mumbai - 400 710, India

+91 22 3038 6286
Fax: +81 22 3037 6622

WWW,rcom.co,in

Annexure |

Complaints Report

Details of complaints received from 7th December to 28th December, 2018 for the
propcsed Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Reliance Communications
Limited And Reliance Telecom Limited And Aircel Limited And Dishnet Wireless Limited
And Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited And South Asia Communications Private
Limited And their Respeactive Shareholders And Creditors (“Scheme”).

Part A

Sr. Particulars Number

No.

1. Number of complaints received directly NIL

2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange NIL

3. Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) NIL

4. Number of complaints resolved Not Applicable

5. Number of complaints pending Not Applicable
Part B

Sr. | Name of complainant Date of complaint Status

No. (Resolved/Pending)

Not Applicable

For Reliance Co unications Limited

akash Shenoy
ompany Secretary

Date: 297 December, 2016

Registered Office : H Block, 1st Floor, Dhirubhal Ambani Knowledge Gity, Navi Mumbal - 400 710, Maharashtra, india
CIN No, : L45309MH2004PLC147531
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Annexure |
Complaints Report

Details of complaints received from 18™ October, 2016 to 7" November, 2016 for the
proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Reliance Communications
Limited And Reliance Telecom Limited And Airce! Limited And Dishnet Wireless Limited
And Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited And South Asia Communicaticns Private
Limited And their Respective Shareholders And Creditors (*Scheme”).

Part A

Sr. Particulars Number

No.

1. Number of complaints received directly Nil

2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange Nil

3. Total Number of complaints/comments received {1+2) Nil

4. Number of complaints resolved Not Applicable

5. Number of complaints pending Not Applicable
Part B

Sr. Name of complainant Date of complaint Status

No. (Resolved/Pending)

Nof Applicable

For Reliance Communications Limited

rakash Shenoy
mpany Secretary

Date: 10" November, 2016.
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NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE

OF INDIA LIMITED \SO

Ref: NSE/LIST/10520 March 03, 2017

The Company Secretary

Reliance Communications Limited
H Block, 1st Floor,

Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City,
Thane, Navi Mumbai 400710

Kind Attn.: Mr. Prakash Shenoy
Dear Madam,

Sub: Observation letter for Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Reliance
Communications Limited And Reliance Telecom Limited And Aircel Limited And Dishnet
Wireless Limited And Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited And South Asia
Communications Private Limited And their Respective Shareholders And Creditors

This has reference to Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Reliance Communications
Limited And Reliance Telecom Limited And Aircel Limited And Dishnet Wireless Limited And
Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited And South Asia Communications Private Limited And
their Respective Shareholders And Creditors submitted to NSE vide your application dated
December 06, 2016.

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/99280 submitted to SEBI and pursuant to SEBI
Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015, SEBI has vide letter dated
February 17, 2017, has given following comments on the draft Scheme of Amalgamation:

“The Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.”

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking
given in terms of regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, we hereby convey our “No-
objection” in terms of regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, so as to enable the
Company to file the draft scheme with the Hon’ble High Court / NCLT.

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement, Guidelines
/ Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from March 03, 2017, within which
the Scheme shall be submitted to the Hon’ble High Court/ NCLT. Further pursuant to the above
cited SEBI circulars upon sanction of the Scheme by the Hon’ble High Court / NCLT, you shall
submit to NSE the following:

a) Copy of Scheme as approved by the High Court / NCLT;

b) Result of voting by shareholders for approving the Scheme;

c) Statement explaining changes, if any, and reasons for such changes carried out in the
Approved Scheme vis-a-vis the Draft Scheme,

d) Status of compliance with the Observation Letter/s of the stock exchanges.

e) The application seeking exemption from Rule 19(2)(b) of SCRR, 1957, wherever
applicable; and

Regd. Office: Exchange Plaza, Plot No.C/1, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051, India CIN:U67120MH1992PLC069769 Tel:+91 22
26598235/36,26598346, 26598459/26598458 Web site: www.nseindia.com
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Continuation Sheet

f) Complaints Report as per SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30,
2015.

Yours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Divya Poojari
Manager

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following
URL http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer : Divya Babu Poojari
Date: Fri, Mar 3, 2017 17:46:10 GMT+05:30

2. @ NSE Location: NSE
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EXPERIENCE THE NEW

DCS/AMAL/MD/R37/718/2016-17 March 03,2017

The Company Secretary

RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

H Block, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City,

1st Floor ,Navi Mumbai - 400710, Maharashtra

Sir,

Sub: Observation letter regarding the Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Reliance Communications
Ltd (RCL), Reliance Telecom Limited (RTL), Aircel Limited (AL), Dishnet Wireless Eimited (DWL)

Deccan Digital Networks Pvt. Limited {(DDNPL) and South Asia Communications Pvt. Ltd. (SACPL)

We are in receipt of Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Reliance Communications Ltd (RCL), Reliance
Telecom Limited (RTL), Aircel Limited (AL), Dishnet Wireless Limited (DWL), Deccan Digital Networks Pvt.
Limited (DDNPL) and South Asia Communications Pvt. Ltd. (SACPL) and their shareholders and creditors filed
as required under SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015; SEBI vide its letter
dated March 03, 2017, has inter alia given the following comment(s) on the draft scheme of arrangement:

* “Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circulars.”

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised:
» To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars,

In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to those
matters having a bearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the provisions of Listing
Agreement, so as to enable the company to file the scheme with Hon’ble High Court.

Further, pursuant to the above SEBI circulars, upon sanction of the Scheme by the Hon’ble High Court, the listed
company shall submit to the stock exchange the following:

« Copy of the High Court approved Scheme;

« Result of voting by shareholders for approving the Scheme;

» Statementexplaining changes, if any, and reasons for such changes carried outin the Approved Scheme
vis-a-vis the Draft Scheme;

Copy of the observation letter issued by all the Stock Exchanges where Company is listed.

Status of compliance with the Observation Letter/s of the stock exchanges;

The application seeking exemption from Rule 19(2)(b) of SCRR, 1957, wherever applicabie; and
Complaints Report as per Annexure II of this Circular.

Any other document/disclosure as informed by the Exchange.

The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its ‘No adverse observation’ at any stage if the information
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / misleading / false or for any contravention
of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement, Guidelines/Regulations issued by
statutory authorities.

Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from complying with any other
requirements.

Yours faithfully,
MA
itin Phjari
Manager

< é E BSE Limited (Formerly Bombay Stock Exchange Ld) o
? 4 Registered Office : Floor 25, P 1 Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400

S E N S EX T: 491 22 22721234/33 E; corpcomm@bselindlacom w

Corporate dentity Number ; U67.120MH2005P!
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Reli icati Limi PROXY FORM
RELIANCE [ R i oxXv'Fo

. Registered Office: H Block, 1st Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City, Navi Mumbai - 400 710
Communications Tel - 022-30386286, Fax no - 022-30376622, Website: www.rcom.co.in

Before the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench
Company Scheme Application No. 264 of 2017
In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013; (18 of 2013)
AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules framed thereunder as in force from time to time;

AND

In the matter of Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 and other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956

AND

In the matter of Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Reliance Communications Limited (“the
Demerged Company 1") and Reliance Telecom Limited (“the Demerged Company 2") and Aircel Limited
("Resulting Company 1" or "Transferee Company") and Dishnet Wireless Limited ("Resulting Company 2")
and Deccan Digital Networks Private Limited (“the Transferor Company 1") and South Asia Communications
Private Limited (“the Transferor Company 2") and their respective Shareholders and Creditors

RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED, a company incorporated under the )

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at H Block, )

15t Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City, Navi Mumbai 400 710. ).e......Applicant Company

Name of the member(s)

Registered address

E-mail ID

Folio No. /DP ID & Client ID*
No. of shares held

* Applicable in case shares are held in electronic form.
1/We, being the member(s) of [ ] equity shares of the RELIANCE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED, hereby appoint

1. Name :

Address :

Email - ID :

Signature :

or failing him

2. Name :

Address :

Email - ID :

Signature :

or failing him

1. Name :

Email - ID :

Address :

Signature :

as my / our proxy, to act for me/ us at the National Company Law Tribunal convened Meeting of the Equity Shareholders to be held on April 24, 2017 at
9.30 A.M. IST at Reliance Energy Management Institute, Jogeshwari-Vikhroli Link Road, Opp. SEEPZ, North Gate No.3. Aarey Colony, Aarey Colony Road,
Mumbai - 400065, for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
between Reliance Communications Limited and Reliance Telecom Limited and Aircel Limited and Dishnet Wireless Limited and Deccan Digital Networks
Private Limited and South Asia Communications Private Limited and their respective shareholders and Creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 at such meeting and any adjournment or adjournments thereof, to vote, for me/us and in my/our
NAME(S).vvverever e (here, if for, insert 'FOR', or if against, insert '"AGAINST' and in the latter case strike out the words 'EITHER WITH
OR WITHOUT MODIFICATIONS' after the word resolution) the said arrangement embodied in the Scheme and the resolution, either with or without
modification(s)*, as my/our proxy may approve.

*strike out whatever is not applicable
Please affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signed this _ day of 2017

Signature of Shareholder(s) Signature of Proxy Holder(s)

Notes:

1. This form in order to be effective must be duly stamped, completed and signed and must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company.
not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

Please affix revenue stamp before putting signature.

Alterations, if any, made in the Form of Proxy should be initialed.

In case of multiple proxies, the Proxy later in time shall be accepted.

Proxy need not be shareholder of the Company.

v wn
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Communications
Reliance Communications Limited
CIN - L45309MH2004PLC147531

Reqistered Office: H Block, 1st Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City, Navi Mumbai - 400 710
Tel - 022-30386286, Fax no - 022-30376622, Website: www.rcom.co.in

ATTENDENCE SLIP
TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING ON APRIL 24, 2017 AT 9.30 A.M. IST

Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID*
No. of shares held

* Applicable in case shares are held in electronic form.
I/ We certify that I/ We am/ are registered shareholder/ proxy for the reqistered shareholder of the Company.

I/ We hereby record my presence at the TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING of the Equity Shareholders of the Company
held on April 24, 2017 at Reliance Energy Management Institute, Jogeshwari-Vikhroli Link Road, Opposite SEEPZ,
North Gate No. 3, Aarey Colony, Aarey Colony Road, Mumbai 400065 at 9.30 A.M. IST.

Shareholder's / Proxy's name in BLOCK letters Signature of Shareholder /Proxy

Note: Please fill in the attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall. Joint Shareholder(s) may
obtain additional attendance slip at the venue of the meeting
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Map of the Venue of the Meeting

Reliance Energy Management Institute,
Jogeshwari-Vikhroli Link Road, Opposite SEEPZ North Gate No. 3,
Aarey Colony, Aarey Colony Road, Mumbai 400 065
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